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Stock price at year-end $ 27 % $ 197 368 ‘ 43 6.0
Book value at year-end $ 14.71 $ 1507 (24 2.0 2.9
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Rate of return on common equity 11.7% 11.1% — —_ —_
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AT YEAR-END:
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Capital structure

Common cquity 36.8% 43.9% — — —_

Preferred stock 4.1% 4.8% — — —

Long-term debt . 59.1% 51.3% — —_ —
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B Edison International’s
Worldwide Operations

Edison International

Edison International is the parent com-
pany of Southern California Edison,
Edison Mission Energy, Edison Capital,
Edison Technology Solutions and Edison
Enterprises, which includes Edison
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IN 1997, THE ACHIEVEMENTS OF EpisoN INTERNATIONAL WERE BUILT ON EXPERIENCE, GROWTH AND
INNOVATION: THE EXPERIENCE OF TALENTED, DEDICATED EMPLOYEES;, THE.GROWTH IN OUR COMPANY'S
ASSETS TO 325.1 BILLION AND REVENUES TO $9.2 BILLION; AND INNOVATION THROUGH THE INTRODUCTION

OF EXCITING NEW PRODUCTS AND SERVICES. WE ARE ONE COMPANY ENTERING A NEW ERA WITH STRONG,
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RELATED BUSINESSES, ALL POISED TO MEET ENERGY AND INFRASTRUCTURE NEEDS FOR THE 21ST CENTURY. W

ARE FOCUSED ON CREATING SHAREHOLDER VALUE BY PURSUING REGIONAL, NATIONAL AND INTERNATIONAL

BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES. WE ARE Epison INTERNATIONAL ~ THE PowEr BEnino Peace or Minb.




DEAR y
SHAREHOLDERS,

In 1997, the skill and hard work
of Edison International people created
excellent results. The goals most vital
to our success for the year were mect-
ing our earnings targets, achicving cost
recovery objectives while helping .
create the new California clectricity

market, and building a strong platform

~in B AN

for future growth. I am happy to
report that these goals were achieved.
Returns to sharcholders reflected this

performance, substantially exceeding

The goals most vital to our

success for the year were meeting

our earnings targets, achieving

cost recovery objectives while

helping create the new California

electricity market, and

building a strong platform for

future growth. I am happy

to report that these goals were

achieved.

most of our industry peers, and pro-
viding a total return of 42% in stock
appreciation and dividends.

Earnings for Edison International
increased to $1.75 per share from $1.64
in the prior year. Operating earnings
increased by four cents per share.
Although Southern California Edison’s
carnings declined, they exceeded our
expectations. Strong sales and cost
controls offset the cffects of reduced
returns associated with restructuring
and two lengthy outages at the San
Onofre Nuclear Generating Station.

Our principal nonutility compa-
nies set new carnings records. Edison
Capital posted a 50% increase in earn-
ings and a record 23% rcturn on equi-
ty. Edison Mission Encrgy (EME)

increased its carnings by 25%, and




achiceved a 12.2% return on cquity.
Together, Edison Capital and Edison
Mission Energy contributed 25% of
Edison International’s total carnings,
up from 18% in 1996.

Under the new California restruc-
turing law, Southern California
Edison is permitted within the next
four years to recover approximately $5
billion in investments previously made
as part of our utility service obligation.
Most of these investments were in
power generation, which becomes a
strictly competitive enterprise in the
new market. To recover those dollars,
we must maintain strong service and
reliable performance within tough
cost disciplines. At the same time, we
must increase revenues while operat-
ing under a rate frecze. In 1997, we
did both, improving prospects for full
recovery.

Three large transactions were
particularly significant to cost recov-
cry. First, from late last year to carly
this year, we reached agreements to
sell 11 natural gas-fired power plants
for a total price of $1.1 billion, or more

than twice the book value of these

plants. Second, during this same peri-
od, we cntered into a $48 million
hedge on natural gas costs to help off-
sct the effect of potentially higher fuel
prices on electricity costs over the next
four years. Third, working with the
State of California, we created and
sold $2.5 billion in innovative notes,
known as “rate reduction bonds.”
These bonds provided us cash for
retirement of more expensive debt
and equity at the utility, allowing for
future investments and share repur-
chases at Edison International. They
also made possible a 10% rate reduc-
tion for our residential and small busi-
ness customers, which is now in effect.
Finally, in each of our businesses
we built a strong foundation for future
growth. Edison Capital made $520
million worth of investments, more
than six times the previous annual
average, including significant transac-
tions in Australia and the Netherlands.
Edison Mission Encrgy reached
agreements for new power gencration
projects in Thailand and the
Philippines with a combined capacity
of 1,038 megawatts. EME also
purchased the remaining 49% of our
1,000-megawatt, coal-fired power
plantin Australia. Southern
California Edison built pioncering

systems for the new clectricity market,

while at the same time maintaining
last year’s top decile performance in
distribution costs per customer. And
we recruited accomplished leadership
for our retail business, Edison
Enterpriscs, which launched a series of

new products and services in 1997.

Focus ON :

GROWTH

For Edison International, growth
is vitally important. Disciplined
growth attracts and energizes talented
people. That in turn builds increased
sharcholder value. We built value in
1997 by repurchasing 48 million shares
of our stock at favorable prices and
through recovery of prior utility

investments. We will continue to give

In seeking growth, our highest

priority will be investments

in our existing businesses. We will

also pursue extensions of

those businesses into related areas

where our experience and

skills offer real potential for

competitive advantage.




high priority to both share repurchases
and cost recovery, but achieving
increased value in the future will
require, even more than in the past,
new initiatives and investments. Over
the last decade, we have grown Edison
Mission Energy and Edison Capital
into businesses whose combined assets
exceed $6.7 billion. Now we need to
continuc and intensify that growth.

In secking growth, our highest
priority will be investments in our
existing businesses. We will also pur-

.
suc cxtensions of those businesses into
related areas where our experience
and skills offer real potential for com-
petitive advantage. We will not take
initiatives or invest in businesses unre-

lated to energy, infrastructure or those

retail businesses which cannot build
value from the Edison brand and
reputation.

Within this country, restructuring
and the movement to competition in
power generation and retail markets
provide new growth opportunities.
Utility power plants valucd at billions
of dollars will be divested into compet-
itive markets in the next several years.
Edison Mission Encrgy should profit
from this historic transformation. In
new retail electricity markets, cus-
tomized services, including particular-
ly energy management outsourcing,
will provide real customer benefits.
Edison Enterprises should be a leader
in this ficld.

Qutside the United States, the
trend toward privatization, the move-
ment to competitive markets, and clec-
tricity’s vital role in cconomic
development all point to large growth
opportunities. Traditionally, most elec-
tric systems around the world have
been state-owned and managed. In the
past five years, however, people and
governments in country after country
have seen the advantages of private
businesses providing infrastructure and
scrvices. By taking risk and secking
reward, the private sector offers capital
and skills which are rarely found in
public undertakings. This means that
governments, particularly in develop-

ing countries, can put scarce capital to

The risk inherent in new business

initiatives can be mitigated,

but it will not go away. We are

nonetheless committed to

growth, pursued with discipline

and perseverance.

other vital purposes while at the same
time achieving more efficient develop-
ment of electric systems.

Edison International has been an
carly mover in sccking out and capi-
talizing on these new opportunitics.
Our experience in Australia is a good
example. In 1992, we pioneered the
privatized market there with the pur-
chase of 51% of the Loy Yang B power
plant, then under construction by the
State of Victoria. The initial experi-

ence with Loy Yang B, which we




opcerate, was so positive for the State
that it proceeded to sell off its entire
clectric system. This year we saw the
opportunity to create another win-win
outcome for the State of Victoria and
our company. Edison Mission
Energy’s Bob Edgell led negotiations
which resulted in our purchase of the
remaining 49% of Loy Yang B. The
State reccived a combination of cash
and a substantial reduction in the price
and duration of the government’s
power purchase obligation. Without
acting carly on privatization and
without taking a new initiative last
year, this excellent result would not
have been possible.

As we scek to meet ambitious
objectives, there will be many competi-
tors, most of them well financed. The
risk inhcrent in new business initia-
tives can be mitigated, but it will not
go away. We are nonctheless commit-
ted to growth, pursued with discipline
and perseverance. With the commit-
ment and skills of our employees, we
cxpect to capture a valuable share of
the opportunities in these new and
changing markets and thereby con-

tinue to reward your investment in us.

BOARD

CHANGES

In 1997, we said farewell to our
former chairman and CEQ, Howard
Allen, who announced his retirement
from the board of directors in June,
after 43 years of valuable and devoted
service with the company. We also
welcomed back Warren Christopher
to the board of directors, following his
distinguished tenure as Secretary of
State of the United States. It is a privi-
lege to work with your board of dircc-
tors and the talented, dedicated
employees of Edison International. We

thank you for your support.

<. Copon

Joun E. Bryson
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Qfficer’

February 20, 1998
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By ANY MEASURE, THE TRAUMA TEAM AT Lonc Beacu MemoriaL Mepical. CENTER IN SOUTHERN
CALIFORNIA IS ONE OF THE BEST IN THE BUSINESS. AT A MOMENT’S NOTICE, SURGEONS, NURSES AND OTHER g
SPECIALISTS STAND READY TO PROVIDE EMERGENCY MEDICAL CARE. TWENTY-FOUR HOURS A DAY, SEVEN
DAYS A WEEK, THIS TEAM OF DEDICATED PROFESSIONALS COMFORTS AND CARES FOR THE PEOPLE WHO PASS
THROUGH THEIR DOORs. OF COURSE, SUCH COMMITMENT I1SN"T NEW AT LoNG Beactt MEMORIAL... IT's
PART OF THE MEDICAL CENTER’S O-YEAR TRADITION OF QUALITY HEALTH CARE. AND DURING THOSE g0 :

YEARS, SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA Ep1soN (SCE) 11as rrovIDED THE MEDICAL CENTER WITH A SAFE, RELIABLE

evement e
EXxperience S

L] L

Growthjs

Ilnnovation

SUPPLY OF ELECTRICITY. IN RECENT YEARS, SCE 1as neLren Lone Beactt MEMORIAL SAVE MILLIONS OF

DOLLARS IN ENERGY COSTS, UPGRADE ITS LIGHTING SYSTEMS AND PROTECT ITS LIFE-SAVING MEDICAL EQUIP-
MENT AGAINST SERVICE INTERRUPTIONS. IUST AS THE EXPERIENCED PROFESSIONALS AT LoNG Beactt MEMORIAL
MebicaL CENTER ARE DEDICATED TO SAVING LIVES, SO TOO IS SoutHerN CaLIForNIA EpisoN’s TEAM oOF

EXPERIENCED PROFESSIONALS DEDICATED TO RELIABLE ELECTRIC SERVICE... ANY TIME, DAY OR NIGHT.

rrOM LEFT: Claudia Oneta, RN, Clinical Surgical ICU Nurse, Audrey Ellzey, RN, NF, PAC,
Trauma Clinician and Brian Acker, MD, Director of Trauma Services. -~
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SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON

1997 was a strong year for Southern
California Edison (SCE). SCE over-
came substantial challenges to exceed
its targeted carnings per share. The
company also took significant mea-
sures, including plant divestiture, to
prepare for California’s new clectricity
marketplace, which was scheduled to
open on March 31, 1998.

SCE’s reported carnings per share
were up two cents in 1997, to $1.44.
SCE’s per-share earnings increased
despite the fact that total earnings fell
7.2%, to $576 million in 1997. Part of
this reduction was anticipated because
of lower authorized rates of rcturn
associated with accelerated recovery of
SCE’s investments at the San Onofre
Nuclear Generating Station (SONGS)
and the Palo Verde nuclear plant, and
because of scheduled refueling outages
at SONGS Units 2 and 3.
Unscheduled outages for repairs at
SONGS further reduced SCE'’s total
carnings in 1997. However, the
impact of this decline on earnings per
share was offsct by SONGS’ strong
performance following the outages, an
increase in retail kilowartt-hour sales,
the company’s disciplined cost control
and Edison International’s aggressive
stock repurchase program.

PREPARING FOR A
EW MARKETPLACE

In 1997, SCE prepared to facilitate
California’s new clectricity market-
place by providing transmission, dis-
tribution and customer services at

[

a

Experience is over a century of safe,
reliable electric service

tariffed rates to its customers, who
may choose to buy clectricity cither
from SCE or from other, unrcgulated,
power supplicrs. SCE will have the
opportunity to create value for Edison
International sharcholders in the new
marketplace through recovery of its
past investments and through cost-
cfficient operation. The company’s
achiecvements toward these ends were
numerous:

o Investment-cost recovery — In
December, SCE sold rate reduction
bonds worth $2.5 billion. Issued in
accordance with AB1890, California’s
electric utility industry restructuring
law, the bonds financed a legislatively
mandated 10% rate reduction for
SCE'’s residential and small commer-
cial customers, cffective January 1,
1998. The first of their kind, the

bonds have maturitics ranging from

one to 10 years, and will be repaid
through a charge on customers’ bills.
The company applied the proceeds
from the bond sale toward recovery of
its past investments.

Between November 1997 and
February 1998, SCE sold 11 of its 12
California gas-fired generating plants




have a combined generating capacity
of 8,062 megawatts, to facilitate the
transition to a competitive electricity-
supply market in Californta. The
divested plants were bought by estab-
lished cnergy companies. The sales
are anticipated to close concurrent
with the start-up of California’s com-
petitive clectricity gencration and sales
markets, scheduled for March 31,
1998. SCE will continue to operate
and maintain the plants that remain in
operation for at least two years follow-
ing their sale, as required by AB1890.

On an average day, Southern California Edison turns on the power for 11 million people, 800

cities and communities, 5,000 large businesses and 280,000 small businesses. Delivering

that power takes 16 utility interconnections, 4,900 transmission and distribution circuits,

365 transmission and distribution crews, the days anq nights of 12,642 employees and over

a century of experience.

for 81.1 billion, $614 million more
than their book value. The divested
plants included the Alamitos,
Huntington Beach, Redondo, Long
Beach, Coolwater, Mandalay, Ellwood,
Etiwanda, El Segundo, San Bernardino
and Highgrove generating stations.
The company sold the plants, which

The combined proceeds from the
sale of rate reduction bonds and SCE’s
plant divestiture contributed more
than $3.6 billion toward investment-
cost recovery.

*  Controlling costs — SCE continued
to reduce operation and maintenance
(O&M) expenses, exclusive of costs
associated with refuclings at SONGS.
SCE’s non-nuclear O&M expenses,
cxcluding recoverable costs incurred as

a result of regulatory mandates,
declined $35 million in 1997. Nuclear-
related O&M costs, which included
refuelings at SONGS Units 2 and 3,
increased $46 million. Overall, the
company’s O&M expenses rose $11
million, or 0.8%. Capital costs rose
from $674 million to $757 million,

or 12%. About three-fourths of

this increasc resulted from expenses
rclated to industry restructuring,
information technology infrastructure
and state-mandated marine environ-
mental mitigation. SCE’s combined
capital and O&M expenses in 1997
remained $400 million lower than in
1994, and the company continued

to operate at a high level of cost effi-
ciency as it prepared to enter the new
marketplace.

o Sales growth — In 1997, SCE also
demonstrated its ability to retain and
grow retail kilowatt-hour (kWh) sales,
which will be eritical to both the
collection of the company’s past invest-
ment costs and to future growth in
carnings. For the 12 months ending
December 31, retail sales rose 2.3 billion
kWHh, from 73.8 billion to 76.1 billion.
This increased sales volume generated
$89 million in additional revenue

for the company. Economic growth in
Southern California contributed
substantially to the company’s gain in
kWh sales. SCE further enhanced this
growth through a number of means,
including cogeneration bypass preven-
tion, programs to encourage customers
to usc electricity instead of gas, busi-
ness and cconomic development and
targeted load growth programs.




o Facilitating the new marketplace —
In 1997, SCE prepared to coordinate
its operations with the Independent
System Operator (ISO), which controls
the dispatch of electricity into the
state’s transmission grid, and the
Power Exchange (PX), which provides
transparent commodity pricing for
clectricity. Among its achievements,
SCE developed a computer interface
between the ISO and the company’s
encrgy control centers, modificd its
automatic generation control equip-
ment to receive instructions from the
1SO, and installed ISO-certified
metering at its generating stations and
its transmission system intertic points.
The company also established new
procedures to bid SCE'’s power genera-
tion into the PX, to forecast load
demand, and to purchase energy on
behalf of customers who elect to con-
tinue receiving all their clectricity ser-
vices from the utility. SCE additionally
established new procedures to handle
requests from customers who clect to
buy commodity electricity, and related
services such as metering and billing,
from providers other than the utility.

EXCELLENT OPERATIONAL
PERFORMANCE

As SCE prepared for the new market-
place, the company recorded important
achicvements in its ongoing utility
operations.

»  Service reliability — SCE contin-
ued to improve the reliability of its
transmission and distribution service.
In 1997, reliability, as measured by
average customer minutes interrupted,
improved 12% over 1996. SCE has

historically scored in the U.S. electric
utility industry’s top quartile on service
reliability.

The company’s power production
business unit also posted an outstand-
ing performance in 1997, successfully
meeting a serics of all-time peak
demands during heat waves in August
and September.
¢ Employee safety — SCE improved
the safety of its operations in 1997,
reducing the company’s Occupational
Health and Safety Administration
recordable accident rate by 15%.

o Increased revenues through perfor-
mance excellence — 1997 was the first
year SCE operated under performance-
based ratemaking (PBR), which
cenables the company to share savings
from cost-efficient operations with its
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In the restructured electric utility marketplace, Southern California Edison will provide

utility services on regulated and nondiscriminatory terms for every customer within its

service territory. In 1997, SCE’s Customer Solutions Business Unit introduced the

Energy Advisor concept. This program originated as a way to educate and prepare cus-

tomers for success in the new marketplace. It now assists them in adapting to the chang-

Ina regulatory environment, and enables them to make the best choice among providers of

customers. Under PBR, the company

also has the opportunity to achieve
revenue awards of up to $51 million
annually by surpassing performance
targets for service reliability, employee
safety and customer satisfaction.
Converscly, SCE can be penalized up
to $51 million annually for failing to
meet these targets.

In 1997, SCE met its PBR target
for customer satisfaction and exceeded
its targets for service reliability and
employee safety. Revenue awards and
penalties for service reliability are cal-
culated over a two-year period. The
company’s performance under PBR’s

electricity, whether SCE or another

electric service provider.

bonus/penalty provisions for employee
safety in 1997 entitled SCE to file for $5
million in performance awards in 1998,
o Economic development — The eco-
nomic health of Southern and Central
California is very important to SCE’s
revenues and carnings. The company
has worked since 1992 to strengthen
the region’s economy by supporting
small- and medium-size businesses. In
1997, SCE helped 100 companies cither
remain in the region, expand their
businesses or relocate to Southern and
Central California, saving or creating
more than 15,000 jobs. Over the past
five years, SCE has assisted more than
525 companics. SCE’s efforts have
helped save or create more than 118,000
jobs and preserve nearly 3.6 billion
kilowatt-hours in clectricity sales.

e  SONGS — SONGS Unit 2 began
the year in a refucling and mainte-
nance outage that ended on April 1.
Unit 3’s refueling and maintenance
outage began on April 12 and ended
on July 21. During the outages,
SONGS employces completed a first-

'
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time steam generator chemical cleaning
project on both units. Extensive steam
generator inspections and additional
repairs were also completed during the
outages.

Following their respective out-
ages, both units at SONGS ran contin-
uously for the remainder of 1997,
achieving a site capacity factor of 71%
while generating a total of 10 million
megawatt-hours for Edison customers.
e Mohave Generating Station —
SCE’s Mohave Generating Station
achieved a capacity factor of better
than 70% for the seventh consccutive
year.

e Edison Pipeline and Terminal
Company — Established in 1994 to
create value for sharcholders by making
SCE's extensive oil pipeline and
storage facilities available to other
companics, Edison Pipeline and Ter-
minal Company (EPTC) recorded a
dramatic increase in revenues and nct
carnings. In 1997, EPTC’s revenues
were $20.4 million, a 39.7% increase
over 1996. EPTC's net carnings rose
15% to $4.5 million.

o Electric transportation — SCE
continued to provide important sup-
port for the commercialization of non-
polluting electric vehicles (EVs). The
company entered an alliance with
Toyota Motor Sales to lease 80 electric
vehicles for its flect and to extend its
lcasc-only arrangements for Toyota’s
RAV4 EV to employces of the utility
and Edison International who live in
SCE’s scrvice territory. A pioncer in
the EV arcna, the company continues
to operate one of the most extensive
utility EV fleets in the U.S. Its EV
Technical Center in Pomona,
California is onc of two national
“qualificd testers” for the U.S.
Department of Encrgy.
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AT THE HEALESVILLE SANCTUARY, ABOUT {5 MILES EAST OF MELBOURNE, AUSTRALIA, MORE THAN 200
ANIMAL SPECIES = INCLUDING THE KANGAROO, KOALA AND PLATYPUS — FLOURISH IN A UNIQUE BUSH-
LAND ENVIRONMENT. TIIANKS TO ITS BREEDING PROGRAM FOR ENDANGERED SPECIES AND ITS EFFORTS TO
RESTORE WILDLIFE HABITAT, THE FIEALESVILLE SANCTUARY Is ONE OF THE STATE OF VICTORIA’S MOST
PRIZED TREASURES. AND IT'S IN THIS REGION RICH IN NATURAL HISTORY AND WILDLIFE THAT Epison
INTERNATIONAL IS INVESTING IN THE INFRASTRUCTURE THAT SUPPLIES MUCH NEEDED ELECTRICITY TO

BOTH RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMERS AND COMMERCIAL VENTURES LIKE THE HEALESVILLE SANCTUARY.

v

Achievement

oerience

x

G rowth

*

Innovation

In May, Eptson MissioN ENERGY BECAME THE SOLE OWNER oF THE Loy YaNG B PowER PLANT NEAR

MELBOURNE, ACQUIRING THE 49% OWNERSHIP SHARE OF THE PLANT PREVIOUSLY HELD BY THE STATE
or Vicroria. Likewise, EpisoN CAPITAL STRENGTHENED ITS AUSTRALIAN PRESENCE BY INVESTING
$161 MILLION IN A CROSS-BORDER LEASE OF SOUTH AUSTRALIA’S ELECTRIC POWER TRANSMISSION SYSTEM.
IN THE YEARS AHEAD, EDISON INTERNATIONAL WILL CONTINUE TO GROW ITS BUSINESS AND BUILD SHARE-

HOLDER VALUE... NOT JUST IN AUSTRALIA, BUT IN COUNTRIES AROUND THE WORLD.

AT LEFT: Kate Miller, Animal Keeper at Healesville Sanctuary.
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EDISON MISSION ENERGY

Edison Mission Energy (EME)
sustains its leading performance in
global power production by following
a rigorously exacting approach to
investment opportunitics. The com-
pany carefully evaluates the risks and
potential returns of proposed projects
to create long-term value for Edison
International shareholders. In 1997,
Edison Mission Encrgy continued the
disciplined approach toward new
investment that is its hallmark.

STRONG
PERFORMANCE

1997 was a strong year for Edison
Mission Energy. Earnings grew 25%
to $115 million, while revenues rose
15.6% to $975 million. EME has

$5 billion in assets and interests in 55
projects totaling more than 10,000
megawatts, including 50 projects in
operation, three under construction
and two in advanced development.

STRATEGIC
TRANSACTIONS

In May, Edison Mission Energy became
the sole owner of the Loy Yang B
power plant near Melbourne, Australia,
acquiring the 49% ownership share of
the plant that was previously held by
the State of Victoria. This acquisition
was achieved through a complex trans-
action in which the project agreements
governing electricity sales, fuel supply
and infrastructure services were renc-
gotiated and the entire project was refi-

Growth is leading the UEVAT global

energy markets
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nanced. The Loy Yang B transaction
created significant value for both par-
tics. EME also refinanced its invest-
ments in 18 small hydroelectric projects
in Spain, and in the Brooklyn Navy
Yard cogencration plant, enhancing the
value of all these assets.

PROGRESS ON
MAJOR PROJECTS

o Indonesia — The $2.5 billion,
1,230-megawatt Paiton project pro-
ceceded on schedule, and is now 85%
complete. Edison Mission Energy

- owns 40% of the project, which is

14

expected to begin commercial opera-
tion in 1999,

o Italy — Construction on the 512-
megawatt ISAB gasification project
in Sicily is now 75% compleie. The
ISAB plant will convert high-sulfur
oil refinery waste to low-sulfur
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“syngas” for power generation, while
recycling the recovered sulfur for sale
to the agriculture and chemical indus-
trics. EME owns 49% of the ISAB
project. The remaining 51% is owned
by ERG Petroli S.p.A., owner of the
ISAB refinery and an affiliate of the
ERG Group. In 1997, the ISAB
project reccived the Innovative Project
Award from Independent Energy
magazine, which covers the global
independent power production
industry.

o Turkey — In April, construction
began on the 180-megawatt Doga
Enerji cogeneration project near
Istanbul. The project will be one of
the cleanest burning fossil fuel facili-
ties in Turkey and will provide heat
for 14,000 new homes, climinating the
need for those homes to burn pollut-
ing fucls for heating.

o Philippines — Edison Mission
Energy continued development of the
San Pascual project, a 304-megawatt
cogeneration plant scheduled for
start-up in carly 2001. The plant will
supply stcam to a nearby refinery and
an industrial complex, and will sell
clectricity to National Power Corpora-
tion, the statc-owned electric utility
company, under a power-purchase
agreement signed in Scptember.

It will be the largest cogeneration
project in the Philippines.

o Thailand — Devclopment pro-
ceeded on the two-unit, 734-megawatt
Kui Buri project. EME will hold a
40% interest in the facility, which will
be fueled by low-sulfur coal. A power-
purchase agreement for the plant was
concluded in December. The plant’s
first unit is scheduled for completion

. in the fourth quarter of 2001, and the
second unit is scheduled for comple-
tion in the second quarter of 2002.




EDISON CAPITAL

Edison Capital, Edison International’s
capital and financial services subsidiary,
marked its 10th year in operation. It
was an outstanding year for the company.

FINANCIAL
RESUILTS

Edison Capital earned a record $60.8
million in 1997, up 50% over the pre-
vious year. The company’s net income
has grown at an average rate of 24%
annually since Edison Capital’s incep-
tion in September 1987. Edison
Capital’s return on common cquity,
which averaged 18.5% over the last

10 years, was 23.2% in 1997. The
increases are duc to investments in
power generation, transmission and
affordable housing projects. During
1997, Edison Capital invested $520
million, more than six times its histor-
ical annual average level of $85 mil-
lion. Edison Capital has assets of $1.8
billion and an A- rating from
Standard and Poor'’s.

ENERGY/
INFRASTRUCTURE
TRANSACTIONS

Edison Capital strengthened its pres-
ence in global energy and infrastruc-
ture markets by investing $356 million

in the Netherlands, South Australia
and Latin America. The company
acquired an interest in the new Eems
Power Station near Gronhingen,
Netherlands. The plant is operated by
EPON, the Netherlands’ largest power
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gencration company. The investment
in this cross-border lease transaction is
approximately $188 million. Edison

Capital also acquired an interest in the
clectric power transmission system of
South Australia, investing $161 million
in a cross-border lease of the system.
Edison Capital’s participation in
the $1 billion AIG/GE Capital Latin
American Infrastructure Fund has




b

-
I Rs £ BT

-

&

(

;

been very active since its formation in
1996. The fund has committed to
investments in energy, telecommunica-
tions and transportation projects in
Bolivia, Brazil, Mexico, Trinidad and
Argentina. Edison Capital also co-
invested with the Latin Fund in a
methanol production facility in
Trinidad. The company also entered
into investment commitments for
infrastructure projects in Scotland and
Bolivia.

AFFORDABLE
HOUSING

Edison Capital continued to expand its
affordable housing portfolio in 1997
with the investment of a record $164
million in 63 projects. The company
placed 41 projects in service, also a
record high, and 70% more than in
1996, and has committed $217 million
t0 83 new projects to be placed in
service in 1998 and 1999. The strength
of Edison Capital’s affordable housing
portfolio was proven with the closing
of five syndications of housing com-
mitments to four major institutional
investors. At year’s end, Edison
Capital’s portfolio included 279 pro-
jects, totaling 20,714 units of housing.

Edison Capital also acquired the
John Stewart Company, a leading
diversified management company spe-
cializing in affordable housing. By
acquiring the John Stewart Company,
Edison Capital will be able to expand
the services it offers and draw upon
the John Stewart Company’s expertise
to enhance Edison Capital’s leadership
position in the affordable housing
market.
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For Thg PEREZ FAMILY OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA, THE POWER OF EpIsoN SECURITY SERVICES IS THE

POWER TO PROTECT. CARLOS PEREZ AND HiIs WIFE, ROSE, WANTED TO SAFEGUARD THEIR HOUSE AND PROP-
I

ERTY, AND THEY WANTED TO PROTECT WHAT MAKES THAT HOUSE A HIOME...THEIR TWO YOUNG DAUGHTERS,

LAUREN AND GABRIELLA. AFTER RESEARCHING SEVERAL SECURITY SYSTEMS, THE PEREZ FAMILY SELECT-

Ep EpisoN SEcuriTy SERVICES FOR ITS FULL-FEATURED, DEPENDABLE SYSTEM, AND BECAUSE IT’s BACKED

BY THE POWER oF THE EbpisoNn NaMme. IN aAppitioN To EpisoNn Security Services, THE PErez

Achievement

«

EXperience

"

Growth

Innovation

FAMILY AND OTHER RETAIL AND SMALL BUSINESS CUSTOMERS CAN CHOOSE FROM A NUMBER OF PRODUCTS

AND SERVICES FROM EbisoN SELECT, iNcLUDING Ebpison ONCaLL™ ELECTRICAL, APPLIANCE AND
CoMpPUTER REpAIR, DisasTER PrREPAREDNESS KiTs, AND EpIsoN ONCALL™ INTERNET AccEss SERvVICE,
WHICH FEATURES A HIGH-SPEED, RELIABLE CONNECTION TO THE WorLD WipE WEB. For sarkTy,

COMFORT AND CONVENIENCE, Ep1soN SELECT 1s TRULY THE Power Beninn Peace or Minp.

AT LEFT: The Perez Family — Rose, Carlos, Lauren and Gabriclla.

-
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EDISON ENTERPRISES

In 1997, Edison International’s previ-
ously established retail products and
services businesses — Edison Source,
Edison EV and Edison Select — were
consolidated under Edison Enterprises.
Consolidation of existing and new
retail businesses under Edison
Enterprises will enable them to take
advantage of shared staff resources
and realize cconomies of scale as they
expand into new markets.

Edison Enterprises positioned its
businesses for future growth in share-
holder value through a number of
significant steps in 1997.

GROWTH OF
EXISTING BUSINESSES

o Energy services outsourcing —
Edison Source formalized its customer
rclationship with Vons supermarkets,
a division of Safeway, by reaching
agreement to provide integrated
energy outsourcing scrvices to 163
stores. The comprehensive energy
management contract will benefit the
supermarket chain through improved
operation and management of their
Southern California store facilities.
Under the agreement, technical
scrvices provided by Edison Source
include opcration and maintenance
for refrigeration, heating, ventilation,
air conditioning, lighting and other
clectrical systems equipment.

o Electric vehicle charging — Edison
EV supplemented its existing alliances
with General Motors Corporation and
Saturn Corporation by forging ties to
American Honda Motor Company,
Toyota Motor Salcs, Ford Motor

Innovation is creating exciting new retail
products and Services

Company, and to additional electric
vehicle charging manufacturers,

to serve clectric vehicle customers
nationwide.

NEW PRODUCTS
e«  LAUNCHED

o Rencwable energy — Edison
Source introduced EarthSource®™, one
of the first renewable energy products
available to residential and small busi-
ness customers in California’s new
clectricity marketplace. EarthSources™
power will come from clean, natural
sources, such as solar, wind, biomass,

geothermal and small hydro genera-
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tors. Edison Source is offering cus-
tomers two options: EarthSource 50,
which allocates half of a customer’s
energy dollars to the purchase of
rencwable power; and EarthSource 100,
allocating all of a customer’s encrgy
dollars to power from rencwable
sources. Under the first option, cus-
tomers’ energy bills will remain about
the same as in the past. Under the sec-
ond option, customers will pay about
15% more for their clectricity.

e Home services — Edison Sclect
launched Edison OnCall*® Electrical,




Appliance and Computer Repair ser-
vices. Italso introduced Edison
Security Services and offered Disaster
Preparedness Kits. By the end of the
year, Edison Select had signed up
more than 60,000 customers for these
new retail products and services.

NEW BUSINESS
INITIATIVES

o Edison Utility Services —
Established in December 1997, Edison
Utility Services will offer a diverse
range of services 1o clectric utilitics in
the U.S. and Canada, including —
but not limited to — billing, outage
management and transmission and
distribution outsourcing.

o Edison Utility Alliances —

This special corporate unit was
formed in December 1997 to

market Edison Enterprises’ retail con-
sumer products nationwide through
alliances with electric and gas utilities.

Edison Enterprises, the retail arm of Edison International, includes Edison Source, which

specializes In bringing energy management solutions to residential and business customers;

Edison EV, the leading provider of electric vehicle charging systems and infrastructure;

Edison Select, which markets a broad range of consumer products and services; and Edison

Utility Services, which specializes in billing, outage management and transmission and dis-*

tribution outsourcing services. Each of these companies is focused on providing innovative

products and services that meet the needs of a wide range of customers while building on the
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. Edison International and Subsidiaries

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition

In the following Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results
of Operations and Financial Condition and elsewhere in this annu-
al report, the words estimates, expects, anticipates, believes, and
other similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking
information that involves risks and uncertaintics. Actual results or
outcomes could differ materially as a result of such important fac-
tors as further actions by state and federal regulatory bodies setting
rates and implementing the restructuring of the electric utility
industry; the effects of new laws and regulations relating to restruc-
turing and other matters; the effects of increased competition in the

electric utility business, including the beginning of direct customer

access to retail energy suppliers and the unbundling of revenue
cycle services such as metering and billing; changes in prices of
electricity and fuel costs; changes in market interest or currency
exchange rates; foreign currency devaluation; new or increased
environmental liabilities; and other unforeseen events.

RESULTS OF QPERATIONS

Earnings

Edison International’s 1997 basic carnings per share were $1.75,
compared with $1.64 in 1996 and $1.66 in 1995. Southern
California Edison (SCE) earned $1.44 in 1997, compared with
$1.42 in 1996 and $1.44 in 1995. Edison Mission Energy (EME),
Edison Capital and Mission Land Company had combined carn-
ings of 44¢, up from 27¢ in 1996 and 23¢ in 1995. Edison

International’s earnings include special charges of 7¢ in 1996 (a 4¢

net charge at SCE for workforce management costs and reserves,
and a 3¢ charge at Mission Land for real estate reserves) and 3¢ in
1995 for SCE’s workforce management expenses. * Edison
Enterprises (Edison International’s retail arm comprised of Edison
Source, Edison EV, Edison Select and Edison Utility Services) and
the Edison International parent company had combined expenses
of 13¢ in 1997, compared with 5¢ in 1996 and 1¢ in 1995,

Edison International initiated a share repurchase program in
1995 to increase ‘shareholder value. Its Board of Directors has
authorized repurchases of up to $2.3 billion in outstanding shares.
In 1997, over 48 million shares were repurchased for $1.2 billion.
From the inception of the program through year-end 1997, Edison
International has repurchased over 72 million shares for $1.6 billion.

1997 vs. 1996

SCE's 1997 carnings of $1.44 per share were 2¢ lower than 1996
(excluding 1996 special charges noted above). The decrease is
mainly due to lower earnings from an extended refueling outage at
the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station. The decline was
almost completely offset by higher sales, lower non-nuclear operat-
ing expenses and the effect of Edison International’s share repur-
chase program. EME and Edison Capital had combined earnings
of 44¢ in 1997, up 14¢ over 1996. EME contributed a record $115
million to earnings in 1997, compared with $92 million in 1996, an
increase’of 25%. The increase is primarily due to higher earnings
from EME’s foreign projects, partially due to lower tax rates.
Edison Capital contributed a record $61 million to earnings in

1997, up 50% over the prior-year earnings of $41 million. Edison

Capital’s earnings benefited substantially from wwo cross-border
lease investments and a record high level of affordable housing
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investments. Edison Capital and EME together contributed 25%
of Edison International’s total earnings, up from 18% in 1996.
Continued start-up costs at Edison Enterprises, combined with
interest expensc at the Edison International parent company, were
8¢ per share more in 1997 than 1996.

The reduced number of outstanding shares benefited Edison
International’s carnings per share by 15¢ in 1997, when compared
with 1996. '

1996 vs. 1995

Excluding special charges, SCE’s 1996 carnings per share were
$1.46, down 1¢ from 1995. The decrease is mainly attributable to a
reduction in authorized rates of return and authorized operating
expenscs, partially offsct by improved operating performance.

The combined 1996 carnings of EME, Edison Capital and
Mission Land, excluding nonrecurring items, were 30¢, 7¢ higher
than in 1995. The increase is primarily due to higher carnings
from EME’s First Hydro project in the United Kingdom, which
was acquired in December 1995.

Continued start-up costs at Edison Enterprises, combined
with interest expense at the Edison International parent company,
were 4¢ per share more in 1996 than 1995.

The reduced number of outstanding shares benefited Edison
International’s carnings per share by 3¢ in 1996 versus 1995.

Operating Revenue
Electric utility revenue increased 5% over 1996, due to an increase
in sales volume and customer refunds in 1996. There were no com-
parable refunds in 1997. The increase in volume is mainly attrib-
utable to the overall increase in retail sales among residential and
commercial customers, Operating revenue in 1996 decreased 4%
from 1995, as increased sales volume was offsct by lower average
rates. The lower rates were attributable to the California Public
Utilities Commission’s (CPUC) decision to lower SCE’s 1996
authorized revenue by 4.4%. Additionally, during 1996, SCE’s cus-
tomers received a one-time bill credit totaling $237 million as part
of a CPUC-ordered refund of energy cost balancing account over-
collections. In 1997, over 98% of SCE’s operating revenue was -
from retail sales. Retail rates are regulated by the CPUC and
wholesale rates are regulated by the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission (FERC). ’

Due to warm weather during the summer months, operating
revenue during the third quarter of each year is significantly high-
er than the other quarters. )

The changes in clectric utility revenue resulted from:

In millions Year ended December 31, 1997 1996 1995
Electric utility revenue —
Rate changes (including refunds) $ 173 $ (522) § 168
Sales volume changes 193 206 (129)
Other 4 26 35
Total $ 370 $ (290 $ 74

Legislation enacted in September 1996 provided for, among
other things, at least a 10% rate reduction (financed through the
issuance of rate reduction notes) for residential and small commer-
cial customers in 1998 and other rates to remain frozen at the June
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10, 1996, level (system average of 10.1¢ per kilowatt-hour). See dis-
cussion in Competitive Environment.

Revenue from diversified operations increased 33% in 1997
primarily due to the start-up of EME’s Loy Yang B Unit 2 and
Kwinana projects. These facilitics began commercial operations
during the fourth quarter of 1996. In addition, revenue from diver-
sified operations increased, due to higher encrgy sales from EME’s
First Hydro project combined with substantial increases at Edison
Capital from its cross-border lease investments and Mission Land
from the sale of $63 million in real estate during the second quarter.
Revenue from diversified operations increased substantially during
1996, duc to an increase in EME’s electric revenue from its First
Hydro, Iberian Hy-Power and Loy Yang B Unit 2 projects.

Operating Expenses

Fuel expense increased 40% in 1997. The increase is due to a $174
million gas contract termination payment during the third quarter,
combined with higher gas prices and the extended refucling out-
ages at San Onofre. San Onofre Unit 2 was shut down during the
entire first quarter of 1997, Unit 3 was shut down 80 days of the
second quarter and both units had a combined outage time of 30
days during the third quarter, which resulted in an overall increase
in gas-powered generation for the year. There were no compara-
ble outages in 1996. EME'’s fuel expense also increased in 1997 due
to the start-up of the Kwinana project in the fourth quarter of 1996
and higher pumping costs at the First Hydro project (a pumped-
storage facility which pumps water at night for storage in reser-
voirs and then allows it to flow back to generate electricity when it
is nceded during the day) due to increased generation and higher
prices. Fuel expense increased 11% in 1996, compared to 1995, due
to higher gas prices and changes in the fuel mix. EME’s 1996 fuel
cxpense increased due to Loy Yang B Unit 2, Kwinana and the
. inclusion of pumping costs related to First Hydro.

Purchased-power expense increased slightly in 1997 and 1996,
due to increases in spot market purchases and increases in power
purchased under federally mandated contracts. SCE is required
under federal law to purchase power from certain nonutility gen-
crators even though energy prices under these contracts are gener-
ally higher than other sources. In 1997, SCE paid about $1.6 billion
(including energy and capacity payments) more for these power
purchases than the cost of power available from other sources. The
CPUC has mandated the prices for these contracts.

Provisions for regulatory adjustment clauses decreased sub-
stantially in 1997, due to undercollections in the energy cost bal-
ancing account as actual energy costs (including the gas
termination payments discussed above) exceeded CPUC-autho-
rized fuel and purchased-power cost estimates. In addition, there
were undercollections associated with SCE’s direct access activities
(see discussion in Competitive Environment—Direct Customer
Access), research and development activities and San Onofre.
These undercollections were offset by overcollections related to
actual base-rate revenue from kilowatt-hour sales exceeding
CPUC-authorized estimates and the final settlement of SCE’s
Canadian supply and transportation contracts (see discussion in
Regulatory Matters). The provisions for regulatory adjustment
clauses also decreased in 1996 from 1995 due to lower than autho-
rized base-rate revenue, undercollections related to the accelerated
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recovery of SCE’s remaining investment in San Onofre Units 2 and
3 and the $237 million refund to ratepayers during 1996 for prior
energy cost balancing account overcollections.

Other operating expenses increased 15% in 1997, primarily
due to start-up expenses at Edison Enterprises and increased
administrative costs at EME, Edison Capital and Mission Land.
Other operating expenses increased 10% in 1996 when compared
with 1995, as increased operating costs at EME’s First Hydro,
Iberian Hy-Power and Loy Yang B Unit 2 projects and higher
administrative costs offset cost reductions and strong operating
performance at SCE.

Maintenance expense increased 23% in 1997, due to increased
maintenance costs for the scheduled refucling outages at the San
Onofre units and SCE’s transmission and distribution operating
facilities.

Depreciation and decommissioning expense increased 16% in
1997. The increase is due to increases in plant assets and the accel-
erated recovery of the Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station units
cffective January 1997. Depreciation and decommissioning
expense increased 16% in 1996, compared to 1995, due to higher
depreciation rates, the accelerated recovery of San Onofre Units 2
and 3 starting in April 1996, and increases at EME related to its
Loy Yang B Unit 2 and Kwinana projects.

Property and other taxes decreased 32% in 1997, due to a
reclassification of SCE’s payroll taxes to operation and mainte-
nance expense.

Other Income and Deductions
The provision for rate phasc-in plan reflects a CPUC-authorized,
10-year rate phase-in plan, which deferred the collection of revenue
during the first four years of operation for the Palo Verde units.
The deferred revenue (including interest) was collected evenly over
the final six years of each unit’s plan. The plan ended in February
1996, September 1996 and January 1998 for Units I, 2 and 3,
respectively. The provision is a non-cash offset to the collection of
deferred revenue. :
Interest and dividend income increased 35% in 1997, due to
increases in interest earned on SCE'’s balancing accounts and
increases in dividend income from SCE’s equity investments.
Minority interest decreased in 1997, due to EME's May 1997
acquisition of the remaining 49% ownership interest in the Loy
Yang B project. Minority interest increased 46% during 1996, pri-
marily from higher pre-tax income at EME’s Loy Yang B Unit 2.
Other nonoperating income decreased substantially in 1997,
duc to additional accruals for regulatory matters associated with
the restructuring of California’s clectric utility industry, Other
nonoperating income also decreased in 1996, compared to 1995,
due to regulatory accruals in 1996.

Interest and Other Expenses

Interest on long-term debt decreased in 1997, due to the ecarly
retirement of $400 million of first and refunding mortgage bonds
in July 1997, partially offset by additional interest expense associat-
ed with the issuance of approximately $2.5 billion in rate reduction
notes’ in December 1997 (sce discussion in Cash Flows from
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Financing Activities). Interest on long-term debt increased 12% in
1996 compared with 1995, reflecting EME'’s increased ownership in
Iberian Hy-Power and First Hydro.

Other interest expense increased substantially in 1997, duc to
higher levels of short-term debt used to retire first and refunding
mortgage bonds, discussed above. Other interest expense increased
11% during 1996, due to a $350 million borrowing by Edison
International (holding company) for the acquisition of First Hydro
and for its ongoing share repurchase program.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Edison International’s liquidity is primarily affected by debt matu-
rities, dividend payments, capital expenditures, and investments in
partnerships and unconsolidated subsidiaries. Capital resources
include cash from operations and external financings.

Edison International’s Board of Directors has authorized the
repurchase of up to $2.3 billion of its outstanding shares of com-
mon stock. Edison International has repurchased 76.9 million
shares (81.7 billion) between January 1995 and January 30, 1998,
funded by dividends from its subsidiaries and its lines of credit.

Edison International’s cash flow coverage of dividends for 1997
was 5.2 times compared to 5.0 times in 1996 and 4.7 times in 1995.
Edison International’s dividend payout ratio for 1997 was 57%.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities totaled $2.1 billion in
1997, $2.2 billion in 1996 and $2.1 billion‘in 1995. Cash from oper-
ations exceeded capital requirements for all years presented.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

At December 31, 1997, Edison International and its subsidiaries
had $3.1 billion of borrowing capacity available under lines of cred-
it totaling $3.6 billion. SCE had available lines of credit of $1.8 bil-
lion, with $1.3 billion for general purpose short-term debtand 8500
million for the long-term refinancing of its variable-rate pollution-
control bonds. The parent company had available lines of credit
totaling $1.0 billion. The nonutility companies had lines of credit
of 3800 million available to finance general cash requirements.
Edison International’s unsecured lines of credit are at negotiated or
bank index rates with various expiration dates. The majority have
five-year terms.

SCE’s short-term debt is used to finance fuel inventorics, bal-
ancing account undercollections and general cash requirements.
EME uses available credit lines mainly for construction projects
until long-term construction or project loans are secured. Long-
term debt is used mainly to finance capital expenditures. SCE’s
external financings are influenced by market conditions and other
factors, including limitations imposed by its articles of incorpora-
tion and trust indenture. As of December 31, 1997, SCE could
issue approximately $10.4 billion of additional first and refunding
mortgage bonds and $5.3 billion of preferred stock at current inter-
est and dividend rates.

EME owns, through a wholly owned subsidiary, 50% of the
Brooklyn Navy Yard project. On December 17, 1997, the Brooklyn
Navy Yard project partnership completed a $407 million perma-
nent, nonrecourse financing for the project.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial COnditionw

In February 1997, the contractor asserted general monetary
claims under the turnkey agreement against Brooklyn Navy Yard
Cogencration Partners, L.P. (BNY) for damagcs in the amount of
$137 million. In addition to defending this action, BNY has filed
an action against the contractor in New York State Court asserting
gencral monctary claims in excess of $13 million arising out of the
turnkey agreement. EME agreed to indemnify the partnership
and its partner from all claims and costs arising from or in connec-
tion with the contractor litigation, which indemnity has been
assigned to the lenders. Edison International believes that the out-
come of this litigation will not materially affect its results of opera-
tions or financial position.

In April 1997, EME completed financing and commenced
construction of the Doga project, a 180-megawatt, gas-powered
power plant near Istanbul, Turkey. A wholly owned subsidiary of
EME owns 80% of this project. In connection with the financing,
EME has guaranteed $21 million in equity contributions and will
continue making equity contributions until commercial operation
begins, which is scheduled for 1999.

In May 1997, Edison Capital closed its largest infrastructure
transaction in recent yecars by entering into a cross-border lease
transaction in the Eems Power Station located in the Netherlands.
This transiction was valued at $188 million. The Eems Power
Station is a new, five unit (335 MW cach) gas-fired, combined-cycle
power plant. It is operated by EPON, the largest power generat-
ing company in the Netherlands. Edison Capital also acquired an
interest in the electric power transmission system in South
Australia. This cross-border lease transaction was valued at $161
million.

EME has firm commltmcnts of $295 million to make cqulty
and other contributions, prlmanly for the Paiton project in
Indonesia, the ISAB project in_Italy, and the Doga project in
Turkey. EME also has contingent obligations to make additional
contributions of $181 million, primarily for equity support guaran-
tees related to Paiton.

EME may incur additional obligations to make equity and
other contributions to projects in the future. EME believes it will
have sufficient liquidity to meet these equity requirements from
cash provided by operating activities, proceeds from the repayment
of loans to encrgy projects and funds available from EME's revolv-
ing line of credit.

California law prohibits SCE from incurring or guarantecing
debt for its nonutility affiliates. Additionally, the CPUC regulates
SCE’s capital structure, limiting the dividends it may pay Edison
International. At December 31, 1997, SCE had the capacity to pay
$1.4 billion in additional dividends and continuc to maintain its
authorized capital structure. These restrictions are not expected to
affect Edison International’s ability to meet its cash obligations.

In December 1997, SCE Funding LLC, a special purposc enti-
ty (SPE), of which SCE is the sole member, issued approximately
$2.5 billion of rate reduction notes to Bankers Trust Company of
California, as certificate trustee for the California Infrastructure
and Economic Development Bank Special Purpose Trust SCE-1
(Trust), which is a special purpose entity established by the State of
California. The terms of the rate reduction notes gencrally mirror
the terms of the pass-through certificates issued by the Trust, which
are known as rate reduction certificates. The procceds of the rate




Edison International and Subsidiaries .

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition

reduction notes were used by the SPE to purchase from SCE an
enforceable right known as transition property. Transition proper-
ty is a current property right created pursuant to the restructuring
legislation and a financing order of the CPUC and consists general-
ly of the right to be paid a specified amount from a non-bypassable
tariff levied on residential and small commercial customers.
Notwithstanding the legal sale of the transition property by SCE to
the SPE, the amounts reflected as assets on SCE’s balance sheet have
not been reduced by the amount of the transition property sold to
the SPE, and the liabilities of the SPE for the rate reduction notes
are for accounting purposes reflected as long-term liabilities on the
consolidated balance sheet of SCE. SCE used the proceeds from the
sale of the transition property to retire debt and equity securities.

The rate reduction notes have maturities ranging from one to
10 years, and bear interest at rates ranging from 5.98% to 6.42%.
The rate reduction notes are secured solely by the transition prop-
erty and certain other assets of the SPE, and there is no recourse to
SCE or Edison International.

Although the SPE is consolidated with SCE in the financial
statements, as required by generally accepted accounting princi-
ples, the SPE is legally scparate from SCE, the assets of the SPE are
not available to creditors of SCE or Edison International, and the
transition property is legally not an asset of SCE or Edison
International.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
The primary uses of cash for investing activitics are additions to
property and plant, the nonutilities’ investments in partnerships
and unconsolidated subsidiaries, and funding of nuclear decom-
missioning trusts. Decommissioning costs are accrued and recov-
ered in rates over the term of each nuclear generating facility’s
operating license through charges to depreciation expense. SCE
estimates that it will spend approximately $12.7 billion between
2013 ~ 2070 to decommission its nuclear facilities. This estimate is
based on SCE's current-dollar decommissioning costs ($2.1 billion),
escalated using a 6.65% annual rate. These costs are expected to be
funded from independent decommissioning trusts which receive
SCE contributions of approximately $100 million per year until
decommissioning begins.

Cash used for the nonutility subsidiaries’ investing activities was
$375 million in 1997, 8409 million in 1996 and $1.2 billion in 1995.

Mavrket Risk Exposures

Edison International’s primary market risk exposures arise from
fluctuations in energy prices, interest rates and foreign exchange
rates. Edison International’s risk management policy allows the
use of derivative financial instruments to manage its financial
exposures, but prohibits the use of these instruments for speculative
or trading purposes.

SCE has hedged a portion of its exposure to increases in natur-
al gas prices. Increases in natural gas prices tend to increase the price
of electricity purchased from the power exchange (PX). SCE’s expo-
sure is also limited by regulatory mechanisms that protect SCE from
much of the risk arising from high electricity prices.

Changes in interest rates, electricity pool pricing and fluctua-
tions in foreign currency exchange rates can have a significant
impact on EME's results of operations. EME has mitigated the risk
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of interest rate fluctuations by arranging for fixed rate or variable
rate financing with interest rate swaps or other hedging mechanisms
for the majority of its project financings. As a result of interest rate
hedging mechanisms, interest expense increased $21 million in 1997,
86 million in 1996 and $7 million in 1995. The maturity dates of sev-
eral of EMEs interest rate swap agreements do not correspond to the
term of the underlying debt. EME does not believe that interest rate
fluctuations will have a material adverse effect on its results of oper-
ations or financial position.

Projects in the United Kingdom sell their electrical energy and
capacity through a centralized clectricity pool, which establishes a
half-hourly clearing price for electrical energy. The pool price is
extremely volatile, and can var)\'\ a factor of ten or more over the
course of a few hours duc to large (\liffcrcntials in demand accord-
ing to the time of day. First Hydro mitigates a portion of the mar-
ket risk of the pool by entering into contracts for differences
(electricity rate swap agreements), related to either the selling or
purchase price of power, where a contract specifies a price at which
the electricity will be traded, and the parties to the agreements
make payments, calculated based on the difference between the
price in the contract and the half-hourly clearing price for the ele-

' ment of power under contract. These contracts can be sold in two

structures: one-way contracts, where a specified monthly amount is
received in advance and difference payments are made when the
pool price is above the price specified in the contract, and two-way
contracts, where the counterparty pays First Hydro when the pool
price is below the contract price instead of a specificd monthly
amount. These contracts act as a means of stabilizing production
revenue or purchasing costs by removing an element of First
Hydro’s net exposure to pool price volatility. First Hydro’s electric
revenue increased by $37 million and decreased by $5 million for
the year ended December 31, 1997, and 1996, respectively, as a
result of electricity rate swap agreements.

Loy Yang B sells its clectrical energy through a centralized
electricity pool, which provides for a system of generator bidding,
central dispatch and a settlements system based on a clearing mar-
ket for each half-hour of every day. The Victorian Power
Exchange, operator and administrator of the pool, determines a sys-
tem marginal price cach half-héur’ To mitigate the exposure to
price volatility of the clectricity traded in the pool, Loy Yang B has
entered into a number of financial hedges. From May 8, 1997, to
December 31, 2000, approximately 53% to 64% of the plant output
sold is hedged under vesting contracts, with the remainder of the
plant capacity hedged under the state hedge described below.
Vesting contracts were put into place by the State of Victoria,
between each generator and each distributor, prior to the privatiza-
tion of clectric power distributors in order to provide more pre-
dictable pricing for those electricity customers that were unable to
choose their clectricity retailer.  Vesting contracts set base strike
prices at which the electricity will be traded, and the parties to the
agreement make payments, calculated based on the difference
between the price in the contract and the half-hourly pool clearing
price for the element of power under contract. These contracts can
be sold as one-way or two-way contracts which are structured sim-
ilar to the electricity rate swap agreements described above. These
contracts are accounted for as clectricity rate swap agreements. The
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state hedge is a long-term contractual arrangement based upon a

fixed price commencing May 8, 1997, and terminating October 31,

| 2016. The State guarantees the State Electricity Commission of

Victoria’s obligations under the state hedge. Loy Yang B’s electric

revenue was increased by $59 million for the year ended December

31, 1997, as a result of hedging contract arrangements. As EME

continues to expand into foreign markets, fluctuations in foreign

currency exchange rates can affect the amount of its equity contri-

butions to, distributions from, and results of operations of its foreign

projects. At times, EME has hedged a portion of its current expo-

sure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates where it deems appro-

priate through financial derivatives, offsctting obligations

denominated in foreign currencies, and indexing underlying pro-

ject agreements to U.S. dollars or other indices reasonably expected

to correlate with foreign cxchange movements. Various statistical

" forecasting techniques arc used to help assess forclgn exchange risk

and the probabilitics of various outcomes. There cah be no assur-

ance, however, that fluctuations int exchange rates will be fdlly off-

'set by hedges or that currency movements ard the relationship

" between certain macrocconomic variables will behave in a manner
that is consistent with historical or forecasted relationships.

Construction on the two-unit Paiton project is approximately
85% complete, and commercial operation is expected in the first -
half of 1999. The tariff is higher in the carly years and steps down
over time, and the tariff for the Paiton project includes infrastruc-
ture to be used in common by other units at the Paiton complex.
The plant’s output is fully contracted with the state-owned clec-
tricity company for payment in U.S. dollars. The projected rate of
growth of the Indonesian cconomy and the exchange rate of
Indonesian Rupiah into U.S. dollars have deteriorated significant-
ly since the Paiton project was contracted, approved and financed
with substantial finance and insurance support from the Export-
Import Bank of the United States, The Export-Import Bank of
Japan, the U.S. Overscas Private Investment Corporation and the
Ministry of International Trade and Industry of Japan. The Paiton
project’s senior debt ratings have been reduced from investment
grade to speculative grade based on the rating agencies’ perceived
increased risk that the state-owned clectricity company might hot
be able to honor the electricity sales contract with Paiton. A
Presidential decree has deemed some power plants, but not includ-
ing the Paiton project, subject to review, postponement or cancella-
tion. EME continues to monitor the situation closely.

A 10% increase in market interest rates would result in a $29
million increase in the fair valuc of Edison International’s interest
rate hedge agreements.” A 10% decrease in market interest rates
would result in a $30 million decline in the fair market value of
interest rate hedge agreements. A 10% increase in pool prices
would result in a $97 million decrease in the fair value of clectrici-
ty rate swap agreements. A’ 10% decrease in pool prices would
result in a $97 million increase in the fair value of clectricity rate
swaps. A 10% increase in natural gas prices would result in a $26
million increase in the fair market value of gas call options, A 10%
decrease in natural gas prices would result in a $17 million decline
in the fair market value of gas call options. A 10% change in mar-
ket rates is expected to have an immaterial effect on Edison
International’s other financial instruments.
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Projected Capital Requirements
Edison International’s projected construction expenditures for the
next five years are: 1998—$1.1 billion; 1999—8807 million; 2000—
$763 million; 2001-—$721 million; and 2002—$§671 million.
Long-term debt maturitics and sinking fund requirements for
the next five years are: 1998—8848 million; 1999—8670 million;
2000—8%719 million; 2001—$728 million; and 2002—8§635 million.
Preferred stock redemption requirements for the next five
years are: 1998 through 2001—zero and 2002—$105 million.

REGULATORY MATTERS

Legislation enacted in September 1996 provided for, among other
things, a 10% rate reduction for residential and small commercial
customers in 1998 and other rates to remain frozen at the June 10,
1996, level (systcm average of 10.1¢ per kilowatt-hour). Sce further
discussion iri Compctitive Environment — Restructuring
Legislation.

In 1998, SCE’s revenue il be affected by various mechanisms
depending on the utility operation. Revenue related to distribution
operations will be determined through a performance-based rate-
making mechanism (PBR) (see discussion in Competitive
Environment — PBR) and the distribution assets will have the
opportunity to earn a CPUC-authorized 9.49% return. Until the
independent system operator (ISO) begins operation, transmission
revenue will be determined by the same mechanism as distribution
operations. After that time, transmission revenue will be deter-
mined through FERC-authorized rates and transmission asscts
will earn a 9.43% return. These rates are subject to refund. See
discussions in the Competitive Environment — Rate-setting and
FERC Restructuring Decision sections. ’

Revenue from generation-related operations will be determined
through the competition transition charge (CTC) mechanism,
nuclear rate-making agreements and the competitive market in

- 1998. Revenue related to fossil and hydroelectric generation opera-

tions will be recovered from two sources. The portion that is made
uneconomic by electric industry restructuring will be determined
through the CTC mechanism. The portion that is economic will be
recovered through the PX mechanism. In 1998, fossil and hydro-
electric generation assets will carn a 7.22% return. A more detailed
discussion is in Competitive Environment — CTC.

. The CPUC has authorized revised rate-making plans for
SCE’s nuclear facilities, which call for the accelerated recovery of its
nuclear investments in exchange for a lower authorized rate of
return. SCE’s nuclear assets are carning an annual rate of return of
7.35%. In addition, the San Onofre plan authorizes a fixed rate of
approximately 4¢ per kilowatt-hour generated for operating costs
including incremental capital costs, and nuclear fuel and nuclear
fuel financing costs. The San Onofre plan commenced in April
1996, and ends in December 2001 for the accelerated recovery por-
tion and in December 2003 for the incentive pricing portion. Palo
Verde's operating costs, including incremental capital costs, and
nuclear fuel and nuclear fuel financing costs, are subject to balanc-
ing account trecatment. The Palo Verde plan commenced in
January 1997 and ends’in December 2001, Beginning January 1,
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1998, both the San Onofre and Palo Verde rate-making plans
became part of the CTC mechanism.

The changes in revenue from the regulatory mechanisms dis-
cussed above, excluding the effects of other rate actions, are expect-
ed to have a minimal impact on 1998 earnings. However, the
issuance of the rate reduction notes in December 1997, which
enables the repurchase of debt and equity, will have a negative
impact on 1998 carnings of approximately $97 million. The impact
on carnings per share will be mitigated due to the repurchase of
common stock from the rate reduction note proceeds.

In 1994, SCE filed its testimony in the non-Qualifying
Facilities (QF) phase of the 1994 Energy Cost Adjustment Clause
proceeding. In 1995, the CRUC’s Office of Ratepayer Advocates
(ORA) filed its report on the reasonableness of SCE’s gas supply
costs for both the 1993 and 1994 record periods. The report recom-
mended a disallowance of $13 million for excessive costs incurred
from November 1993 through March 1994 associated with SCE’s
Canadian gas purchase and supply contracts. The report request-
ed that the CPUC defer finding SCE’s Canadian supply and trans-
portation agreements reasonable for the duration of their terms and
that the costs under these contracts be reviewed on a yearly basis. In
1996, the ORA issued its report for the 1995 record period recom-
mending a $38 million disallowance for excessive costs incurred
from April 1994 through March 1995. Both proposed disal-
lowances were later consolidated into one proceeding. On
December 3, 1997, the CPUC approved a settlement agreement
between SCE and the ORA on this and any future issues, which will
result in a §61 million (including interest) refund to SCE's cus-
tomers, This refund is fully reflected in the financial statements
and will be made in first quarter 1998.

In 1991, SCE filed its testimony in the QF phase of the 1991
Energy Cost Adjustment Clause proceeding. In 1993, the ORA
filed its report on the reasonableness of SCE’s QF contracts and
alleged that SCE had imprudently renegotiated a QF contract with
the Mojave Cogeneration Company. The report recommended a
disallowance of $32 million (1993 net present value) over the con-
tract’s 20-year life. Subsequently, SCE and the ORA reached a set-
tlement where SCE agreed to a one-time reduction to its energy cost
adjustment clause balancing account of $14 million plus interest. In
October 1996, the CPUC approved the settlement agreement, sub-
ject to SCE and the ORA accepting certain conditions concerning
the way the $14 million payment would be reflected in rates. After
reviewing the decision, SCE declined to accept the condition pro-
posed by the CPUC and in November 1996 filed an application for
rchearing. In February 1997, the CPUC denied SCE’s application.
Because SCE and the ORA were unable to finalize their settlement,
hearings on the ORA'’s disallowance recommendations were held in
June 1997. During the hearings, the ORA presented testimony to
update its assessment of ratepayer harm, which it now estimates to
be 345 million (1997 net present value) over the contract’s life. In
November 1997, 2 CPUC administrative law judge (ALJ) issued a
proposed decision which would adopt the ORA’s §45 million disal-
lowance. In January 1998, the CPUC withdrew the ALJ's pro-
posed decision pending oral arguments. Oral arguments were
heard on February 4, 1998, at which time SCE requested an alter-
nate proposed decision be issued. SCE expects this matter to be
returned to the CPUC’s agenda in the near future and a final deci-
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sion to be issued during second quarter 1998. SCE cannot predict
the final outcome of this matter but does not believe it will materi-
ally affect its results of operations.

COMPETITIVE ENVIRONMENT

SCE currently operates in a highly regulated environment in
which it has an obligation to deliver clectric service to customers in
return for an exclusive franchise within its service territory. This
regulatory environment is changing. The generation sector has
experienced competition from nonutility power producers and reg- *
ulators are restructuring California’s electric utility industry.

.
California Electric Utility Restructuring
Restructuring Legislation — In September 1996, the State of
California enacted legislation to provide a transition to a competi-
tive market structure. The legislation substantially adopted the
CPUC’s December 1995 restructuring decision by addressing
stranded-cost recovery for utilities and providing a certain cost-
recovery time period for the tfansition costs associated with utility-
owned generation-related assets.  Transition costs related to
power-purchase contracts would be recovered through the terms of
their contracts while most of the remaining transition costs would
be recovered through 2001. The legislation also included provi-
sions to finance a portion of the stranded costs that residential and
small commercial customers would have paid between 1998 and
2001, which would allow SCE to reduce rates by at least 10% to
these customers, beginning January 1, 1998. The financing would
occur with securities issued by the California Infrastructure and
Economic Development Bank, or an entity approved by the Bank.
The legislation included a rate freeze for all other customers,
including large commercial and industrial customers, as well as
provisions for continued funding for energy conservation, low-
income programs and renewable resources. Despite the rate
freeze, SCE expects to be able to recover its revenue requirement
during the 1998-2001 transition period. In addition, the legislation
mandated the implementation of the CTC that provides utilities
the opportunity to recover costs made uneconomic by electric util-
ity restructuring. Finally, the legislation’contained provisions for
the recovery (through 2006) of reasonable employee-related transi-
tion costs, incurred and projected, for retraining, severance, early
retirement, outplacement and related expenses.

Rate Reduction Notes — In May 1997, SCE filed an application
with the CPUC requesting approval of the issuance of an aggregate
amount of up to $3 billion of rate reduction notes in one or more
series or classes and a 10% rate reduction for the period from
January 1, 1998, through March 31, 2002. At the same time, SCE
filed an application with the California Infrastructure and
Economic Development Bank for approval to issue the notes.
Residential and small commercial customers will repay the notes
over the expected 10-year term through non-bypassable charges
based on electricity consumption. In December 1997, after receiv-
ing approval from both the CPUC and the Infrastructure Bank, a
limited liability company created by SCE issued approximately
$2.5 billion of these notes. For further details, see the discussion in
Cash Flows from Financing Activities.
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CPUC Restructuring Decision — The CPUC’s December 1995 deci-
sion on restructuring California’s electric utility industry started the
transition to a new market structure, which is expected to provide
competition and customer choice and is scheduled to begin March
31, 1998. Key elements of the CPUC’s restructuring decision includ-
ed: creation of the PX and ISO; availability of direct customer access
and customer choice; PBR for those utility services not subject to
competition; voluntary divestiture of at least 50% of utilities’ gas-
fueled generation, and implementation of the CTC.

Rate-setting — In December 1996, SCE filed a more comprehen-
sive plan (elaborating on its July 1996 filing related to the concep-
tual aspects of separating costs as requested by CPUC and FERC
directives) for the functional unbundling of its rates for electric ser-
vice, beginning January 1, 1998. In response to CPUC and FERC
orders, as well as the new restructuring legislation, this filing
addressed the implementation-level detail for the functional
unbundling of rates into separate charges for energy, transmission,
distribution, the CTC, public benefit programs and nuclear
decommissioning. The transmission component of this rate
unbundling process was addressed at the FERC through a March
1997 filing. In December 1997, the FERC approved these rates,
subject to refund, to be effective on the date the ISO begins opera-
tion. CPUC hearings on SCE's rate unbundling (also known as
rate-setting) plan were concluded in April 1997. In August 1997,
the CPUC issued a decision which adopted the methodology for
determining CTC residually (see CTC discussion below) and
adopted SCE’s revenue requirement components for public benefit
programs and nuclear decommissioning. The decision also adjust-
ed SCE’s proposcd distribution revenue requirement by reallocat-
ing $76 million of the amount annually to other functions such as
generation and transmission. Under the decision, SCE will be able

_to recover most of the reallocated amount through market revenue,

other rate-making mechanisms after petitioning the CPUC to
modify its prior decisions, or another review process later in its
divestiture proceeding.

PX and ISO — In April 1996, SCE, Pacific Gas & Electric
Company and San Diego Gas & Electric Company filed a proposal
with the FERC regarding the creation of the PX and the ISO. In
November 1996, the FERC conditionally accepted the proposal
and directed the three utilities, the ISO, and the PX to file more
specific information. The filing was made in March 1997, and
included SCE’s proposed transmission revenue requirement. On
October 29, 1997, the FERC gave conditional, interim authoriza-
tion for operation of the PX and ISO to begin on January 1, 1998,
The FERC stated it would closely monitor the PX and ISO,
require further studies and make modifications, where necessary.
A comprehensive review will be performed by the FERC after
three years of operation of the PX and ISO. On December 22,
1997, the PX and ISO governing boards announced a delay in the
planned start-up of the PX and ISO due to insufficient testing of
operational, settlement and billing systems. The PX and ISO are
now expected to begin operation by March 31, 1998.

In July 1996, the three utilities jointly filed an application with
the CPUC requesting approval to establish a restructuring trust
which would obtain loans up to $250 million for the development
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of the ISO and PX through January 1, 1998. The loans are backed
by utility guarantees; SCE’s share was 45%, or $113 million. In

August 1996, the CPUC issued an interim order establishing the

restructuring trust and the funding level of $250 million, which has
been used to build the hardware and software systems for the ISO
and PX. The ISO and PX will repay the trust’s loans and recover
funds from future ISO and PX customers. In November 1997, the
CPUC approved a petition jointly filed by the three utilities which
requested an increase in the loan guarantees from $250 million to
$300 million; SCE’s share of this new total is $135 million. In
December 1997, the CPUC approved a remaining item with
respect to the petition which requested that the one-time restruc-
turing implementation charge, to be paid to the PX by the utilities,
be deemed a non-bypassable charge to be recovered from all retail
customers. The amount of the PX charge is $85 million; SCE’s
share is 45%, or $38 million.

Direct Customer Access — In May 1997, the CPUC issued a decision

describing how all California investor-owned-utility customers
will be able to choose who will provide them with electric genera-
tion service beginning January 1, 1998. On December 30, 1997, the
CPUC issued a decision delaying direct access until March 31,
1998, due to operational delays in the start-up of the PX and ISO.
On this date, customers will be able to choose to remain utility cus-
tomers with bundled electric service from SCE (which will pur-
chase its power through the PX), or choose direct access, which
means the customer can contract directly with either independent
power producers or retail electric service providers such as power
brokers, marketers and aggregators. Additionally, all investor-
owned-utility customers must pay the CTC whether or not they
choose to buy power through SCE. Electric utilities will continue
to provide the core distribution service of delivering energy
through its distribution system regardless of a customer’s choice of
electricity supplier. The CPUC will continue to regulate the prices
and service obligations related to distribution services. If the new
competitive market cannot accommodate the volume of direct
access transactions, the CPUC could implement a contingency
plan. However, the CPUC believes it is likely that interest in and
migration to direct access will be gradual.

Revenue Cycle Services — A decision issued by the CPUC in May
1997, introduces customer choice to metering, billing and related
services (referred to as revenue cycle services) that are now provid-
ed by California’s investor-owned utilities. Under this revenue
cycle services unbundling decision, beginning in January 1998,
direct access customers may choose to have either SCE or their elec-
tric generation service provider render consolidated (energy and
distribution) bills, or they may choose to have separate billings from
each service provider. However, not all electric generation service
providers will necessarily offer each billing option. In addition,
beginning in January 1998, customers with maximum demand
above 20 kW (primarily industrial and large commercial) can
choose SCE or any other supplier to provide their metering service.
All other customers will have this option beginning in January 1999,
In determining whether any credit should be provided by the utili-
ty to firms providing customers with revenue cycle services, and the
amount of any such credit, the CPUC has indicated that it is appro-
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priate to net the cost incurred by the utility and the cost avoided by
the utility as a result of such services being provided by the other
firm rather than by the utility. The unbundling of revenue cycle
services will expose SCE to the possible loss of revenue, higher
stranded costs and a reduction in revenue security.

PBR — In 1993, SCE filed for a PBR mechanism to determine
most of its revenue (excluding fuel). The filing was subsequently
divided between transmission and distribution (T&D) and power
generation.

In September 1996, the CPUC adopted a non-generation or
T&D PBR mechanism for SCE which began on January 1, 1997.
According to the CPUC, beginning in 1998 (coincident with the ini-
tiation of the competitive market), the transmission portion is to be
separated from non-generation PBR and subject to ratemaking
under the rules of the FERC. The distribution-only PBR will
extend through December 2001, Key elements of the non-genera-
tion PBR include: T&D rates indexed for inflation based on the
Consumer Price Index less a productivity factor; elimination of the
kilowatt-hour sales adjustment; adjustments for cost changes that
are not within SCE’s control; a cost of capital trigger mechanism
based on changes in a bond index; standards for service reliability
and safety; and a net revenue-sharing mechanism that determines

how customers and shareholders will share gains and losses from *

T&D operations.

With the CPUC’s 1995 restructuring decision and the passage
of restructuring legislation in 1996, the majority of power genera-
tion ratemaking (primarily fossil-fueled and nuclear) was assigned
to other mechanisms. In April 1997, a CPUC interim order deter-
mined that the proposed structure of the fossil-fueled plants’ must-
run contracts were under the FERC's jurisdiction. On October 31,
1997, SCE filed must-run tariff schedules with the FERC covering
its six ISO-designated must-run plants. In the meantime, SCE is
pursuing the divestiture of these plants (sce Divestiture discussion
below) and might not ever itself provide service under these FERC
tariff schedules.

In December 1997, the CPUC adopted a PBR-type ratemak-
ing mechanism for SCE’s hydroclectric plants. The mechanism
sets the hydroelectric revenue requirement in 1998 and establishes
a formula for extending it through the duration of the clectric
industry restructuring transition period, or until market valuation
of the hydroclectric facilities, whichever occurs first. The mecha-
nism provides that power sales revenue from hydroclectric facili-
ties in cxcess of the hydroclectric revenue requirement be credited
against the costs to transition to a competitive market (see CTC
discussion below),

Divestiture — In November 1996, SCE filed an application with the
CPUC to volumarily divest, by auction, all 12 of its oil- and gas-
fueled generation plants. This application builds on SCE’s March
1996 plan which outlined how SCE proposed to divest 50% of these
assets. Under the new proposal, SCE would continue to operate
and maintain the divested power plants for at least two years fol-
lowing their sale, as mandated by the restructuring legislation
enacted in September 1996. In addition, SCE would offer work-
force transition programs to those employees who may be impacted
by divestiture-related job reductions. SCE's proposal is contingent
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on the overall electric industry restructuring implementation
process continuing on a satisfactory path. In September 1997, the
CPUC approved SCE’s proposal to auction the 12 plants.

On December 1, 1997, SCE filed a compliance filing with the
CPUC stating that it had sold 10 plants. On December 16, 1997, the
CPUC approved the sale of the 10 plants. On February 6, 1998,
SCE filed a compliance filing with the CPUC regarding the sale of’
an 11th plant. CPUC approval of the sale is expected before March
31, 1998. The total sales price of the 11 plants is $1.1 billion, or 2.16
times their combined book value of $531 million. Net proceeds of
the sales will be used to reduce stranded costs, which otherwise were
expected to be collected through the CTC mechanism. The transfer
of ownership of the 11 plants is expected to occur shortly before the
start of the new competitive market, which the PX and ISO cur-
rently expect to occur on March 31, 1998. The sale and CPUC
approval of the single remaining plant is expected to be completed
in early 1998,

CTC — Recovery of costs to transition to a competitive market is
being implemented through a non-bypassable CTC. This charge
applies to all customers who were using or began using utility ser-
vices on or after the CPUC’s December 20, 1995, decision date. In
August 1996, in compliance with the CPUC’s restructuring deci-
sion, SCE filed its application to estimate its 1998 transition costs. In
October 1996, SCE amended its transition cost filing to reflect the
effects of the legislation enacted in September 1996. Under the rate
freeze codified in the legislation, the CTC will be determined resid-
ually (i.c., after subtracting other cost components for the PX, T&D,
nuclear decommissioning and public benefit programs). Never-
theless, the CPUC directed that the amended application provide
estimates of SCE’s potential transition costs from 1998 through
2030. SCE provided two estimates between approximately $13.1
billion (1998 net present value) assuming the fossil plants have a
market value equal to their net book value, and $13.8 billion (1998
net present value) assuming the fossil plants have no market value,
These estimates are based on incurred costs, forecasts of future costs
and assumed market prices. -However, changes in the assumed
market prices could materially affect these estimates. The potential
transition costs arc comprised of: $7.5 billion from SCE’s QF con-
tracts, which are the direct result of prior legislative and regulatory
mandates; and $5.6 billion to $6.3 billion from costs pertaining to
certain generating plants (successful completion of the sale of SCE’s
gas-fired gencrating plants would reduce this estimate of transition
costs for SCE-owned generation to less than $5 billion) and regula-
tory commitments consisting of costs incurred (whose recovery has
been deferred by the CPUC) to provide service to customers. Such
commitments include the recovery of income tax benefits previous-
ly flowed through to customers, postretirement benefit transition
costs, accelerated recovery of San Onofre Units 2 and 3 and the Palo
Verde units (as discussed in Regulatory Matters), and certain other
costs. In February 1997, SCE filed an update to the CTC filing to
reflect approval by the CPUC of settlements regarding ratemaking
for SCE's share of Palo Verde and the buyout of a power purchase
agreement, as well as other minor data updates. No substantive
changes in the total CTC estimates were included. This issue has
been separated into two phases; Phase 1 addresses the rate-making
issues and Phase 2 the quantification issues.
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A decision on Phase 1 was issued in June 1997, which, among
other things, required the establishment of a transition cost balanc-
ing account and annual transition cost proceedings, set a market
rate forecast for 1998 transition costs, and required that generation-
related regulatory assets be amortized ratably over a 48-month peri-
od. Hearings on Phase 2 were held in May and June 1997 and a
final decision was issued on November 19, 1997. The Phase 2 deci-
sion established the calculation methodologies and procedures for
SCE 1o collect its transition costs from 1998 through the end of the
rate freeze. The Phase 2 decision also reduced SCE's authorized
rate of return on certain assets eligible for transition cost recovery
(primarily fossil- and hydroelectric-gencration related assets) begin-
ning July 1997, five months earlier than anticipated. The decision,
excluding the effects of other rate actions, had a negative impact on
1997 earnings of approximately 4¢ per share. SCE has filed an
application for rehearing on the 1997 rate of return issue.

Accounting for Generation-Related Assets — If the CPUCs electric
industry restructuring plan is implemented as outlined above, SCE
would be allowed 1o recover its CTC through non-bypassable
charges to its distribution customers (although its investment in
certain generation assets would be subject to a lower authorized
rate of return).

As previously reported, from November 1996 to July 1997,
SCE and the other major California clectric utilities were engaged
in discussioris with the Securities and Exchange Commission staff
regarding the proper application of regulatory accounting standards
in light of the electric industry restructuring legislation enacted by
the State of California in September 1996 and the CPUCs electric
industry restructuring plan. This issue was placed on the agenda of
the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s Emerging Issues Task
Force (EITF) during April 1997 and a final consensus was reached
at the July EITF meeting. During the third quarter of 1997, SCE
implemented the EITF consensus and discontinued application of
accounting principles for rate-regulated enterprises for its invest-
ment in generation facilitics.

However, implementation of the EITF consensus did not
require SCE to write off any of its generation-related assets, includ-
ing regulatory assets of approximately $600 million at December 31,
1997. SCE has retained these assets on its balance sheet because the
legislation and restructuring plan referred to above make probable
their recovery through a non-bypassable CTC to distribution cus-
tomers. These regulatory assets relate primarily to the recovery of
accelerated income tax benefits previously flowed through to cus-
tomers, purchased power contract termination payments, unamor-
tized losses on reacquired debt, and the recovery of amounts
deferred under the Palo Verde rate phase-in plan. The consensus
reached by the EITF also permits the recording of new generation-
related regulatory assets during the transition period that are proba-
ble of recovery through the CTC mechanism.

If during the transition period events were to occur that made
the recovery of these generation-related regulatory assets no longer
probable, SCE would be required to write off the remaining bal-
ance of such assets as a one-time, non-cash charge against earnings.
If such a write-off were to be required, SCE believes that it should
not affect the recovery of stranded costs provided for in the legisla-
tion and restructuring plan, ’
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Although depreciation-related differences could result from
applying a regulatory prescribed depreciation method (straight-line,
remaining-life method) rather than a method that would have been
applied absent the regulatory process, SCE believes that the depre-
ciable lives of its generation-related assets would not vary signifi-
cantly from that of an unregulated enterprise, as the CPUC bases
depreciable lives on periodic studies that reflect the physical useful
lives of the assets. SCE also believes that any depreciation-related
differences would be recovered through the CTC.

If events occur during the restructuring process that result in all
or a portion of the CTC being improbable of recovery, SCE could
have additional write-offs associated with these costs if they are not
recovered through another regulatory mechanism. At this time, SCE
cannot predict what other revisions will ultimately be made during
the restructuring process in subsequent proceedings or implementa-
tion phases, or the effect, after the transition period, that competition
will have on its results of operations or financial position.

FERC Restructuring Decision

In April 1996, the FERC issued its decision on stranded-cost recov-
cry and open access transmission, effective July 1996. The decision,
reaffirmed by the FERC in its March and November 1997 orders,
requires all electric utilities subject to the FERC's jurisdiction to
file transmission tariffs which provide competitors with increased
access to transmission facilities for wholesale transactions and also
establishes information requirements for the transmission utility.
The decision also provides utilities with the opportunity to recover
stranded costs associated with existing wholesale customers, retail-
turned-wholesale customers and retail wheeling when the state
regulatory body does not have authority to address retail stranded
costs. Even though the CPUC is currently addressing stranded-
cost recovery through the CTC proceedings, the FERC has also
asserted primary jurisdiction over the recovery of stranded costs
associated with retail-turned-wholesale customers, such as a new
municipal electric system or a municipal annexation. However, the
FERC did clarify that it does not intend to prevent or interfere
with a state’s authority and that it has discretion to defer to a state
stranded-cost-calculation method. In January 1997, the FERC
accepted the open access transmission tariff SCE filed in compli-
ance with the April 1996 decision. The rates included in the tariff
are being collected subject to refund. In May 1997, SCE filed a
revised open access tariff to reflect the few revisions set forth in the
March 1997 order. The open access transmission tariff will be ter-
minated on the date the ISO begins operation.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Edison International is subject to numerous environmental laws
and regulations, which require it to incur substantial costs to oper-
ate existing facilities, construct and operate new facilities, and mit-
igate or remove the effect of past operations on the environment.
As further discussed in Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, Edison International records its environmental lia-
bilities when site assessments and/or remedial actions are probable
and a range of reasonably likely cleanup costs can be estimated.
Edison International reviews its sites and measures the Hability
quarterly, by assessing a range of reasonably likely costs for cach
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identified site. Unless there is a probable amount, Edison Inter-
national records the lowérend of this range of costs.
* * In connection with the issuance of the San Onofre Units 2 and
3 operating permits, SCE reached agreement with the California
Coastal Commission in 1991 to restore certain marine mitigation
sites. The restorations include two sites: designated wetlands and
the construction of an artificial kelp reef off the California coast.
After SCE requested certain modifications to the agreement, the
Coastal Commission issued a final ruling in April 1997 to reduce
_the scope of remediations. SCE elected to pay for the costs of
marine mitigation in lieu of placing the funds into a trust. Rate
rccovci'y of these costs is occurririg through the San Onofre incen-
tive pricing plan. .

Edison International’s recorded estimated minimum liabili-
ty to remediate its 51 identified sites is $178 million, which includes
$75 million for the two sites discussed above. One of SCE’s sites, a
former pole-treating facility, is considered a federal Superfund site
and represents 42% of Edison International’s recorded liability. The

_ultimate costs to clean up Edison International’s identified sites may
vary from its recorded liability duc to numerous uncertaintics
inherent in the estimation process. Edison International believes

. that, due to these uncertainties, it is reasonably possible that cleanup

costs could exceed its recorded liability by up to $246 million. The
upper limit of this range of costs was estimated using assumptions
least favorable to Edison International among a range of reasonably

possible outcomes. .

The CPUC allows SCE to recover environmental-cleanup
costs at'41 of its sites, representing $91 million of Edison
International’s recorded liability, through an incentive mechanism.
Under this mechanism, SCE will recover 90% of cleanup costs
through customer rates; sharcholders fund the remaining 10%,
with the opportunity to recover these costs from insurance carriers
and other third parties. SCE has successfully settled insurance
claims with all responsible carriers. Costs incurred at SCE’s
remaining sites are expected to be recovered through customer
rates. SCE has recorded a regulatory asset of $153 million for its
estimated minimum environmental-cleanup costs expected to be
recovered through customer rates. This amount includes $60 mil-
lion of marine mitigation costs remaining to be recovered through
the San Onofre incentive pricing plan.

Edison International’s identified sites include several sites for
which there is a lack of currently available information, including
the nature and magnitude of contamination, and the extent, if any,
that Edison International may be held responsible for contributing
to any costs incurred for remediating these sites. Thus, no reason-
able estimate of cleanup costs can now be made for these sites.

Edison International expects to clean up its identified sites over
a f)eriod of up to 30 years. Remediation costs in cach of the next sev-

a.

. eral years are expected to range from $4 million to $10 million.
" Recorded costs for 1997 were $10 million,

Based on currcntly available information, Edison International

" believes it is unlikely that it will incur amounts in excess of the
-upper hmlt of the estimated range and, based upon the CPUC's reg-
s ulatory treatment of environmental-cleanup costs, Edison
International believes that costs ultimately recorded will not mate-
rially affect its results of operations or financial position. There can

" be no assurance, however, that future developments, including

)

additional information about cxisting sites or the identification of
new sites, will not require material revisions to such estimates.

The 1990 federal Clean Air Act requires power producers to
have emissions allowances to emit sulfur dioxide. Power compa-
nies receive emissions allowances from the federal government and
may bank or sell excess allowances. SCE expects to have excess
allowances under Phase II of the Clean Air Act (2000 and later).
"The act also calls for a study to determine if additional regulations
are needed to reduce regional haze in the southwestern U.S. In
addition, another study is in progress to determine the specific
impact of air contaminant emissions from the Mohave Coal
Generating Station on visibility in Grand Canyon National Park.
The potential effect of these studies on sulfur dioxide emissions
regulations for Mohave is unknown,

Edison International’s projected capital expenditures to pro-
tect the environment are $820 million for the 1998 — 2002 period,
mainly for aesthetics treatment, including undergrounding certain
transmission and distribution lines.

The possibility that exposure to electric and magnetic ficlds
(EMF) emanating from power lines, household appliances and
other clectric sources may result in adverse health effects has been
the subject of scientific research. After many years of research, sci-
cntists have not found that exposure to EMF causes discase in
humans. Research on this topic is continuing. However, the CPUC
has issued a decision which provides for a rate-recoverable rescarch
and public education program conducted by California electric util-
ities, and authorizes these utilities to take no-cost or low-cost steps
to reduce EMF in new electric facilities. SCE is unable to predict
when or if the scientific community will be able to reach a consen-
sus on any health effects of EMF, or the effect that such a consensus,
if reached, could have on future electric operations.

E ST E B

The San Onofre Units 2 and 3 stcam gencrators have performed
relatively well through the first 15 years of operation, with low
rates of ongoing steam gencrator tube degradation. However, dur-
ing the Unit 2 scheduled refueling and inspection outage, which
was completed in Spring 1997, an increased rate of tube degrada-
tion was identified, which resulted in the removal of more tubes
from service than had been expected. The steam generator design
allows for the removal of up to 10% of the tubes before the rating
capacity of the unit must be reduced. As a result of the increased
degradation, a mid-cycle inspection outage will be conducted in
carly 1998 for Unit 2.

During Unit 3's refueling outage, which was completed in July
1997, inspections of structural supports for steam generator tubes
identified several areas where the thickness of the supports had
been reduced, apparently by erosion during normal plant opera-
tion. As a result, a mid-cycle inspection outage is planned for early
1998. However, during Unit 2's Spring 1997 inspection outage,
similar tube supports showed no signs of such erosion.

opos w_AC N D

During 1996, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued an
exposure draft that would establish accounting standards for the
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recognition and measurement of closure and removal obligations.  QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA
The exposure draft would require the estimated present value of ~ (Unaudited)
an obligation to be recorded as a liability, along with a correspond- 1997
ing increase in the plant or regulatory asset accounts when the -
e e e . . . In millions,
obligation is incurred. If the exposure draft is approved in its pre- ept per-share amounss  Total  Fourth Thid  Second First
sent form, it would affect SCE’s accounting practices for the
decommissioning of its nuclear power plants, obligations for coal =~ Operatingrevenue  § 9235 § 2320 § 2738 § 2167 § 2,001
. . . e Operating income 1,498 342 470 329 357
mine reclamation costs and any other activities related to the clo- = 700 139 277 139 145
sure or removal of long-lived assets. SCE does not expect that the  per hare:
accounting changes proposed in the exposure draft would have an Basic carnings 175 37 70 34 35
adverse effect on its results of operations even after deregulation Diluted carnings 1.73 36 70 34 34
due to its current and expected future ability to recover these costs Dividends declared 1.00 25 25 25 25
e ere . Common stock prices:
through customer rates. The nonutility subsidiaries are currently High $27%  $27We $ 27% $ 25% & 23%
reviewing what impact the exposure draft may have on their Low ‘ 19 % 24, % 20" 9%
results of operations and financial position. , Close 27 % 27 % 25 247 2
YEAR 2000 ISSUE 19%
In millions,
Many of SCE’s cxisting computer systems identify a year by only  except pershare amounts  Total  Fourth Thind _ Second First
two digits instead of four. If not corrected, these programs could  Operating revenue ~ § 8545 § 2,195 $ 258 $ 1814  § 1,968
fail or create erroncous results when the new century begins. This ~ Operating income 1,478 328 468 332 350
situation has been referred to generally as the Year 2000 Issuc. ;«th i}r‘xcomc 77 117 277 156 167
: . : are:

SCE has_dcvclopcd pl:-\ns and is addrcssnr-xg the programming "B:sic‘camings L6t 57 @ 35 38
changes that it has determined are necessary in order for its com- Diluted carnings 163 27 P 35 37
puter systems to function properly beginning in 2000. Remediation Dividends declared 1.00 25 25 25 25
of SCE’s key financial systems for the Year 2000 Issue was com-  Common stock prices:
pleted in 1997. SCE's informational and operational systems have gish $ ig :;' $ fg :;' $ :2 Z' $ ::z- $ :2:;-

H w () . 1 (]
been assessed, and detailed plans have been developed to address 197 I 7 17 /:

modifications required to be completed, tested and operational by
December 31, 1999. Preliminary estimates of the costs to complete
these modifications, including the cost of new hardware and
software application modifications, range from $55 million to $80
million, about half of which are expected to be capital costs.
Current rate levels for providing electric service should be suffi-
cient to provide funding for these modifications. Remediation of
existing critical systems is expected to be 75% complete by the end
of 1998. SCE cxpects its Year 2000 date conversion project to be
completed on a timely basis, with no material adverse impact to its
results of operations or financial position.

SCE’s Year 2000 date conversion project includes an assess-
ment of critical interfaces with the computer systems of others and
it does not expect a material adverse effect on its operating and
business functions from the Year 2000 Issue.
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Responsibility for Financial Reporting

The management of Edison International is responsible for the
integrity and objectivity of the accompanying financial statements.
The statements have been prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles applied on a consistent basis and are
based, in part, on management estimates and judgment.

Edison International and its subsidiaries maintain systems of
internal control to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
that assets are safeguarded, transactions are executed in accordance
with management’s authorization and the accounting records may
be relied upon for the preparation of the financial statements.
There are limits inherent in all systems of internal control, the
design of which involves management’s judgment and the recogni-
tion that the costs of such systems should not exceed the benefits to
be derived. Edison International believes its systems of internal’
control achieve this appropriate balance. These systems are aug-
mented by internal audit programs through which the adequacy
and effectiveness of internal controls and policies and procedures
are monitored, cvaluated and reported to management.  Actions
are taken to correct deficiencies as they are identified.

Edison International’s independent public accountants,
Arthur Andersen LLP, are engaged to audit the financial state-
ments in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards
and to express an informed opinion on the fairness, in all material
respects, of Edison International’s reported results of operations,
cash flows and financial position,

As a further measure to assure the ongoing objectivity of
financial information, the audit committec of the board of direc-
tors, which is composed of outside directors, meets periodically,
both jointly and separately, with management, the independent
public accountants and internal auditors, who have unrestricted
access to the committee. The committee recommends annually to
the board of directors the appointment of a firm of independent
public accountants to conduct audits of its financial statements;
considers the independence of such firm and the overall adequacy
of the audit scope and Edison International’s systems of internal
control; reviews financial reporting issues; and is advised of man-
agement’s actions regarding financial reporting and internal con-
trol matters. . )

Edison International and its subsidiaries maintain high stan-
dards in selecting, training and developing personnel to assure that
their operations are conducted in conformity with applicable laws
and are committed to maintaining the highest standards of person-
al and corporate conduct. Management maintains programs to
encourage and assess compliance with these standards.

/M( €. G

Ricuarp K. Busuey Joun E. Bryson
Vice President and Controller Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

January 30, 1998
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Report of Independent Public Accountants

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors, Edison International:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of
Edison International (a California corporation) and its subsidiaries
as of December 31, 1997, and 1996, and the related consolidated
statements of income, retained carnings and cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 1997. These
financial statements are the responsibility of Edison International’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accept-
ed auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits pro-
vide a reasonable basis for our opinion. .

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above pre-
sent fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Edison
International and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 1997, and
1996, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
cach of the three years in the period ended December 31, 1997, in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

AM/(W LLp

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP
Los Angeles, California

January 30, 1998
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Consolidated Statements of Income

.

In millions, except per-share amounts Year ended December 31,, 1997 1996 1995
Electric utility revenue $ 7953 $ 7,583 $ 7,873
Diversified operations 1,282 962 532
Total operating revenue 9,235 8,545 8,405
Fuel 1,074 768 694
Purchased power 2,854 2,706 2,582
Provisions for regulatory adjustment clauses — net “11) (226) 230
Other operating expenses 1,781 1,555 1,411
Maintenance 406 331 359
Depreciation and decommissioning 1,362 1,173 1,014
Income taxes 537 563 528
Property and other taxes 134 197 210
Total operating expenses 7,737 7,067 7,028
Operating income 1,498 1,478 1,377
Provision for rate phase-in plan . (48) (84) (122)
Allowance for equity funds used during construction 8 16- 19
Interest and dividend income ' 85 63 65
Minority interest (39) (70) “8)
Other nonoperating income (deductions) — net (62) (13) 4]
Total other income (deductions) — net (56) (88) 45)
Income before interest and other expenses 1,442 1,390 1,332
Interest on long-term debe 584 604 539
Other interest expense 139 90 81
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction 9 (10) (14)
Capitalized interest (15) (58) (60)
Dividends on subsidiary preferred securities 43 47 47
Total interest and other expenses — net 742 673 593
Net income 8§ 700 $ 717 $ 739
Weighted-average shares of common stock outstanding 400 437 446
Basic earnings per share 8 175 $ L64 $ 1.66
Diluted earnings per share $ 173 $ 1.63 $ 165
Consolidated Statements of Retained Earnings
In millions, except per-share amounts Year ended Dtcembc; 31, 1997 " 1996 1995
Balance at beginning of year $ 3,753 $ 3,700 $ 3452
Net income 700 717 739
Dividends declared on common stock (395) (435) (446)
Stock repurchase and retirement (882) ) (229) (45)
Balance at end of year $ 3,176 $ 3,753 $ 3,700
§ 100 $ 100 $ 1.00

Dividends declared per commuon share

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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In millions December 31, 1997 1996
ASSETS
Transmission and distribution:

Utility plant, at original cost, subject to cost-based rate regulation $11,213 $10,973

Accumulated provision for depreciation (5,574) 5,129),

Construction work in progress 493 462

6,132 6,306

Generation:

Utility plant, at original cost, not subject to cost-based rate regulation 9,522 9,427

Accumulated provision for depreciation and decommissioning (4,970) (4,302)

Construction work in progress 100 95

Nuclear fuel, at amortized cost 155 177

4,807 5,397

Total utility plant 10,939 11,703
Nonutility property — less accumulated provision for depreciation

of $238 and $203 at respective dates 3,178 3,570
Nuclear decommissioning trusts 1,831 1,486
Investments in partnerships and unconsolidated subsidiaries 1,408 1,372
Investments in leveraged leases 960 584
Other investments 194 104
Total other property and investments 7,571 7,116
Cash and equivalents 1,907 897
Receivables, including unbilled revenue, less allowances of $27

and $26 for uncollectible accounts at respective dates 1,077 1,095
Fuel inventory 58 72
Materials and supplies, at average cost 133 154
Accumulated deferred income taxes — net 123 240
Regulatory balancing accounts — net 193 —_
Prepayments and other current assets 106 114
Total current assets 3,597 2,572
Unamortized debt issuance and reacquisition expense 359 347
Income tax-related deferred charges 1,544 1,741
Other deferred charges 1,091 1,080
Total deferred charges 2,994 3,168
Total assets $25,101 $24,559

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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In millions, exceps share amounts December 31, 1997 1996

CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES
Common sharcholders’ equity:

Common stock (375,764,429 and 424,524,178 shares outstanding at respective dates) $ 2,261 $ 2,547
Cumulative translation adjustments — net 30 64
Unrealized gain in equity investments — net 60 33
Retained earnings 3,176 3,753
5,527 6,397
Preferred securities of subsidiaries:
Not subject to mandatory redemption 184 284
Subject to mandatory redemption . 425 425
Long-term debt 8,871 7,475
Total capitalization 15,007 14,581
. Other long-term liabilities ‘ : 480 424
Current portion of long-term debt . 868 592
Short-term debt 330 397
Accounts payable 441 438
Accrued taxes 577 530
Accrucd interest 132 131
Dividends payable 95 109
Regulatory balancing accounts — net . — 182
Deferred unbilled revenue and other current liabilities 1,285 1,059
Total current liabilities 3,728 3,438
Accumulated deferred income taxes — net 4,085 4,283
Accumulated deferred investment tax credits 351 372
Customer advances and other deferred credits 1,441 754
Total deferred credits 5,877 5,409 |
Minority interest 9 707
Commitments and contingencics (Notes 2, 8, 9 and 10)
Total capitalization and liabilities $25,101 $24,559

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

In millions Year ended December 31, 1997 1996 1995
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 700 $ 717 $ 739
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation and decommissioning - - 1,362 1,173 1,014
Amortization . 88 96 73
Rate phase-in plan 47 79 111
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits 115 91 (166)
Equity in income from partnerships and unconsolidated subsidiaries (190) (159 (115)
Other long-term liabilities 56 80 33
Other — net (131) (98) —
Changes in working capital:
Receivables (8) 68 27)
Regulatory balancing accounts (375) (156) 282
Fuel inventory, materials and supplies 36 39 (19)
Prepayments and other current assets 10 13 (17)
Accrued interest and taxes 47 3 19
Accounts payable and other current liabilities ’ 195 70 13
Distributions from partnerships and unconsolidated subsidiaries 182 176 178
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,134 2,197 2,118
Cash flows from financing activities:
Long-term debt issued ’ 1,646 1,365 1,496
Long-term debt repaid 2,219) (1,315) (960)
Rate reduction notes issued 2,449 —_— —
Preferred securities issued —_ 414 63
Preferred securities redeemed (100) —_ (75)
Common stock repurchased ' (1,173) (344) (70)
Short-term debt financing — net (68) (312) (46)
Dividends paid (408) 440) (447)
Other — net (14) 45 31
Nez cash provided (used) by financing activities 113 (587) (8)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Additions to property and plant (783) (744) (969)
Purchase of nonutility power stations — — (1,015)
Funding of nuclear decommissioning trusts (154) (148) (151)
Investments in partnerships and unconsolidated subsidiaries (131) (336) (45)
Unrealized gain in equity investments — net 27 15 8
Other — net (196) 7 35
Net cash used by investing activities (1,237) (1,220) (2,137)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents i,o10 390 (27)
Cash and cquivalents, beginning of year 897 507 534
. Cash and equivalents, end of year $ 1,907 $ 897 $ 507
Cash payments for interest and taxes:
Interest — net of amounts capitalized $ 579 $ 486 $ 463
Taxes 298 447 642
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Obligation to fund investments in partnerships and unconsolidated subsidiaries 237 237 466
Additions to property and plant funded by the minority owner of
consolidated subsidiaries —_ 33 77
Goodwill related to purchase of nonutility power stations —_ —_ 312

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF

SIGNIEICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting Principles

Southern California Edison Company’s (SCE) accounting policies
conform with gencrally accepted accounting principles (GAAP),
including the accounting principles for rate-regulated enterprises
which reflect the rate-making policies of the California Public
Utilities Commission (CPUC) and the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission (FERC). As a result of industry restructuring legisla-
tion enacted by the State of California and a related change in the
application of accounting principles for rate-regulated enterprises
adopted recently by the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s
Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF), during the third quarter of
1997 SCE began accounting for its investment in generation facili-
ties in accordance with GAAP applicable to enterprises in general.
Although this change did not result in any adjustment of the
carrying value of such investment, the amount is shown separately
on Edison International’s Balance Sheet under the caption:
Generation utility plant, at original cost, not subject to cost-based
rate regulation. The competitive market for electric generation in
California is scheduled to begin March 31, 1998.

Competition Tiansition Charge (CTC)

Beginning January 1, 1998, a non-bypassable charge is being billed to
all SCE customers, which provides SCE the opportunity to recov-
er its costs to transition to a competitive market.

Consolidation Policy

The consolidated financial statements include Edison International
and its wholly owned subsidiaries. Edison International’s sub-
sidiaries use the equity method to account for significant invest-
ments in partnerships and subsidiaries in which they own 50% or
less. Intercompany transactions have been climinated, except
Edison Mission Energy’s (EME) profits from energy sales to SCE,
which are allowed in utility rates.

Earnings per Share (EPS) g

Basic and diluted EPS are computed in accordance with a recently
issued accounting standard. Basic EPS for Edison International equals
previously reported primary EPS. EPS amounts were as follows:

In millions, except per-share amounts

Income Shares Per-Share
(Numerator) (D i ¢

~

For the Year Ended December 31, 1997:
Income 8 743
Less: dividends on subsidiary
prefeered securities 43
Basic EPS -
Net income available to
common sharcholders ' 700 400 $1.75
Effect of dilutive sccurities:
Employee stock options 4

Diluted EPS $ 700 404 $1.73

Edison International and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financjal Statements

In millions, except per-share amounts

Income * Shares Per-Share
(Numerator) (D inator) A t
For the Year Ended December 31, 1996:
Income $ 764
Less: dividends on subsidiary
preferred securitics 47
Basic EPS —
Net income available to
common sharcholders 717 437 $1.64
Effect of dilutive securities:
Employee stock options 2
Diluted EPS $ 717 439 $1.63
For the Year Ended December 31, 1995:
Income $ 786
Less: dividends on subsidiary
preferred securities 47
Basic EPS -
Net income available to
common sharcholders 739 446 $1.66
Effect of dilutive securities:
Employee stock options 2
Diluted EPS $ 739 48 $1.65
Estimates

Financial statements prepared in compliance with GAAP require
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in the financial statements and disclosure of
contingencics. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Certain significant estimates related to electric utility restructuring,
decommissioning and contingencies are further discussed in Notes
2, 9 and 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, respectively.

Fuel Inuentory
Fuel inventory is valued under the last-in, first-out mcthod for fuel
oil and natural gas, and under the first-in, first-out method for coal.

Nature of Operations

Edison International’s wholly owned subsidiaries include: SCE, a
rate-regulated electric utility which produces and supplies electric
energy for its 4.3 million customers in Central and Southern
California; EME, a market leader in the development, ownership
and operation of independent power facilities; Edison Capital, a
leading provider of capital and financial services; and Edison
Enterprises, the retail business arm of Edison International. EME
and Edison Capital have domestic and foreign projects, primarily
in Europe and Asia.

SCE currently operates in a highly regulated environment in
which it has an obligation to deliver clectric service to customers in
return for an cxclusive franchise within its service territory. This
regulatory environment is changing, as further discussed in Note 2
to the Consolidated Financial Statements. EME operates predomi-
nantly in one industry segment: independent, electric power gen-
eration. EME’s domestic projects generally sell power to a limited
number of electric utilities under long-term (15 to 30 years) con-
tracts. EME’s plants arc located in different geographic arcas,
which mitigates the effects of regional markets, cconomic down-
turns or unusual weather conditions.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Nuclear

The CPUC authorized rate phase-in plans to defer the collection of
$200 million in revenue for each unit at the Palo Verde Nuclear
Generating Station during the first four years of operation and
recover the deferred revenue (including interest) evenly over the
following six years. The phase-in plans ended in February 1996,
September 1996 and January 1998 for Units 1,2 and 3, respectively.

Under federal law, SCE is liable for its share of the estimated
costs to decommission three federal nuclear enrichment facilities
(based on purchases). These costs, which will be paid over 15 years,
are recorded as a fuel cost and recovered through non-bypassable
customer rates.

In 1992, SCE discontinued operation of San Onofre Nuclear
Generating Station Unit I, after the CPUC approved a settlement
agreement between SCE and the CPUC’s Office of Ratepayer
Advocates (ORA) to discontinue operation of Unit 1 because oper-
ation of the unit was no longer cost-cffective. As part of the agree-
ment, SCE recovered its remaining investment over a four-year
period ending August 1996, carning an 8.98% rate of return.

In 1994, the CPUC authorized accelerated recovery of SCE’s
nuclear plant investments by $75 million per year, with a corre->
sponding deceleration in recovery of its transmission and distribu-
tion assets through revised depreciation estimates over their
remaining useful lives.

In April 1996, the CPUC authorized a further acceleration of
the recovery of SCE’s remaining investment of $2.6 billion in San
Onofre Units 2 and 3. The accelerated recovery will continue
through December 2001, earning a 7.35% fixed rate of return.
Operating costs, including nuclear fuel and nuclear fuel financing
costs, and incremental capital expenditures at San Onofre Units 2
and 3 are recovered through an incentive pricing plan which allows
SCE to receive about 4¢ per kilowatt-hour through 2003. Any dif-
ferences between these costs and the incentive price will flow
through to the shareholders. Beginning January 1, 1998, the accel-
crated plant recovery and the incentive pricing plan became part of
the CTC mechanism. Beginning in 2004, SCE will be required to
share equally with ratepayers the net benefits received from opera-
tion of the units.

In January 1997, the CPUC authorized a further acceleration
of the recovery of its remaining investment of §1.2 billion in Palo
Verde Units 1, 2 and 3. The accelerated recovery will continue
through December 2001, carning a 7.35% fixed rate of return. The
accelerated plant recovery, as well as operating costs, including
nuclear fuel and nuclear fuel financing costs, and incremental cap-
ital expenditures, are subject to balancing account treatment
through 2001. Beginning January 1, 1998, the balancing account
became part of the CTC mechanism. The existing nuclear unit
incentive procedure will continue only for purposes of calculating
a reward for performance of any unit above an 80% capacity factor
for a fuel cycle. Beginning in 2002, SCE will be required to share
cqually with ratepayers the net benefits received from operation of
Palo Verde.

Property and Plant

Plant additions, including replacements and betterments, are capi-
talized. Such costs for utility property include direct material and
labor, construction overhead and an allowance for funds used dur-
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ing construction (AFUDC). AFUDC represents the estimated cost
of debt and equity funds that finance utility-plant construction.’
AFUDC is capitalized during plant construction and reported in
current earnings. AFUDC is recovered in rates through deprecia-
tion expense over the useful life of the related asset. Depreciation
of utility plant is computed on a straight-line, remaining-life basis.

Replaced or retired property and removal costs less salvage are
charged to the accumulated provision for depreciation. De-
preciation expense stated as a percent of average ‘original cost of
depreciable utility plant was 5.2% for 1997, 4.2% for 1996 and 3.6%
for 1995.

Nonutility property is capitalized at cost, including interest
incurred on borrowed funds that finance construction. Depre-
ciation of nonutility properties is primarily computed on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation expense
stated as a percent of average original cost of depreciable nonutility
property was, on a composite basis, 3.2% for 1997, 3.9% for 1996
and 3.8% for 1995.

During the third quarter of 1997, SCE discontinued account-
ing for its investment in generation facilities using accounting prin-
ciples applicable to rate-regulated enterprises and began
accounting for such investment using GAAP applicable to enter-
prises in general. The carrying value of such investment was unaf-
fected by this change.

Reclassifications
Certain prior-year amounts were reclassified to conform to the
December 31, 1997, financial statement presentation.

Regulatory Balancing Accounts

Prior to January 1, 1998, the differences between CPUC-autho-
rized and actual base-rate revenue from kilowatt-hour sales and
CPUC-authorized and actual energy costs were accumulated in
balancing accounts until they were refunded to, or recovered from,
utility customers through authorized rate adjustments (with inter-
est). Beginning January 1, 1998, the difference between genera-
tion-related revenue and generation-related costs is being
accumulated in a transition cost balancing account. These transi-
tion costs are being recovered from utility customers (with interest)
through the CTC through 2001. Income tax effects on all balanc-
ing account changes are deferred.

In January 1997, in compliance with the new restructuring
legislation, overcollections in the kilowatt-hour sales and energy
cost balancing accounts at December 31, 1996, were transferred to
an interim balancing account and were credited to the transition
cost balancing account beginning in January 1998,

Research, Development and Demonstration (RD&D)

SCE capitalizes RD&D costs that are expected to result in plant
construction. If construction does not occur, these costs are charged
to expense. RD&D expenses are recorded in a balancing account
and, at the end of the rate-case cycle, any authorized but unspent
RD&D funds are refunded to customers. RD&D expenses were
$39 million in 1997, $21 million in 1996 and $28 million in 1995.




Revenue
Electric utility revenue includes amounts for services rendered but
unbilled at the end of each year.

NOTE 2. REGULATORY MATTERS

California Electric Utility Industry Restructuring

Restructuring Legislation — In September 1996, the State of
California enacted legislation to provide a transition to a competi-
tive market structure. The legislation substantially adopted the
CPUC’s December 1995 restructuring decision by addressing
stranded-cost recovery for utilities and providing a certain cost-
recovery time period for the transition costs associated with utility-
owned generation-related assets.  Transition costs related to
power-purchase contracts would be recovered through the terms of
their contracts while most of the remaining transition costs would
be recovered through 2001. The legislation also included provi-
sions to finance a portion of the stranded costs that residential and
small commercial customers would have paid between 1998 and
2001, which would allow SCE to reduce rates by at least 10% to
these customers, beginning January 1, 1998. The financing would
occur with securities issued by the California Infrastructure and
Economic Development Bank, or an entity approved by the Bank.
The legislation included a rate freeze for all other customers,
including large commercial and industrial customers, as well as
provisions for continued funding for energy conservation, low-
income programs and rencwable resources. Despite the rate
freeze, SCE expects to be able to recover its revenue requirement
during the 1998 — 2001 transition period. In addition, the legisla-
tion mandated the implementation of the CTC that provides utili-
ties the opportunity to recover costs made uneconomic by electric
utility restructuring. Finally, the legislation contained provisions
for the recovery (through 2006) of reasonable employee-related
transition costs, incurred and projected, for retraining, severance,
carly retirement, outplacement and related expenses.

Rate Reduction Notes — In May 1997, SCE filed an application
with the CPUC requesting approval of the issuance of an aggregate
amount of up to $3 billion of rate reduction notes in one or more
series or classes and a 10% rate reduction for the period from January
1, 1998, through March 31, 2002. At the same time, SCE filed an
application with the California Infrastructure and Economic
Development Bank for approval to issue the notes. Residential and
small commercial customers will repay the notes over the expected
10-year term through non-bypassable charges based on clectricity
consumption. In December 1997, after receiving approval from both
the CPUC and the Infrastructure Bank, a limited liability company
created by SCE issued approximately $2.5 billion of these notes. For
further details, see the discussion under Long-Term Debt in Note 3
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

CPUC Restructuring Decision — The CPUC’s December 1995
decision on restructuring California’s electric utility industry started
the transition to a new market structure, which is expected to pro-
vide competition and customer choice and is scheduled to begin
March 31, 1998. Key elements of the CPUC's restructuring deci-
sion included: creation of an independent power exchange (PX)
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and independent system operator (ISO); availability of direct cus-
tomer access and customer choice; performance-based ratemaking
(PBR) for those utility services not subject to competition; volun-
tary divestiture of at least 50% of utilities’ gas-fucled generation, and
implementation of the CTC.

Rate-setting — In December 1996, SCE filed a more comprehen-
sive plan (elaborating on its July 1996 filing rclated to the concep-
tual aspects of scparating costs as requested by CPUC and FERC
directives) for the functional unbundling of its rates for electric ser-
vice, beginning January 1, 1998. In response to CPUC and FERC
orders, as well as the new restructuring legislation, this filing
addressed the implementation-level detail for the functional
unbundling of rates into separate charges for energy, transmission,
distribution, the CTC, public benefit programs and nuclear
decommissioning. The transmission component of this rate
unbundling process was addressed at the FERC through a March
1997 filing. In December 1997, the FERC approved these rates,
subject to refund, 1o be effective on the date the ISO begins opera-
tion. CPUC hearings on SCE'’s rate unbundling (also known as
rate-setting) plan were concluded in April 1997. In August 1997,
the CPUC issued a decision which adopted the methodology for
determining CTC residually (see CTC discussion below) and
adopted SCE’s revenue requirement components for public benefit
programs and nuclear decommissioning. The decision also adjust-
ed SCE's proposed distribution revenue requirement by reallocat-
ing 876 million of the amount annually to other functions such as
generation and transmission. Under the decision, SCE will be able
to recover most of the reallocated amount through market revenue,
other rate-making mechanisms after petitioning the CPUC to
modify its prior decisions, or another review process later in its
divestiture proceeding.

PX and ISO — In April 1996, SCE, Pacific Gas & Electric
Company and San Diego Gas & Electric Company filed a proposal
with the FERC regarding the creation of the PX and the I1SO. In
November 1996, the FERC conditionally accepted the proposal
and directed the three utilities, the ISO, and the PX to file more
specific information. The filing was made in March 1997, and
included SCE’s proposed transmission revenue requirement. On
October 29, 1997, the FERC gave conditional, interim authoriza-
tion for operation of the PX and ISO to begin on January 1, 1998.
The FERC stated it would closely monitor the PX and ISO,
require further studies and make modifications, where necessary.
A comprehensive review will be performed by the FERC after
three years of operation of the PX and ISO. On December 22,
1997, the PX and ISO governing boards announced a delay in the
planned start-up of the PX and ISO duc to insufficient testing of
operational, settlement and billing systems. The PX and ISO are
now expected to begin operation by March 31, 1998.

In July 1996, the three utilitics jointly filed an application with
the CPUC requesting approval to establish a restructuring trust
which would obtain loans up to $250 million for the development
of the ISO and PX through January 1, 1998. The loans are backed
by utility guarantees; SCE’s share was 45%, or $113 million. In
August 1996, the CPUC issued an interim order establishing the
restructuring trust and the funding level of $250 million, which has
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been used to build the hardware and software systems for the ISO
and PX. The ISO and PX will repay the trust’s loans and recover
funds from future ISO and PX customers. In November 1997, the
CPUC approved a petition jointly filed by the three utilities which

* requested an increase in the loan guarantees from $250 million to
$300 million; SCE’s share of this new total is $135 million. In
December 1997, the CPUC approved a remaining item with
respect to the petition which requested that the one-time restruc-
turing implementation charge, to be paid to the PX by the utilities,
be deemed a non-bypassable charge to be recovered from all retail
customers. The amount of the PX charge is $85 million; SCE’s
share is 45%, or $38 million.

Direct Customer Access — In May 1997, the CPUC issued a deci-
sion describing how all California investor-owned-utility cus-
tomers will be able to choose who will provide them with electric
generation service beginning January 1, 1998. On December 30,
1997, the CPUC issued a decision delaying direct access until
March 31, 1998, due to operational delays in the start-up of the PX
and ISO. On this date, customers will be able to choose to remain
utility customers with bundled clectric service from SCE (which
will purchase’its power through the PX), or choosc direct access,
which means the customer can contract directly with either inde-
pendent power producers or retail electric service providers such as
power brokers, marketers and aggregators. Additionally, all
investor-owned-utility customers must pay the CTC whether or
not they choose to buy power through SCE. Electric utilities will
continue to provide the core distribution service of delivering ener-
gy through its distribution system regardless of a customer’s choice
of clectricity supplicr. The CPUC will continue to regulate the
prices and service obligations related to distribution services. If the
new competitive market cannot accommodate the volume of direct
access transactions, the CPUC could implement a contingency
plan. However, the CPUC believes it is likely that interest in and
migration to direct access will be gradual.

Revenue Cycle Services — A decision issued by the CPUC in May

1997, introduces customer choice to metering, billing and related

» “services (referred to as revenue cycle services) that are now provid-

* ed by California’s investor-owned utilities. Under this revenue
cycle scrvices unbundling decision, beginning in January 1998,
direct access customers may chdose to have cither SCE or their
electric generation service provider render consolidated (encrgy
and distribution) bills, or they may choose to have separate billings
from each service provider. However, not all clectric generation
service providers will necessarily offer each billing option. In addi-
tion, beginning in January 1998, customers: with maximum
demand above 20 kW '(primarily industrial and large commercial)

" can choose SCE or any other supplier to provide their metering ser-
.vice. All other customers will have this option beginning in
January 1999. In determining whether any credit should be pro-
vided by the utility to firms providing customers with revenue
cycle services, and the amount of any such credit, the CPUC has
indicated that it is appropriate to net the cost incurred by the utili-
ty and the cost avoided by the utility as a result of such services
being provided by the other firm rather than by the utility.

PBR — In 1993, SCE filed for a PBR mechanism to determine
most of its revenue (excluding fuel). The filing was subsequently
divided between transmission and distribution (T&D) and power
generation.

In September 1996, the CPUC adopted a non-generation or
T&D PBR mechanism for SCE which began on January 1, 1997.
According to the CPUC, beginning in 1998 (coincident with the
initiation of the competitive market), the transmission portion is to -
be separated from non-generation PBR and subject to ratemaking
under the rules of the FERC. The distribution-only PBR will
extend through December 2001, Key clements of the non-genera-
tion PBR include: T&D rates indexed for inflation based on the
Consumer Price Index less a productivity factor; elimination of the
kilowatt-hour sales adjustment; adjustments for cost changes that

" are not within SCE’s control; a cost of capital trigger mechanism
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based on changes in a bond index; standards for service reliability
and safety; and a net revenie-sharing mechanism that determines
how customers and shareholders will share gains and losses from
T&D operations.

With the CPUC’s 1995 restructuring decision and the passage
of restructuring legislation in 1996, the majority of power genera-
tion ratemaking (primarily fossil-fueled and nuclear) was assigned
to other mechanisms. In April 1997, a CPUC interim order deter-
mined that the proposed structure of the fossil-fucled plants’ must-
run contracts were under the FERC's jurisdiction. On October 31,
1997, SCE filed must-run tariff schedules with the FERC covering
its six ISO-designated must-run plants. In the meantime, SCE is
pursuing the divestiture of these plants (see Divestiture discussion
below) and might not ever itsclf provide service under these FERC
tariff schedules.

In December 1997, the CPUC adopted a PBR-type rate-mak-
ing mechanism for SCE’s hydroelectric plants. The mechanism sets
the hydroclectric revenue requirement in 1998 and establishes a for-
mula for extending it through the duration of the electric industry
restructuring transition period, or until market valuation of the
hydroclectric facilities, whichever occurs first. The mechanism pro-
vides that power sales revenue from hydroelectric facilities in excess
of the hydroelectric revenue requirement be credited against the costs
to transition to a competitive market (sce CTC discussion below)., *
Divestiture — In November 1996, SCE filed an application with
the CPUC to voluntarily divest, by auction, all 12 of its oil- and gas-
fucled generation plants. This application builds on SCE’s March
1996 plan, which outlined how SCE proposed to divest 50% of these
assets. Under the new proposal, SCE would continue to operate .
and maintain the divested power plants for at least two years fol-
lowing their sale, as mandated by the restructuring legislation
enacted in September 1996. In addition, SCE would offer work-
force transition programs to those employees who may be impacted
by divestiture-related job reductions. SCE's proposal is contingent
on the overall electric industry restructuring implementation
process continuing on a satisfactory path. In September 1997, the
CPUC approved SCE’s proposal to auction the 12 plants.

On December 1, 1997, SCE filed a compliance filing with the
CPUC stating that it had sold 10 plants. On December 16, 1997,
the CPUC approved the sale of the 10 plants. On February 6, 1998,
SCE filed a compliance filing with the CPUC regarding the sale of




an 11th plant. CPUC approval of the sale is expected before March
31, 1998. The total sales price of the 11 plants is $1.1 billion, or 2.16
times their combined book value of $531 million. Net proceeds of
the sales will be used to reduce stranded costs, which otherwisc
were expected to becollected through the CTC mechanism. The
transfer of ownership of the 11 plants is expected to occur shortly
before the start of the new competitive market, which the PX and
ISO currently expect to occur on March 31, 1998. The sale and
CPUC approval of the single remaining plant is expected to be
completed in early 1998.

CTC — The CTC applies to all customers who were using or
began using utility services on or after the CPUC’s December 20,
1995, decision date. In August 1996, in compliance with the
CPUC's restructuring decision, SCE filed its application to estimate
its 1998 transition costs. In October 1996, SCE amended its transi-
tion cost filing to reflect the effects of the legislation enacted in

September 1996. Under the rate freeze codified in the legislation,

the CTC will be determined residually (i.e., after subtracting other
cost components for the PX, T&D, nuclear decommissioning and
public benefit programs). Nevertheless, the CPUC directed that the
amended application provide estimates of SCE’s potential transition
costs from 1998 through 2030. SCE provided two estimates
between approximately $13.1 billion (1998 net present value) assum-
ing the fossil plants have a market value equal to their net book
value, and $13.8 billion (1998 net present value) assuming the fossil
plants have no market value. Thesc estimates are based on incurred
costs, forecasts of future costs and assumed market prices.
However, changes in the assumed market prices could materially
affect these estimates, The potential transition costs are comprised
of: $7.5 billion from SCE’s qu'llifying facilities (QF) contracts,
which are the direct result of prior legislative and regulatory man-
dates; and $5.6 billion to $6.3 billion from costs pertaining to certain
generating plams (successful completion of the sale of SCE’s gas-
fired generating plants would reduce this estimate of transition
‘costs for SCE-owned gencration to less than $5 billion) and regula-
tory commitments consisting of costs incurred (whose recovery has
been deferred by the CPUC) to provide service to customers. Such
commitments include the recovery of income tax benefits previous-
ly flowed through to customers, postretirement benefit transition
costs, accelerated recovery of San Onofte Units 2 and 3 and the Palo
Verde units (as discussed in Note I to the Consolidated Financial
Statements), and certain other costs. In February 1997, SCE filed an
update to the CTC filing to reflect approval by the CPUC of settle-
ments regarding ratemaking for SCE’s share of Palo Verde and the
buyout of a power purchase agreement, as well as other minor data
updates. No substantive changes in the total CTC estimates were
included. This issue has been separated into two phases; Phasc 1
addresses the rate-making issues and Phase 2 the quantification
issucs.

A decision on Phase 1 was issued in June 1997, which, among
other things, required the establishment of a transition cost balanc-
ing account and annual transition cost proceedings, set a market
rate forecast for 1998 transition costs, and required that generation-
related regulatory assets be amortized ratably over a 48-month
period. Hearings on Phase 2 were held in May and June 1997 and
a final decision was issued on November 19, 1997, The Phasc 2
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decision established the calculation methodologies and procedures
for SCE to collect its transition costs from 1998 through the end of
the rate freeze. The Phase 2 decision also reduced SCE’s autho-
rized rate of return on certain assets cligible for transition cost
recovery (primarily fossil- and hydroclectric-generation related
assets) beginning July 1997, five months earlier than anticipated.
The decision, excluding the effects of other rate actions, had a neg-
ative impact on 1997 earnings of approximately 4¢ per share. SCE
has filed an application for rehearing on the 1997 rate of return
issue.

Accounting for Generation-Related Assets — If the CPUC’s elec-
tric industry restructuring plan is implemented as outlined above,
SCE would be allowed to recover its CTC through non-bypassable
charges to its distribution customers (although its investment in
certain generation asscts would be subject to a lower authorized
rate of return).

As previously reported, from November 1996 to July 1997,
SCE and the other major California clectric utilities were engaged
in discussions with the Sccuritics and Exchange Commission staff
regarding the proper application of regulatory accounting stan-
dards in light of the clectric industry restructuring legislation
enacted by the State of California in September 1996 and the
CPUC:s electric industry restructuring plan. This issue was placed
on the agenda of the EITF during April 1997 and a final consensus
was reached at the July EITF meeting. During the third quarter
of 1997, SCE implemented the EITF consensus and discontinued
application of accounting principles for rate-regulated enterprises
for its investment in generation facilities. ‘

However, implementation of the EITF concensus did not
require SCE to write off any of its generation-related assets, includ-
ing regulatory asscts of approximately $600 million at December
31, 1997. SCE has retained these assets on its balance sheet because
the legislation and restructuring plan referred to above make prob-
able their recovery through a CTC to distribution customers.
These regulatory assets relate primarily to the recovery of acceler-
ated income tax benefits previously flowed through to customers,
purchased power contract termination payments, unamortized
losses on reacquired debt, and the recovery of amounts deferred
under the Palo Verde rate phase-in plan. The consensus reached
by the EITF also permits the recording of new generation-related
regulatory assets during the transition period that are probable of
recovery through the CTC mechanism,

If during the transition period events were to occur that made
the recovery of these gencration-related regulatory assets no longer
probable, SCE would be required to write off the remaining bal-
ance of such assets as a one-time, non-cash charge against earnings.
If such a write-off were to be required, SCE believes that it should
not affect the recovery of stranded costs provided for in the legisla-
tion and restructuring plan.

Although depreciation-related differences could result from
applying a regulatory prescribed depreciation method (straight-
line, remaining-life method) rather than a method that would have
been applied absent the regulatory process, SCE believes that the
depreciable lives of its generation-related assets would not vary
significantly from that of an unregulated enterprise, as the CPUC
bases depreciable lives on periodic studies that reflect the physical
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useful lives of the assets. SCE also believes that any depreciation-
related differences would be recovered through the CTC.

If events occur during the restructuring process that result in all
or a portion of the CTC being improbable of recovery, SCE could
have additional write-offs associated with these costs if they are not
recovered through another regulatory mechanism. At this time, SCE
cannot predict what other revisions will ultimately be made during
the restructuring process in subsequent proceedings or implementa-
tion phases, or the effect, after the transition period, that compctition
will have on its results of operations or financial position.

FERC Restructuring Decision

In April 1996, the FERC issued its decision on stranded-cost recov-
ery and open access transmission, effective July 1996. The decision;
reaffirmed by the FERC in its March and November 1997 orders,
requires all electric utilities subject to the FERC’s jurisdiction to file
transmission tariffs which provide competitors with increased
access to transmission facilities for wholesale transactions and also
establishes information requirements for the transmission utility.
The decision also provides utilities with the opportunity to recover
stranded costs associated with existing wholesale customers, retail-
turned-wholesale customers and retail wheeling when the state reg-
ulatory body does not have authority to address retail stranded costs.
Even though the CPUC is currently addressing stranded-cost
recovery through the CTC proceedings, the FERC has also assert-
ed primary jurisdiction over the recovery of stranded costs associat-
ed with retail-turned-wholesale customers, such as a new municipal
clectric system or a municipal annexation. However, the FERC did
clarify that it does not intend to prevent or interfere with a state’s
authority and that it has discretion to defer to a state stranded-cost-
calculation method. In January 1997, the FERC accepted the open
access transmission tariff SCE filed in compliance with the April
1996 decision. The rates included in the tariff are being collected
subject to refund. In May 1997, SCE filed a revised open access tar-
iff to reflect the few revisions set forth in the March 1997 order. The
open access transmission tariff will be terminated on the date the
ISO begins operation.

Canadian Gas Contracts

In 1994, SCE filed its testimony in the non-QF phasc of the 1994
Encrgy Cost Adjustment Clause proceeding. In 1995, the ORA
filed its report on the rcasonableness of SCE’s gas supply costs for
both the 1993 and 1994 record periods. The report recommended a
disallowance of $13 million for excessive costs incurred from
November 1993 through March 1994 associated with SCE'’s
Canadian gas purchase and supply contracts. The report request-
cd that the CPUC defer finding SCE’s Canadian supply and trans-
portation agreements reasonable for the duration of their terms and
that the costs under these contracts be reviewed on a yearly basis. In
1996, the ORA issued its report for the 1995 record period recom-
mending a $38 million disallowance for excessive costs incurred
from April 1994 through March 1995. Both proposed disal-
lowances were later consolidated into one proceeding. On
December 3, 1997, the CPUC approved a settlement agreement
between SCE and the ORA on this and any future issues, which will
result in a $61 million (including interest) refund to SCE'’s cus-

44

tomers. This refund is fully reflected in the financial statements
and will be made in first quarter 1998.

Mojave Cogeneration Contract

In 1991, SCE filed its testimony in the QF phase of the 1991 Energy
Cost Adjustment Clause proceeding. In 1993, the ORA filed its
report on the reasonableness of SCE's QF contracts and alleged that
SCE had imprudently renegotiated a QF contract with the Mojave
Cogeneration Company. The report recommended a disallowance
of $32 million (1993 net present value) over the contract’s 20-year
life. Subsequently, SCE and the ORA reached a settlement where
SCE agreed to a one-time reduction to its energy cost adjustment
clause balancing account of $14 million plus interest. In October
1996, the CPUC approved the settlement agreement, subject to SCE
and the ORA accepting certain conditions concerning the way the
$14 million payment would be reflected in rates. After reviewing
the decision, SCE declined to accept the condition proposed by the
CPUC and in November 1996 filed an application for rehearing. In
February 1997, the CPUC denied SCE’s application. Because SCE
and the ORA were unable to finalize their settlement, hearings on
the ORA’s disallowance recommendations were held in June 1997.
During the hearings, the ORA presented testimony to update its
assessment of ratepayer harm, which it now estimates to be $45
million (1997 nct present value) over the contract’s life. In
November 1997, a CPUC administrative law judge (ALJ) issued a
proposed decision which would adopt the ORA’s $45 million disal-
lowance. In January 1998, the CPUC withdrew the ALJ’s pro-
posed decision pending oral arguments. Oral arguments were
heard on February 4, 1998, at which time SCE requested an alter-
nate proposed decision be issued. SCE expects this matter to be
returned to the CPUC’s agenda in the near future and a final deci-
sion to be issued during second quarter 1998, SCE cannot predict
the final outcome of this matter but does not believe it will materi-
ally affect its results of operations.

NOoTE 3., FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Cash Equivalents

Cash and equivalents include tax-exempt investments ($949 mil-
lion at December 31, 1997, and $376 million at December 31, 1996),
and time deposits and other investments ($958 million at December
31,1997, and $521 million at December 31, 1996) with maturities of
three months or less.

Derivative Financial Instruments
Edison International’s risk management policy allows the use of
derivative financial instruments to manage financial exposure on
its investments and fluctuations in interest rates, but prohibits the
use of these instruments for speculative or trading purposes.
Edison International uses the hedge accounting method to
record its derivative financial instruments, except for gas call
options. Hedge accounting requires an assessment that the trans-
action reduces risk, that the derivative be designated as a hedge at
the inception of the derivative contract, and that the changes in the
market value of a hedge move in an inverse direction to the item
being hedged. Under hedge accounting, the derivative itself is not
recorded on Edison International’s balance sheet. Mark-to-market
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accounting would be used if the hedge accounting criteria were not
met. Interest rate differentials and amortization of premiums for
interest rate caps are recorded as adjustments to interest expense.
If the derivatives were terminated before the maturity of the corre-
sponding debt issuance, the realized gain or loss on the transaction
would be amortized over the remaining term of the debt.

SCE uses the mark-to-market accounting method for its gas
call options. Gains and losses from monthly changes in market
prices are recorded as income or expense. However, the costs of the
options and the market price changes are recovered through the
transition cost balancing account. As a result, the mark-to-market
gains or losses have no effect on earnings.

Projects in the United Kingdom sell their energy and capacity
through a centralized electricity pool, which establishes a half-hourly
clearing price for electrical energy. The pool price is extremely
volatile, and can vary by a factor of 10 or more over the coursc of a few
hours due to large differentials in demand according to the time of
day. First Hydro mitigates a portion of the market risk of the pool by
entering into clectricity rate swap agreements, related to either the sell-
ing or purchase price of power. These contracts can be sold in two
structures: one-way contracts, where a specified monthly amount is
reccived in advance and difference payments are made when pool
prices rise above the price specified in the contract, and two-way con-
tracts, where First Hydro is paid when pool prices fall below the con-
tract price instead of a specified monthly amount. These contracts
attempt to stabilize production revenue or purchasing costs by remov-
ing an clement of First Hydro’s net exposure to pool price volatility.

Loy Yang B sells their electrical energy through a centralized
clectricity pool, which provides for a system of generator bidding,
central dispatch and a scttlement system based on a clearing mar-
ket for each half-hour of every day. To mitigate the exposure to
price volatility of the electricity traded in the pool, Loy Yang B has
entered into a number of financial hedges. Between May 1997 and
December 2000, approximately 53% to 64% of the plant output sold
is hedged under vesting contracts, with the remainder of the plant
capacity hedged under the state hedge described below. Vesting
contracts set base strike prices at which the electricity will be trad-
ed, and the partics to the agreement make payments, calculated
based on the difference between the price in the contract and the
half-hourly pool clearing price for the element of power under the
contract. These contracts can be sold as one-way or two-way con-
tracts, which are similar to the electricity rate swap agreements
described above. These contracts are accounted for as clectricity
rate swap agreements. The state hedge is a long-term contractual
agreement based upon a fixed price commencing in May 1997 and
terminating in October 2016.

Interest rate swaps, collars and caps are used to reduce the
potential impact of interest rate fluctuations on floating-rate long-
term debt. SCE's interest rate swap agreement requires the parties
to pledge collateral according to bond rating and market interest
rate changes. At December 31, 1997, SCE had pledged $19 million
as collateral due to a decline in market interest rates. SCE is
exposed to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the coun-
terparty to the agreement, but does not expect the counterparty to
fail to meet its obligation.

Bl
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Edison International is subject to concentrations of credit risk
as the result of elements involved in EME’s financial instruments
and power-sales contracts. Credit risk relates to the risk of loss that
EME would incur as a result of nonperformance by counterparties
(major financial institutions and domestic and foreign utilities)
under their contractual obligations. EME attempts to mitigate this
risk by contracting with counterparties that have a strong capacity
to meet their contractual obligations and by monitoring their cred-
it quality. In addition, EME secks to securc long-term power-sales
contracts for its projects that are expected to result in adequate cash
flow under a wide range of economic and operating circumstances.
To accomplish this, EME attempts to structure its long-term con-
tracts so that fluctuations in fuel costs will produce similar fluctua-
tions in electric and/or steam revenue by entering into long-term
fuel supply and transportation agreements. Accordingly, EME
does not anticipate a material effect on its results of operations or
financial condition as a result of counterparty nonperformance.

Edison International had the following interest rate hedges:

December 31,
1997 1996
Notional Contract Notional Contracs

In millions Amount Expires Amount Expires
Swaps:

Fixed to variable $ 441 1999 -2008 $ 245  1999~2002

Variable to fixed 858 1998 —2007 440 1997 - 2008
Collar:

Variable to fixed $ 77 1999 —_ —
Cap:

Variable to fixed — — $ 30 1997

¥

At December 31, 1997, SCE had gas call options valued at $34
million. These options mitigate SCE'’s exposure to increases in
natural gas prices. Increases in natural gas prices tend to increase
the price of electricity purchased from the PX. The options cover
various periods from 1998 through 2001.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Fair values of financial instruments were:

December 31,
1997 1996
Cost Fair Cost Fair

Instrument (in millions) Basis Value Basis Value
Financial assets:
Decommissioning trusts $ 1371 $ 1,81 $1217 & 1,486
Electricity rate swaps —_ 77 —_ 27
Equity investments 9 90 11 68
Gas call options 34 34 - —
Financial liabilities:
DOE decommissioning and

decontamination fees $ S0 $§ 43 & sS4 & 45
Interest rate hedges —_ 92 — 34
Long-term debt 8,871 9,618 7,475 7,712
Prefersed securities subject to

mandatory redemption 425 451 425 445




Edison International and Subsidiaries .

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

-

Financial assets are carried at their fair value based on quoted
market prices for decommissioning trusts and equity investments
and on financial models for gas call options and electricity rate
swaps. Financial liabilities are recorded at cost. Financial liabili-
ties’ fair values are based on: termination costs for the interest rate
swaps; brokers’ quotes for long-term deby, preferred stock and the
interest rate collar and cap; and discounted future cash flows for
U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) decommissioning and decont-
amination fees. Due to their short maturities, amounts reported
for cash equivalents and short-term debt approximate fair value.

Gross unrealized holding gains on financial assets were:

In millions December 31, 1997 1996
Decommissioning trusts:
Municipal bonds $ 131§ 7
Stocks 190 138
U.S. government issucs 91 39
Short-term and other 48 13
460 269
Equity investments » 81 57
Total ! $ 541 § 326

There were no unrealized holding losses on financial assets for
the years presented. :
Investments
Net unrealized gains (losses) in equity investments are recorded as
a separate component of shareholders’ equity under the caption:
Unrealized gain in equity investments — net. Unrealized gains and
losses on decommissioning trust funds are recorded in the accumu-
lated provision for decommissioning.

All investments are classified as available-for-sale.

Long-Term Debt
California law prohibits SCE from incurring or guaranteeing debt
for its nonutility affiliates. .

Almost all SCE properties are subject to a trust indenture lien.

SCE has pledged first and refunding mortgage bonds as secu-
rity for borrowed funds obtained from pollution-control bonds
issued by government agencies. SCE uses these proceeds to finance
construction of pollution-control facilities. Bondholders have lim-
ited discretion in redeeming certain pollution-control bonds, and
SCE has arranged with securities dealers to remarket or purchase
them if nccessary.

Debt premium, discourit and issuance expenses are amortized
over the life of each issue. Under CPUC rate-making procedures,
debt reacquisition expenses are amortized over the remaining life
of the reacquired debt or, if refinanced, the life of the new debt.

Commercial paper intended to be refinanced for a period
exceeding one year and used to finance nuclear fuel scheduled to be
used more than one year after the balance sheet date is classified as
long-term debt.

Long-term debt maturities and sinking-fund requirements for
the next five years are:  1998—3$848 million; 1999—8670 million;
2000—8719 million; 2001—$728 million; and 2002—$635 million.

In December 1997, SCE Funding LLC, a special purpose enti-
ty (SPE), of which SCE is the solc member, issued approximately
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$2.5 billion of rate reduction notes to Bankers Trust Company of
California, as certificate trustee for the California Infrastructure
and Economic Development Bank Special Purpose Trust SCE-1
(Trust), which is a special purpose entity established by the State of
California. The terms of the rate reduction notes generally mirror
the terms of the pass-through certificates issued by the Trust,
which are known as rate reduction certificates. The proceeds of
the rate reduction notes were used by the SPE to purchase from
SCE an enforceable right known as transition property. Transition
property is a current property right created pursuant to the restruc-
turing legislation and a financing order of the CPUC and consists
generally of the right to be paid a specified amount from a non-
bypassable tariff levied on residential and small commercial cus-
tomers. Notwithstanding the legal sale of the transition property
by SCE to the SPE, the amounts reflected as assets on SCE’s bal-
ance sheet have not been reduced by the amount of the transition
property sold to the SPE, and the liabilitics of the SPE for the rate
reduction notes are for accounting purposes reflected as long-term
liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet of SCE. SCE used the
proceeds from the sale of the transition property to retire debt and
equity securitics.

The rate reduction notes have maturities ranging from one to
10 years, and bear interest at rates ranging from 5.98% to 6.42%.
The rate reduction notes are secured solely by the transition prop-
erty and certain other assets of the SPE, and there is no recourse to
SCE or Edison International.

Although the SPE is consolidated with SCE in the financial
statements, as required by generally accepted accounting princi-
ples, the SPE is legally separate from SCE, the assets of the SPE are
not available to creditors of SCE or Edison International, and the
transition property is legally not an assct of SCE or Edison
International.

Long-term debt consisted of:

In millions December 31, 1997 1996
First and refunding mortgage bonds:

1998—2026 (5.45% to 8.375%) $ 1,825 § 2725
Rate reduction notes:

19982007 (5.98% to 6.42%) 2,463 —
Pollution-contro! bonds:

19992027 (5.4% to 7.2% and variable) 1,202 1,204
Funds held by trustees 2) )
Dcbentures and notes:

19972026 (5% to 20% and variable) 4,028 3,891
Subordinated debentures:

2044 (8.375%) 100 100
Commercial paper for nuclear fuel 92 112
Capital leasc obligation 68 )|
Current portion of capital lease obligation (20) (19)
Long-term debt due within one year (848) (573)
Unamortized debt discount = net 37) (54)
Total $ 8871 § 7475

On January 30, 1998, SCE redeemed $125 million of 8.375%
first and refunding mortgage bonds, due 2017. Also, on January
30, 1998, a wholly owned financing subsidiary of SCE redeemed
$200 million of 7.375% notes, due 2003.




Short-Term Debt
Short-term debt consisted of:

In millions December 31, 1997 199%
Commercial paper $ 415 § 470
Other short-term debt i ¥ 8 167
Amount reclassified as long-term (92) (237)
Unamortized discount (1) 3)
Total $ 330 § 397
Weighted-average interest rate 6.0% 5.6%

At December 31, 1997, Edison International and its sub-
sidiaries had $3.6 billion of borrowing capacity available. SCE had
available lines of credit of $1.8 billion, with $1.3 billion for short-
term debt and $500 million for the long-term refinancing of its
variable-rate pollution-control bonds. The nonutility subsidiaries
had lines of credit of $800 million available to finance general cash
requirements. The parent company had available lines of credit
totaling $1.0 billion. Edison International’s unsecured revolving
lines of credit are at negotiated or bank index rates with various
expiration dates; the majority have five-ycar terms.

NoTE 4. LOUITY

The CPUC regulates SCE’s capital structure, limiting the divi-
dends it may pay Edison International. At December 31, 1997,
SCE had the capacity to pay $1.4 billion in additional dividends
and continue to maintain its authorized capital structure. These
restrictions are not cxpected to affect Edison International’s ability
to meet its cash obligations.

Edison International’s authorized common stock is 800 mil-
lion shares with no par value.

Edison International purchased on the open market and retired the

following amounts of common stock: in 1997—48,992,365 shares (61.2 .

- billion), in 1996-—19,216,627 shares ($344 million) and in 1995—4,212,398
shares ($70 million). .

Under Edison International’s long-term incentive compensa-
tion plan, it issued 232,612 shares (84.9 million) in 1997, 133,131
shares (§2.4 million) in 1996 and 20,900 shares (§0.4 million) in 1995.

SCE’s authotized shares of preferredand preference stock are:
825 cumulative preferred—24 million; $100 cumulative pre- |
ferred—12 million; and preference—S50 million.  AlL cumuhuvc
preferred stocks are redecmable.
ferred stocks are subject to sinking-fund provisions. When pre-
ferred shares are redeemed, the prcmxums paid are charged to
common equity. :

EME is a general partnier and also owns, indirectly, the limit-
ed partner’s share of Mission Capital L.P,, which was formed sole-
ly for the purpose of holding parent company debentures. Mission
Capital L.P. has 6 million authorized shares of cumulative pre-
ferred securities with a liquidation preference that obligates EME.

Preferred stock redemption requirements for the next five
years are: 1998 through 2001—zcro and 2002—$105 million.

* Edison International and Subsidiaries
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Edison International subsidiaries’ cumulative preferred secu-
rities consisted of:

December 31, 1997
Dollars in millions, Shares . Redemny December 31,
except per-thare amounts Outstanding Price 1997 1996
Not subject to mandatory redemption:
$25 par valuc preferred stock:
4.08% Series 1,000,000 $2550 § 25 $§ 25
424 1,200,000 25.80 30 30
4.32 1,653,429 28.75 41 41
478 1,296,769 25.80 33 33
5.80 2,200,000 2525 55 55
7.36 —_ —_ —_ 100
Total $ 184§ 284

Subject 1o mandatory redemption:
$25 par value preferred securities:

a
[

2,500,000

8.50% Series $2500 $§ 63 § 63
9.875 ] 3,500,000 25.00 87 87
$100 par value preferred stock:

6.05% Series 750,000 100.00 75 ]
645 - 1,000,000 100.00 100 100
7.23 1,000,000 100.00 100 100
Total $ 425 § 425

In 1997, 4 million shares of Series 7.36% preferred stock were
redeemed. In 1995, 750,000 shares of Series 7.58% preferred stock
were redeemed and 2.5 million of Series 8.50% preferred securities
were issued. There were no preferred stock issuances or redemp-
tions in 1996.

NOTE 5. INCOME TAXES -

Edison International’s subsidiaries will be included in its consoli-
dated federal income tax and combined state franchise tax returns.
Under income tax allocation agreements, cach subsxdlary calculates
its owns tax llablhty . .
Income tax expense mcludcs the currcnt tax liability from

operations and the change in deferred income. taxés during the ,

year. Investment tax credits are amomzcd over the lives of thc‘

- related propertlcs. . ’ ‘ : ' .

Mandatorily redeemable pre-
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The components of the net accumulated deferred income tax
liability were:

In millions December 31, 1997 1996
Deferred tax assets:

Property-related $ 227 §$ 247
Unrealized gains or losses 273 201
Investment tax credits 192 206
Regulatory balancing accounts 180 298
Decommissioning-related 114 208
Other 691 366
Toral $ 1,677 $ 1,526
Deferred tax liabilities:

Property-related $ 4010 § 4345
Leveraged leases 623 534
Capitalized software costs 127 122
Other 879 568
Total $ 5639 $ 5569
Accumulated deferred income taxes-net o $392 § 4043
Classification of accumulated deferred income taxes:

Included in deferred credits $ 4085 § 4283
Included in current asscts 123 240

The currentand deferred components of income tax expense were:

In millions Year ended December 31, 1997 199 1995
Current:
Federal $ 244 $ 325 & 507
State : 55 108 150
Forcign 103 39 7
402 472 664
Deferred:
Accrued charges @3 (14) 1
Assct basis adjustment 18 (25) 12
Depreciation (26) 71 72
Investment and energy tax credits-net (22) (37) (26)
Leveraged leases 87 26 38
Loss carryforwards 121 (41) 37
Nonutility special charges _— 9 1)
Pension reserves o 45 3)
Rate phase-in plan (19) @3n (46)
Regulatory balancing accounts 141 34 (118)
State tax~privilege year 2 18 W)
Other (167) @1) (35)
97 34 (172)
"Total income tax expense $ 499 $§ 506 § 4%
Classification of income taxes:
Included in operating income $ 537 $ 563 $ 528
Included in other income (38) 7 (36)
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The composite federal and state statutory income tax rate was
40.551% for 1997 and 41.045% for 1996 and 1995.

The federal statutory income tax rate is reconciled to the effec-
tive tax rate below:

Year ended December 31,

1997 1996 1995
Federal statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Capitalized software (0.8) (0.8) (0.8)
Depreciation and other 59 73 5.1
Housing credits #.3) (3.6 Q.7
Investment and energy tax credits (1.6) .7) (2.3)
State tax-net of federal deduction 6.3 6.2 5.6
Effective tax rate 40.5% 41.4% 39.9%

E 6, EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND BENEFIT PLANS
Stock Option Plans

Under Edison International’s Long-Term Incentive Compensation
Plan, 8.2 million shares of common stock were reserved for poten-
tial issuance under various stock compensation programs to direc-
tors, officers and senior managers of Edison International and its
affiliates. Under these programs, options on 4.4 million shares of
Edison International common stock are currently outstanding to
officers and senior managers of SCE. There were 3.2 million, 4.5
million, 5.4 million and 6.3 million shares reserved for future grant .
at December 31, 1997, 1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively.

Each option may be exercised to purchase one share of Edison
International common stock, and is exercisable at a price equiva-
lent to the fair market value of the underlying stock at the date of
grant. Edison International stock options include a dividend
cquivalent feature, Generally, for options issued before 1994,
amounts equal to dividends accrue on the options at the same time
and at the same rate as would be payable on the number of shares
of Edison International common stock covered by the options. The
amounts accumulate without intcrest. For Edison International
stock options issued subsequent to 1993, dividend equivalents are
subject to reduction unless certain shareholder return performance
criteria are met.

Edison International stock options have a 10-year term with
one-third of the total award vesting after each of the first three
years of the award term. If an optionce retires, dies or is perma-
nently and totally disabled during the three-year vesting period,
the unvested options will vest and be exercisable to the extent of
1/36 of the grant for each full month of service during the vesting
period. Unvested options of any person who has served in the past
on the Edison International or SCE Management Committee will
vest and be exercisable upon the member’s retirement, death or
permanent and total disability. Upon retirement, death or perma-
nent and total disability, the vested options may continue to be
exercised within their original terms by recipient or beneficiary. If
an optionce is terminated other than by retirement, death or per-
manent and total disability, options which had vested as of the prior
anniversary date of the grant are forfeited unless exercised within
180 days of the date of termination. All unvested options are for-
feited on the date of termination.
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Edison International measures compensation expense related
to stock-based compensation by the intrinsic value method.
Compensation expense recorded under the stock-compensation
program was §6 million, $9 million and §4 million for 1997, 1996
and 1995, respectively.

Stock-based compensation expense under the fair-value
method of accounting would have resulted in pro forma earnings
of $696 million, $714 million and $737 million for 1997, 1996 and
1995, respectively, and in pro forma basic earnings per share of
$1.74, $1.63 and $1.65 for 1997, 1996 and 1995, respectively.

The fair value for each option granted, reflecting the basis for
the above pro forma disclosures, was determined on the date of
grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The following
assumptions were used in determining fair value with the model:

1997 1996
Expected life 70yecars 7.0 ycars
Risk-frec interest rate 6.3%-6.8% 55%
Expected volatility 17% , 17%

The recognition of dividend equivalents results in no divi-
dends assumed for purposes of fair-value determination. The
application of fair-value accounting to calculate the pro forma dis-
closures above is not an indication of future income statement
effects. The pro forma disclosures do not reflect the effect of fair-
value accounting on stock-based compensation awards granted
prior to 1995.

A summary of the status of Edison International’s stock
options is as follows:

Weighted-Average
Share Exercise Exercise  FairValue  Rermaining
Options Price Price a1 Grams Life
Outstanding,
Dec. 31,1994 1,766,091 "$1600 — §2444 § 2041 6.9 years
Granted 910,100 1456 = 17.44 1477 § 692
Expired 9,930) 2019~ 2328 219N
Forfeited 9,120) 1456 - 21.M 19.74
Exercised (20,900) 1738~ 17.75 17.61
Quustanding, "~
Dec. 31,1995  2,636241 $14.56 - $2444 § 18,69 7.0 years
Granted 1,001,850 1581 — 1831 1757 § 627
Expired (18394) 1456 ~ 2328 20.08
Forfeited (21,810) 1456 - 20.19 16.24
Exercised (133,131) 1456 - 2328 18.19
Outstanding, —
Dec. 31,1996 3,554,756 $14.56 — $2444 § 18.68 7.0 years
Granted 1,350,809 1975~ 25.19 2009 $ 762
Expired —_ —_ —_
Forfeited (33,599) 1456 = 19.75 17.76
Exercised (460,300) 1456 -~ 2328 19.06
Outstanding,
Dec.31,1997 4,411,666 $1456~ $2519 § 1876 7.0 years

The number of options exercisable and their weighted-aver-
age exercise prices at December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995 were
3,218,189 at $18.48, 1,760,766 at $20.54 and 1,240,425 at $21.08,

respectively.

Phantom Stock Options
Phantom stock option performance awards have been developed
for two affiliate companies, EME and Edison Capital, as part of the
Edison International long-term incentive compensation program
for senior management. Each phantom stock option may be exer-
cised to realize any appreciation in the deemed value of one hypo-
thetical share of EME or Edison Capital stock over exercise prices.
Exercise prices for EME and Edison Capital phantom stock are
escalated on an annually compounded basis over the grant price by
12% and 7.75%, respectively. The deemed values of the phantom
stock are recalculated annually as determined by a formula linked
to the value of its portfolio of investments, less general and admin-
istrative costs. The options have a 10-year term with one-third of
the total award vesting in each of the first three years of the award
term.

Compensation expense recorded with respect to the phantom
stock options was $79 million in 1997, $17 million in 1996 and $1
million in 1995,

Pension Plan

Edison International has a noncontributory, defined-benefit pen-
sion plan that covers employees meeting minimum service require-
ments. Benefits are based on years of accredited service and
average base pay. SCE funds the plan on a level-premium actuar-
ial method. These funds are accumulated in an independent trust.
Annual contributions meet minimum legal funding requirements
and do not exceed the maximum amounts deductible for income
taxes. Prior service costs from pension plan amendments are fund-
ed over 30 years. Plan asscts are primarily common stocks, corpo-
rate and government bonds, and short-term investments. In 1996,
Edison International recorded pension gains from a special volun-
tary carly retirement program.

The plan’s funded status was:

In millions December 31, 1997 1996
Actuarial present value of benefis obligation: :

Vested benefits $ 1588 § 1,679

Nonvested benefits 130 73

Accumulated benefit obligation 1,718 1,752

Value of projected future compensation levels 398 267
Projected benefit obligation $ 2116 $§ 2019
Fair value of plan asscts $ 2316 $ 2171

Projected benefit obligation less than plan assets $ (00) § (152
Unrecognized net gain 305 294

Unrecognized prior service cost (184) 199)
Unrecognized net obligation ‘

(17-year amortization) (40) “5
Pension liability (asset) $ (119 § (102)
Discount rate 7.0% 7.75%
Rate of increase in future compensation 5.0% 5.0%
Expected long-term rate of return on assets 8.0% 8.0%

Edison International’s utility operations recognize pension
expense calculated under the actuarial method used for ratemaking.

-
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The components of pension expense were:

In millions Year ended December 31, 1997 1996 1995
Service cost for benefits earned $ 446 $ s1 $ 59
Interest cost on projected bencfit obligation 140 180 157
Actual return on plan assets (372) (345) 457)
Net amortization and deferral 224 146 270
Pension expense under accounting standards 38 32 29
Special termination benefits -— 1 3
Regulatory adjustment ~ deferred 17 22 23
Net pension expense recognized 55 55 55
Settlement gain — (121) —_
Total expense (gain) $ 55 § (660 $ 55

Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions
Employees retiring at or after age 55 (or those eligible for all benefits
under the 1996 special voluntary early retirement program) with at
least 10 years of service, are eligible for postretirement health care,
dental, life insurance and other benefits. Health care benefits are
subject to deductibles, copayment provisions and other, limitations.

SCE funds these benefits (by contributions to independent
trusts) up to tax-deductible limits, in accordance with rate-making
practices. In 1996, SCE recorded special termination expenses due
to a special voluntary carly retirement program. Any difference
between recognized expense and amounts authorized for rate
recovery is not expected to be material (except for the impact of the
carly retirement program) and will be charged to carnings.

Trust assets are primarily common stocks, corporate and gov-
ernment bonds, and short-term investments.

The funded status of these benefits is reconciled to the record-
ed liability below:

In millions December 31, 1997 1996
Actuarial present value of benefit obligation: Y

Retirees ’ $ Lot § 933

Employees eligible to retire ’ 45 35

Other employees 497 394

Accumulated benefit obligation $ 1546 $ 1362

Fair value of plan assets $ 815 $ 617

Plan assets less than accumulated benefit obligation $§ 731 § 75

Unrecognized transition obligation (405) (432)
Unrecognized net gain (loss) (245) (236)
Recorded liability : : $ 8 § 77

Discount rate 7.0% 7.75%

Expected long-term rate of return on assets -8.0% 8.5%

The components of postretirement benefits other than pen-
sions expense were:

The assumed rate of future increases in the per-capita cost of
health care benefits is 8.5% for 1998, gradually decreasing t0 5.25%
for 2004 and beyond. Increasing the health care cost trend rate by
one percentage point would increase the accumulated obligation as
of December 31, 1997, by $255 million and annual aggregate service
and interest costs by $28 million.

Employee Savings Plan
Edison International has a 401(k) defined contribution savings plan
designed to supplement employees’ retirement income. The plan
reccived employer contributions of $16 million in 1997, $25 million
in 1996 and $20 million in 1995.
LY OWNED PR s

SCE owns interests in several generating stations and transmission
systems for which cach participant provides its own financing.
SCE'’s share of expenses for each project is included in the consoli-
dated statements of income.

The investment in each project, as included in the consolidat-
ed balance sheet as of December 31, 1997, was:

Plant in Accumulated Under Oumership
In millions Service Depreciation Construction Interest
Transmission systems:
Eldorado $ 28 $ 9 $ 3 60%
Pacific Intertic 241 75 1 50
Generating stations:
Four Corners (coal)

Units4and 5 459 247 3 48
Mohave (coal) 307 146 5 56
Palo Verde (nuclear) 1,601 665 9 16
San Onofre (nuclear) 4212 2210 38 75
Total $ 6848 $ 3352 $ 59

Notg 8. ILEASES

Leveraged Leases

Edison Capital is the lessor in several leveraged-lease agreements
with terms of 13 to 38 years. All operating, maintenance, insurance
and decommissioning costs are the responsibility of the lessecs.
The total cost of these facilities was $3.1 billion and $1.8 billion at
December 31, 1997, and 1996, respectively.

The equity investment in these facilities is 21% of the purchase
price. The remainder is nonrecourse debt secured by first liens on
the leased property. The lenders have accepted their security inter-
ests as their only remedy if the lessee defaults. :

The net investment in leveraged leases consisted of:

In millions Year ended December 31, 1997 1996 1995 I millions December 31, 1997 1996
Service cost for benefits carned $ 31 § 33 $§ 36 R_"““‘ls receivable (net of principal and

Interest cost on benefit obligation 100 91 78 interest on nonrecourse deb) $164 § 830
Actual return on plan assets (50) #3) (28)  Uncarnedincome 728 _ (03
Amortization of loss 5 6 1 Investment in leveraged leases 906 527
Amortization of transition obligation 27 27 27 Estimated residual value 58 58
Net expense 113 114 114 Deferred income taxes (623) (534)
Special termination expense = 72 —  Netinvestment in leveraged leases $ 341§ si
Total expense $ 113 § 186 $ 114 _—
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Operating and Capital Leases

Edison International has operating leases, primarily for vehicles

(with varying terms, provisions and expiration dates) and a capital

lease (868 million) for a nonutility power-production facility.
Estimated remaining commitments for noncancelable leases at

December 31, 1997, were:

Operating Capital
In millions Leases Lease
Year ended December 31,
1998 $ 24 & 27
1999 19 27
2000 15 27
2001 11 —
2002 8 _—
Thereafter 26 1
Total future commitments $ 103 82
Amount representing interest (9.65%) (14)
Net commitments * $ 68

NOTE 9. COMMITMENTS

Nuclear Decommissioning

SCE plans to decommission its nuclear generating facnlmcs at the
end of each facility’s operating license by a prompt removal method
authorized by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission. Decommis-
sioning is estimated to cost $2.1 billion in current-year dollars, based
on site-specific studies performed in 1993 for San Onofre and 1992
for Palo Verde. Changes in the estimated costs, timing of decom-
missioning, or the assumptions underlying these estimates could
cause material revisions to the estimated total cost to decommission
in the near term. Decommissioning is scheduled to begin in 2013 at
San Onofre and 2024 at Palo Verde. San Onofre Unit 1, which shut
down in 1992, is expected to be sccured until decommissioning
begins at the other San Onofre units.

Decommissioning costs, which are accrued and recovered
through non-bypassable customer rates over the term of each
nuclear facility’s operating license, are recorded as a component of
depreciation expense. Decommissioning cxpense was $154 million
in 1997, $148 million in 1996 and 3151 million in 1995. The accu-
mulated provision for decommissioning was $1.1 billion at
December 31, 1997, and $949 million at December 31, 1996. The
estimated costs to decommission San Onofre Unit 1 ($280 million)
are recorded as a liability. T

Decommissioning funds collected in rates are placed in inde-
pendent trusts, which, together with accumulated earnings, will be
utilized solely for decommissioning.

Trust investments include:

. Maturi December 31,
aturity
In millions Dazes 1997 1996
Municipal bonds 19982026 $ 459 § 400
Stocks —_— 392 549
U.S. government issues 19982027 357 212
Short-term and other 2002-2003 163 56
Trust fund balance (at cost) $ 1371 § 1217
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Trust fund carnings (based on specific identification) increase
the trust fund balance and the accumulated provision for decom-
missioning. Net carnings were $54 million in 1997, $49 million in
1996 and 851 million in 1995. Proceeds from sales of sccurities
(which are reinvested) were $595 million in 1997, and $1.0 billion
in 1996 and in 1995. Approximately 89% of the trust fund contri-
butions were tax-deductible.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board has issued an
exposure draft related to accounting practices for removal costs,
including decommissioning of nuclear power plants. The exposure
draft would require SCE to report its estimated decommissioning
costs as a liability, rather than recognizing these costs over the term
of each facility’s operating license (current industry practice). SCE
does not believe that the changes proposed in the exposure draft
would have an adverse effect on its results of operations even after
dercgulation due to its current and expected future ability to recov-
er these costs through customer rates.

Other Commitments
SCE and EME have fuel supply contracts which require payment
only if the fuel is made available for purchase,

SCE has power-purchase contracts with certain QFs (cogener-
ators and small power producers) and other utilities. The QF con-
tracts provide for capacity payments if a facility meets certain
performance obligations and energy payments based on actual
power supplied to SCE. There are no requirements to make debt-
service payments.

SCE has unconditional purchase obligations for part of a
power plant’s generating output, as well as firm transmission scr-
vice from another utility. Minimum payments are based, in part,
on the debt-service requirements of the provider, whether or not
the plant or transmission line is operable. The purchased-power
contract is not expected to provide more than 5% of current or esti-
mated future operating capacity. SCE’s minimum commitment
under both contracts is approximately $193 million through 2017.

Certain commitments for the years 1998 through 2002 arc esti-
mated below:

In millions 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
Projected construction

expenditures $1057 & 807 § 763 $§ 721 § 6N
Fuel supply contracts 296 215 236, 228 237
Purchased-power ’

capacity payments 686 711 714 716 714
Unconditional purchase

obligations 9 9 10 9 10

EME has firm commitments to make equity and other con-
tributions to its projects of $295 million, primarily for the Paiton
project in Indonesia, the ISAB project in Italy and the Doga pro-
jectin Turkey. EME also has contingent obligations to make addi-
tional contributions of $181 million, primarily for equity support
guarantees related to Paiton.
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NOTE 10, CONTINGENCIES

In addition to the matters disclosed in these notes, Edison
International is involved in legal, tax and regulatory proceedings
before various courts and governmental agencies regarding mat-
ters arising in the ordinary course of business. Edison International
believes the outcome of these proceedings will not materially affect
its results of operations or liquidity.

Brooklyn Navy Yard Project

EME owns, through a wholly owned subsidiary, 50% of the
Brooklyn Navy Yard project. On December 17,1997, the Brooklyn
Navy Yard project partnership completed a $407 million perma-
nent, nonrecourse financing for the project.

In February 1997, the contractor asserted general monetary
claims under the turnkey agreement against Brooklyn Navy Yard
Cogeneration Partners, L.P. (BNY) for damages in the amount of
$137 million. In addition to defending this action, BNY has filed
an action against the contractor in New York State Court asserting
general monetary claims in excess of $13 million arising out of the
turnkey agreement. EME agreed to indemnify the partnership
and its partner from all claims and costs arising from or in connec-
tion with ‘the contractor litigation, which indemnity has been
assigned to the lenders. Edison International believes that the out-
come of this litigation will not materially affect its results of opera-
tions or financial position.

Environmental Protection
Edison International is subject to numerous environmental laws
and regulations, which require it to incur substantial costs to oper-
ate existing facilities, construct and operate new facilitics, and mit-
igate or remove the effect of past operations on the environment.

Edison International records its environmental liabilities
when site assessments and/or remedial actions are probable and a
range of reasonably likely cleanup costs can be estimated. Edison
International reviews its sites and measures the liability quarterly,
by assessing a range of reasonably likely costs for each identified
site using currently available information, including existing tech-
nology, presently enacted laws and regulations, experience gained
at similar sites, and the probable level of involvement and financial
condition of other potentially responsible parties. These estimates
include costs for site investigations, remediation, operations and
maintenance, monitoring and site closure. Unless there is a proba-
ble amount, Edison International records the lower end of this rea-
sonably likely range of costs (classified as other long-term liabilities
at undiscounted amounts). While Edison International has
numerous insurance policies that it believes may provide coverage
for some of these liabilitics, it does not recognize recoveries in its
financial statements until they are realized.

In connection with the issuance of the San Onofre Units 2 and
3 operating permits, SCE reached an agreement with the California
Coastal Commission in 1991 to restore certain marine mitigation
sites. The restorations include two sites: designated wetlands and
the construction of an artificial kelp reef off the California coast.
After SCE requested certain modifications to the agreement, the
Coastal Commission issued a final ruling in April 1997 to reduce the
scope of remediations. SCE elected to pay for the costs of marine
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mitigation in licu of placing the funds into a trust. Rate recovery of
these costs is occurring through the San Onofre incentive pricing
plan discussed in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Edison International’s recorded estimated minimum liability
to remediate its 51 identified sites (50 at SCE and onc at EME) is
$178 million, which includes $75 million for the two sites discussed
above. The ultimate costs to clean up Edison International’s iden-
tified sites may vary from its recorded liability due to numerous
uncertainties inherent in the estimation process, such as: the extent
and nature of contamination; the scarcity of reliable data for iden-
tified sites; the varying costs of alternative cleanup methods; devel-
opments resulting from investigatory studies; the possibility of
identifying additional sites; and the time periods over which site
remediation is expected to occur. Edison International believes
that, due to these uncertainties, it is reasonably possible that
cleanup costs could exceed its recorded liability by up to $246 mil-
lion. The upper limit of this range of costs was estimated using
assumptions least favorable to Edison International among a range
of reasonably possible outcomes.

The CPUC allows SCE to recover environmental-cleanup
costs at 41 of its sites, representing $91 million of its recorded lia-
bility, through an incentive mechanism (SCE may request to
include additional sites). Under this mechanism, SCE will recover
90% of cleanup costs through customer rates; shareholders fund the
remaining 10%, with the opportunity to recover these costs from
insurance carriers and other third parties. SCE has successfully set-
tled insurance claims with all responsible carriers. Costs incurred
at SCE’s remaining sites are expected to be recovered through cus-
tomer rates. SCE has recorded a regulatory asset of $153 million
for its estimated minimum environmental-cleanup costs expected
to be recovered through customer rates. ‘This amount includes $60
million of marine mitigation costs remaining to be recovered
through the San Onofre incentive pricing plan.

Edison International’s identified sites include several sites for
which there is a lack of currently available information, including
the nature and magnitude of contamination, and the extent, if any,
that Edison International may be held responsible for contributing
to any costs incurred for remediating these sites. Thus, no reason-
able estimate of cleanup costs can now be made for these sites.

Edison International expects to clean up its identified sites
over a period of up to 30 years. Remediation costs in cach of the
next several years arc expected to range from $4 million to $10 mil-
lion. Recorded costs for 1997 were $10 million.

Based on currently available information, Edison International
believes it is unlikely that it will incur amounts in excess of the
upper limit of the estimated range and, based upon the CPUC’s reg-
ulatory treatment of environmental-cleanup costs, Edison
International belicves that costs ultimately recorded will not mate-
rially affect its results of operations or financial position. There can
be no assurance, however, that future developments, including
additional information about existing sites or the identification of
new sites, will not require material revisions to such estimates.
Nuclear Insurance
Federal law limits public liability claims from a nuclear incident to
$8.9 billion. SCE and other owners of San Onofre and Palo Verde
have purchased the maximum private primary insurance available
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(8200 million). The balance is covered by the industry’s retrospec-
tive rating plan that uses deferred premium charges to every reac-
tor licensee if a nuclear incident at any licensed reactor in the U.S.
results in claims and/or costs which exceed the primary insurance
at that plant site. Federal regulations require this secondary level
of financial protection. The Nuclear Regulatory Commission
exempted San Onofre Unit 1 from this secondary level, effective
June 1994, The maximum deferred premium for each nuclear
incident is $79 million per reactor, but not more than $10 million
per reactor may be charged in any one year for each incident.
Based on its ownership interests, SCE could be required to pay a
. maximum of $158 million per nuclear incident. However, it would
have to pay no more than $20 million per incident in any one year.
Such amounts include a 5% surcharge if additional funds arc need-
ed to satisfy public liability claims and are subject to adjustment for
inflation. If the public liability limit above is insufficient, federal
regulations may impose further revenue-raising measures to pay
claims, including a possible additional assessment on all licensed
reactor operators.

Property damage insurance covers losses up to $500 million,
including decontamination costs, at San Onofre and Palo Verde.
Decontamination liability and property damage coverage exceeding
the primary $500 million also has been purchased in amounts greater
than federal requirements. Additional insurance covers part of
replacement power expenses during an accident-related nuclear unit
outage. These policies are issued primarily by mutual insurance
companies owned by utilities with nuclear facilitics. Iflosses at any
nuclear facility covered by the arrangement were to exceed the accu-
mulated funds for these insurance programs, SCE could be assessed
retrospective premium adjustments of up to $28 million per year.
Insurance premiums are charged to operating expense.

NOTE 11. INVESTMENTS IN PARTNERSHIPS AND
UNCONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Edison International’s nonutility subsidiaries have equity interests
in energy generation projects and real estate investment partner-
ships.

Summarized financial information of these investments was:

In millions Year ended December 31, 1997 1996 1995
Revenue $ 1946 $ 1,731 $ 1,400
Expenses 1,578 1,393 1,121
Net income $ 368 $ 338 § 279
In millions December 31, 1997 199
Current assets $ 637 § 673
Other assets 5,520 4,747
Total asscts ] $ 6157 § 5420
Current liabilities $ 9199 §$§ 691
Other liabilitices 3,592 3,110
Equity 1616 1,619
Total liabilitics and equity $ 6157 § 5420
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NOTE 12. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Edison Intcrnational’s business segments include electric .utility
operations (SCE) and three nonutility segments: unregulated
power generation (EME); financial investments (Edison Capital);
and retail services (Edison Enterprises). Other than EME, the
nonutility segments are not individually significant and are com-
bined for reporting purposes.

Edison International’s business segment information was:

Unregulated Editon
Electric Power Generation Inter-
In millions Usility  Domestic Foreign Other  national
1997
Opcerating revenue §7953 8§ 192 8§ 783 & 307 $ 9235
Operating income 1,642 78 316 (1) 2,035%
Depreciation and
decommissioning 1,240 15 88 19 1,362
Assets 18,059 926 4,059 2,057 25,101
Additions to B
property and plant 685 3 84 10 783
1996
Operating revenue $758 8§ 170 $ 674 § 18 § 8545
Operating income 1,711 75 292 @370 2,0412
Depreciation and
decommissioning 1,064 15 75 19 1,173
Assets 17,737 949 4,204 1,669 24,559
Additions to
property and plant 616 4 116 8 744
1995
Opcrating revenue $783 § 177 $§ 290 § 65 § 8405
Operating income 1,709 73 131 @) 1,905
Depreciation and
decommissioning 954 10 36 14 1,014
Assets 18,155 842 3,532 1417 23946
Additions to
property and plant 773 4 Lap 3 2,011

Corporate items and climinations are not material.

(1) Excludes reported tax bencfits of $61 million in 1997, 880 million in 1996 and
$44 million in 1995.

(2) Excludes income taxes of $537 million in 1997, $563 million in 1996 and $528
million in 1995,

(3) Includes $1,042 million from EME’s acquisition of First Hydro.
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Dollars in millions, except per-share amounts 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993
Edison International and Subsidiaries
Operating revenue $ 9,235 $ 8,545 $ 8,405 $ 8,345 $ 7,839
Operating expenses $ 7,737 $ 7,067 $ 7,028 $ 7,046 $ 6,611
Net income $ 700 $ 717 $ 739 $ 681 $ 639
Weighted-average shares of common

stock outstanding (in millions) 400 437 446 448 448
Per-share data:

Basic earnings $ 175 $ 104 $ 166 $ 152 $ 143

Diluted earnings $ 173 $ 1.63 $ 165 $ 152 $ 142

Dividends paid $ 1.00 $ 1.00 $ 1.00 $ 121 $ 141

Dividends declared $§ 100 $ 100 $ 100 $ 1.105 $ 1415

Book value at year-end $ 14.71 $ 15.07 $ 1441 $ 13.72 $ 1330

Market value at year-end $ 27 % $ 197 $ 17% $ 4% $ 20
Dividend payout ratio (paid) - 57.1% 61.0% 60.2% 79.6% 98.6%
Rate of return on common equity 11.7% 11.1% 11.8% 11.3% 11.7%
Price/earnings ratio 155 12.1 10.6 9.6 14.0
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 239 240 255 248 228
Assets $25,101 $24,559 $23,946 $22,390 $21,831
Retained carnings $ 3,176 $ 3,753 $ 3,700 $ 3,452 $ 3,266
Common shareholders’ equity $ 5,527 $ 6,397 $ 6,393 $ 6,144 $ 5958
Preferred securitices: -

Not subject to mandatory redemption $ 184 $ 284 $ 284 $ 359 $ 359

Subject to mandatory redemption $ 425 $ 425 $§ 425 $ 362 $ 275
Long-term debt $ 8,871 $ 7475 $ 7,195 $ 6,347 $ 6,459
Southern California Edison Company
Operating revenue 8 7953 $ 7,583 $ 7,873 $ 7,799 $ 7,397
Earnings $ 576 $ 621 $ 643 $ 599 $ 637
Basic carnings per Edison International common share $ 144 $ 142 $ 144 $ 134 $ 142
Rate of return on common equity 11.6% 12.1% - 12.6% 12.0% 12.9%
Internal generation of funds 104% 153% 89% 76% 78%
Peak demand in megawatts (MW) 19,118 18,207 17,548 18,044 16,475
Generation capacity at peak (MW) 21,511 21,602 21,603 20,615 20,606
Kilowatt-hour sales (in millions) 77,234 75,572 74,296 77,986 73,308
Customers (in millions) 425 4,22 4,18 4.15 4.12
Full-time employees* 12,642 12,057 14,886 16,351 16,585
Edison Mission Energy
Revenue § 975 $ 844 § 467 $ 381 $ 291
Net income $ 115 $ 92 $ o4 $ 55 $ 2
Assets $ 4,985 $ 5,153 $ 437 $ 2,843 $ 2,286
Rate of return on common equity 12.2% 8.8% 9.5% 9.6% 0.3%
Ownership in operating projects (MW) 5,180 4,706 4,212 2,048 1,862
Full-time employees 1,140 940 902 690 673
Edison Capital
Revenue $ 138 $ 49 $ 49 $ 47 $§ 39
Net income $ o6l $ 4 $ 39 $ 33 $8 29
Asscts $ 1,783 $ 1,423 $ 1,063 $ 1,008 $§ 92
Rate of return on common equity 23.2% 17.7% 18.5% 16.8% 14.5%
Full-time employees 85 70 42 33 20

21993 and 1994 are based on tvelve-month averages.
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Shareholder Intormation

ANNUAL MEETING

The 1998 annual mecting of sharcholders will be held on Thursday, April 16, 1998,
at 10:00 a.m. at the Industry Hills Sheraton Resort and Conference Center, One
Industry Hills Parkway, City of Industry, California.

STOCK LISTING AND TRADING INFORMATION

Edison International Common Stock
The New York and Pacific stock exchanges use the ticker symbol EIX. Daily
papers list as Edisonlnt.

Preferred Stock

Southern California Edison’s preferred stocks are listed on the American and
Pacific stock exchanges under the ticker symbol SCE. Previous day’s closing prices,
when traded, are listed in the daily newspapers in the American Stock Exchange
table under the symbol SoCalEd. The 6.05%, 6.45% and 7.23% series are not listed.
The preferred securities of Mission Capital, an affiliate of Edison Mission Energy,
are listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol MEPrA for the
9.875% serics and MEPB for the 8.50% serics.

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

Southern California Edison maintains shareholder records and is transfer agent and
registrar for Edison International common stock and Southern California Edison
preferred stocks. Sharcholders may call Shareholder Services, 800.347.8625, between
8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. (Pacific time) every business day regarding:

stock transfer and name-change requirements;

address changes, including dividend addresses;

clectronic deposit of dividends;

taxpayer identification number submission or changes;

duplicate 1099 and W-9 forms;

notices of and replacement of lost or destroyed stock certificates and

dividend checks;

requests to climinate multiple annual report mailings;

e Edison Intcrnational’s Dividend Reinvestment Plan, including enrollments,
withdrawals, terminations, sales, transfers and statements; and

*  requests for access to online account information via Edison International’s

Internet Home Page, www.edisonx.com.

The address of Shareholder Services is:
P.O. Box 400, Rosemead, California 91770-0400, FAX: 626.302.4815

VIDEND REINV CLEC F TR
Sharcholders can purchase additional common shares by reinvesting their quarter-
ly dividends. A prospectus on Edison International’s Dividend Reinvestment Plan
is available from Sharcholder Services.
Dividend checks can be clectronically deposited directly to your financial insti-
tution. Enrollment forms are available upon request.
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COMPANY PROYFILE

PNM’s primary business is providing electric and gas
utility services to the people of New Mexico. We also
sell power to utilities and other large wholesale
customers, market natural gas outside the state of
New Mexico, and offer a wide range of energy and
water mahagement services to municipalities, govern-

ment agencies and other large commerecial institutions.

INVESTOR HIGHLIGHTS

| 4 . §

Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts
PERCENTAGE 5-YEAR ANNUAL

1997 1996 CHANGE GROWTH RATE

Financial Data

Operating Revenues $1,135,267 $883,386 28.5% 5.9%

Operating Expenses $1,011,222 $757,367 33.5% 6.4%

Operating Income $ 124,045 $126,019} (1.6%) 2.1%

Retained Earnings S 129,188 $ 77,185 67.4% NM

Return on Average Common Equity 10.2% 9.8% . 4.5% NM
Common Share Data

Earnings (Basic) $ 1.92 $ 172 11.6% NM

Earnings (Diluted) S 1.91 $§ 171 11.7% NM

Book Value S 19.26 $ 18.06 6.6% 5.1%

Closing Price S  23.69 $ 19.63 20.7% 13.9%

NM - Not Meaningful
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" the change from regulated utility to competitive

LA

energy company brings new uncertainties, new

risks - and new opportunities. In the following

pages, we will tell you how the people of

PNM are turning the revolutionary change in
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our industiry to the benelit of our shareholders.



FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS:
PNM keeps getting better at what we do best:
delivering reliable, cost-cffective electric and gas
service to the people of New Mexico. Providing
superior value to customers continues to pay off for
sharcholders. In 1997 PNM stock provided a 25 percent
total return on investment.

Thanks to continued strong growth in our local
service territory, a substantial increase in our whole-
sale power sales and the rapid expansion of our new
gas marketing business, PNM o;)crating revenues
were up $252 million last year, to more than $1.1
billion. Earnings per share increased 11.6 percent for
the year.

This upward trend in revenues and carnings,
together with your company’s growing financial
strength, enabled the Board of Directors to approve
a 40 percent increase in the common stock dividend
in 1997, from 48 to 68 cents a share for the year.

But tomorrow is not won by yesterday’s
success - and never has this been more true than in
today’s energy business. In California, retail electric
competition is becoming a reality this year. Dozens
of other states, including New Mexico, are working
on their own plans to restructure the electric and gas
utility industry. While these plans vary in detail, they

L [P I TR 1Y EERE I "

all share one common goal: to offer customers

Cery e [

expanded choice.

Utilities all across the country, each once comfort-
ably secure in the uncontested possession of its local
service territory, must now face the prospect of com-
peting in the open market place. Some will succeed
and some will fail.

We intend to have PNM ranked among the
winners. We have a plan in place that will position
your company for a competitive environment. We
have a management team that has proven its ability
to carry out that plan.

Although competition is bringing rapid and some-
times unpredictable change to our business, our
commitment to maximizing your return on your
investment in PNM remains constant. We are not
simply waiting for the future. We are helping to

create it.

Sincerely,

ﬁrmfé

BENJAMIN F. MONTOYA
President & Chief Executive Officer

JoHN T. ACKERMAN
Chairmdn'of the' Béard ' - T et
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IT USED TO BE A SIMPLE CHOICE: “ON” OR “OFF.” * BUT TODAY, PNM CUSTOMERS HAVE NEW OPTIONS

.

FOR THEIR NATURAL GAS. * SOON THEY’LL BE ABLE TO SELECT A POWER SUPPLIER AS WELL. * AS

e ‘ - N P S w f . s Pwd g

COMPETITION SPREADS, WE HAVE TO FIND NEW WAYS TO CONVINCE CUSTOMERS TO CHOOSE PNM.




ALL IT "RESTRUCTURING.”

CARLL IT “"RETHRIL WHEELING,” OR

“OPEN RACCESS.” BY WHATEVER NAME, CUSTOMER CHOICE IS COMING

TO THE ELECTRIC UTILITY INDUSTRY ALL ACROSS THE COUNTRY.

At the beginning of 1997, customers told us they

wanted greater control over their energy costs. PNM-

responded by leading the way to Gas Choice. We
moved so fast that by the end of the year, PNM was
one of the first natural gas utilities in the nation to
offer all its customers the opportunity to shop for
their supplier.

With the advent of Gas Choice, PNM continues to
deliver the gas, read the meters and send out bills. But
customers can now either continue to have PNM buy
their gas for them or negotiate a separate deal with a
gas marketer.

At the same time, we improved our own budget
billing plan and offered an expanded array of options
to help customers better manage their energy dollars.
We extended the hours at our customer phone center
) that'customers could reach us on evenings and

weekends. Because an energy efficient home saves

customers money, PNM’s Energy Place is offering

customers a free Home Energy Analysis.

The PNM Advantage program offers the same expert
assistance to business customers, identifying energy inef-
ficiencies and suggesting money-saving solutions. The
goal is to position PNM as a trusted energy adviser and
ally, the customer’s choice in a competitive market.

Competition came to the wholesale power business
in 1992, when federal regulators opened the nation-
wide network of high-voltage transmission lines to all
users. Last year the number of participants in this
market — other utilities, independent power genera-
tors, and marketers — exploded to more than 300.

PNM adapted by expanding and reorganizing our
wholesale power trading desk, staffing it with experts
offering deals tailored to each customer’s needs. As a
result, these power sales were up 48.3 percent last

year, on top of a 76.6 percent increase in 1996.

WHOLESALE POWER SALES
(GWh in thousands)

Sales to other utilities, municipalities, co-ops and
marketers accounted for more than half of PNM's
total electric sales in 1997.




Wholesale power sales accounted for $185.3 million

of PNM revenues last year.

Because wholesale power has become a commodi-
ty product, where competitive advantage is measured
in fractions of a cent, generating that clectricity is also
becoming a fiercely competitive business. We’re find-
ing new ways to make our own plants more cfficient,
without compromising our commitment to the envi-
ronment. We have lowered costs at our San Juan
plant and will lower them further with a $40 million
investment in new emissions technology that will save
us another $10 million a year.

Competition will take other forms in different
parts of our business. Because building competing
networks of electric and gas lines is economically
wasteful, delivering energy to the customer’s meter
will remain a “natural monopoly,” regulated much the
way it is today. Providing that delivery service will
offer steady profits and a reliable cash flow to effi-
cient, well-managed companies.

The PNM electric and gas distribution systems are
among the most reliable and cost-effective in the nation.

And, for a relatively small utility like PNM, adding new

AVERAGE CUSTOMER OUTAGE TIME
(minutes per year)

PNM’s investmnent in equipment, systems and
personnel resulted in power being restored to
custonzers in record time in 1995 and 1997.

customers offers substandal opportunitics to further
improve margins by capturing economies of scale.

New Mexico remains one of the fastest-growing
states in the nation. Through the 1990s, our vibrant
local ecconomy has fueled a growth rate for PNM of
ncarl}; twice the national average.

To serve more customers more efficiently, PNM is
investing in the latest technology. PNM’s new
customer information computer system, our new
interactive voice response system in the customer call
center, and a new computerized trouble management
system that dramatically speeds outage response time
are all aimed at delivering superior service to cus-
tomers at the lowest possible cost.

Improving the way we run our core business has
other advantages beyond lowering costs and enhanc-
ing service to PNM retail customers. As deregulation
of the industry proceeds, further “unbundling” of the
basic utility package may make such basic functions as
billing, meter reading, and phone center operations
competitive offerings. When that day comes, PNM’s
superior performance in these areas may enable us to

retain these services as profit centers.
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IN A COMPETITIVE ENVIRONMENT, YOU CAN'T AFFORD TO STAND STILL. * PNM 1S CHARGING AHEAD. * WE ARE

. RETHINKING STRATEGY AND CHANGING INCENTIVES. * WE'RE ANSWERING THE TOUGH QUESTIONS THAT

Wy EERT YRl

COME WITH A COMPETITIVE ENVIRONMENT WITH IDEAS THAT WILL SET US APART FROM THE COMPETITION.







oW cosTS. AN EFFICIENT, PRODUCTIVE WORK FORCE. AN ORGANIZATION TOTALLY

FOCUSED ON CREATING VALUE FOR SHAREHOLDERS BY MEETING THE NEEDS OF ITS

cusTOMERS. THOSE RRE THE ELEMENTS OF SUCCESS IN TODAY’'S ENERGY BUSINESS.

A new company policy rewards employees with a

casual dress day for every day PNM stock hits a new
high. Sounds kind of silly at first, the kind of stunt
Herb Kelleher used to revolutionize the airline
business, or Sam Walton used in creating the nation’s
number-one mass retailer. But it works.

The “Stock’s Up!” casual days are only one small
example of the ways we are fostering a competitive
mindset among PNM employees.

Our compensation plan pays workers for
measurable results achieved, emphasizing return to
shareholders and customer satisfaction. The new YES
(You Energize Service) Award, instituted in mid-1997,
rewards employees who go beyond their normal job
duties to provide exceptional customer service.

We're looking at what has worked for companies in
other industries, and to what’s being tried by the “best

practice” companies in our own industry. We're

applying those lessons to PNM. The goal is not to
simply streamline or fine-tune what we do now, but to
re-examine every facet of our business so that we can
do it better than anyone else.

In 1997, we assembled a team of experienced
employees to tackle the company’s largest re-engi-
neering project to date. The team is studying how
PNM spend§ $30 million a year to extend gas and
electric service to new customers. The goal is to
redesign this entire process to boost customer satis-
faction, while assuring the ‘most cfficient use of the
company’s resources.

We're taking the same innovative approach to our
financing needs. At the end of 1997, PNM took a
major step toward climinating reliance on the 50-
year-old mortgage that served as the foundation for

our financing arrangements in the past. In 1998, we

will be one of the first utdilities in the nation to use a

RETAINED EARNINGS
(dollars in millions)

Increased profitability boosted retained earnings
to more than 3129 million by the end of 1997.




new financial instrument that should make future
borrowing easier and provide greatly increased
financial flexibility.

We continue to repurchase, refinance or retire
long-term debt, reducing interest expense and
strengthening our balance sheet so that we will be able
to respond quickly as opportunities arise in the future.

We’re discovering some of those opportunities in
the rapidly growing field of energy services, where
today’s heightened emphasis on conservation and
environmental protection is fueling demand for the
kinds of expert assistance PNM can provide.

PNM’s strategy targets specialized segments of this
new market where we can use our experience to build
a profitable, competitive advantage.

" One of these market niches is in serving the energy
management needs of federal agencies and
installations. Committed to reducing their energy
consumption by nearly a third by 2005, these agencies
are in the market for the innovative, cost-effective
energy solutions available from PNM Energy
Services. We are also putting our long years of

experience to work with smaller municipalities and

LONG TERM DEBT OUTSTANDING
(dollars in billions)

PNM's aggressive debt reduction program has
brought us closer to restoring the company's
investment grade credit rating.

Indian reservations to help them upgrade, expand and
manage their utility and water systems.

We are pursuing another new opportunity in sell-
ing natural gas to large industrial and commercial
customers and to local gas utilities outside of New
Mexico. We first entered this business in 1996 and
grew it to more than $114 million in sales in 1997.

This year, we are starting up another new cnergy
services business in the newly deregulated California
market. This new business is installing and maintain-
ing a new generation of high-tech electric meters for
utilities and business customers.

These new ventures are a relatively small part of
PNM’s business today, and we do not expect them
to contribute to carnings for several more years.
Characteristic of a start-up business, in 1997 Energy
Services reduced PNM earnings by about 22 cents
a share.

But as these markets evolve and expand - and as
PNM gains valuable experience in these new fields — we
believe our investment in energy services will become

an important source of revenues and profits for

tomorrow’s PNM.
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WILL COMPETITION MAKE A DIFFERENCE? * YES. * POWER GENERATED BY SOLAR PANELS LIKE THIS ONE

WILL BE JUST ONE OF THE MANY NEW OPTIONS CONSUMERS WILL HAVE IN A COMPETITIVE MARKET,

* AS ENERQY CHOICES MULTIPLY, WE ARE POSITIONING PNM TO GIVE CUSTOMERS WHAT THEY WANT.




We know that customers want an affordable, depend-
able supply of power. We also know that they care
about the environment, and they want to deal with a
company that shares that sense of stewardship.

As part of fulfilling that responsibility, we have
established the new PNM Enchantment Energy Trust
to fund projects that will assure New Mexico’s con-
tinued leadership role in alternative energy research
and development.

But even as we enter tomorrow’s market place, we
must continue to operate effectively in today’s regu-
lated environment, where substantial challenges
remain. The New Mexico Public Utility Commission
ordered PNM to present both an electric and a gas
rate case in 1997, While we are secking a $12.6 mil-
lion increase in gas rates and advocating no change
in electric rates, there is no cerminty regarding the
outcome of these cases.

Another uncertainty lies in New Mexico’s move
toward an elected Public Regulaton Commission,

which is scheduled to replace the existing Public Utility

Commission in January 1999. The first clections to the
new commission, together with state legislative and
gubernatorial elections, will shape the ongoing debate
over industry restructuring in New Mexico this year.

In 1997, PNM led the way in this debate, bringing
together all interested parties in an attempt to reach a
consensus over the changes in our industry. While
those collaborative discussions did not produce a gen-
cral agreement, the talks did help us all identify the
important issues and find some common ground.

In 1998, PNM continues to advocate change that
both offers benefits to all customers and serves the
best interests of our sharcholders.

In tomorrow’s competitive market, consumers will
be able to compare PNM side by side with other
energy providers. In that new environment, the company
with the latest technology, the company reinventing
customer service, the company that is changing the
way it does business, is the company that will thrive.

PNM is committed to making competition work for

our customers and our shareholders.

CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
(dollars in thousands)

With dividends reinvested, $1,000 invested
in PNM stock at the end of 1994 would have
grown 91.6 percent, to $1,920, by the end

of 1997.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
X

1997 1996 1993 1994 1993

(In thousands except per share amounts and raties)

Total Operating Revenues $1,135,267 S 883,386 § 808465 $ 904,711 $ 873,878
Net Eamnings (Loss) $ 80,995 S 72580 § 75562 S 80318 $ (61,486)"
Earnings (Loss) per Common Share:
Basic $ 1.92 S 172  § ) I 1.77 S (e
Diluted $ 191 ) 171§ 172§ 177 S (16
Total Assets $2,313,732 $2,230,314  $2,035,669  $2,203,265 $2,212,189
Preferred Stock with Mandatory
Redemption Requirements - - - S 17975 $ 24386
Long-Term Deb,
including Current Maturitics $ 714,345 $ 728889 S 728989 $ 900,595 § 976,525
Common Stock Data:
Market price per common share at .
year end S 23.688 S 19625 S 17625 § 13.00 $ 1125
Book value per common share at
year end $ 1926 $ 1806 § 1682 § 1511 S 1329
Average number of common shares outstanding 41,774 41,774 41,774 41,774 41,774
Cash dividend declared per common share s 0.68 $§ 048 - - -
Return on Average Common Equity 10.2% 9.8% 10.7% 12.4% (10.7)%
Capitalization:
Common stock equity 52.5% 504% 48.6% 39.2% 344 %
Preferred stock:
Without mandatory redemption requirements 0.8 0.9 0.9 3.7 3.6
With mandatory redemption requirements - - - 1.1 1.5
Long-term deb, including current maturities 46.7 48.7 50.5 56.0 60.5
100% 100% 100% 100% 100 %

* Includes the write-down of the 22% beneficial intcrests in the PVNGS Units 1 and 2 leases purchased by the Company, the write-off
of certain regulatory assets and other deferred costs and the write-off of certain PVNGS Units 1 and 2 common costs, aggregating
$108.2 million, net of taxes ($2.59 per share).

The selected financial data should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements, the notes to consolidated financial

statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Return on
Average Common Equity

199§ 1996 1997

PNM bas provided consistent returns over the last
three years, even as e bave growen onr busivess
and restored the commron stock dividend.
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MANRGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERBATIONS

The following is management’s assessment of the

Company’s financial condition and the significant factors

affecting the results of operations. This discussion should be

read in conjunction with the Company’s consolidated
* financial statements.

OVERVIEW

Restructuring the Electric Utility Industry

Competition and restructuring of the clectric utility indus-
try continue to be key issues facing the Company. Efforts to
advance and determine the eventual form of industry
restructuring continued during 1997.

At the state level, the Company proposed in April 1997
that the New Mexico Public Utility Commission
(‘NMPUC”) reconvene the proceedings involving the
NMPUC’ Notice of Inquiry into the restructuring of the
clectric industry, in an attempt to arrive at consensus legis-
lation to be presented to the 1998 session of the New
Mexico Legislature. In May 1997, the NMPUC issued an
order accepting the Company’s proposal for a collaborative
cffort, and the proposal for a series of meetings to be held
among all interested partics. The parties held several meet-
ings in which the Company actively participated. However,
in September 1997, the collaborative process to draft legis-
lation was declared at an impasse due to disagreement on
issues regarding the divestiture of gencradon and energy
service units from electric distribution and transmission
systems, and the recoverability of stranded costs.

Although the partics could not reach agreement, the
Company filed its own proposal for industry restructuring in
September 1997 with both the NMPUC, and the Water,
Utilities and Natural Resources Committee (“WUNR?”) of
the New Mexico Legislature.

‘The Company’s proposal called for an immediate rate
reduction of $10 million per year for residential customers
from the effective date of proposed legislation untl open
access without the need for a rate case. The proposal also
called for full retail competition no later than January 1,
2001. Other parts of the Company’s proposal included an
offer to create a regulated distribution “wires and pipes”
company dedicated only to the delivery of electricity and
natural gas. Other services, usually associated with distribu-
tion, such as meter reading, billing and customer services
would be provided through competitive markets. The
Company offered to assume the risk of stranded cost recov-
ery on all fossil fuel generation and for PVNGS Unit 3
which was previously excluded from New Mexico jurisdic-

tional rates. However, the Company would recover all fixed
costs associated with PVINGS Units 1 and 2 through a non-
bypassable “wires charge” from 2001 to 2016. The propos-
al also called for certain credits to stranded costs which
would effectively shorten the time period for recovery. The
Company currently estimates that if the market clearing
price for power, which represents the cost of generation at
the plant, fell to 3.0 cents/KWh, it may incur an after-tax
write-off of approximately $176 million related to its fossil
fuel generation if the Company assumes this risk. The
Company’s proposal was supported by various parties to the
collaborative process, including Enron Corporation, the
New Mexico Retil Association, Southwestern Public
Service Company (“SPS”), the United States Executive
Agencies and the Internatonal Brotherhood of Electrical
Workers. However, the Company’s proposal was not adopt-
ed by the WUNR and not introduced during thel998
legislative session. The WUNR declined to recommend
any restructuring legislation as a committee bill during the
1998 legislative session.

On January 22, 1998, the NMPUC submitted its own
report to the New Mexico Legislature related to restructur-
ing of the electric utility industry. The following key points
were included in the report: (i) PVNGS and Plains
Escalante Generating Station are the most debated issues in
deregulation because of their potential stranded costs; (if)
stranded costs, if determined to be lawful, should be verified
by the NMPUC or its successor, the Public Regulation
Commission (“PRC”); (iii) market power issues may be
addressed through functional separation or partial or
complete divestiture of generation, transmission and distri-
bution; (iv) unbundling is necessary to understand the
disparities among various electricity providers; (v) despite
an abundance of natural resources to fuel generation facili-
tics, New Mexico customers pay more for electricity
because of costs associated with generation plants; (vi) on
average, New Mexico residential customers pay more for
electricity than regional and national residential customers
and (vii) system reliability must be maintained or enhanced,
and customers must be educated and environmental pro-
tections should be promoted. In addition, sample legislation
was attached to the report, giving either the NMPUC or
the PRC authority to conclude matters relating to electric
industry restructuring. The report was issued as a result of
a2 NMPUC case and, with the issuance of the report, the
case was closed. The NMPUC’s draft legislaton was not
introduced during the 1998 legislative session. House




Memorial 27, the only measure dealing with restructuring,
passed the House. Memorial 27 stated the intent of the leg-
islature to address the issue of clectric industry restructuring
in the 1999 session and declared that the NMPUC does not
have statutory authority to implement réstmcturing at this
time. The Memorial 27 did not require concurrence by the
Senate; however, an identical Senate Memorial was notacted
upon by the full Senate prior to adjournment.

In a related matter, in 1996, the NMPUC ordered all
utilities under its jurisdiction to file their estimates of strand-
ed costs, absent any recovery method being adopted, based
on the Texas Public Utlity Commission Economic Cost
Over Market (“ECOM”) model. The Company, in its filing,
presented two methodologies: (i) using the ECOM model,
the Company’s stranded cost estimates run from $657 mil-
lion for a 1998 full retail access case to $119 million for a
2002 full retail access case and (ji) using a second methodol-
ogy, based upon the difference between the Company’s costs
of existing generation and the costs of new combined cycle
and combustion turbine units to serve the same load, the
Company’s costs above the level of new gas units, in 1997
dollars, were estimated at $748 million for a 1998 full retail
© access case to $327 million for a 2002 full retail access case.

The Company advised the NMPUC that the results of the
ECOM model are highly sensitive to various assumptions,
primarily projections of future gas prices. This information
was addressed in the NMPUC report submitted to the
New Mexico Legislature. '

At the Federal level, legisladon was introduced in the
United States Congress in 1996 to allow retail compettion
by the year 2000. Since then, a number of bills have been
drafted for potential introduction in Congress. It is antici-
pated that these bills will be heavily lobbied by utilities,
industrials, power marketers, generators, environmental
groups, consumer groups and state regulators.

The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”)
issued Order 888 in 1996, requiring utilities that own trans-
mission facilities to file open access tariffs to make available
transmission services to affiliates and non-affiliates at fair and
nondiscriminatory rates. Order 888 also states that public
utilities will be allowed to seck recovery of legitimate and
verifiable stranded costs from departing customers as a result
of wholesale competition. The FERC indicated that it will
provide for the recovery of retail stranded costs only if state
regulators lack the legal authority to address those costs at
the time retail wheeling is required. The FERC also stated

that it would permit stranded cost recovery under wholesale
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all-requirements contracts. However, upon reconsideration,
FERC determined that it will serve as the primary forum for
deciding stranded cost recovery cases if a non-jurisdictional
municipal utility annexes territory currently served by a local

retail utility. This move by FERC filled a jurisdictional gap *

that could have arisen since municipal utilities are not neces-
sarily subject to state commission jurisdiction.

Although it is currendy unable to predict the ulimate
outcome of possible retail competition initiatives, the
Company has been and will continue to be active at both the
state and Federal levels in the public policy debates on the
restructuring of the electric utility industry. The Company
will continue to work with customers, regulators, legislators
and other interested parties to find solutions that bring ben-
efits from competition while recognizing past commitments.

Competitive Strategy

The Companys strategy for dealing with competition
includes ongoing cost reductions, increased productivity,
pursuit of growth opportunitics, seeking to improve credit
ratings to investment grade and strengthening of customer
relations. To accomplish these objectives, the Company con-
tinues to maintain the focus on its core business and is
aggressively pursuing its efforts to expand its energy and util-
ity related business into carefully targeted markets for new
businesses opportunities.

The restructuring of the utility industry, coupled with
todays renewed emphasis on cnergy conservation and
environmental protection, is fueling a growing demand for
energy, water and wastewater management services. In pur-
suing new business opportunities, the Company is focusing
on energy and utlity related activities under its Energy
Services Business Unit. These activities will provide energy
marketing and energy management services, the marketing
of natural gas outside of New Mexico, management services
for water and wastewater systems and utility related man-
agementand operations services for Federal installadons and
other large commercial institutions. The Company is
currenty operating the City of Santa Fe’ water system. The
Energy Services Business Unit is also pursuing utility
related business opportunities in Mexico.

In June 1995, the Company filed an application with the
NMPUC for authorization for the creation of three wholly-
owned non-utility subsidiaries as part of the Energy Services
Business Unit. The Company sought approval to invest a
maximum of $50 million in the three subsidiaries over time
and to enter into reciprocal loan agreements for up to $30
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million with these subsidiaries. In June 1997, the NMPUC
hearing examiner issued a recommended decision for
approval, with a number of conditions. The recommenda-
tion indicated that any capital infusion or financial assistance
to its proposed subsidiaries beyond the requested $50 mil-
lion and reciprocal loans exceeding more than $30 million
with these subsidiaries will require prior approval from the
NMPUC. The recommendation also directed that all
investments made in the subsidiaries and their operations
should not adverscly affect the Company’s ratepayers. The
Company is currently awaiting the NMPUCS final order in
this case.

The Company does not anticipate an eamings contribu-
tion from the Energy Services Business Unit over the next
few years. However, the Company belicves that successful
operation of the Energy Services Business Unit activities will
better position the Company in an increasingly competitive
utility environment.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Capital Requirements and Liquidity

Total capital requirements include construction expendi-
wres as well as other major capital requirements, including
retirement of long-term debt, long-term debt sinking funds
and cash dividend requirements for both common and pre-
ferred stock. ‘The main focus of the Company’s construction
program is upgrading generating systems, upgrading and
expanding the electric and gas transmission and distribution
systems and purchasing nuclear fucl. Total capital require-
ments and construction expenditures for 1997 were $173.9
million and $128.2 million, respectively. Projections for total
capital requirements and construction expenditures for 1998
are $218.9 million and $141.3 million, respectively. Such
projections for the years 1998 through 2002 are $940.3 mil-
lion and $563.2 million, respectively. The projected capital
requirements do not include the planned refinancing of
$140 million of taxable first mortgage bonds or the planned
refinancing of PVNGS Lease Obligation Bonds (‘LOBs”)
discussed below. These estimates are under continuing
review and subject to on-going adjustment. In conjunction
with the upgrading of generating systems, the Company
began a retrofit environmental project at San Juan
Generating Station (“SJGS”) which is scheduled to be com-
pleted in January 1999. The project will cost the Company
approximately $40 million. The Company’s anticipated sav-
ings in fuel and operating expense are estimated to be
approximately $10 million per year over the life of the plant.
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The Company’s construction expenditures for 1997 were
entirely funded through cash generated from operations.
The Company currently anticipates that internal cash gen-
eration will be sufficient to meet capital requirements for the
years 1998 through 2002. To cover the difference in the
amounts and timing of cash generadon and cash require-
ments, the Company intends to use short-term borrowings
under its liquidity arrangements.

At the end of 1997, the Company had $130.0 million of

" available liquidity arrangements, consisting of $100.0 mil-

lion from a secured revolving credit facility (“Facility”),
$15.0 million from an accounts receivable securitization and
$15.0 million in local lines of credit. The Facility will expire
in June 1998 and the Company intends to replace the facili-
ty with a five-year $300 million senior unsecured revolving
credit facility (“Revolver”).

In November 1997, the Company requested NMPUC
approval to enter into the Revolver. In addition, the
Company intends to borrow $140 million from the Revolver
to retire all of its outstanding taxable first mortgage bonds.
The Company also requested authority to exchange the first
mortgage bonds currently collateralizing the outstanding
$575 million of tax-exempt pollution control revenue bonds
with senior unsecured notes (“SUNs”). After completion of
these transactions, the 1947 Indenture of Mortgage and
Deed of Trust would be extinguished, resulting in more
administrative, financial and strategic flexibility for the
Company. The extinguishment of the mortgage requires the
consent of one party which has not yet consented and may
not consent. Due to concern about the consent, the
Company also requested NMPUC authority to leave an
amended mortgage in place. Among other modifications,
the mortgage would be amended such that only $111 million
of tax-exempt pollution control revenue bonds would have
the benefit of the lien. The property under the liecn would be
reduced and no future bonds could be issued under the
mortgage. The SUNs are planned to be issued under an
indenture containing a restriction on liens (except in certain
limited circumstances) and certain other covenants and
restrictions. With the exception of the $111 million of tax-
exempt pollution control revenue bonds secured by first
mortgage bonds, the SUNs will be the senior debt of the
Company. On February 16, 1998, the NMPUC issued an
order approving these transactions. The Company is antici-
pating completion of these transactions in mid-March 1998.

As of December 31, 1997, the Company had approxi-
mately $18.2 million in cash and temporary investments.
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Financing Capability

‘The Company’s ability to finance its construction program
ata reasonable cost and to provide for other capital needs is
largely dependent upon its ability to earn a fair return on
equity, results of operations, credit ratings, regulatory
approvals and financial market conditions. Financing flexi-
bility is enhanced by providing a high percentage of total
capital requirements from internal sources and having the
ability, if necessary, to issue long-term sccurities, and to
obtain short-term credit. Standard & Poor’s Corp. and
Moody’s Investors Services, Inc. currently maintain the
Company’s credit ratings at one level below investment
grade. Duff & Phelps Credit Rating Co. currently main-
tains an investment grade ratng for the Company’s first
mortgage bonds, but continues to rate all
other securities of the Company below
investment grade. The Company may
face limited credit markets and higher
financing costs as a result of its securities
being rated below investment grade.

One impact of the Company’s current
ratings, together with covenants in the
Company’s PVNGS Units 1 and 2 lease
agrecements, is to limit the Company’s
ability, without consent of the owner par-
ticipants and bondholders in the lease
transactions: (i) to enter into any merger
or consolidation, or (ii) except in connec-
tion with normal dividend policy, to con-
vey, transfer, lease or dividend more than
5% of its assets in any single transaction
or scries of related transactions. The Facility imposes simi-
lar restrictions regardless of credit ratings.

The issuance of first mortgage bonds by the Company is
subject to earnings and bondable property provisions of the
Company’s first mortgage bond indenture. The Company
also has the capability under the mortgage indenture, with-
out regard to the earnings test but subject to other condi-
tions, to issue first mortgage bonds on the basis of certain
previously retired bonds. At December 31, 1997, based on
the earnings test, the Company could have issued approxi-
mately $463 million of additional first mortgage bonds,
assuming an annual interest rate of 7.34 percent. The
Company’s restated articles of incorporation limit the
amount of preferred stock which may be issued. Assuming
a preferred stock dividend rate of 7.24 percent, the
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Debt to Cngiml Ratio

1996

PNM's lewered ratio of debt to total capital
seflects the company's strengtbened balance sheet
and improved finandal pesition.
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Company could have issued $525 million of preferred stock
as of year-end.

Financing Activities

In February 1997, the Company refinanced $190 million of
pollution control revenue bonds issued by the City of
Farmington, all maturing in April 2022. The effect of the
refinancing resulted in a decrease in interest charges of
approximately $1.1 million in 1997. On December 1, 1997,
the Company converted $137.3 million of variable rate pol-
lution control revenue bonds to fixed rates. Of the total,
$100 million of City of Farmington bonds were converted
to a fixed rate of 5.80% and $37.3 million of Maricopa
County, Arizona Polluton Control Corporation bonds
were converted to a fixed rate of 5.75%. The City of
Farmington bonds mature on April 1,
2022, and the Maricopa County, Arizona
Pollution Control Corporation bonds
mature on November 1, 2022,

In December 1997, the Company pur-
chased $28.9 million of PVINGS LOBs,
10.15% Series. Although the LOBs are
off-balance sheet debt, these outstanding
bonds have been included in the calculation
of the Company’s debt to capitalization
ratio as well as various financial coverage
ratios by the major rating agencics. The
purchase of the LOBs will not only
improve these ratios, but will also increase
carnings in the form of interest income.

The Company is currently preparing
to request NMPUC approval to issue up to $443 million in
fixed income securities to refinance the $208 million in
LOBs remaining in the public markets and the $219 mil-
lion in LOBs held by the Company as an investment.
Under a stipulated agreement with the NMPUC, any sav-
ings generated from the refinancing will be split 40% to
the Company’s customers and 60% to sharcholders. The
Company hopes to complete the transaction during the
second quarter of 1998.

Other than the financing activities discussed above, the
Company currently has no requirements for long-term
financing during the period of 1998 through 2002.
However, during this period, the Company could enter into
further long-term financings for the purpose of strengthen-
ing its balance sheet and reducing its cost of capital. The
Company’s continuing program of retiring or repurchasing

1997
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long-term debt provided a net increase in earnings of
approximately $9.7 million, before taxes, during 1997,

The Company continues to evaluate jts investment and
debt retirement options to optimize its financing strategy
and carnings potential.

Dividends

The Company resumed the payment of cash dividends on
common stock in May 1996. The Company’s board of
directors (“Board”) reviews the Company’ dividend policy
on a continuing basis. The declaration of common divi-
dends is dependent upon a number of factors including
earnings and financial condition of the Company and
market conditions.

Capital Structure

The Company’ capitalization, including
current maturides of long-term debe, at
December 31 is shown below:

1997 1996 1993

Comimon
Equity 525% 504% 486%
Preferred

Stock 0.8 09 09
Long-term

Debt 467 487 505
Total

Capitalization* 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
EE———

$808,463

* Total capitalization does not include as debt the present value
of the Company’ lease obligations for PVNGS Units 1 and 2
and EIP.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Basic earnings per share of common stock were $1.92,
$1.72 and $1.72 for 1997, 1996 and 1995, respectively.
Earnings in 1997 increased substantially above the 1996
level due to increased electric gross margin and interest
income. The sales of the gas gathering and processing
assets and the Company’s water division in 1995 had a sig-
nificant positive carnings effect in 1995 and impacted
1996 earnings by reducing operating margin, reducing
operating expenses, reducing interest charges and
increasing investment income.

Electric gross margin (operating revenues less fuel and
purchased power expense) increased $20.1 million in
1997 from 1996 as a result of rewil load growth and
increased off-system sales margin as a result of continued

Total Operating Revenues
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improvement in wholesale power market conditions.

Electric gross margin increased $23.3 million in 1996
from 1995 as a result of retail load growth and warmer
than normal weather and increased off-system sales
margin as a result of improved wholesale power market
conditions.

Gas gross margin (operating revenues less gas pur-
chased for resale) increased $1.3 million in 1997 over
1996 resulting from the implementation of a higher fixed
monthly customer charge (access fec) starting February
1997 pursuant to the NMPUC’ final order in the gas rate
case. This was offset by a reduced per therm rate per the
NMPUC: final order and lower off-system sales margin.

Gas gross margin in 1996 was unchanged from 1995.
Higher off-system sales margin and
higher retail sales margin as a result of
cooler than normal weather in 1996
were offset by the absence of the gas
gathering and processing margin in
1996 due to the sale of the gas gathering
and processing assets in 1995,

The increase in the Energy Services
Business Unit operating revenues and gas
purchased for resale in 1997 was due to
the Company’s first full year of natural
gas marketing operations outside of New
Mexico. Gross margin decreased $4.6
million in 1997 from 1996 due mainly to
a negative margin from the gas marketing operations as a
result of unusual weather conditions on the West Coast
and elsewhere around the country contributing to the
volatility in natural gas prices during the fourth quarter of
1997. The Company does not anticipate an carnings con-
tribution from the Energy Services Business Unit over the
next few years.

Other operation and maintenance expenses (‘O&M”)
increased $13.2 million in 1997 from 1996 due to the fol-
lowing: (i) higher operating expenses of $4.3 million
related to the Energy Services Business Units operations;
(ii) higher distribution expense of $4.2 million as a result
of increascd maintenance and service enhancement
efforts; (iii) higher production expenses of $4.3 million
resulting from the write-off of obsolete inventory and
undistributed stores expense at PVNGS and a severance
pay accrual at SJGS; (iv) higher customer related service
expenses of $2.9 million resulting from the Company’s
customer enhancement program; (v) higher sales expense

$1,135,267
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of $2.0 million and (vi) higher transmission expense of
S$1.1 million. Offsetting these increases were lower main-
tenance expense at Four Corners due to a scheduled
maintenance outage in 1996, lower gas and oil production
expense, and lower administrative and general (“A&G”)
labor and benefit expense.

Other O&M decreased $.3 million in 1996 from 1995
due to the following: (i) lower production expenses of
$7.9 million as a result of reduced scheduled maintenance
outages in 1996, decreased down time in 1996 for refuel-
ing outages and lower property taxes in 1996; (i) a
decrease of $6.3 million in gas production and products
extraction expense resulting from the gas assets sale in
June 1995; (jii) lower pension and benefit costs of $4.2
million as a result of an adjustment to
the retirees’ health care costs and (iv) a
decrease in water division expense of
$3.0 million resulting from the sale of
the Company’s water division in July
1995. These decreases were offset by
higher A&G expense of $21.0 million
due to increased labor, increased office
supplies and expense and higher outside
services expenses.

Depreciation and amortization expens-
es increased $4.6 million in 1997 asa result
of additional utlity plant and an adjust-

Industrial
17%

Commercial
46%

ment recorded in 1996 for the over amor- [ P P P S
81 percent of PNMs electric retail yevenites,

tization of certain intangible udlity plant.

Depreciation and amortization expens-
es decreased $2.7 million in 1996 from 1995 as a result of the
sale of the Company’s water division and gas assets in 1995
and an adjustment recorded in 1996 for the over amortization
of certain intangible utility plant.

Net other income and deductions increased $11.9 mil-
lion from a year ago and decreased $18.8 million in 1996
from 1995, Significant 1997 items, net of taxes, included
interest income of $14.3 million resulting from the
investment in the PVNGS LOBs and settlement of liti-
gation. Significant 1996 items, net of taxes, included the
following: (i) a regulatory liability of $10.1 million; (ii) a
$1.7 million write-down of certain assets related to the
Company’s natural gas vehicle program and (iii) an addi-
tional accrual of $1.0 million for environmental liabilities
associated with the 1995 gas assets sale. Offsetting these
decreases were a curtailment gain of $8.0 million related
to the change of the Company’s defined benefit pension

1997 Electric Revenues
by Customer Class

plan and higher interest income of $7.6 million as a result
of increased temporary investments in 1996 and the
purchase of the PVNGS LOBs.

Significant 1995 items, net of taxes, included the fol-
lowing: (i) a gain of $12.8 million recognized from the
gas assets sale; (ii) a gain of $6.4 million recognized from
the sale of the Company’s water division; (iii) a $2.6 mil-
lion adjustment to the carrying costs related to gas take-
or-pay settlement amounts; (iv) a $1.9 million insurance
recovery and (v) a $1.4 million adjustment to reclamation
reserves for certain mining operations. Offsetting these
increases were: (i) additonal regulatory reserves of $4.8
million and (ii) write-downs of $1.8 million for various
non-utility properties.

Net interest charges increased’ $1.5
million in 1997 due to increased short-
term borrowings for the purchase of the
$200 million of PVNGS LOBs in
October 1996 and interest accruals on the
balance due customers related to the gain
associated with the 1995 gas asset sale.

Net interest charges decreased $3.2
million in 1996 from 1995 as a result of
the retirement of S132.7 million of
PVNGS LOBs in March 1995. Offsets to
the 1996 decrease were higher short-term
interest charges resulting from short-
term borrowings for the purchase of the
PVNGS LOBs and an interest assess-
ment from the Internal Revenue Service.

Preferred stock dividend requirements decreased
$3.1 million in 1996 as a result of the retirement of $64
million of preferred stock in August 1995.

Residential
38%

OTHER ISSUES
FACING THE COMPANY

REGULATORY ISSUES
ELECTRIC RATE CASE

The NMPUC issued an order in May 1997, requiring the
Company to file an electric rate case by September 1, 1997,
if the collaborative process failed to reach consensus on an
industry restructuring plan by August 1, 1997. In
September 1997, the collaborative process was declared at
an impasse. On October 21, 1997, the collaborative process
was formally ended without a consensus (see “Restructuring
the Electric Utility Industry” discussed above). As a result,
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on November 3, 1997, the Company filed its electric rate
case. In the filing, the Company stated that although the
Company could justify a $5.0 million rate increase, it would
notseck to increase rates, stating that rate stability is important
in preparing for industry restructuring.

In the Company’s proposal for restructuring filed with

the NMPUC and the WUNR, the Company had offered |

to reduce residential and small commercial customers rates
by $10.0 million per year during the transition period, with
another $5.0 million rate reduction upon the advent of full
open access. The Company stated that these substantial rate
reduction commitments in the context of industry restruc-
turing may need to be modified if an additional rate reduc-
tion results from this rate case.

The NMPUC has scheduled public hearings for the rate
case to begin on April 15, 1998. The Company anticipates
a final order from the NMPUC during 1998. The
Company is currently unable to predict the ultimate
outcome of this case.

In conjunction with the Company’s electric rate case fil-
ing, the Company requested the New Mexico Supreme
Court (“Supreme Court”) to issue an order disqualifying and
removing the Chairman of the NMPUC from participating
in this case. This request was based on his prior involvement
in Company cases while he was with the New Mexico
Attorney General (“AG%”) office and in private practice.
The Company stated that because of positions taken by the
Chairman in past cases, the Company’s due process rights
for a fair hearing would be violated. The Supreme Court has
established a briefing schedule and will hear oral arguments
on April 13, 1998. Pending the decision, the Supreme Court
has issued a stay prohibiting the Chairman from participating
in the electric rate case. |

THE 1995 GAS RATE CASE APPEAL

In 1995, the Company filed a request for a $13.3 million
increase in its retail natural gas sales and wansportation
rates. On February 13, 1997, the NMPUC issued a final
order in the gas rate case, ordering a rate decrease of
approximately $6.9 million. In the order, the NMPUC dis-
allowed, among other things, the recovery of certain regu-
latory assets. The Company strongly disagrees with the
NMPUCS final order. The Company and the AG filed
appeals with the Supreme Court. The Company is await-
ing a decision by the Supreme Court, but is unable to pre-
dict the timing or the ultimate outcome. While the appeal
is pending, the NMPUC: final order remains in effect.
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Company’s proposed rate increase. The Company is cur-

R L D

THE 1997 GAS RATE CASE

By order issued in February 1997, as subsequently modified .
in April 1997, in a proceeding related to the cost of gas, the
NMPUC ordered the Company to file a new gas rate case.
On October 15, 1997, the Company completed the filing of
the case, requesting a rate increase of $12.6 million. Also,
the Company filed a motion for clarification and request for
variance voluntarily disclosing that it had not performed
and filed a study of fuel and unaccounted for gas usage in its
system as required by the NMPUC in a 1990 order. The
Company explained that it is currenty performing such a
study and only seeks a variance undl the current study is -
completed. The NMPUC has scheduled public hearings
for this case to begin on March 23, 1998.

The NMPUC staff and intervenors in the rate case filed
their testimony on February 16, 1998. The NMPUC staff
recommended an increase of $2.5 million to current rates
while the AG recommended a decrease of $4.9 million. Both
recommendations are significantly lower than the
Company’s request for a $12.6 million rate increase. Other
parties to the case recommended certain adjusunents to the

rently reviewing all testimony and will file its rebuttal testi- 4
mony on March 13, 1998, The Company anticipates a final
order from the NMPUC during 1998. The Company is
currently unable to predict the ultimate outcome of this case.

INVESTIGATION RELATING TO AMOUNT OF FUEL
AND UNACCOUNTED FOR GAS COSTS PASSED
THROUGH THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF
NEW MEXICO GAS SERVICES' PURCHASED GAS
ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE (“PNMQGS’ PGAC”)

In connection with the motion for clarification filed in the
1997 gas rate case concerning the study of fuel and unac-
counted for gas, the NMPUC suff requested that the
NMPUC docket an investigation into the amount of fuel
and unaccounted for gas costs that have passed through the
Company’s PGAC. The NMPUC staff is concerned that a
1995 reduction in the rate for fuel and unaccounted for gas
collected from transportation customers may have unfairly
shifted costs to sales customers. The NMPUC stff’s
motion secks an investigation into the amount of fuel and
unaccounted for gas associated with the Company’s trans-
mission and distribution systems, the actual amount of fuel
and unaccounted for gas that should have been allocated to
sales customers beginning in July 1995 and the amount, if
any, of improper cost shifting that may have occurred as the
result of the 1995 reduction. The Company has responded
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that it is not opposed to the requested investigation
and believes that the results of the investigation will
demonstrate that there has been no significant cost shifting
resulting from the reduction in the factor charged to
transportation customers.

CITY OF ALBUQUERQUE (“COA”) RETAIL PILOT
LOAD AGGREGATION PROGRAM

In Scptember 1997, the COA filed a petition with the
NMPUC to institute a Retail Pilot Load Aggregation
Program that would run from January 1, 1998 through
December 31, 1998. The petition requests that the NMPUC
provide: (i) an expedited registration/certification process; (if)
an NMPUC order compelling transmission (by the
Company) on behalf of COA; (jii) derivation of retail rates
exclusive of the Company’s production costs; (iv) arbitraton
assistance to facilitate a “true-up” or reconciliation of any
over or under recovered costs and (v) arbitration assistance to
accommodate metering, billing, and collection processes.

In January 1998, hearings on this case were conducted. At
the hearings, the Company stated its position as follows: ()
the Company believes that only the New Mexico Legislature
has the authority to order retail competition or a pilot on
retail access; (if) several pilots have already been conducted in
other states and the key implementation issucs to be
addressed in a transition to a competitive environment have
already been identified and (i) if state legislation were passed
regarding electric industry restructuring, a pilot as a compo-
nent of that legislation could be useful to test the enabling
systemns and infrastructure necessary to implement that legis-
lation on a small scale prior to implementation of full scale
open access. The Company also identified numerous problems
with the COA proposed pilot program, as it is not structured
to provide benefits to anyone other than COA.

The NMPUC stff presented an alternative proposal to
the COA pilot proposal, which was for a'larger pilot that
included a broader mix of customer classes. At the hearing,
the COA was receptive to the proposal and suggested that it
be run coincidentally with COA pilot. The NMPUC staff
also proposed that the NMPUC order a separate proceed-
ing to identfy what stranded costs, transition costs and
administratve costs would be incurred by the Company in
connection with a pilot and the proper methodology for
quantifying any appropriate recovery.

The Company believes it is entitled to recover all of its
costs, less avoided production costs, if a pilot is pursued, but
has moved to dismiss this case for lack of jurisdiction by the
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NMPUC and lack of standing to file the case by the COA.
The NMPUC has not ruled on the motion. The NMPUC
has notissued an order on this case. Once an order is issued,
the Company will review the findings and will evaluate its

* options at that time.

SAN DIEGO GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY’S
(“SDG&E”) COMPLAINTS

The Company has a contract with SDG&E which requires
SDG&E to purchase 100 MW from the Company through
April 2001. In 1993, SDG&E filed a complaint with the
FERC against the Company;, alleging that certain charges
under the 1985 power purchase agreement were unjust,
unreasonable and unduly discriminatory. In 1996, SDG&E
filed a second compliint with the FERC against the
Company, again alleging that charges under the agreement
were unjust, unreasonable and unduly discriminatory.
SDG&E has requested the FERC, in both complaints, to
investigate charges under the agreement.

On August 22, 1997, SDG&E filed a third complaint
with the FERC against the Company, again alleging that
charges under the agreement were unjust, unreasonable and
unduly discriminatory. SDG&E is again requesting that the
FERC investigate charges under the agreement. The
Company responded to the third complaint on September
29, 1997. The relief sought by SDG&E under the third
complaint is similar to that requested under the first and
second complaints. The refund period requested in the
third complaint, if granted, would extend for a fiftcen
month period beginning October 21, 1997. The FERC has
not issued a ruling on any of the three complaints and has
notindicated when or if any of these complaints will be con-
sidered. The relief, as a result of all three complaints, if
granted, would reduce annual demand charges paid by
SDG&E by approximately $11 million per year from the
date of the ruling through April 2001, and could resultin a
refund of approximately $27 to $31 million as of December
31, 1997. The Company believes that all three of the com-
plaints are without merit and intends to vigorously resist all
three complaints.

NATURAL GAS MARKETING ACTIVITIES

The Company is currently marketing natural gas in whole-
sale markets outside of New Mexico in its Energy Services
Business Unit. As of December 31, 1997, the Company
served over 120 end-user facilites in California and has
many industrial and utility customer commitments
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throughout the Pacific Northwest, Rocky Mountain and
Mid-continent regions. The gas contract portfolio currently
extends through June 1999. )

In 1997, the Company relied on physical commodity
contracts to mitigate its price risk exposure. Reliance on
physical commodity contracts subjects the Company to
market, liquidity, performance and other risks that can have
negative impacts on margins. In 1997, the Company expe-
rienced margin losses of $4.4 million on sales of approxi-
mately $115 million related to its gas marketing activities.
Although the Company attempts to manage the risks asso-
ciated with its fixed price physical contracts in terms of con-
tract volumes and prices, net open positions exist. To the
extent these net open positions exist, the Company is
exposed to the risk of fluctuating market prices which may
result in future losses to the Company.

During 1997, the Company did not use derivative finan-
cial instruments to manage its price risk exposure in the mar-
keting of natural gas. However, the Company anticipates
using derivative financial instruments beginning in 1998.

‘The Company measures the risk in the Company’s com-
modity portfolio in accordance with the “value-at-risk”
methodology. This methodology uses forward price curves
in the energy markets to estimate the size and probability of
future gains and losses. The Company also monitors com-
pliance with policies approved by the Board relating to its
trading activities.

THE IMPACT OF THE YEAR 2000 ISSUE

The Company is continuing to assess the impact of the
Year 2000 issue on its reporting systems, equipment and
operations. The Year 2000 issue is the result of computer
programs being written using two digits rather than four
to define the applicable year. As a result, the computer sys-
tems could recognize the year 2000 as the year 1900. This
could result in a system failure or miscalculations causing
disruptions of operations. Equipment that contains
embedded chips may also be affected by the Year 2000
issue. Equipment affected may range from hand held cal-
culators, elevators, routers, transformers and generators.
The Company plans to use both internal and external
resources to have its critical systems Year 2000 compliant
by mid-1999. The Company is currently replacing two
major software systems which are projected to be com-
pleted during 1998 and will be Year 2000 compliant.
However, the Company anticipates that the conversion of
certain non-critical systems may not be completed until
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late 1999. In addition, certain portions of the project could
be delayed if new hardware or software upgrades are not
available on time. As part of the Year 2000 project, the
Company also plans to inquire of other companies with
which it transacts business regarding their Year 2000 com-
pliance issues in order to identify any potental adverse
impact to the Company.

The Company is in the process of assessing the cost to
resolve the impact of the Year 2000 issue on its operations,
and anticipates to complete its assessment by the end of 1998.
The Company bélieves that if modifications, conversions
and replacements are not completed timely, the Year 2000
issuec could have a material adverse impact on the
Company’s operations.

ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

The Company is committed to complying with all applica-
ble environmental regulations. Environmental issues have
presented and will continue to present a challenge to the
Company. The Company has evaluated the potental
impacts of the following environmental issues and believes,
after consideration of established reserves, that the uldmate
outcome of these environmental issues will not have a mate-
rial adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition or
results of operations.

ELECTRIC OPERATIONS

Santa Fe Generating Station (“Santa Fe Station”)

The Company and the New Mexico Environment
Department (“NMED"”) have conducted investigations of
the groundwater contamination detected beneath the for-
mer Santa Fe Station site to determine the source of the
contamination. The Company has been and is continuing
to cooperate with the NMED regarding site investigations
and remedial planning pursuant to a Setdement Agreement
between the Company and the NMED. In June 1996, the
Company received a letter from the NMED, indicating that
the NMED believes the Company is the source of gasoline
contamination in a municipal well supplying the City of
Santa Fe and groundwater underlying the Santa Fe Station.
Further, the NMED letter stated that the Company was
required to proceed with interim remediation of the conta-
mination pursuant to the New Mexico Water Quality
Control Commission (“NMWQCC?”) regulations. In July
1996, the Company filed an appeal with the NMWQCC
protesting the determination and directives contained in the
NMED? June 1996 letter. Subsequently, negotiation meetings
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were conducted between the Company and the NMED for
a resolution of the groundwater contamination issue.

On October 3, 1996, the Company and the NMED
signed an Amendment to the Settlement Agreement con-
cerning the groundwater contamination underlying the site.
As part of the Amendment, the Company agreed to spend
approximately $1.2 million (“Setdement Amount”) for cer-
tain costs related to sampling, monitoring, and development
and implementation of a remediation plan.

The amended Setdement Agreement does not, however,
provide the Company with a full and complete release from
potential further liability for remediation of the groundwater
contamination. After the Company has expended the
Sewdement Amount, if the NMED can establish through
binding arbitration that the Santa Fe Station is the source of
the contaminaton, the Company could be required to per-
form further remediation that is determined to be necessary.
The Company continues to dispute any contention that the
Santa Fe Station is the source of the groundwater contami-
nation and believes that insufficient data exists to identify the
sources of groundwater contamination. The Company has
completed an aquifer characterization report and a ground-
water quality report associated with the 40 day reactivation of
the adjacent Santa Fe supply well in July and August of 1996.
These reports strongly suggest the groundwater contamina-
tion does not originate from the Santa Fe Station site and has
been drawn under the site by the pumping of the Santa Fe
supply well. In addition, other urban wells in Santa Fe are
likely to be vulnerable to contaminaton from off-site sources.

The Company and the NMED, with the cooperation of
the City of Santa Fe, have chosen a remediation plan pro-
posed by a remediation contractor. The City of Santa Fe, the
Company and the NMED have entered into a
Memorandum of Understanding concerning the chosen
remediation plan and the operatdon of the municipal well
adjacent to the Santa Fe Station site in connection with car-
rying out that plan. Construction of the remediation system
under the plan is expected to commence in the second quar-
ter of 1998. The system is expected to be in operation early
in the third quarter of 1998,

Person Generating Station (“Person Station”)

The Company, in compliance with the NMED’ Corrective
Action Directive, determined that groundwater contamina-
tion exists in the deep and shallow groundwater at the Person
Station site. The Company is required to delineate the extent
of the contamination and remediate the contaminants in the
groundwater at the Person Station site. The extent of the
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contaminant plume in the deep groundwater was assessed
and results were reported to the NMED. The Company cur-
rently is involved with the process to renew the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act (“RCRA”) post-closure care
permit for the facility. Remedial actions for the deep ground-
water will be incorporated into the new permit. The
Company has proposed a monitoring program in conjunc-
tion with natural attenuation processes as the most cost effec-
tive approach for the deep groundwater remediation. The
Company’s current estimate to decommission its retired fos-
sil-fueled plants includes approximately $6.3 million in addi-
tonal expenses to complete the groundwater remediation
program at Person Station. As part of the financial assurance
requirement of the Person Station Hazardous Waste Permir,
the Company established a trust fund. The current value of
the trust fund at December 31, 1997, was $7.3 million. The
remediation program continues on schedule.

GAS OPERATIONS

Guas Wellbead Pit Remediation

The New Mexico Qil Conservation Commission (“OCD”)
issued an order, effective on January 14, 1993, thataffects the
gas gathering facilities located in the San Juan Basin in
northwestern New Mexico. The Bureau of Land
Management (“BLM?”) has issued a similar order. The order
prohibits the further discharge of fluids associated with the
production of natural gas into unlined earthen pits in speci-
fied areas (designated as “vulnerable areas”) in the San Juan
Basin. The order also required the submission of closure
plans for the pits where further discharge was prohibited.
The Company has complied with the orders and has sub-
mitted and received approval for pit closures from the OCD
and the BLM.

These gas gathering facilides were sold to Williams Gas
Processing - Blanco, Inc., a subsidiary of the Williams Fields
Services Group, Inc., of Tulsa, Oklahoma (“Williams”) on
June 30, 1995. As a part of the purchase and sale agrcement,
the Company agreed to cease discharge to unlined earthen
pits in designated vulnerable areas and to retain the respon-
sibility for pit closures for a stated period of time and to a
stated dollar amount. The Company has assessed the pits in
accordance with OCD/BLM directives, and is now in the
process of closing pits and remediating them, if necessary, at
wellhead locations within the designated vulnerable arcas.
The Company has submitted a groundwater management
plan to the OCD and has received approval of the plan, and
is proceeding with delineation of groundwater contamina-
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tion and, as necessary, cleanup, in accordance with the
approved plan. The Company will address soil and ground-
water contamination within the dollar and time limitations
imposed by the purchase and sale agreement with Williams,
and in accordance with the requirements of the OCD.

In March 1995, the Jicarilla Apache ‘Tiibe (‘Jicarilla”)
enacted an ordinance directing that unlined surface
impoundments located within environmentally sensitive
areas be remediated and closed by December 1996, and that
all other unlined surface impoundments on Jicarilla lands be
remediated and closed by December 1998. In 1995, the
Company received a claim for indemnification by Williams,
the purchaser of the Company’ gas gathering and process-
ing assets, for the environmental work required to comply
with the Jicarilla ordinance. The Company submitted a clo-
sure/remediation plan to the Jicarillas, which was approved.
The Company’s remediation work pursuant to the plan
commenced in mid-1996, and the costs of remediation are
being charged against the $10.6 million indemnification cap
contained in the purchase and sale agreement between the
Company and Williams. The Company met the require-
ment for closing and remediating pits within the environ-
mentally sensitive area by December 1996, and anticipates
closing and remediating all other pits associated with the gas
gathering and processing assets by the December 1998
deadline specified in the ordinance.

COAL FUEL SUPPLY

The coal requirements for SJGS are being supplied by San
Juan Coal Company (“SJCC”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
BHP Minerals International, Inc. (‘BHP”), from certain
Federal, state and private coal leases under a Coal Sales
Agreement, pursuant to which SJCC will supply processed
coal for operation of SJGS until 2017. The primary sources
of coal are a mine adjacent to SJGS and a mine located
approximately 25 miles northeast of SJGS in the La Plata
area of northwestern New Mexico.

During the third quarter of 1997, the Company was noti-
fied by SJCC of certain audit exceptions identified by the
Federal Minerals Management Service for the period 1986
through 1997. These exceptions pertain to the valuation of
coal for purposes of calculaing the Federal coal royalty.
Primary issues include whether coal processing and trans-
portation costs should be included in the base value of La
Plata coal for royalty determination. In addition, the
Company was notified of claims by a private royaltyholder
involving royalty valuation at the La Plata Mine. The
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Company is currently assessing the potential impact to the
Company and the validity of the audit exceptions and claims.
In 1996, the Company was notified by BHE, fuel suppli-
er to SJGS, that the Navajo Nation has proposed to select
certain properties within the San Juan and La Plata Mines
(the “mining properties”) pursuant to the Navajo-Hopi
Land Settlement Act of 1974 (the “Act”). The mining prop-
" erties are operated by BHP under leases from the BLM and
comprise a portion of the fuel supply for SJGS. An adminis-
trative appeal by BHP is pending. In the appeal, BHP
expressed concern that transfer of the mining properties to
the Navajo Nation may subject the mining operations to tax-
ation and additional regulation by the Navajo Nation, both
of which could increase the price of coal that might poten-
tially be passed on to SJGS through the existing Coal Sales
Agreement.: A stay of all actions by the BLM has been
ordered by the Interior Board of Land Appeals pending res-
olution of the issues on appeal. The Company is monitoring
closely the appeal and other developments on this issue and
will continue to assess potential impacts to SJGS and the
Company’s operations. Currently, the Company is unable to
predict the ultimate outcome of this matter but does not
believe it will have a material adverse effect on the
Company’ financial condition or results of operations.

ACCOUNTING FOR THE EFFECTS

OF CERTAIN TYPES OF REQULATION

As described in note 3 to the consolidated financial state-
ments, the Company is subject to the provisions of
Sttement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No.
71, Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation. In
the event the Company determines that it no longer meets
the criteria for following SFAS No. 71, the accounting
impact would be an extraordinary, non-cash charge to oper-
ations of an amount that could be material. Criteria that may
give rise to the discontinuance of SFAS No. 71 include: (1)
increasing competition that restricts the Company’s ability to
establish prices to recover specific costs and (2) a significant
change in the manner in which rates are sct by regulators
from cost-based regulation to another form of regulation.
The Company periodically reviews these criteria to ensure
that the continuing application of SFAS No. 71 is appropri-
ate. Based on a current evaluation of the various factors and
conditions that are expected to impact future cost recovery,
the Company belicves that its regulatory assets (net of related
regulatory liabilitics), including those related to generation,
are probable of future recovery.
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ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Environmental Remediation Liabilities. Effective January 1,
1997, the Company adopted the provisions of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ Statement of
Position (“SOP”) 96-1, Environmental Remediation
Liabilities. This Statement provides authoritative guidance

. for recognition, measurement, display and disclosure of
environmental remediation liabilities in financial state-
ments. The Company previously recorded environmental
liabilities of $24.0 million for its retired fossil-fueled plants.
Approximately $14.4 million of the $24.0 million has been
expended through December 31, 1997. The adoption of
SOP 96-1 did not have a material impact on the Company’s
financial position or results of operations.

Nudear Plant Decommissioning. The staff of the Securities
and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) has questioned certain
of the current accounting practices of the electric utility
industry regarding the recognition, measurement and clas-
sification of decommissioning costs for nuclear generating
stations in financial statements of electric utilities. In
response to these questions, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (“FASB”) has added a project to its agenda
to review the accounting for closure and removal costs,
including decommissioning of nuclear power plants. If cur-
rent electric utility industry accounting practices for nuclear
power plant decommissioning are changed, the annual pro-
vision for decommissioning could increase relative to 1996,
and the estimated cost for decommissioning could be
recorded as a liability (rather than as accumulated deprecia-
tion), with recognition of an increase in the cost of the relat-
ed nuclear power plant. The Company does not believe that
such changes, if required, would have a material adverse
effect on results of operations.

Reporting Comprebensive Income and Disclosure about
Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information. During
1997, FASB issued SFAS No. 130, Reporting Comprebensive
Income and SFAS No. 131, Disclosure about Segments of an
Enterprise and Related Information. These statements are
not effective until 1998. SFAS No. 130 requires the reporting
and display of comprehensive income and its components in
financial statements. The objective of this statement is
to report a measure of all changes in equity that resulted
from transactions and other economic events of
the period other than transactions with owners.
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Comprechensive income is the total of net income and all
other nonowner changes in equity. SFAS No. 131 requires a
public company to report selected information about its
reportable operating segments in annual and interim con-
densed financial statements. This statement introduces a
new model for segment reporting, called the “management
approach” for identifying operating segments. Operating
segments arc components of an enterprise for which discrete
financial information is available, that is evaluated regularly
by the chicf operating decision-maker within a company in
order to make operating decisions and assess performance.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the
“Act”) provides a “safe harbor” for forward-looking state-
ments to encourage companies to provide prospective
information about their companies without fear of litigation
so long as those statements are identified as forward-look-
ing and arc accompanied by meaningful, cautionary state-
ments identifying important factors that could cause actual
results to differ materially from those projected in the state-
ment. Accordingly, the Company hereby identifies the fol-
lowing important factors which could cause the Company’s
actual financial results to differ materally from any such
results which might be projected, forecasted, estimated or
budgeted by the Company in forward-looking statements:
(D) adverse actions of utility regulatory commissions; (ii) util-
ity industry restructuring; (jii) failure to recover stranded
assets; (iv) failure to obtain new customers or retain existing
customers; (v) inability to carry out marketing and sales
plans; (vi) adverse impacts resulting from environmental
regulations; (vii) loss of favorable fuel supply contracts; (viii)
failure to obtain water rights and rights-of-way; (ix) opera-
tional and environmental problems at generating stations;
(%) weather conditions and (xi) failure to maintain adequate
transmission capacity.

Many of the foregoing factors discussed have been
addressed in the Company’s previous filings with the SEC
pursuant to the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934. The fore-
going review of factors pursuant to the Act should not be
construed as exhaustive or as any admission regarding the
adequacy of disclosures made by the Company prior to the
effective date of the Act.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Public Service Company of New
Mexico (the “Company”) is responsible for the prepara-
tion and presentation of the accompanying consolidated
financial statements. The consolidated financial state-
ments have been prepared in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles and include amounts that
are based on informed estimates and judgments of man-
agement. Management maintains a system of internal
accounting controls which it belicves is adequate to pro-
vide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded,
transactions are executed in accordance with management
authorization and the financial records are reliable for
preparing the consolidated financial statements. The sys-
tem of internal accounting controls is supported by writ-
ten policies and procedures, by a staff of internal auditors
who conduct comprehensive internal audits and by the
selection and training of qualified personnel. The board of
directors, through its audit committee comprised entirely
of outside directors, meets periodically with management,
internal auditors and the Company’s independent auditors
to discuss auditing, internal control and financial report-
ing matters. To ensure their independence, both the inter-
nal auditors and independent auditors have full and free
access to the audit committee. The independent auditors,
Arthur Andersen LLP, are engaged to audit the
Company’s consolidated financial statements in accor-
dance with generally accepted auditing standards.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT
PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Public Service Company of New Mexico:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets and statements of capitalization of Public Service
Company of New Mexico (a New Mexico corporation) and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 1997 and 1996, and the
related consolidated statements of carnings, retained earn-
ings (deficit), and cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 1997. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s manage-
ment. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assur-
ance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Public Service Company of New Mexico and subsidiaries
as of December 31, 1997 and 1996, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 1997 in conformity with
genenally accepted accounting principles.

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

Albuquerque, New Mexico
February 10, 1998
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.CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
- - |

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

1997 1906 1998
(In thousands except per share amounts)
Operating Revenues:
Electric $ 722,438 $ 645,639 $ 584,284
Gas 294,769 227,301 217,985
Energy Services 118,060 10,446 -
Water - - 6,196
“Total operating revenuesy . 1,135,267 883,386 808,465
Operating Expenses:
Fuel and purchased power 235,508 178,807 140,752
Gas purchased for resale 169,758 103,574 94,299
Gas purchased for resale and other - Energy Services 121,728 9,485 -
Other operation expenses 273,692 263,432 257,627
Maintenance and repairs 52,629 49,694 55,809
Depreciation and amortization 82,702 78,116 80,865
‘Taxes, other than income taxes 36,871 34,864 35,531
Income taxes 38,334 39,395 30,194
Total operating expenses 1,011,222 757,367 695,077
Operating income 124,045 126,019 113,388
Other Income and Deductions:
Other 21,548 2,367 40,707
Income tax expense (8,384) (1,099 (20,599
Net other income and deductions 13,164 1,268 20,108
Income before interest charges 137,209 127,287 133,496
Interest Charges:
Interest on long-term debt 46,670 49,009 52,637
Other interest charges 9,544 5,698 5,297
Net interest charges 56,214 54,707 57,934
Net Eamnings 80,995 72,580 75,562
Preferred Stock Dividend Requirements 586 586 3,714
Net Earnings Available for Common Stock S 80,409 S 71,994 $ 71,848
Average Number of Common Shares Outstanding 41,774 41,774 41,774
Net Eamings per Common Share (Basic) S 1.92 S 1.72 S 1.72
Net Earings per Common Share (Diluted) S 1.91 S 1.71 S 1.72
Dividends Paid per Share of Common Stock S 0.63 S 0.36 ) -

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT)
|

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

1997 1996 1008
(n thousands)
Balance at Beginning of Year $ 77,185 S 25243 $ (46,006
Net carnings 80,995 72,580 - 75,562
Redemption of cumulative preferred stock - - 99
Dividends:
Cumulative preferred stock - (586) (586) 3,7149)
Common stock (28,406) (20,052) -
Balance at End of Year S 129,188 S 77,185 S 25243
-]

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
... __________________________________________- - |

ASSETS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
1997 1996
(In thousands)
Utility Plant, at original cost except PVNGS:
Electric plant in service 81,958,912 $1,918,238
Gas plant in service 441,045 424,827
Energy services plant in service - 1,241
Common plant in service 43,415 40,005
Plant held for future use 551 639
2,443,923 2,384,950
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 1,003,086 937,228
s 1,440,837 1,447,722
Construction work in progress 104,497 76,038
Nuclear fuel, net of accumulated amortization of $21,263 and $20,413 27,816 ‘ 28,933
Net utility plant 1,573,150 1,552,693
Other Property and Investnents:
Non-utility property, net of accumulated depreciation of $2,146 and 51,774 4,502 3,434
Other investments, at cost 300,438 250,834
Total other property and investments 304,940 254,268
Current Assets:
Cash 8,705 11,125
Temporary investments, at cost 9,490 9,128
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible accounts of $783 and $709 216,305 197,025
Income taxes receivable - 18,825
Fuel, materials and supplics, at average cost 33,664 41,260
Gas in underground storage, at average cost 13,158 2,679
Other current assets 4,509 6,632 (29]
Total current assets 285,831 286,674
Deferred charges 149,811 136,679
$2,313,732 $2,230,340
CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES
Capitualization:
Common stock equity:
Common stock outstanding — 41,774 shares $ 208,870 S 208,870
Additional paid-in capital 469,073 470,358
Excess pension liability, net of tax ,727) 2,102)
Renined earnings since January 1, 1989 129,188 77,185
Total common stock equity 804,404 754,311
Cumulative preferred stock without mandatory redemption requirements 12,800 12,800
Long-term deb, less current maturities 713,995 713,919
Total capitalization 1,531,199 1,481,030
Current Liabilities:
Short-term debt 114,100 100,400
Aoccounts payable 154,501 130,661
Dividends payable . 7,248 5,159
Current maturitics of long-term debt 350 14,970
Accrued interest and taxes 24,161 23,356
Other current liabilities 26,102 25,477
Total current liabilities 326,462 300,023
Deferred Credits:
Accumulated deferred investment tax credits 57,823 62,258
Accumulated deferred income taxes 121,353 110,266
Other deferred credits 276,895 276,737
Total deferred credits 456,071 449,261
Commitments and Contingencies
: $2,313,732 $2,230,314
A ——

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
[
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

1907 1086 10058
(In thowsands)
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net carnings S 80,995 $ 72,580 $ 75562
Adjustments to reconcile net carnings to net cash flows
from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 94,924 90,458 92,588
Accumulated deferred invesument tax credit (4,436) (4,476) (4,830)
Accumulated deferred income taxes ‘ 11,080 31,436 1,622
Gain on sale of utility property - (309) (39,050)
Write-down of natural gas vehicle program - 2,810 1,445
Curtailment gain on defined benefit pension plan - (13,316) -
Changes in certain assets and liabilites:
Receivables 4,554 (83,416) 795
Fuel, materials and supplies (2,883) 5,795 (26,505)
Deferred charges (11,190) 5,190 6,731
Accounts payable’ 23,808 36,930 (11,527
Accrued interest and taxes 805 (3,500 (1,218)
Deferred credits 2,455 12,655 29,185
Other 371) 9,279) 5,645
Other, net 13,381 22,343 17,671
Net cash flows from operating activities 213,122 165,901 148,114
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Utility plant additions (128,371) (103,087) (107,666)
Increase in nuclear decommissioning trust (23,000 - -
(30} Return of principal of PVINGS lease obligation bonds - 5,018 - -
Utility plant sales - 333 206,482
Other property sales - 702 (801)
Net increase in other property and investments . 6,814) (14,706) -
Escrow for purchase of PVINGS lease obligation bonds (28,900) (208,446) = -
Decrease (increase) in temporary investments, net (363) 86,844 (21,451)
Net cash flows from investing activities (182,430) (238,360) 76,564
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Redemption of PVINGS lease obligation bonds - - (132,663)
Redemptions and repurchases of preferred stock - - (64,175)
Bond redemption premium and costs (3,693) (5,158) (505)
Proceeds from (repayments of) asset securitization (13,900) 100,400 18,758
Repayments of long-term debt (14,970) (326) (57,768)
Trust borrowing for nuclear decommissioning 23,000 - -
Increase in short-term debt ‘ 4,600 - -
Exercise of employee stock options (1,285) - -
Dividends paid (26,864) (15,560) (5,126)
Net cash flows from financing activities (33,112) 79,356 (241,479)
- Increase (Decrease) in Cash (2,420) 6,897 (16,801)
Cash at Beginning of Year 11,125 4,228 21,029
Cash at End of Year S 8,705 S 11,125 S 4228
Supplemental cash flow disclosures: e —
Tnterest paid S 57302 S 55480 S 63366 |
R |
Income taxes paid, net of refunds S 20,175 S 31,617 $ 52,405

Cash consists of currency on hand and demand deposits.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial staternents.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAPITALIZATION

T 1
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
1997 1006
(In thousands)
Common Stock Equity:
Common Stock, par value S5 per share $ 208,870 $ 208,870
Additional paid-in capital 469,073 470,358
Excess pension liability, net of tax ,727) 2,102)
Retained earnings since January 1, 1989 129,188 77,185
Total common stock equity 804,404 754,311
SHARES
OUTSTANDING AT CURRENT
STATED DECEMBER 31, REDEMPTION
VALUE 1997 PRICE
Cumulative Preferred Stock:
Without mandatory redemption requirements:
1965 Series, 4.58% $100.00 128,000 $102.00 12,800 12,800
Long-Term Debr:
Issue and Final Maturity Intcrest Rates
First mortgage bonds:
1997 57/8% - 14,650
1999 through 2002 7 1/4% 10 8 1/8% 42,556 42,876
2005 through 2007 81/8% t0 9 1/8% 43,276 43,276
2008 9% 54,374 54,374
Pollution control revenue bonds:
2007 through 2026 5.7% 10 6 1/2% 574,345 537,045
2022 Variable rate - 37,300
Total first mortgage bonds 714,551 729,521
Other, including unamortized premium -
and (discount), net (206) 632)
Total long-term debt 714,345 728,889
Less current maturities 350 14,970
. Long-term debt, less current maturities 713,995 713,919
Total Capitalization $1,531,199 $1,481,030

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

LPUTL TT L WP w8 ST W AT L TR M AR AV I K T W A, SIS N B STl kA IR K] E DT SO S M TP




PUDBDLILIC S TRV ICEK COMPANY o F

W MEXI1CO A ND SUDSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIARL STATEMENTS

December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995

{1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Organization
Public Service Company of New Mexico (the “Company”) is
an investor-owned utility company engaged in the generation,
transmission, distributon and sale of clectricity. The
Company provides remil electric service to a large area of
north central New Mexico, including the cites of
Albuquerque, Santa Fe, Rio Rancho, Las Vegas, Belen and
Bemnalillo. The City of Albuquerque (“COA”), Bernalillo
County and the City of Las Vegas franchises expired in 1992,
1997 and 1996, respectively. Customers in the area covered by
the expired franchises represent approximately 40.2%, 8.6%
and 1.2%, respectively, of the Company’s 1997 total electric
operating revenues, and no other franchise area represents
more than 6.1%. The Company continues to collect and pay
franchise fees to both the COA and the City of Las Vegas.
The Company currently does not pay franchise fees to
Bernalillo County. The Company remains obligated under
state law to provide service to customers in the franchise area
even in the absence of a franchise agreement. The Company
 also provides retail electric service to Deming in southwestern
New Mexico and to Clayton in northeastern New Mexico.
The Company is also engaged in the transmission, distribu-
tion and sale of natural gas within the State of New Mexico.
The Company distributes natural gas to most of the major
communitics in New Mexico, including Albuquerque and
Santa Fe. In addition, in pursuing new business opportunities,
the Company is focusing on energy and utility related activi-
ties under its Energy Services Business Unit. These activities
will provide energy marketing and energy management
services, the marketing of natural gas outside of New Mexico,
management services for water and wastewater systems and
utility related management and operation services for Federal
installations and other large commercial institutions. The
Company is also operating the City of Santa Fes water system.

Systems of Accounts

The Company maintains its accounts for utility operations
primarily in accordance with the uniform systems of
accounts prescribed by the FERC and the National
Association of Regulatory Utlity Commissioners, and
adopted by the NMPUC,

Principles of Consolidation

‘The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
the Company and subsidiarics in which it owns-a majority

voting interest. All significant intercompany transactions
and balances have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles requires manage-
ment to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilides at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual recorded
amounts could differ from those estimated.

Utility Plant

Utility plant, with the exception of PVINGS Unit 3 and the
Company’s purchased 22% beneficial interests in the
PVNGS Units 1 and 2 leases, is stated at original cost, which
includes capitalized payroll-related costs such as taxes, pen-
sion and other fringe benefits, administrative costs and an
allowance for funds used during construction. Ultility plant
includes certain electric assets not subject to regulation. The
results of operations of such electric assets are included in
operating income.

It is Company policy to charge repairs and minor
replacements of property to maintenance expense and to
charge major replacements to utility plant. Gains or losses
resulting from retirements or other dispositions of operat-
ing property in the normal course of business are credited
or charged to the accumulated provision for depreciation.

Depreciation and Amortization

Provision for depreciation and amortization of utility plant
is made at annual smaight-line rates approved by the
NMPUC. The average rates used are as follows:

1997 1996 1995
Electric plant 3.33% 3.32%  3.32%
Gas plant 3.23% 3.27%  3.21%
Common plant 7.60% 700%  9.61%

Effective January 1, 1995, electric plant depreciation
rates were revised and include a provision for the recovery
of fossil-fueled plant decommissioning costs approved by
the NMPUC in 1994. Gas plant depreciation rates were
approved by the NMPUC and revised in March 1997,

The provision for depreciation of certain equipment is
charged to clearing accounts and subsequently allocated to
operating expenses or construction projects based on the

.
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use of the equipment. Depreciation of non-utility proper-
ty is computed on the straight-line method. Amortization
of nuclear fuel is computed based on the units of produc-
tion method.

Nuclear Decommissioning

The Company accounts for nuclear decommissioning costs
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the
facilities. Such amounts are based on the net present value
of expenditures estimated to be required to decommission
the plant.

Fuel and Purchased Power Cost Adjustmnent Clause
(“FPPCAC™)

"The Company uses the deferral method of accounting for
fuel and purchased power costs for its firm-requircments

wholesale customers. Such amounts are reflected in subse-
quent petiods under a FPPCAC approved by the FERC.

Purchased Gas Adjustment Clause (“PGAC”)

The Company uses the deferral method of accounting for
gas purchase costs which are settled in subsequent periods
under gas adjustment clauses. Future recovery of these costs
is subject to approval by the NMPUC,

Amortization of Debt Discount, Premium and Expense
Discount, premium and expense related to the issuance of
long-term debt are amortized over the lives of the respec-
tive issues. In connection with the retirement of long-term
debt, such amounts associated with resources subject to
NMPUC regulation are amortized over the lives of the
respective issues. Amounts associated with the Company’s
firm-requirements wholesale customers and its resources
excluded from NMPUC retail rates are recognized imme-
diately as expense or income as they are incurred.

Inconse Taxes

The Company reports income tax expense in accordance
with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. SFAS
No. 109 requires deferred income taxes for temporary dif-
ferences between financial and income tax reporting to be
recorded using the liability method. Deferred income taxes
are computed using the statutory tax rates scheduled to be
in effect when the temporary differences reverse. Current
NMPUC jurisdictional rates include the tax effects of the
majority of these temporary differences (normalization).
Recovery of reversing temporary differences previously
accounted for under the flow-through method is also includ-
ed in rates charged to customers. For regulated operations,
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any changes in tax rates applied to accumulated deferred
income taxes may not be immediately recognized because
of ratemaking and tax accounting provisions contained in
the Tax Reform Act of 1986. Items accorded flow-through
treatment under NMPUC orders, deferred income taxes
and the future ratemaking effects of such taxes, as well as
corresponding regulatory assets and liabilities, are recorded
in the financial statements.

Accounting Standards

Environmental Remediation Liabilities. Effective January 1,
1997, the Company adopted the provisions of The
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Statement of Position (“SOP”) 96-1, Environmental
Remediation Liabilities. This Statement provides authori-
tative guidance for recognition, measurement, display and
disclosure of environmental remediation liabilities in
financial statements. The Company ‘previously recorded
environmental liabilities of $24.0 million for its retired
fossil-fucled plants. Approximately $14.4 million of the
$24.0 million has been expended as of December 31, 1997.
The adoption of SOP 96-1 did not have a material impact
on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets
and Extinguishment of Liabilities. In June 1996, the FASB
issued SFAS No. 125, Accounting for Transfers and
Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishment of
Liabilities. This Statement establishes, among other things,
new criteria for determining whether a transfer of financial
assets should be accounted for as a sale or as a pledge of
collateral in a secured borrowing. SFAS No. 125 also estab-
lishes new accounting requirements for pledged collateral.
SFAS No. 125 is effective for all transfers and servicing of
financial assets and extinguishments of liabilides occurring
after December 31, 1996, is to be applied prospectively, and
carlier or retroactive application is not permitted.

Nuclear Plant Deconnmissioning. The staff of the SEC has
questioned certain of the current accounting practices of
the electric utility industry regarding the recognition, mea-
surement and classification of decommissioning costs for
nuclear generating stations in financial statements of clec-
tric utilitics. In response to these questions, the FASB has
added a project to its agenda to review the accounting for
closure and removal costs, including decommissioning of
nuclear power plants. If current electric udility industry
accounting practices for nuclear power plant decommissioning
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are changed, the annual provision for decommissioning
could increase relative to 1997, and the estimated cost for
decommissioning could be recorded as a liability (rather
than as accumulated depreciation), with recognition of an
increase in the cost of the related nuclear power plant. The
Company does not believe that such changes, if required,
would have a material adverse effect on results of opera-
tions.

Risk Management Activities
The Company’s Board of Directors (“Board”) approved a

Corporate policy statement regarding risk management

activities. The Company is exposed to market risk from
changes in cermain energy related commodity prices.
Although the Company is allowed to enter into certain
derivative transactions to manage the volatility relating to
the price exposure, the Company did not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge this price risk exposure dur-
ing 1997. Because market prices of certain energy com-
modities depend on a number of unpredictable factors, such
as weather, the Company is currently managing the result-
ing volatlity using commodities contracts. Beginning in
1998, the Company is planning to use derivative financial
instruments, including exchange-traded financial futures,
options, swaps and other derivative financial instruments as
part of an overall risk-management strategy. These instru-
ments are to be used only as a means of hedging exposure to
price and interest-rate risk connected to anticipated transac-
tions or existing assets and liabilities. The Company does not
intend to open a derivatve position for speculative purposes.
Once the Company enters into derivative transactions,
deferral (hedge) accounting will be applied only if the deriva-
tive financial instrument reduces the risk of the underlying
hedged item and is designated at inception as a hedge with
respect to the hedged item. Additionally, the derivative must
resultin payoffs thatare expected to be inversely correlated to
those of the hedged item. Correlation will be assessed month-
ly and measured on a rolling three month average. If a deriv-
ative instrument ceases to meet the criteria for deferral or set-
tlement accounting, any subsequent gains and losses will be
recognized in income. If a hedging instrument is sold or ter-
minated prior to maturity, gains and losses will continue to be
deferred untl the hedged item is recognized in income.

Performance Stock Plan
The Company continues to apply Accounting Principles
Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, Aecounting for Stock Issued to
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Enployees, and related interpretations in accounting for its
plan. Accordingly, no compensation cost has been recognized
for its fixed stock option plan.

(2) RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Competition and restructuring of the electric utlity indus-
try continue to be key issues facing the Company. Efforts to
advance and determine the evenwal form of industry
restructuring continued during 1997.

At the state level, the Company proposed in April 1997
that the NMPUC reconvene the proceedings involving the
NMPUC Notce of Inquiry into the restructuring of the
electric industry, in an attempt to arrive at consensus legis-
lation to be presented to the 1998 session of the New
Mexico Legislature. In May 1997, the NMPUC issued an
order accepting the Company’s proposal for a collaborative
cffort, and the proposal for a series of meetings to be held
among all interested parties. The parties held several meet-
ings in which the Company actively participated. However,
in September 1997, the collaborative process to draft legis-
latdon was declared at an impasse due to disagreement on
issues regarding the divestiture of generation and energy
service units from electric distribution and transmission
systems, and the recoverability of stranded costs.

Although the parties could not reach agreement, the
Company filed its own proposal for industry restructuring
in September 1997 with both the NMPUC, and the Water,
Utlites & Natural Resources Committee (“WUNR?”) of
the New Mexico Legislawre.

The Company’s proposal called for an immediate rate
reduction of $10 million per year for residential customers
from the effective date of proposed legisladon until open
access without the need for a rate case. The proposal also
called for full retail competition no later than January 1,
2001. Other parts of the Company’s proposal included an
offer to create a regulated distribution “wires and pipes”
company dedicated only to the delivery of clectricity and
natural gas. Other services, usually associated with distribu-
tion, such as meter reading, billing and customer services
would be provided through competitive markets. The
Company offered to assume the risk of stranded cost recov-
ery on all fossil fuel generation and on PVNGS Unit 3
which was previously excluded from New Mexico jurisdic-
tional rates. However, the Company would recover all fixed
costs associated with PVINGS Units 1 and 2 through a non-
bypassable “wires charge” from 2001 to 2016. The propos-
al also called for certain credits to stranded costs which
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would effectively shorten the time period for recovery. The
Company currently estimates that if the market clearing
price for power, which represents the cost of generation at
the plant, fell to 3.0 cents/KWh, it may incur an after-tax
write-off of approximately $176 million related to its fossil
fuel generation if the Company assumes this risk. The
Company’s proposal was supported by various parties to the
collaborative process, including Enron Corporation, the
New Mexico Retil Associaton, Southwestern Public
Service Company (“SPS”), the United States Executive
Agencies and the International Brotherhood of Electrical
Workers. However, the Company’s proposal was not adopt-
ed by the WUNR and not introduced during the 1998 leg-
islative session. The WUNR declined to recommend any
restructuring legislation as a committee bill during the 1998
legislative session.

On January 22, 1998, the NMPUC submitted its own
report to the New Mexico Legislature related to restructur-
ing of the electric utility industry. The following key points
were included in the report: (i) PVNGS and Plains
Escalante Generating Station are the most debated issues in
deregulation because of their potential stranded costs; (i)
stranded costs, if determined to be lawful, should be verified
by the NMPUC or its successor, the Public Regulaton
Commission (“PRC”); (iii) market power issues may be
addressed through functional separation or partial or com-
plete divestiture of generation, transmission and distribution;
(iv) unbundling is necessary to understand the disparities
among various electricity providers; (v) despite an abundance
of natural resources to fuel generation facilities, New Mexico
customners pay more for electricity because of costs associated
with generation plants; (vi) on average, New Mexico resi-
dential customers pay more for electricity than regional and
national residential customers and (vii) system reliability
must be maintained or enhanced, and customers must be
educated and environmental protections should be promot-

ed. In addition, sample legislation was attached to the
report, giving either the NMPUC or the PRC authority to
conclude matters relating to electric industry restructuring.
The report was issued as a result of a NMPUC case and,
with the issuance of the report, the case was closed. The
NMPUC: draft legislation was not introduced during the
1998 legislative session. House Memorial 27, the only mea-
sure dealing with restructuring, passed the House.
Memorial 27 stated the intent of the legislature to address
the issue of electric industry restructuring in the 1999 ses-
sion and declared that the NMPUC does not have statuto-
ry authority to implement restructuring at this dme. The
Memorial 27 did not require concurrence by the Senate;
however, an identical Senate Memorial was not acted upon
by the full Senate prior to adjournment.

In a related matter, in 1996, the NMPUC ordered all
utilities under its jurisdiction to file their estimates of
stranded costs, absent any recovery method being adopted,
based on the Texas Public Utility Commission Economic
Cost Over Market (“ECOM”) model. The Company; in its
filing, presented two methodologies: (i) using the ECOM
model, the Company’s stranded cost estimates run from
$657 million for a 1998 full rewil access case to $119 mil-
lion for a 2002 full retail access case and (i) using a second
methodology, based upon the difference between the
Company’ costs of existing generation and the costs of new
combined cycle and combustion turbine units to serve the
same load, the Company’s costs above the level of new gas
units, in 1997 dollars, were estimated at S748 million for a
1998 full retail access case to $327 million for a 2002 full
retail access case. The Company advised the NMPUC that
the results of the ECOM model are highly sensitive to var-
ious assumptions, primarily projections of future gas prices.
This information was addressed in the NMPUC’s report
submitted to the New Mexico Legislature.
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{3) REQULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Company is subject to the provisions of SFAS No. 71, Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation, on operations
regulated by the NMPUC. Regulatory assets represent probable future revenue to the Company associated with certain costs
which will be recovered from customers through the ratemaking process. Regulatory liabilities represent probable future reduc-
tions in revenues associated with amounts that are to be credited to customers through the ratemaking process. Regulatory assets
and liabilities reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 relate to the following:

1997 1996
(In thousands)
Deferred Income Taxes $ 70,968 S 71,682
Gas Take-or-Pay Costs 19,953 36,335
PGAC 16,006 28,873
Gas Imputed Revenues 12,823 10,362
Loss on Reacquired Debt 8,869 7,850
Gas Reservation Fees 7,029 7,029
Gas Retirees’ Health Care Costs 6,345 4,437
Deferred Customer Expense on Gas Assets Sale 5,260 5,260
Proposed Transmission Line Costs 2,903 3,111
EPNG Risk Sharing Surcharge 2,196 -
Gas Rate Case Costs 1,571 1,571
Other 118 598
Subtotal 154,041 177,108
Deferred Income Taxes (53,132) (56,961)
Gas Regulatory Reserve (27,881) (24,619)
Customer Gain on Gas Assets Sale (11,856) (22,230)
PVNGS Prudence Audit (6,561) 6,937)
Revenue Subject to Refund (3,896) (3,599
Settlement Due Customers (3,743) (4,072)
EPNG Risk Sharing Surcharge (2,196) -
Other (723) -
Gain on Reacquired Debt (546) (559)
Subtotal (110,534) (118,967)
Net Regulatory Assets S 43,507 S 58,141

As of December 31, 1997, substandally all of the Company’s regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities are being recovered in rates
charged to customers or have been addressed in a regulatory proceeding. If a portion of the Company’s operations under the
NMPUC jurisdiction becomes no longer subject to the provisions of SFAS No. 71, a write-off of related regulatory assets and lia-
bilities would be required, unless some form of transition cost recovery (refund) continues through rates established and collected
for the Company’s remaining regulated operations. Based on a current evaluation of the various factors and conditions that are
expected to impact future cost recovery, the Company believes that its regulatory assets are probable of future recovery.

Effective January 1, 1996, the Company adopted SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and
Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of. This statement imposes a stricter criterion for regulatory assets by requiring that such assets
be probable of future recovery at cach balance sheet date. Based on the current regulatory structure in which the Company oper-
ates, adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.
However, the Company’s ability to meet the criterion may change in the future as competitive factors influence wholesale and
retail pricing in this industry.
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Changes in common stock, additional paid-in capital and cumulative preferred stock are as follows:

CUMULATIVE
PREFERRED STOCK

WITHOUT MANDATORY

REDEMPTION
COMMON STOCK REQUIREMENTS
ADDITIONAL AGQREGATE
NUMBER AGQGREQATE PAILD.IN NUMBER STATED
OF SHARES PAR VALUE CAPITAL OF SHARES VALUE
(Dollars in thousands)

Balance at December 31, 1995

and 1996 41,774,083 $208,870 $470,358 128,000 $12,800

Exercise of stock options - - (1,285) - -

Balance at December 31, 1997 41774,083 20,870 _ 9,03 128, $12,800

Common Stock

The number of authorized shares of common stock with
par value of $5 per share is 80 million shares.

On December 9, 1997, the Company’s Board declared a
quarterly cash dividend of 17 cents per share of common
stock payable February 20, 1998 to sharcholders of record
as of February 2, 1998. The Company resumed the pay-
ment of cash dividends on common stock starting in May
1996. The Company’s Board reviews the Company’s divi-
dend policy on a continuing basis. The declaration of com-
mon dividends is dependent upon a number of factors
including earnings and financial condition of the Company
and market conditions.

On September 16, 1996, the Company implemented a
dividend reinvestment and stock purchase.plan for
investors, including customers and employees. The plan,
called PNM Direct, also includes safekeeping services and
automatic investment features. The Company’s stock is
purchased in the open market to meet plan requirements.

Cumulative Preferred Stock

The number of authorized shares of cumulative preferred
stock is 10 million shares. The Company has 128,000
shares, 1965 Series, 4.58%, stated value of $100 per share,
of cumulative preferred stock outstanding. The 1965 Series
does not have a mandatory redemption requirement but
may be redeemable at 102% of the par value with accrued
dividends. ‘The holders of the 1965 Series are entited to
payment before holders of common stock in the event of
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any liquidation or dissolution or distribution of assets of the
Company. In addition, the 1965 Series is not entitled to a
sinking fund and cannot be converted into any other class of
stock of the Company. The Company’s restated articles of
incorporation limit the amount of preferred stock which
may be issued. The earnings test in the Company’s restated
articles of incorporation currendy allows for the issuance of
preferred stock.

Long-Term Debt

Substantially all udlity plant is pledged to secure the
Company’s first mortgage bonds. A portion of certain series
of long-term debt will be redeemed serially prior to their
due dates. The issuance of first mortgage bonds by the
Company is subject to earnings coverage and bondable
property provisions of the Company’s first mortgage bond
indenture. The Company also has the capability under the
mortgage indenture to issue first mortgage bonds on the
basis of certain previously retired bonds and carnings.

The aggregate amounts (in thousands) of maturities for
1998 through 2002 on long-term debt outstanding at
December 31, 1997 are as follows:

1998 S 350
1999 $12,030
2000 $ 1,050
2001 $16,038
2002 $15,900
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On February 21, 1997, the Company completed the refi-
nancing of $190 million of pollution control revenue bonds
issued by the City of Farmington, all maturing in April
2022. The $60 million 1978 Series A Pollution Control
Revenue Bonds and the $40 million 1979 Series A Pollution
Control Revenue Bonds were refinanced as variable rate
bonds (Pollution Control Revenne Refunding Bonds, $40 million
1997 Series A, $37 million 1997 Series B and $23 million
1997 Series C). The initial variable rates were 3.35% for $40

- million 1997 Series A and $37 million 1997 Series B, and
3.30% for $23 million 1997 Series C. The remaining $90
million 1979 Series A Pollution Control Revenue Bonds
were refinanced with a fixed rate of 6.375% (Pollution
Control Revenue Refunding Bonds, 1997 Series D). The
effect of the refinancing resulted in a decrcase in interest
charges of approximately $1.1 million in 1997,

On December 1, 1997, the Company converted $137.3
million of pollution control revenue bonds from variable
rate to fixed rates. Of the total, $100 million of City of
Farmington bonds (Pollution Control Revenue Refunding
Bonds, $40 million 1997 Series A, $37 million 1997 Series
B, and $23 million 1997 Series C) were converted to a fixed
rate of 5.80% and $37.3 million of Maricopa County,
Arizona Pollution Control Corporation bonds (Pollution
Control Revenue Refunding Bonds, $37.3 million 1992
Series A) were converted to a fixed rate of 5.75%. The City
of Farmington bonds mature on April 1, 2022, and the
Maricopa County, Arizona Pollution Control Corporation
bonds mature on November 1, 2022,

Revolving Credit Facility and Other Credit Facilities

At December 31, 1997, the Company has a $100 million
revolving credit facility (the “Facility”) with an expiration
date of June 30, 1998. The Company must pay commit-
ment fees of 3/10% per year on the total amount of the
Facility. The Company expects to renew the Facility before
its expiration date with a five-year $300 million senior unse-
cured revolving credit facility (“Revolver”). The Company
also has a $100 million credit facility, which expires on May
20, 2001, and is collateralized by the Company’s electricand
gas customer accounts receivable and certain amounts being
recovered from gas customers relating to certain gas con-
tract settlements. As of December 31, 1997, the Company
had $130 million of awvailable liquidity arrangements, con-
sisting of $100 million from the Facility, $15 million from
the accounts receivable securitization, and $15 million from
local lines of credit.
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In November 1997, the Company requested NMPUC
approval to enter into the Revolver. In addition, the
Company intends to borrow $140 million from the
Revolver to retire all of its outstanding taxable first mort-
gage bonds. The Company also requested authority to
exchange the first mortgage bonds currently collateralizing
the outstanding $575 million of tax-exempt polludon con-
trol revenue bonds with senior unsecured notes (“SUNs”).

After completion of these transactions, the 1947
Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust would be extin-
guished, resulting in more administrative, financial and
strategic flexibility for the Company. The extinguishment
of the mortgage requires the consent of one party which has
not yet consented and may not consent. Due to concern
about the consent, the Company also requested NMPUC
authority to lecave an amended mortgage in place. Among
other modifications, the mortgage would be amended such
that only $111 million of tax-exempt pollution control rev-
cnue bonds would have the benefit of the lien. The proper-
ty under the lien would be reduced and no future bonds
could be issued under the mortgage. The SUNs are
planned to be issued under an indenture containing a
restriction on liens (except in certain limited circumstances)
and certain other covenants and restrictions. With the
exception of the $111 million of tax exempt pollution con-
trol revenue bonds secured by first mortgage bonds, the
SUNSs will be the senior debt of the Company. On February
16, 1998, the NMPUC issued an order approving these
transactions. The Company is anticipating completion of
these transactions in mid-March 1998.

Off-Balance Sheet Items
In October 1996, the Company purchased $200 million of
the PVNGS Lease Obligation Bonds (“LOBs”) at a premi-
um with accrued interest and on December 30, 1997, the
Company purchased $28.9 million of 10.15% Series
PVNGS LOBs ata premium with accrued interest,
Although the PVNGS LOB:s are off-balance sheet debt,
these bonds are included in the calculation of the Company’s
debt to capitalization ratio as well as various financial cover-
age ratios by the major rating agencies. The purchase of the
PVNGS LOB:s is treated by the rating agencies as a defea-
sance of the bonds thereby resulting in an improvement to
these ratios. The purchase of the PVNGS LOBs has also
increased eamings in the form of interest income.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The estimated fair value of the Company’s financial instruments (including current maturities) at December 31, is as follows:

1997 1996
CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR
AMOUNT VALUR AMOUNT VALUE
(In thousands)
Long-Term Debt . §714,345 $743,524 $728,889 $731,358
Decommissioning Trust Debt $ 23,000 S 23,000 ) - S -
Investment in PVNGS LOBs $237,774 $236,049 $212,979 $211,327
Decommissioning Trust S 51,857 § 53,900 S 25,641 S 25,600
Fossil-Fucled Plant Decommissioning Trust $ 7,245 S 7273 S 6,785 S 6,785
Rabbi Trust $ 10,080 $ 15,218 S 10,087 S 13,991

Fair'value is based on market quotes provided by the Company’s investnent bankers.
The carrying amounts reflected on the consolidated balance sheets approximate fair value for cash, temporary investments, and
receivables and payables due to the short period of maturity.

{5) EARNINGS PER SHARE

In 1997, the Company adopted SFAS No. 128, Earnings per Share. As a result, dual presentation of basic and diluted earnings
per share has been presented in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings. The following reconciliation illustrates the impact on
the share amounts of potential common shares and the earnings per share amounts:

PER-SHARE

INCOME SHARES AMOUNT
(In thousands except per share amounts)
December 31, 1997
Net Earnings $80,995
Less: Preferred stock dividends (586)
Basic Earnings per Share
Net earnings available for common stock 80,409 41,774 S1.92
Options issued 217
Diluted Eamings per Share ‘
Net earnings available for common stock 580,409 41,991 S1.91
L - - ]
Deccember 31, 1996
Net Earnings $72,580
Less: Preferred stock dividends (586)
Basic Earnings per Share
Net earnings available for common stock 71,994 41,774 S1.72
Options issued 332
Diluted Earnings per Share
Net eamnings available for common stock $71,994 42,106 S1.71
- - ]
December 31, 1995
Net Eamings §75,562
Less: Preferred stock dividends (3,714)
Basic eamings per share
Net camings available for common stock . 71,848 41,774 S1.72
Options issued = 103
Diluted camings per share
Net carnings available for common stock $71,848 41,877 $1.72
. - ]

The adoption of SFAS No. 128 did not have an impact on previously reported earnings per share (basic).
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(6) INCOME TAXES

Income taxes consist of the following components:

1997 1906 1008
(In thousands)
Current Federal income tax $32911 $14815 $45,940
Current state inoome tax 9,859 2,847 5,864
Deferred Federal income tax 8,781 22,372 3,212)
Deferred state income tax 397 4,936 7,031
Amortization of accumulated investment tax credits (4,436) (4,476) “4,442)
Recognition of accumulated deferred investment tax credits
relating to sales of utility property - - (388) |
Total income taxes $46,718 $40,49%4 $ 50,793 |
Charged to operating expenses $38,334 $39,395 $30,194 |
Charged to other income and deductions 8,384 1,099 20,599
Total income taxes $46,718 $40,494 $ 50,793 |

The Company’s provision for income taxes differed from the Federal income tax computed at the statutory rate for each of the |
years shown. The differences are atributable to the following factors: ‘
|
|

1907 1996 1995
(In thousands)
Federal income tax at statutory rates $ 44,700 $39,576 $44,224
Investment tax credits (4,436) 4,476) (4,442)
Depreciation of flow-through items 519 519 723
© Gains on the sale and leaseback of PVNGS ’
Units 1 and 2 (527) 527) (527)
State income tax 5,963 5,192 7,146
Gains on sale of utility property - - 3,090 |
Other 499 210 579 |
“Total income taxes $ 46,718 $ 40,494 $50,793

Deferred income taxes result from certain temporary differences between the recognition of income and expense for tax and financial
reporting purposes, as described in note 1. The major sources of these differences for which deferred taxes have been provided
and the tax effects of each are as follows:

1997 1996 1995
(In thousands)
Deferred fuel costs $ (9,133) S 8234 S (3,990)
Depreciation and cost recovery 6,390 18,048 12,730
Loss provision for the M-S-R power purchase contract - - 3,497
Contributions in aid of construction (3,185) (4,053) (4,308)
Alternative minimum tax in excess of regular tax 12,482 (1,052) (26,002)
Net operating losses utilized - - 55217
PVNGS decommissioning 1,512) 537 @,321)
Gains on sale of utility property - - (29,868)
Contribution to 401(h) plan 3,181 510) (885)
" Regulatory liability - 6,651) -
Curtailment gain - 5,272 -
Transmission project cost - 4,898 3,177
Other 161 2,585 2,926
Net deferred taxes provided S 8,384 $27,308 S 3819
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The components of the net accumulated deferred income tax liability were:
1997 1996
(In thousands)
Deferred Tax Assets:
Alternative minimum tax credit carryforward $ 55,198 S 67,681
Nuclear decommissioning 18,226 16,303
Regulatory liabilitics 50,689 54,430
Other 46,079 48,944
Total deferred tax assets $170,192 $187,358
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Depreciation $182,641 $179,430
Investment tax credit 57,823 62,258
Fuel costs 23,905 33,038
Regulatory asscts 68,524 69,151
Other 16,475 16,005
Total deferred tax liabilitics 349,368 359,882
Accumulated deferred income taxes, net ' $179,176 $172,524

The following table reconciles the change in the net accumulated deferred income tax liability to the deferred income tax expense
included in the consolidated statement of earnings for the period:

Net change in deferred income tax liability per above table S 6,652
Change in tax effects of income tax related regulatory assets and liabilities (3,119)
Tax effect of excess pension liability 410
Deferred income tax expense for the peried S 3,948
| — -]

The Company has no net operating loss carryforwards as of December 31, 1997.

{(7) EMPLOYEE AND POST - RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Pension Plan

The Company and its subsidiaries have a pension plan covering substantally all of their employees, including officers. The plan
is non-contributory and provides for benefits to be paid to eligible employees at retirement based primarily upon years of service
with the Company and the average of their highest annual base salary for three consecutive years. The Company’s policy is to
fund actuarially-determined contributions. Contributions to the plan reflect benefits attributed to employees’ years of service to
date and also for services expected to be provided in the future. Plan assets primarily consist of common stock, fixed income securities,
cash equivalents and real estate. The components of pension cost (in thousands) are as follows:

1997 1906 1998
Service cost ° 8 6535 $ 8,540 $ 6,770
Interest cost 19,592 20,546 18,332
Actual return on plan assets (69,069) (31,211) (42,148)
Net amortization and deferral 44,513 9,577 23,295
Net periodic pension cost 1,571 7,452 6,249
Curtailment gain - (13,317 -
“Total pension expense (income) S 1,571 S (5865 $ 6,249

In December 1996, the Company’s Board approved changes to the Company’s defined benefit pension plan and implementation
of a defined contribution plan no later than January 1, 1998. As a result, the Company recorded a curtailment gain of dpproxi-
mately $13.3 million in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 1996.
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The following scts forth the plan’s funded status and amounts (in thousands) at December 31:

1997 1996

Vested benefits $267,021 $233,687
Non-vested benefits 30,658 13,470
Accumulated benefit obligaton 297,679 247,157
Effect of future compensation levels - 11,894
Projected benefit obligation 297,679 259,051
Fair value of plan asscts 330,550 273,981
Projected benefit obligation less than plan assets (32,871) (14,930)
Unrecognized prior service cost . (146) (180)
Net unrecognized loss from past experience different from assumed and

the effects of changes in assumptions 14,828 (5,814)
Unamortized asset at transition, being amortized through the year 2002 4,650 5,814
Accrued pension asset $ (13,539) $(15,110)

The weighted average discount rate used to measure the projected benefit obligation was 7.75% for 1997 and 1996, and the
expected long-term rate of return on plan assets was 8.75% for 1997 and 1996. The rate of increase in future compensation levels
based on age-related scales was not applicable for 1997 and 4.1% for 1996.

Other Postretirernent Benefits

The Company provides medical and dental benefits to eligible retirees. Currently, retirees are offered the same benefits as active
employees after reflecting Medicare coordination. The components of postretirement benefit cost (in thousands) are as follows:

1997 1996 1998

Service cost S 1,300 S 1,449 S 1,869
Interest cost 4,452 4,478 4,962
Actual retumn on plan assets (6,076) (1,208) 2,726)
Transition obligation amortization 1,817 1,817 1,817
Net amortization and deferral . 4,192 (159 2,498
Toual postretirement benefit expense $ 5,685 $ 6377 $ 8420

. ]

The following sets forth the plan’s funded status and amounts (in thousands) at December 31:

1907 1996

Accumulated benefit obligations fors

Retirees S 26,664 S 25,237

Fully eligible employees 16,079 15,375

Active employees 16,341 17,787
Accumulated benefit obligation 59,084 58,399
Fair value of plan assets 33,159 20,930
Funded status (25,925) (37,469)
Net unrecognized (gain) loss (4,033) 2,416
Unrecognized transition obligation (being amortized through the year 2012) 27,256 29,074
Accrued postretirement liability $ (2,702) S (5,979

L |

Plan assets consist primarily of domestic common stock, fixed income securities and cash equivalents.

The weighted average discount rate used to measure the projected benefit obligation was 7.25% and 7.75% for 1997 and 1996,
respectively, and the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets was 8.75% for 1997 and 1996. The health care cost trend
rate was 8.0% for 1997, 1996 and 1995. The effect of a 1% increase in the health care trend rate assumption would increase the
accumulated postretirement benefit obligation as of December 31, 1997 by approximately $10.5 million and the aggregate ser-
vice and interest cost components of net periodic postretirement benefit cost for 1997 by approximately $1.2 million. The health
care cost trend rate was expected to decrease to 5.0% by 2010 and to remain at that level thereafter.
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Executive Retirement Program

The Company has an exccutive retirement program for a
group of management employees. The program was intend-
ed to attract, motivate and retain key management employees.
The Company’s projected benefit obligation for this program,
as of December 31, 1997, was $19.2 miillion, of which the
accumulated and vested benefit obligation was $19.2 million.
As of December 31, 1997, the Company has recognized an
additional liability of $2.7 million for the amount of unfund-
ed accumulated benefits in excess of accrued pension costs.
The net periodic pension cost for 1997, 1996 and 1995 was
$2.2 million, $2.1 million and $2.0 million, respectively. In
1989, the Company established an irrevocable grantor trust
in connection with the executive retirement program. Under
the terms of the trust, the Company may, but is not obligat-
ed to, provide funds to the trust, which was established with
an independent trustee, to aid it in meeting its obligations
under such program. Marketable securities in the amount of
approximately $10.1 million (fair market value of $15.2 mil-
lion) are presently in wust. No additional funds have been
provided to the trust since 1989,

Stock Option Plans

The Company’s Performance Stock Plan is a non-
qualified stock option plan, covering a group of manage-
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ment employees. Options are granted at the fair market
value of the shares on the date of the grant. Options grant-
ed through December 31, 1995, vested on June 30, 1996,
have an exercise term of up to 10 years. All subsequent
awards granted after December 31, 1995, vest three years
from the grant date of the awards. The maximum number
of options authorized are five million shares through
December 31, 2000,

In addition, the Company has a Director Retainer
Plan which provides for payment of the Directors’ annu-
al retainer in the form of cash, restricted stock or stock
options. The number of options granted in 1997 under
the Director Retainer Plan was 12,000 shares with an
exercise price of $6.625. No options under the Director
Retainer Plan were exercised during 1997. The number
of option shares outstanding as of December 31, 1997
was 16,000.

The fair value of each option grant is determined on
the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model with the following average assumptions used for
grants in 1995, 1996 and 1997, respectively: dividend yield
0f 2.7%, 2.4% and 3.0%; expected volatility of 20%, 18%
and 20%, risk-free interest rates of 5.5%, 5.59% and
5.69%; and cxpected lives of four years.

A summary of the status of the Company’s stock option plans at December 31, and changes during the years then ended is

presented below:

1997 1996 1993
WEIGHTEKD WEIGHTED WEIGHTED
AVERAGR AVERAQE AVERAQE
EXERCISK EXERCISE EXERCISE
FIXED OPTIONS SHARKS PRICE SHARES PRICE SHARES PRICE
Outstanding at beginning of year 846,787  $18.480 508,986 $17.625 - -
Granted 312,707  $23.033 390,228  $19.480 508,986 $17.625
Exercised 98,211  $17.625 51,286  $17.625 - -
Forfeited 13,998  $19.625 1,141 $17.625 - -
Outstanding at end of year 1,047,285  $19.858 846,787  $18.480 508,986 $17.625
— ——— —
Options exercisable at year-end 362,348 456,559 -
Weighted-average fair valuc of options
granted during the year $4.71 $3.56 $3.49
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The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 1997:

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING OPTIONS EXERCISABLE
WEIGHTED

AVERAQE WEIGHTED WEIGHTED

RANGE OF NUMDER REMAINING AVERAQE NUMBDER AVERAGE

EXEZRCISE OUTSTANDING CONTRACTUAL EXERCISE EXERCISADLE AT EXERCISE
PRICES AT 12/31/07 LIFR PRICES 12731797 PRICES
$5.50-56.625 16,000 9.75 years $ 6344 4,000 $5.50
$17.625 - $23.6875 1,031,285 8.93 years $20.06 358,348 $17.625
$5.50- $23.6875 1,047,285 - 8,95 years $19.858 362,348 $17.491

TE— EE——

Had compensation cost for the Company’s performance stock plan been determined consistent with SFAS No. 123,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, the cffect on the Company’s pro forma net earnings and pro forma earnings per share
would be as follows:

1997 1096 1095
(In thousands except per share anmounts)
Net Earnings: (duailable for contmon) As Reported $80,409 $71,994 $71,848
Pro Forma $80,018 $70,952 571,848
Basic EPS: As Reported S 192 S L72 $ 172
Pro Forma $ 192 $ 170 $ 172
Diluted EPS: As Reported S 191 $ 171 $ 172
o Pro Forma $ 190 S 170 $ 172

(8) CONSTRUCTION PROGRAM AND JOINTLY-OWNED PLANTS

It is estimated that the Company’s construction expenditures for 1998 will be api)roximately $141.3 million, including expendi-
tures on jointly-owned projects. The Company’s proportionate share of expenses for the jointly -owned plants is included in oper-
ating expenses in the consolidated statements of earnings.

At December 31, 1997, the Company’s interests and investments in jointly-owned generating facilities are:

CONSTRUCTION
PLANT IN ACCUMULATED WORK IN cComMPOSITE
STATION (FURL TYPE) SERVICE DEPRECIATION PROQGRESS INTEREST
(In thousands)
San Juan Gencrating Station (Coal) $725,308 $341,237 $21,679 46.3%
Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station (Nuclear)* $190,649 $ 40434 $16,537 10.2%
Four Comers Power Plant Units 4 and 5 (Coal) $118,305 $ 55,703 $ 3,812 13.0%

* Includes the Company’s interest in PVNGS Unit 3, the Company’s interest in common facilities for all PVINGS units and the
*22% beneficial interests in the PVNGS Units 1 and 2 leases.
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San Juan Generating Station

The Company operates and jointly owns SJGS. At
December 31, 1997, SJGS Units [ and 2 are owned on a
50% shared basis with Tucson Electric Power Company;,
Unit 3 is owned 50% by the Company, 41.8% by Southern
California Public Power Authority and 8.2% by Tri-State
Generation and Transmission Association, Inc. Unit 4 is
owned 38.457% by the Company, 28.8% by M-S-R Public
Power Agency, California public power agency (‘M-S-R”),
10.04% by the City of Anaheim, California, 8.475% by the
City of Farmington, 7.2% by the County of Los Alamos,
and 7.028% by Utah Associated Municipal Power Systeins.

Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station

The Company has a 10.2% undivided interest in PVNGS.
Commercial operation commenced in 1986 for Unit 1 and
Unit 2 and 1988 for Unit 3. In 1985 and 1986, the
Company completed sale and leaseback transactions for its
undivided interests in Units 1 and 2 and certain related
common facilities.

In 1992, the Company purchased approximately 22% of
the beneficial interests in the PVINGS Units 1 and 2 leases
for approximately $17.5 million, recording $158.3 million
as utility plant and $140.8 million as long-term debt. In
1993, such utility plant was written down to $46.7 million
in conjunction with an electric retail rate reduction.

The PVNGS participants have insurance for public liabil-
ity payments resulting from nuclear energy hazards to the full
limit of liability under Federal law. This potential liability is
covered by primary liability insurance provided by commer-
cial insurance carriers in the amount of $200 million and the
balance by an industry-wide retrospective assessment program.
‘The maximum assessment per reactor under the retrospective
rating program for each nuclear incident occurring at any
nuclear power plant in the United States is approximately
$79.3 million, subject to an annual limit of $10 million per
incident. Based upon the Company’ 10.2% interest in the
three PVNGS units, the Companys maximum potential
assessment per incident for all three units is approximately
$24.3 million, with an annual payment limitation of $3 mil-
lion per incident. The insureds under this liability insurance
include the PVNGS participants and “any other person or
organization with respect to his legal responsibility for dam-
age caused by the nuclear energy hazard”. If the funds pro-
vided by this retrospective assessment program prove to be
insufficient, Congress could impose revenue raising measures
on the nuclear industry to pay claims.
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The PVNGS participants maintain “all-risk” @including
nuclear hazards) insurance for nuclear property damage to,
and decontamination of, property at PVNGS in the aggre-
gate amount of approximately $2.75 billion as of January 1,
1998, a substantial portion of which must be applied to sta-
bilization and decontamination. The Company has also
secured insurance against portions of the increased cost of
generation or purchased power and business interruption

_ resulting from certain accidental outages of any of the three

PVNGS units if the outage exceeds 17 weeks. The
Company is a2 member of two industry mutual insurers.
These mutual insurers provide both the “all-risk” and
increased cost of generation insurance to the Company. In
the event of adverse losses experienced by these insurers,
the Company is subject to an assessment. The Company’s
maximum share of any assessment is approximately $4.3
million per year.

The Company has a program for funding its share of
decommissioning costs for PVNGS. Under a portion of
this program, the Company makes a series of annual
deposits under agreements approved by the NMPUC to an
external non-qualified trust which are applied towards an
investment in life insurance policies on certain current and
former employees. The remaining porton of the nuclear
decommissioning funding program is invested in equities in
qualified and non-qualified trusts. The results of the 1995
decommissioning cost study indicated that the Company’s
share of the PVNGS decommissioning costs will be
approximately $162.6 million (in 1997 dollars).

Pursuant to NMPUC approval, the Company funded an
additional $2.1 million and $12.5 million in 1997 and 1996,
respectively, into the qualified and non-qualified trust funds.
The estimated market value of the trusts, including the net
cash value of the current life insurance policies, at the end
of 1997 was approximately $30.9 million.

{(9) LONQ-TERM POWER CONTRACTS

The Company had two long-term contracts for the purchase
of electric power. Under a contract with M-S-R, which
expired in early 1995, the Company was obligated to pay cer-
tain minimum amounts and a variable component represent-
ing the expenses associated with the energy purchased and
debtservice costs associated with capital improvements. Total
payments under this contract amounted to approximately
$14 million for 1995.

The Company has a power purchase contract with SPS
for up to 200 MW, expiring in May 2011. The Company
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may reduce its purchases from SPS by 25 MW annually upon
three years’ notice. The Company provided such notice to
reduce the purchase by 25 MW in 1999 and by an additon-
al 25 MW in 2000. Also, the Company has 39 MW of con-
tingent capacity obmined from El Paso Electric Company
under a transmission capacity for generation capacity trade
arrangement that increases to 70 MW from 1998 through
2003. In addition, the Company is interconnected with vari-
ous utilities for economy interchanges and mutual assistance
in emergencies.

The Company anticipates the need for approximately 100
to 200 MW of additional capacity in the 1998 through 2000
timeframe. To meet this need, in 1996, the Company entered
into a Jong-term power purchase contract with the Cobisa-
Person Limited Partmership (“PLP”) to purchase approxi-
mately 100 MW of unit contingent peaking capacity from a
gas turbine generating unit for a period of 20 years, with an
option to renew for an additional five years. The gas turbine
generating unit will be constructed and operated by the PLP
and will be located on the Company’s retired Person
Generating Staton site Jocated in Albuquerque, New
Mexico. The site for the generating unit was chosen, in part,
to provide needed benefits to the Company’s constrained
transmission system. In October 1996, the Company filed a
request for approval from the NMPUC. The NMPUC
issued a final order approving the application in September
1997. The final order also included approval of a stipulated
setdement agreement (“Stipulation”) which had earlier been
entered into among the Company, the PLP and the
NMPUC staff to resolve certain issues raised in this pro-
ceeding. The Stipulation included, among other things, a
provision wherein the Company committed, in cooperation
with the NMPUC stff, to the development and evaluation
of a request for proposal (“RFP”) for purchase of approxi-
mately 5 MW of capacity from solar generation resources.
The Company would not be obligated to build such a unitor
commit to such a power purchase agreement prior to
NMPUC approval of a full-recovery mechanism that would
not put the Company at a dompetitive disadvantage.

The NMPUC docketed a new case to follow the progress
of the REFP and address the issue of full-cost recovery. The
RFP was issued on January 16, 1998. Proposals are due on
March 24, 1998. It is expected that contracts with successful
bidders will be signed by June 6, 1998 in order to facilitate the
NMPUC hearing on full-cost recovery, which has been
scheduled for June 15, 1998.
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On December 23, 1997, the PLP received FERC
approval for “exempt wholesale generator” status with
respect to the gas wurbine generating unit, as defined in
Secton 32 of the Public Utlity Holding Company Act.
Under the power purchase agreement, construction of the
gas turbine generating unit is expected to begin in August
1998, with commercial operation and power delivery sched-
uled in May 1999. The operation date was chosen to satisfy
both resource and transmission needs anticipated for the
Company’s jurisdictional load. However, a reduction in the
Company’s load forecast for 1999 combined with technical
issues concerning one of the candidate gas turbines has lead
the Company and PLP to consider a nine to twelve month
delay in the operation date.

Inaddition to the long-term power purchase contract with
the PLE, the Company is pursuing other options to ensure its
additional capacity needs are met.

(10) LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Company leases Units 1 and 2 of PVNGS, certain
transmission facilities, office buildings and other equipment
under operating leases. The lease expense for PVNGS is
$66.3 million per year over base lease terms expiring in
2015 and 2016. Prior to 1992, the aggregate lease expense
for the PVNGS leases was $84.6 million per year over the
base lease terms; however, this amount was reduced by the
purchase of approximately 22% of the beneficial interests in
the PVNGS Units 1 and 2 leases (see note 8). Each
PVNGS lease contains renewal and fair market value pur-
chase options at the end of the base lease term. Covenants
in the Company’s PVNGS Units 1 and 2 lease agreements
limit the Company’s ability, without consent of the owner
participants and bondholders in the lease transactions, (i) to
enter into any merger or consolidation, or (ji) exceptin con-
nection with normal dividend policy, to convey, transfer,
lease or dividend more than 5% of its assets in any single
transaction or series of related transactions.

Future minimum operating lease payments (in thou-
sands) at December 31, 1997 are:

1998 S 79436
1999 79,068
2000 78,711
2001 78,528
2002 78,425
Later years 950,979

Total minimum lease payments

$1,345,147
e

.
.
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Operating lease expense, inclusive of PVNGS leases, was
approximately $80.8 million in 1997, $80.3 million in 1996
and $80.0 million in 1995. Aggregate minimum payments
to be received in future periods under noncancelable sub-
leases are approximately $5.9 million.

(11) ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES
AND RETIRED FOSSIL-FUELED PLANT
DECOMMISSIONING COSTS
The Company is committed to complying with all applica-
ble environmental regulations. Environmental issues have
presented and will continue to present a challenge to the
Company. The Company has evaluated the potential
impacts of the following environmental issues and believes,
after consideration of established reserves, that the ultimate
outcome of these environmental issues will not have a mate-
rial adverse effect on the Company’s financial conditdon or
results of operations.

ELECTRIC OPERATIONS

Santa Fe Generating Station (“Santa Fe Station”)
The Company and the New Mexico Environment
Department (“INMED”) have ¢onducted investigations of
the groundwater contamination detected beneath the former
Santa Fe Station site to determine the source of the conta-
mination. The Company has been and is continuing to
cooperate with the NMED regarding site investigations
and remedial planning pursuant to a Settlement Agreement
between the Company and the NMED. In June 1996, the
Company received a letter from the NMED, indicating that
the NMED believes the Company is the source of gasoline
contamination in a municipal well supplying the City of
Santa Fe and groundwater underlying the Santa Fe Station.
Further, the NMED letter stated that the Company was
required to proceed with interim remediation of the conta-
mination pursuant to the New Mexico Water Quality
Control Commission (“NMWQCC”) regulations. In July
1996, the Company filed an appeal with the NMWQCC
protesting the determination and directives contained in the
NMED’ June 1996 letter. Subsequently, negotiation meet-
ings were conducted between the Company and the NMED
for a resolution of the groundwater contamination issue.
On October 3, 1996, the Company and the NMED
signed an Amendment to the Settlement Agreement con-
cerning the groundwater contamination underlying the site.
As part of the Amendment, the Company agreed to spend
approximately $1.2 million (“Settlement Amount”) for cer-
tain costs related to sampling, monitoring, and develop-
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ment and implementation of a remediation plan.

The amended Settlement Agreement does not, however,
provide the Company with a full and complete release from
potential further liability for remediation of the groundwa-
ter contamination. After the Company has expended the
Setlement Amount, if the NMED can establish through
binding arbitration that the Santa Fe Station is the source of
the contamination, the Company could be required to per-
form further remediation that is determined to be neces-
sary. The Company continues to dispute any contention
that the Santa Fe Station is the source of the groundwater
contamination and believes that insufficient data exists to
identify the sources of groundwater contamination. The
Company has completed an aquifer characterization report
and a groundwater quality report associated with the 40 day
reactivation of the adjacent Santa Fe supply well in July and
August of 1996. These reports strongly suggest the ground-
water contamination does not originate from the Santa Fe
Station site and has been drawn under the site by the pump-
ing of the Santa Fe supply well. In addition, other urban
wells in Santa Fe are likely to be vulnerable to contamina-
tion from off-site sources.

The Company and the NMED, with the cooperation of
the City of Santa Fe, have chosen a remediation plan pro-
posed by a remediation contractor. The City of Santa Fe,
the Company and the NMED have entered into a
Memorandum of Understanding concerning the chosen
remediation plan and the operation of the municipal well
adjacent'to the Santa Fe Station site in connection with car-
rying out that plan. Construction of the remediation system
under the plan is expected to commence in the second quar-
ter of 1998, The system is expected to be in operation early
in the third quarter of 1998,

Person Generating Station (“Person Station”)

The Company, in compliance with the NMED’s Corrective
Action Directive, determined that groundwater contamina-
tion exists in the deep and shallow groundwater at the Person
Station site. The Company is required to delineate the extent
of the contamination and remediate the contaminants in the
groundwater at the Person Station site. The extent of the
contaminant plume in the deep groundwater was assessed
and results were reported to the NMED. The Company cur-
rently is involved with the process to renew the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act post-closure care permit for
the facility. Remedial actions for the decp groundwater will
be incorporated into the new permit. The Company has pro-
posed a monitoring program in conjunction with natural




PpPUBLIC S ERVICE COMPANY o F

attenuation processes as the most cost effective approach for
the deep groundwater remediation. The Company’s current
estimatec to decommission its retired fossil-fueled plants
includes approximately $6.3 million in additional expenses to
complete the groundwater remediation program at Person
Station. As part of the financial assurance requirement of the
Person Station Hazardous Waste Permit, the Company
established a trust fund. The current value of the trust fund
at December 31, 1997, was $7.3 million. The remediation
program continues on schedule.

GAS OPERATIONS

Gas Wellbead Pit Remediation

The New Mexico Oil Conservation Comrmission issued an
order, effective on January 14, 1993, thataffects the gas gath-
ering facilities located in the San Juan Basin in northwestern
New Mexico. The Bureau of Land Management (“BLM”)
has issued a similar order. The order prohibits the further
discharge of fluids associated with the production of natural
gas into unlined earthen pits in specified areas (designated as
“vulnerable areas”) in the San Juan Basin. The order also
required the submission of closure plans for the pits where
further discharge was prohibited. The Company has com-
plied with the orders and has submitted and received

approval for pit closures from the New Mexico Oil

Conservation Division (‘OCD”) and the BLM.

These gas gathering facilities were sold to Williams Gas
Processing-Blanco, Inc., a subsidiary of the Williams Field
Services Group, Inc., of Tulsa, Oklahoma (“Williams”) on
June 30, 1995. As a part of the purchase and sale agreement,
the Company agreed to cease discharge to unlined earthen
pits in designated vulnerable areas and to retain the respon-
sibility for pit closures for a stated period of time and to a
stated dollar amount. The Company has assessed the pitsin
accordance with OCD/BLM directives, and is now in the
process of closing pits and remediating them, if necessary, at
wellhead locations within the designated vulnerable areas.
The Company has submitted a groundwater management
plan to the OCD and has received approval of the plan, and
is proceeding with delineation of groundwater contamina-
ton and, as necessary, cleanup, in accordance with the
approved plan. The Company will address soil and ground-
water contamination within the dollar and time limitations
imposed by the purchase and sale agreement with Williams,
and in accordance with the requirements of the OCD.

In March 1995, the Jicarilla Apache Tribe (“Jicarilla™)
enacted an ordinance directing that unlined surface
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impoundments located within environmenully sensitive
areas be remediated and closed by December 1996, and that
all other unlined surface impoundments on Jicarilla lands be
remediated and closed by December 1998. In 1995, the
Company received a claim for indemnification by Williams,
the purchaser of the Company’s gas githering and process-
ing assets, for the environmental work required to comply
with the Jicarilla ordinance. The Company submitted a clo-
sure/remediation plan to the Jicarillas, which was approved.
The Company’s remediation work pursuant to the plan
commenced in mid-1996, and the costs of remediation are
being charged against the $10.6 million indemnification cap
contained in the purchase and sale agreement between the
Company and Williams. The Company met the require-
ment for closing and remediating pits within the environ-
mentally sensitive area by December 1996, and anticipates
closing and remediating all other pits associated with the
gas gathering and processing assets by the December 1998
deadline specified in the ordinance.

(12) ASSET SALES

In 1995, the Company and its subsidiaries sold certain non-
strategic gas assets for approximately $154 million to
Williams, recognizing an after-tax gain of $12.8 million,
This gain was adjusted to $11.8 million in 1996 due to an
accrual for additdonal gas environmental costs. Under the
NMPUC order approving the sale, the Company is
required to share approximately $35 million from the sale
with customers, which is being credited to the customer’s
bills over five years. After completion of the fifth year, the
amount of gain will be recalculated to include actual expens-
es specified in the agreement, subject to NMPUC review.
As of December 31, 1997, the Company has a remaining
balance of $11.9 million for future years credit to its cus-
tomers. However, as a result of the increase in estimated
sales expense, the Company proposed in another NMPUC
case to rerain $7.2 million of the $11.9 million undil all actu-
al expenses have been accumulated. The NMPUC has not
issued an order on the Company’s proposal. In addition, the
Company, in 1995, sold its water division to the City of
Santa Fe for $51.2 million (exclusive of current assets net-
ted against current liabilities), recognizing an after-tax gain
of $6.4 million. The Company, through its Energy Services
Business Unit, has a contract with the City of Santa Fe to
operate the Santa Fe water systems through the year 2001.
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(13) SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company primarily operates in three business segments, as indicated below. A description of each of the Company’s three
segments and their products, services and markets served is included in Part I of the Annual Report on Form 10-K. Corporate
administrative expenses are allocated to segments based upon the nature of the expense.

Summarized financial information by business segment for 1997, 1996 and 1995 is as follows:

ENERQY
ELECTRIC* GAS SERVICES** OTHER TOTAL
(In thousands)
X997: :
Operating revenues S 722438 $294,769 $118,060 S - S1,135,267
Operating expenses excluding income taxes 576,521 263,738 132,629 - 972,888
Pre-tax operating income (loss) 145,917 31,031 (14,569) - 162,379
Operating income tax (benefit) 36,446 7,587 (5,732) 33 38,334
Operating income (loss) $ 109471 S 23,444 S (8,837) S (33 S 124,045
- . .-~
Depreciation and amortization expense 68,089 S14587 S 26 ] S 82,702

Construction expenditures $ 96,963 $ 31,408 S - $ - S 128371
I T S e N LT D PV P T

Identifiable assets:

Net utility plant 51,276,927 $296,223 $ - h - 81,573,150

Other 509,007 183,097 40,479 7,999 740,582
Total assets 51,785,934 $479,320 $ 40,479 S 7,999 $2,313,732

1996:

Operating revenues $ 645,639 $227,301 $ 10,446 S - S 883,386

Operating expenses excluding income taxes 509,804 191,922 16,246 - 717,972

Pre-tax operating income (loss) 135,835 35,379 (5,800) - 165,414 o

Operating income tax (benefit) 32,422 8,927 (2,296) 342 39,395

Operating income (loss) S 103,413 $ 26452 S (3,504 S (392 $ 126,019

Depreciation and amortization expense ~~ $_ 64,3817 $13022 S 177 S - § 78116

Construction expenditures S 76572 $26497 S 18 - 5 103087
Identifiable assets:
Net utility plant $1,270,141 $281,348 S 1,204 S - $1,552,693
Other 449,478 202,725 13,618 11,800 677,621
Total assets $1,719,619 $484,073 S 14,822 $11,800 $2,230,314
e T S S > Y N
1995:
Operating revenues $ 584,284 $217,985 - S 6,196 S 808,465
Operating expenses excluding income taxes 470,824 190,128 - 3,931 664,883
Pre-tax operating income 113,460 27,857 - 2,265 143,582
Operating income tax 24,884 4,313 - 997 30,194
Operating income S 88,576 S 23,544 - S 1,268 S 113,388
D T T P P P
Depreciation and amortization expense S 63,047 $ 17,248 - S 570 S 80,865
S A Y U S T P
Construction expenditures S 76610 $ 26315 - .S 474 S 107,666
Identifiable assets:
Net utility plant $1,298,103 $276,218 - $ 113 $1,574,434
Other 327,547 125,387 - 8,301 461,235
Total assets $1,625,650 $401,605 - S 8414 52,035,669

L~ S A2 AN I N S S S

* Includes the resources excluded from NMPUC retail rates regulation.
** Encrgy Services began operations in 1996.

On June 30, 1995, the Company sold substantially all of the gas gathering and processing assets of the Company and its gas
subsidiaries and on July 3, 1995, the Company sold its water division (see note 12).

v
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QUARTERLY OPERATING RESULTS
L _______________________________________________________________________________________|

The unaudited operating results by quarters for 1997 and 1996 are as follows:
QUARTER ENDED

MARCH 31 JUNE 30 SEPTEMBER 30 DECEMBER 31
(In thousands except per share amounts)
1997:
Operating Revenues $298,822 $238,742 $285,971 $311,732
Operating Income S 36,693 $ 25,994 $ 34,885 $ 26473
Net Earings $ 24,896 $ 15,567 $ 24319 $ 16,213
Net Earnings per Share (basic) S 059 $ 037 $ 058 $§ 038
Net Earnings per share (diluted) S 059 $ 037 $ 057 § 038
1996:
Operating Revenues $241,904 $197,597 $210,757 $233,128
Operating Income S 38475 $ 25,346 $ 32412 S 29,786
Net Earnings (1) S 26,448 S 13,542 $ 19,940 S 12,650
Net Eamnings per Share (basic) (1) S 063 S 032 S o047 S 030
Net Eamnings per Share (diluted) (1) S 062 S 032 S 047 S 030

In the opinion of management of the Company, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) necessary for a fair
statement of the results of operatons for such periods have been included.

(1) During the quarter ended December 31, 1996, the Company made a provision for loss of $10.0 million, net of tax ($.24 per
comimon share), as a result of the gas rate order, pending the outcome of the appeal. In addition, the Company recorded an
after-tax curtailment gain of $8.0 million (5.19 per common share) related to the change of the Company’s defined benefit
pension plan.

Operating Revenues
per Division

[$227,301]
$118,060
$6.196 $10.446
g
— Op
] Op R
0 Op R
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GLOSSARY
- New Mexico Attorney General
BHP ....oivvvvvnnnnn BHP Minerals International, Inc.
BLM ...oiviiiiiiiinen Bureau of Land Management
COA . ..iviiiiiiiiiiiiarenaass City of Albuquerque
EIP....c.oovianiann, Eastern Interconnection Project
ElPaso vvevevenenvnvnnens El Paso Electric Company
EPNG ..ovvvvrinrannes El Paso Natural Gas Co?npany
FASB ........... Financial Accounting Standards Board
Farmington .......... City of Farmington, New Mexico
FERC......... Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
FourCorners .vovveeaviann Four Corners Power Plant
FPPCAC ...cvivivieneannns Fuel and Purchased Power
; Cost Adjustment Clause
4 | Kilowatt Hour
LOBs .. ................... Lease Obligation Bonds

Los Alamos . . . .The County of Los Alamos, New Mexico

M-SR .eiiienrninananan M-S-R Public Power Agency,
a California public power agency
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NMED ........ New Mexico Environment Department
NMPUC ...... New Mexico Public Utility Commission
oCD .......... New Mexico Oil Conservation Division
PGAC ..... PINMGS'’ Purchased Gas Adjustment Clause
PNMGS ...... Public Service Company of New Mexico
Gas Services, a division of the Company
PRC......ovvireennnns Public Regulation Commission
PVNGS ........ Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station
SDG&E......... San Diego Gas and Electric Company
SEC............. Securities and Exchange Commission
SFAS ...... Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
SICC it San Juan Coal Company
SIGS .ttt San Juan Generating Station
SPS ........... Southwestern Public Service Company
SUNS civvveriarsrnncanenns Senior Unsecured Notes
UAMPS ..... Utah Associated Municipal Power Systems
Williams ......... Williams Gas Processing-Blanco, Inc.,

a subsidiary of the Williams Field Services
Group, Inc,, of Tulsa, Oklahoma
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COMMON STOCK PRICES AND DIVIDENDS DECLARED

(In dollars)

1997
QUARTER DIVIDEND HIGH
1 §0.17 2012
.2 $0.17 18 558

3 $0.17 19 916

4 $0.17 23 15716

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS

Public Service Company of New Mexico
Alvarado Square, Albuquerque, NM 87158
(505) 241-2700

ANNUAL MEETING

The 1998 annual meeting of sharcholders will be held
on Tuesday, April 28, at the UNM Continuing Education
Conference Center, located at 1634 University Boulevard
NE, Albuquerque, NM. The meeting will begin at
9:30 a.m. (MDT).

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

PNM Shareholder Records Department, Alvarado Square -
1104, Albuquerque, NM 87158 Telephone: (800) 545-4425;
Fax: (505) 241-4311 E-Mail: yjohnson@mail.pnm.com

INVESTOR INFORMATION AND
SHAREHOLDER RECORDS INQUIRIES

Investor information is available 24 hours a day, seven days a
week by calling PNM’s sharcholder information line. This
automated system features earnings and dividend information,
news releases, financial statements and a daily stock quote.
Call (800) 840-0PNM.

Other questions concerning stock ownership may be
directed to PNM’ Sharcholder Records Department. Call
1-800-545-4425 or write to the above address.

SECURITIES ANALYST INQUIRIES

Securities analysts, portfolio managers and representatives
of financial institutions seeking information about
PNM should contact Barbara Barsky, Vice President,
Strategy, Analysis and Investor Relations at the corporate
headquarters address, or call (505) 241-2662. E-Mail:
bbarsky@mail. pnm.com

PNM ON THE INTERNET

PNM’s home page on the World Wide Web contains back-
ground information on the company, news releases, financial
information, and an electronic version of our annual report.
Specific information of interest to investors can be found at
WWW.pnin.com

Low

17 14
15 34
1734
1878

1996

DIVIDEND HIGH Low
$0.12 18 34 17 38
$0.12 2011 17 14
$0.12 2038 19
$0.12 1918 18 18

COMMON STOCK LISTING

PNM’s common stock is listed under the symbol PNM and
primarily traded on the New York Stock Exchange. As of
December 31, 1997, there were 17,634 common share-
holders of record.

REQUESTS FOR ANNUAL REPORTS
OR FORM 10-K

‘To obtain an additional copy of this annual rcport or a
copy of the annual Form 10-K filed with the Sccurities
and Exchange Commission, call 800-545-4425, or writce
to Barbara Barsky at the corporate headquarters address.

PUBLIC POLICY ISSUES

PNM encourages its sharcholders to take an active interest
in the legislatve and public policy issues that affect the com-
pany and the utility industry. For more information, contact
PNM’s Investor Relations Department at 1-800-545-4425.

PNM DIRECT
The following investor services are available through PNM’s
direct stock purchase and dividend reinvestment plan:

Direct purchase of PNM stock

PNM offers a direct stock purchase plan to all interested partici-
pants. Shares can be purchased (or sold) at nominal commissions.
Automatic cash contributions

Through PNM Direct participants can make regular cash
contributions to purchase additional shares of PNM com-
mon stock by having funds automatically withdrawn from
their bank accounts.

Direct deposit of dividends
Your PNM quarterly dividends can be deposited automati-
cally into your personal checking or savings account.

Other features and services

= Acceptance of PNM stock certificates for safekeeping

+ Minimum $50 investment; $60,000 maximum per year
Call or write Sharcholder Records for a prospectus on this
popular program.
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City of Anahelm
City of Azusa
City of Banning
City of Burbank
City of Colton
‘ City of Glendalo
Imperial Irrigation District
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‘ Water And Power

City of Pasadena
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Transmission Project
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Transmission Project

I Palo Verdo Nuclear
Generating Station

0] Hoover Uprating
Project

[ San Juan Generating
Station

@ Member Agencies

I—T;w Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA) is a joint
powers authority consisting of 10 municipal utilities and one irrigation
district, who deliver electricity to 2 million customers over an arca of
7,000 square miles, with a total population of 4.8 million.

The members are the municipal utilities of the cities of Anaheim,
Azusa, Banning, Burbank, Colton, Glendale, Los Angeles, Pasadena,
Riverside, and Vernon, and the Imperial Irrigation District.

SCPPA was formed in

1980 to finance the
‘acquisition of gener-

ation and trans-

mission resources

108 A% NEW MEXICO
for it's members.

Currently, SCPPA
has three generation projects and three
transmission projects, bringing power from Arizona, New Mexico, Utah,

and Nevada. ”

The projects were financed through the issuance of tax-exempt bonds,
backed by the combined credit of the SCPPA members participating in
each project. As of June 30, 1997, SCPPA had issued $8.45 billion in
bonds, including refunding bonds, of which $3.16 billion in principal was
outstanding. ‘

SCPPASs role has evolved over the years to include advocacy at the state

and national levels, and cooperative efforts to reduce member costs and

improve efficiency.




Bernard V. Palk |'_:oopcration among SCPPA members reached new levels this year, and paid

high dividends. Facing the enormous challenges of industry deregulation,
we realized that common problems could have common solutions, and that
by presenting a unified position, we could best influence the course of events
to protect our customer/owners.

SCPPA became the local forum for discussion, and the conduit for infor-
mation to and from Sacramento. SCPPA Directors were heavily involved in
shaping the legislation which will change the way we do business in
California, and we are represented on the Boards of both the Independent
System Operator and the Power Exchange.

We are working together to reduce debt service costs and operating
costs on our SCPPA gencrating projects, and are working individually to
reduce local operating costs and to improve customer service.

The individual SCPPA members will decide if and when open access is
in the best interests of our individual utilities and customers, but we will con-
tinue to search for areas where cooperation and joint action can benefit us all.

This year proved the power of cooperation. Next year holds new chal-
lenges, and SCPPA will provide the mechanism to address many of them

cooperatively.

o =4

BERNARD V. PALK
President




Daniel W. Waters

I Restructuring dominated the California electric utility industry this year,

and it certainly dominated my schedule. Along with many of the SCPPA
Directors, I was heavily involved in the debate leading up to the enactment
of AB 1890 in September 1996. SCPPA and its members continued to be
very active in the creation of the Power Exchange and the Independent
System Operator. Protecting our member utilities and their customers has
been our prime goal, and we feel proud of our success. Public power will
not be harmed by this very political process which was driven by the large
industrial customers of the California investor-owned utilities.

Throughout the restructuring process, SCPPA worked closely with
the California Municipal Udtilities Association (CMUA) and the
Northern California Power Agency (INCPA). The successful teamwork on
restructuring has led to cooperative efforts in other areas. Nine SCPPA
members, eight NCPA members, and the Sacramento Municipal Ultility
District are working together to develop a Public Power Restructuring
Education Program to help educate their customers about California’s
emerging electric market.

In addition, five SCPPA members and seven NCPA members are
cooperating on the development of new Customer Information Systems.
We will be watching for other areas where North-South cooperation will

yield common benefits.

SCPPA completed refundings for the Palo Verde Project and the

Southern Transmission Project during this fiscal year, lowering costs for




SCPPA Directors

Left 0o Righe:

Daniel W. Waters
Excerwtive Director
Bernard V. Palk
President

Joseph F. Hsu
Vice President

Eldon A. Cotton
Secretary

both projects. At year’s end, we were working toward a major restructuring

of all the Palo Verde fixed-rate debt, with the goal of lowering the project
cost to market value by 2004.

This was an exciting, challenging year. Cooperation among SCPPA
members, and with our public power cousins in the North, has helped us
shape the immediate future. SCPPA will continue to serve as the hub and
catalyst for the joint actions which will help our members to meet the even

greater challenges to come.

ot VI

DANIEL W. WATERS \
Executive Director




“ volution 1n an Industry—evolution tn an Jrganization

l_Vth:n SCPPA was formed in 1980, many of its members were effectively “land-
locked”, completely dependent on Southern California Edison for their generation and
transmission requirements. Membership in SCPPA allowed them to become generation
and transmission owners. This made their power costs lower and more predictable, gave
them more independence and local control, and gave them a voice in regional planning
and development.

In the 1980’s and early 1990’s, environmental constraints, uncertain price and avail-
ability of oil and natural gas, and continuing load growth led to investment in nuclear
and coal plants by most California utilities. Diversity of fuel type and firm transmis-
sion access were thought to be the route to stable rates in the long term. Conventional
wisdom also said that spreading the cost out over the entire life of the resource was the
most fair to our customers who paid the bills.

In recent years, natural gas has been abundantly available and relatively inexpensive.
New technology and this low fuel cost make it possible to generate electricity at a
much lower cost than our older power plants. The potential for these lower costs is
driving the deregulation of our industry.

Beginning in 1998, California will experience radical change. The investor-owned
utilities will divest a significant portion of their fossil-fueled generation, sell all their

generation into and supply all their needs from a Power Exchange, and turn their trans-

mission over to an Independent System Operator. They will give residential and small

commercial customers a 10% rate decrease, through the sale of billions of dollars




City of Anaheim S ’ o

Edward K. Aghjayan -
Innovation has defined ¥ i
the Ansheim Public \
Utilities since its incep- :

tion in 1885, anddwutilxtyconunucs
its record of innovation by preparing
for the restructured California electric
industry.  Ansheim Public Utilities ) ] )
residencil raes are 28% lowerthanche  theit service area monopoly, and customers will be free to choose any
neighboring competitors’, and the last

three  commercial/industrial  rate

changes have been decreases. In addi- ier.
tion Ansheim Public Uglites has POV CL supplier.

worth of “rate reduction bonds”. Perhaps most importantly, they will lose

entered into a joint venture which will
allow Ansheim to become the fis ci .
in the ation with 3 poblclomned, SCPPA members, as consumer-owned utilities, are not mandated to
privately-run fiber-optic network setv-
ing the dity. . . .
ot . 105743 follow suit, but there will be great political pressure to lower rates and
Power Generated and Purchsed
(in Megawast-Hours) . . . . .
Slf-genenated .+ L 670471 grant customers the right to choose their electricity supplier. SCPPA
Purchased « « « » s« » - - 2240871
Total e rrrnnns 2911342
Transmission (inmiles) . . . . » 1426

Toul Revenes (0005) . - -$244195  members are taking action on many fronts to make their rates competitive
Operating Costs (000s) - 214,323

by the turn of the century, when the full force of competition is expected to hit.

The customers of California’s consumer-owned utilities already enjoy lower aver-

age retail rates than customers of the neighboring investor-owned utilities, [CftyofAzusa

Joseph F.  Hsu
. . . The dtys electric wtility
in addition to the benefits of local control, local employment, and contri- s essblibed in 1895,
. and for most of its histo-
1y Azusa purchased electricity wholesale

. C e
butions to their cities’ general funds. from Southern California Edison. Since
the mid-1980s, dmnghmoccssﬁxllmga-
tion aginst Edison on transmission
The electric utility industry is evolving. SCPPA and its members are lmb‘"; 'mt;;mmm::
as well s from SCPPA, by participating
) X . . ) in Palo Verde Nudear Generating
also evolving. Starting as a tool for joint financing, SCPPA has become a  sution, Hoowr Hydrodkectric Plant,
and San Jusn Generating Scation Unit
#3. By having the ability to diversify its
catalyst and a vehicle for cooperative long-range planning, problem solv- power supply operations, Ansa has
maintained its retail rates at the 1983
level. These competitive rates will help
ing, and political advocacy. Based on a firm belief in the value of public the oy mﬁf’“ﬂ, frasion

H H H H 4 Customersserved . v v 00 v s 14,576
power, SCPPA will continue to evolve in response to its members’ needs. ST,
(in Megawatt-Hours)
Selfgenerated . ... . ... 0
Purchased « -« o v o e s s 403,169
Siles
Retal «overnnnnnn. 210760
Wholesile oo vnos 178956

Toal Revermes (000s) . . . $23,786°
Operating Costs (000s) . . .$24,109*

*Unasakeed

SCPPA






| As of Ocher 31, 1997

Bond Ratings
Owistandng Efftive Avrage Find Moody’s Lreessor Standird &
SCPPA BONDS Princpel (000) Inserest Reces(3) Lik Grs) Maturity Service Rors
Hoower Uprating Project $ 30490 62% 132 Oce 2017 A AA-
Southern Transmission System $ 1166240 43%~72% 214 July 2023
Senior Lien Bonds Aa3 At
Subordinate Lien Bonds' Axn/VMIGL AAA/AL+
Palo Verde Project® $ 974495 44% ~7.1% 436 July 2017
Senior Lien Bonds A2 AA-
Subordinate Lien Bonds Ax/VMIGL AAA/ALF
Multiple Project Revenue Bonds®
Mesd-Adelanto $ 106700 71% 11 July 2013 A3 A
Mead-Phoenix $ 38800 71% 1l July 2013 A3 A
Multiple Project $ 259,100 7.1% 170 July 2020 A3 A
Mead-Adelanto Refunding’ $ 173955 53% 188 July 2015 An AAA
Mead-Phoenix Refinding* $ 51835 53% 188 Jody 2015 An AAA
San Juan Unit 3 $ 231340 56% 142 Jin 2020 An AAA
? Lnsured: 1991 Subordute Virishle Rt Bonds (AMBAC); 1996 Subordinute Serics A Borids (MBLA); 1996 Subordmate Verishle Rate Serics B Bords (FSA).
® Insured: 1992 Sewior Lien Bonds (AMBAC); 1993 Subordinate Bonds (FCIC); 1996 Subordinate Serics A (AMBAC); 1996 Saborlinate Vertalle Rate
Sris B C Bonds (AMBAC) 1991 Subwdous Sris & and B Bk (FS4).
Uncormemitted bord proceeds secured by & guaranterd rate imvesiment contvat v
¢ Dnsured: 1994 Serics A Bonds (AMBAC) City of Banning
* Insared: 1993 Series A Bonds (MBIA).

Palo Verde Operations — This was a year of new records at Palo Verde.

— 29.8 million MWH's produced — a new site record

— 39-day refueling outage for Unit 1 — a new site record

— 37.5-day refueling outage for Unit 3 — another new site record

Unit 2 ended the year having been operational every day of the year, on
its way to a new record of 490 days continuous operation. This was the

ninth longest uninterrupted run ever recorded by a US. nuclear plant.

PRODUCTION COST 1996-97 OPERATIONS
(Operation and Mainierince plus Nuckar Fiel) Generation Capacity
Calendar Cents iltions of Utilization

Year per kWh MWHs) )

1993 202 Unit 1 93 86.5
1994 193 Unit 2 11.0 102.5
1998 1.61 Unit 3 9.5 88.1
1996 14S Aggregate 298 924
1997 1.35 (rargec) Industry average 70.3

Paul Toor
Established in 1913, the
Banning electrical sys-
tem now sexves an ares MRS

of approximately 21 square miles. The
city owns a portion of San Juan Unit
3 and a portion of Mead-Adelanto
and Mead-Phoenix transmission lines.
The service is provided to Banning
customers through the City owned
diseribution system.  With a proven
record of relisbility, the City is com-
mitted to continue to provide quality
sexvice to both present and future cus-
tomers while positioning jtself for
effective delivery of services in a com-
petitive deregulated envitonment,

Customersserved o v o n v o v s 9349
Power Generated and Purchased
(in Megawatt-FHours)
Self-generated v, . oo v i 0
Purdiased .. uvusen 120475
Toal .......... 120475
Transmission (inmiles) ..... 122

Total Revenues (000s) . . . .$13.009
Opetating Costs (000s) . . .$12,920
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City of Burbank

Ronald V. Stassi
Burbank's Public Service
Department began serv- | B
ing both water and elec N . .

tric customers in 1913, and install These records are the measurable results of the reengineering of work
on-site generation in response to a

surge in ind 1al and tdential

growth in the 1940s and 1950s. Today . . . : :
ey o s 1o processes and organization begun by the Operating Agent (Arizona Public
SCPPA projects, as well as firm and

interruptible supplies from other util- . . .

s a0d goverment agenies, nd | Setvice) in 1993. Improvements in teamwork and morale, and reduced

continues to operate jts own local

power plant. . . .

Customers seved - _suse  production cost are further evidence of effective management.

Power Generated and Purchased

(in I\ldrcgamtt-lc;ouxs)
Sdfgenerated -« . . . 101,000 ; ions — Uni ; i

gonered L L0000 San Juan Unit 3 Operations — Unit 3 at the San Juan Generating Station

Totad . ourannnns 1,062,000

Transmission (inmiles) .. ... 398

Touul Reveraes (000).. . . .$93851  in New Mexico performed well this year, as it has each year since SCPPA
Operating Costs (000s) - » .$90,983
purchased a 41.8% share in 1993. Its availability factor was 96.7%, and the five SCPPA
participants took nearly 1.7 million MWHs, the highest yet.

The Limestone Conversion Project is well under way, and running under budget.

When complete, the 3-year project will improve the removal of sulfur Hiéxide from

(City of Colton __
Thomas K. Clarke

maintenance Costs. The Colton municipal
lectric  utility  was
established in 189S5,
Interim Invoicing Agreements continue to encourage high capacity S.i"; )1';:6.‘{:1: 32.:2‘“33"{12
changed from being solely dependent
. “ . . on Southern California Edison for its
factors and lower per unit coal costs, and negotiations are proceeding on a  purdhased power to being actively
engaged in purchasing power from sev-
eral different sources, achieving signife

long-term coal supply contract. Both the Operating Agent (Public Service et cost savings in the process

the flue gasses, and save SCPPA $3 million per year in operating and 7

Customers served . ..., . .15800
] . . [fowchm«atcdandedmtd
Company of New Mexico) and the coal company realize that an economic ~ GoMegwat-Hour)
generated oo uh e e 0
......... 212300
o .. Total s verrrrnnnan 212300
fuel supply is vital to the competitive future of both the plant and the TrnmisionGamies).... .. 83
Total Revenues (000s) . . . .$23,981

Operating Costs (000s) . . .$23,693
coal mine.

Mead-Phoenix /Mead-Adelanto Transmission Projects — Nine SCPPA members own
roughly one-fifth of Mead-Phoenix and one-third of Mead-Adelanto through SCPPA.

The two 500-kV AC transmission lines carry power between the Phoenix area, the

SCPPA
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“City of Glendale

Bernard V. Palk
Incorporated in 1906,
Glendale purchased its | Xy
clectric wtility in 1909, HEA %7
obtaining power from outside suppli-
ers. It received its first power from
Hoover Dam in 1937 and inaugurated
the fitst unit of its own steam generat-
ing plant in 1941 Now called the
Grayson Power Plant, this facility
today has eight generating units.
Glendale continues to purchase 85
percent of its power from outside

Customersserved .. .. ... 82,810
| Power Generated and Purchased
| (in Megawatt-Hours)
Selfogencrated o2 v ue s 144,876
Purchased ......... 962,718
Toal L. iieinins 1,107,594
Transmission (inmiles) .. .... 72

Total Revenues (000s) « . -$122,098
| Operating Costs (000s) . . .$96,923

SCPPA

availability.

Las Vegas area, and Southern California. Both lines successfully completed their first year

of operation.

Hoover Uprating Project — The Uprating Project, which increased the rated
capacity at Hloover Power Plant by 35 percent, continues to be an econom-
ical, renewable resource for nine SCPPA members, six of which financed
their participation through SCPPA. SCPPA is participating in efforts to
identify and mitigate effects on endangered species in the lower Colorado
River area, and is closely monitoring proposals regarding the sale of the
Federal Power Marketing Administrations.

Soutbern  Transmission System (SIS) — The STS is a 488-mile long

+ 500-kV DC transmission line and associated converter stations which delivers power

Los Angeles Department

from the Intermountain Converter Station in Utah to the Adelanto |of Watsr and Power

Eldon A. Cotton
In 1916, the City of Los | {{X/

. . . . . " »” .
Converter Station in Southern California. In its usual “ho-hum”fashion, the £ 4 <0 =

ing clectric power pur-
chased from the Pasadena Municipal

STS delivered nearly 14 million MWH in fiscal year 1996-97, with 99.62%  Power Plunt, and the following year

inaugurated its first generating capacity
at San Francisquito Power Plant No. 1.
In 1922 the city purdhased the remain-
ing distribution system of Southern
California Edison Company within the
aity limits, It is now the Largest munic-
ipally owned elecric wtility in the
nation and is undergoing a major busi-
DeEss restructuring process 1o prepare
for upcoming deregulation,
Customers served . . . . 1,358,000
Power Generated and Purchased
(in Megawatt-FHours)
Selfegenerated . .. .. 10,626,000
Purchased . .

Transmission (inmiles) . .. .3,743
Total Revenues (000s) . .$2,017,100
Operating Costs (000s) .$1447,000
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l——Throughouc fiscal year 1996-97, SCPPA closely monitored the legislative

activities at the state and federal levels and played an active role in educating
elected officials and staff on the unique services, needs, and concerns of
public power systems. As federal lawmakers and regulators continue to
advance proposals to restructure the electric utility industry, these activities
will be increasingly important.

SCPPA emerged as a serious player in the debate leading up to
California’s restructuring legislation, and the final bill bears the marks of

s

SCPPA’s influence.

H
Imperial Irrigation District »-

Kenneth S. Noller

IID entered the power

industry in 1936 and

today seeves a peak load

of 640 MW with 790 MW of gen-
¢rating resources. Among [ID-owned
resources are 24 MW of low head
hydro units along the All American
Canal, 307 MW of gas-fired steam
and combined cpde units, and 162
MW of peaking gas turbines. In addi-
tion to IIDs share of SCPPA
resources comprising 104 MW at San
Juan and 14 MW at Palo Verde, IID
has 179 MW of othet resources under

long-term purdhase contracts.

Transmission Facilities

(inmiles) v ovvvivnnaan 1,648
Total Revenues (000s) . . .$199,766
Operating Costs (000s) . .$201,388

Restructuring was also one of the hot issues on Capitol Hill in 1997, and promises

to be a major legislative issue during 1998. Members of Congress heard from hundreds

of witnesses, including SCPPA, who testified before the Senate Energy and Natural

Resources Committee on several issues key to public power’s ability to compete.

As Congress debates the merits of retail competition, one of the most hotly con-

City of Pasadena

Rufus Hightower
Established in 1906, the | @3 ¥
ity built its first electric | \@

g::’:mting steam plant -‘.L
in 1907 and took over operation of its
municipal street lighting from Edison
Electric. In 1909, Pasadena began the
extension of its operations to coms
mercial and residential customers that
resulted in the replacement of all
Edison clectric service in the city by
1920. In 199697, Pasadena pur-
chased approximately 85 percent of its

Customersserved ... ... 57,978
Power Generated and Purchased
(in Megawact-Hours)
Self.gencrated . o« . .. 185,085
Purchased . ....... 106,627
2 1254712
Transmission Facilities (in miles) .57

Total Revenues (000s) . . .$111,969
Operating Costs (000s) . .$95,654

municipal utility systems in a competitive environment.

tested issues is the private-use limitation on tax-exempt bonds. Throughout
the 105th Congress, investor-owned utilities actively lobbied Congress,
charging that tax exempt bonds and the tax exemption of public power sys-
tems give public power an unfair advantage in a competitive market. SCPPA
and other public power supporters are working to counter these charges by
aggressively educating Members of Congress and Administration officials

on the rationale and need to protect the status of tax exempt bonds for

S CPPA
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City of Riverside

Bill D. Carnahan
Riverside Public Utilities
is positioning itself to
offer competitive rates in
the new deregulated environment,
Power and transmission costs consti- . .. . .
tute the bulk of durges passed on to Nuclear Waste Disposal — SCPPA and its allies in Washington will con-
our customers through rates. Cost
reduction and restructuring efforts at
SCPPA have had significant impact on { { {
SCPRA v had dgniicncimpaccon— tinue to work with government leaders to develop an effective and safe
meeting our lower operating cost tag-

Additional efforts, especially at
B Ve Nudes Gpc“n:%ng nuclear waste storage program.
Station, will be required for Riverside
to compete in future years. '

Custonersserved . oo . u 89,562
Purchased

Other issues of interest to SCPPA and its members include:

Sale of the Power Marketing Administrations (PMA’s) — In contrast to prior

Power Generated and
(in Megawatt-Hours) . . . . “
Self-generated 4 1. .. 27176 years, sale of the federal PMAs was not a legislative priority in 1997.
Purchased ... ..... 1496364
Totd .evnrienn. 1723540
Transmission (in miles . 2,085

Totd R'rw.mxcs(OO;)s)) sy However, the issues of PMA rates and federal ownership may well become

part of the restructuring debate in 1998.
Telecommunications — As part of its legislative strategy, SCPPA is continuing its

dialogue with officials of the Federal Communications Commission to ensure that

City of Vernon

Kenneth J, Do Darlo | ##f —~

Vetnon's Light and Power § R0 .7/
Department began serve |y \ »

ing industrial customers .. @
in 1933, with completion of its diesel
.. . R . . . erati lant. In addition to its
In addition to legislative issue areas, SCPPA hosted for the third straight oo ponct from diesl s phas
recently installed gas turbines, Vernon
now receives power from Palo Verde,

year a group of congressional staff on a fact-finding tour of SCPPA facil-  Hoower snd various uilties, induding
APS, CDWR, SRP, BPA and Edison.

implementation of the 1996 Telecommunications Act preserves the right of

municipal utilities to compete in the teleccommunications arena.

ities. The tour was designed to increase the staff members’ knowledge and  Power Gmerated and Purchased
. (in Megawatt-Hours)

Self-generated

. e . Purchased . . . » » .
understanding of how the legislative debate on restructuring, taxes and other  Tout ,.....) ]

Transmission (inmiles) + ¢ v v o s 24

Total Revenues (000s) . . .$53,774¢

Operating Costs (000s) . .$39,074*

*Unxadited

energy issues affect SCPPA and its members.

PERCENTAGE OF SCPPA MEMBER PARTICIPATION IN SCPPA'S INTEREST

% PALD VERDL

HOCHIR UPRATING
PROXCT

NEAD-AUELANTO
PROXXCT




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

Scptember 11, 1997

To the Board of Directors of the Southern California Public Power Authority

In our opinion, the accompanying combined balance sheet and the related combined statements of operations and of cash
flows after the restatements described in Note 9, present faitly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Southern
California Public Power Authority (Authority) at June 30, 1997 and 1996, and the results of its operations and its cash flows
for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. These financial statements are the respon-
sibility of the Authority’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards which require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial state-
ments, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above.

In our opinion, the accompanying separate balance sheets and the related separate statements of cash flows of the Authority’s
Palo Verde Project, Southern Transmission System Project, Hoover Uprating Project, Mead-Phoenix Project, Mead-Adelanto
Project, Multiple Project Fund and San Juan Project and the separate statements of operations of the Authority’s Palo Verde
Project, Southern Transmission System Project, Hoover Uprating Project, Mead-Phoenix Project, Mead-Adelanto Project and
San Juan Project, after the restatements described in Note 9, present faitly, in all material respects, the financial position of each
of the Projects at June 30, 1997 and 1996, and their cash flows, and the results of operations of the Authority’s Palo Verde
Project, Southern Transmission System Project, Hoover Uprating Project, Mead-Phoenix Project, Mead-Adelanto Project and
San Juan Project for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Authority’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards which require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstate-
ment. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial state-
ment presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above.

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
supplemental financial information, as listed on the accompanying index, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and
is not a required part of the basic financial statements. This information is the responsibility of the Authority’s management.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic financial statements and, in
our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

"]ﬁnw A/ L o brcre L

Price Watethouse LLP
Los Angeles, California

(S C PP AW




SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA PUBLIC POWER AUTHORITY

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
(In thowsands)
June 30, 1997
Soudbern Projea?
Db Transmissin ~ Hoover Mead- Meuad- Mulsiple San Stablization
Verde Systerm Upratirg Phomix Adanso Project Juan and Oxber
Prejea Projec Projet Project Projet Fund Projet Funds Toul
ASSETS
Unility plant:
Production . . .. .. .. ........ $ 615214 $ 183208 $ 798422
Transmission . v v v v v v e v e 0w e 14153 § 674,606 $  SLI8Y & 170,895 910,843
General . .. . ... i i 2,656 18893 2,627 335 7865 ° __ 32376
632,023 693,499 53816 171,230 191,073 1,741,641
Less - Accumulated depreciation . . . . . . ‘. 279927 213844 2.202 5828 4312 544913
352,096 479,655 51,614 165402 147,961 1,196,728
Construction work inprogress « « v o o o o 4 & 10,026 210 10236
Nuclear fucl, atamortized cost . o v v v 0 4 4 & 13514 — _ 13514
Net uwilitypbne . . ..o L0000 375,636 479,655 51,614 165402 148,171 1220478
Special funds:
Available for sale at fair value Note 2X
Decommissioningfund . . . . . . ... .. 43,943 43943
Imestments . . . .. .00 155,763 138550 § 4906 18,586 58380 § 252779 37431 § 4442 670,837
Escrowaccount . . . . . .. o0 . .. 15484 * 15484
Advance to Intermountain Power Agency . . . . 11,550 11,550
Advances for capacity and energy,met . . . L . 24,526 24,526
Interestreceivable . . . . .. ... 1,946 583 6 690 2,057 9288 134 7 14,711
Cashandcashequivalents . . . . . . ... .. 27396 32442 2,503 2,761 4229 73 7.503 10463 87370
229048 198.609 31941 22,037 64,666 262,140 45,068 14912 868421
Accountsreceivable . . . . L L L oL 2,878 2,122 5386 (7.345) 3041
Materialsandsupplies . . . . . .. .. ... 751 3494 11,005
Costs recoverable from (in excess of) future
billingstoparticipants . . . . . . . . .. .. 230497 241,326 (7.042) 4163 14,544 33,706 517,194
Unrealized loss (gain) on investments in funds )
aailibleforsale . . . ... ..., 733 (L116) 74 1 3 s (190)
Unamortized debt expenses, less
accumulated amortization of $118434 . . . . . 182,491 197,675 3,058 9368 26,639 2,805 422,036
$ 1028794 S L6149 S 28031 § 89304 $ 276638 $ 254795 $ 233247 § 15027 S 3,041,985
LIABILITES
Longtermdebt ., . . .. . .00 $ 965151 $ 1065877 S 26999 § 86570 $ 268456 $ 243466 $ 216496 $ 2,873,015
Deferrederedits . . . . v o0 000 e n2 3,073 3185
Current lisbilities:
Long-term debt due withinoneyear . . . . . . . 28,570 21,360 515 6275 56,720
Accruedinterest . . . .. . 00w .. 22,660 24394 402 2,588 7884 8256 5873 72,057
Accounts payable and accrued expenses . . L L 12,413 4406 115 146 298 4603 $ 15027 37.008
Total current liabilities . . . . . . ... .. 63,643 50,160 1,032 2.734 8.182 8256 16,751 15,027 165,785
Commitments and contingencies . . . . . . . . .
$ 1028794 $§ L116149 S 28031 § 89304 S 276638 $§ 254795 S 233247 $ 15027 § 3,041,985

The accerrpanying motes are en integrel part of these financial siaternents,




SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA PUBLIC POWER AUTHORITY
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

. (In thowsands)
June 30,1996
Southern

Py Transmission Hoover Mrad- Mead- Mdriple San

Verde System Uprating Phoenix Adlno Preject Juan

Prejet Preject Preject DPrejet Prejet Fund Project Tl

ASSETS
Utility plant: :

Production &+ o & v v s v s kv v n e e e e S 613,608 ; $ 183309 § 796917

Transmission . - - o @ 2 a s i e e e 14146 $ 674,606 $ 48307 $ 171,068 908,127

General . . .. ... P e e n e e e e s 2,569 18.893 1.971 164 8,613 32210

630,323 693499 50278 171,232 191,922 1,737,254

Less - Acoumulated depreciation . . . . . . . . ... 250,021 194,127 846 1,255 36,622 482,871

380,302 499,372 49432 169,977 155,300 1,254,383
Construction work in progress « o « « o o ¢« @ 4 . 4 4 9,503 3116 3,501 16,120
Nuclear fuel, atamortizedcost « « o & 4 v v ¢ 4 ¢ 4 & 13225 13,225
Netutilityplane . . . . ... ... PR 403,030 499,372 52,548 169,977 158.801 1283.728
Special funds:
Available for sale at fair value (Note 2X
Decommissioningfund . . . v ¢ . o v 0w .. 33474 33474
IMVestments & « 4 o v o s s e v b a s e e s 115,746 102842 § 9,628 21,591 62,562 $ 250888 34,170 597,427
Escrow account - Crossoverseries « . o o « v s = « & 343,898 343,898

Advance to Intermountain Power Agency . . . . . . . . 19,550 19,550

Advances for capacity and energyymet . . . . 4 . . L 25,183 25,183

Interestreceivable .« & v v v 0 d a v e v e e 1,512 2,169 6 841 2,285 9,220 67 16,100

Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . e e e e 67.879 90.324 1997 1548 4,504 7546 173,798

218,611 558,783 36814 23,980 69,351 260,108 41,783 1,200,430
Accountsreceivable . . . . . .. . .. oo 0. .. 738 2,687 19 1,750 4,741 (6402) 925 . 4478
Materials and supplies . . . . . . . e e e P 9,240 3,569 12,809
Costs recoverable from (in excess of) future

billings to participants . . . . . . e et e e e 217,926 215490 (7,526) 1394 4,383 31,780 463447
Unrealized loss on investments in funds

awilableforsale . . .. .. .. Ch e e e 456 2,865 3 9 28 4 3365
Prepaidexpenses &+ . v o . . 0 0 s e e e « 26 66 92
Unamortized debt expenses, less

accumulated amortizationof $139,796 . . . . ¢ . (. 191,712 163,079 3307 9,838 28,123 3090 399,199

. $ L04L713 S 1442276 S 32617 $§ 89595 § 276669 $ 253,706 § 239972 $ 3376548
LIABILITIES
Longtermdebt . . . ... ... ... ... .. S 98LISS $1045292 § 30981 $ 86417 $ 268005 § 242,786 S 222444  $ 2,877,080
Subordinate Refunding .

CrossoverSeries  © v v o v v o o w e n e e e e 347,388 347,388
Deferrederedits & @ v @ 0 v v 0 0 a0 n ww e @ 2,664 2,664
Current liabilities:

Long-term debt due withinoneyear . . . . . v v o 4 25,690 10845 1,085 6,035 43,655

Accruedinterest . . . . . . . . . . e e e e, 24,535 38,436 489 2,588 7.884 8256 5994 88,182

Accounts payable and accrued expenses & . o L . . L 10,333 315 62 590 780 SAY 17,579

Toalcurrentliabilities . . . . . . . o o .. . .. 60,558 49,596 1.636 3,178 8,664 8256 17.528 149.416

Commitments and contingencies « o « v o o @ 4 0 4 - -

$ LO4L7I3 $ 1442276 § 32617 $ 89595 § 276669 S 253706 § 239972 $3376548

The accornpartying moues are an integral part of these financial statements,




SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA PUBLIC POWER AUTHORITY
COMBINED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

(In thowsands)
Year Ended Jire 30, 1997 ’
Sowthern
Palo Transmisskn Hoover Mead- Mrad- San
Verde Systern Uprating Phoenix Alelanto Juan
Project Preject Preject Preject Project Project Tl
Operating revenues:
Salesof clectricenergy . . . . . . . . ... . e e e $ 19507 $ 23521 § 58017 § 180,045
Salesof transmissionservices . . . v v 4 4 e v 4 ek 0w a e s § 85054 $ 3282 § 8194 96,530
Reimbursement to participants . . . v v 4 4w 0 v 00w o4 (8.000) (8.,000)
Totaloperatingrevenues . . . . . v 4w v v 0 e e 119,507 77,054 2,521 3282 8,194 58,017 268,575
Operating expenses:
Amortizationof nudearfuel . . . .. ... L. oL, 7755 7,755
Otheroperations « v « v v v v v v v v s a v s v e e 21411 9,997 2,082 507 875 257 35,129
Mantemance . . . v v v v v h b h h e e e e e e e ke s 5818 4,460 73 207 37,181 47,739
Depreciation . . o 4 v i b v i h e s e e e 18371 19,717 1,356 4,573 9,139 53,156
Decommissioning . . . . . . . P s e e e e e e 11,593 3,113 14,706
Totaloperating expenses + v v v v v s v a s e nwx e s 64,948 34,174 2,082 1.936 5,655 49,690 158,485
Operatingincome  + v v v 4 s v s v s s e e e e 54,559 42,880 439 1346 2,539 8327 110,090
Investmentincome .« v v 4 4 v v b e b h h o h e e e s 11423 17,150 140 1,482 4,313 2241 36,749
Income before debt expensc‘ ................. 65982 60,030 579 2,828 6,852 10,568 146,839
Debtexpense . . . . . . e e 78,553 85.866 1,063 5597 17,013 12,494 200,586
Costs recoverable from future billings
WOPAUUGPANGS « o+ 4 o v & x a s ek e e e e s e (¢ 12571) (§ 25836) (8 484) (8 2769) (8 10161) (§ 1926) (§ 53747)

The accompanyirg nowes are an integral pant of these financial siatements,




N
) * SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA PUBLIC POWER AUTHORITY
COMBINED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
(In thowsends)
Year Endd Jure 30, 1996 )
Southern
Iab Transmission Heover Mead- Mead- San
Verde Sysem Uprating Phoemix Addlerts Jusn
P P P P P P Tl
Operating revenues:
Salesof electricenergy « = v v o 4 i 0 i e e e $ 135464 $ 3349 $ S0117 § 188930
Sales of transmission setvices « &« 4 4 4w 0w w s s $ 85297 $ 226 $ 172 85695
Total operating revenues &« 4 4 v a o v a e s e s e s 135464 85,297 3349 226 172 S0.117 274,625
Operating expenses:
Amortizationof nuclearfuel . . . . .. 0000 a L 7949 7,949
Otheroperations . + .+ v+« « v s s 0 s v e a e 25815 10,192 2200 213 145 314 38,879
Mantenance « v v v v b b s v e s e e e e a e e s . 6317 5236 13 27 35,760 47,353
Depreciation  » v 2 4 v v v o s n s 0 s e s e w e e ey 18,425 +20329 342 1132 9,095 49,323
Decommissioning o . . = & o v 4 s h s e e s e s e n s 12,497 3,113 15,610
Total OPerating eXpenses o o o« o a4 4 xwwwx e ww ok 71,003 35.757 2200 568 1304 48282 159.114
Operatingincome(foss) « o v v v v v v b v e e e e 64,461 49,540 1,149 (342) (L132) 1835 115,511
Investmentincome « = & 2 v o s s v s n s m s s n s e s s e 10,886 28,993 874 410 1174 2,062 44399
Incomebeforedebrexpense . o v v o o L h o s 00 e e 75347 78,533 2,023 68 42 3,897 159,910
Debtexpense . . o o v v it i it e e e e s 82,777 102,710 1370 1462 4425 12,614 205,358
Costs (recoverable from) in excess of future .
billingstoparticipants + + < & & 4 s v s 4 v e e ww e ¢ 7430) (S 24177) S 653 (5 1394) (8 4383) ($_ 8717) ($_ 45448)

The accormpartying motes are an integral part of these financial statements,




SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA PUBLIC POWER AUTHORITY
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(In dhosssands)
Jane 30,1997
Southern Pregas’
9 * Tensmisin  Hoower Mead Mead- Muipl San Suabilizarion
Verde System Uprating Phoenix Adelanso Projeat Jran and Other
Project Project Project Project Project Fund Project Funds Toal
Cash flows from operating activities: /
Operatingincome & v v v v v v w v e e s $ 54559 § 42880 § 439 8 1346 § 2539 $ 8327 $ 110090
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
<ash provided by operating activities -
Depreciastion . . . . . ... ... PR 18,371 19,717 1356 4,573 9,139 53,156
Decommissioning « v v v v v 4 v v s 4 11,593 3113 14,706
Advances for capacity and energy,net . . . 1,710 1710
Amortization of nuclearfuel . . . . . . .. 7,755 7,755
Reimbursement to participants . . . . . . . 8000 8,000
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accountsreceivable . . . . ... L. L (2.140) 2,687 19 @72) (616) 945 493
Materals and supplies . . . . . ... .. 1,729 75 1,804
Otherassets . . . . 0 . W Ve e 25 26 66 nz
Accounts payable and accrued expenses . . . . 2.080 4,203 53 (444) (482) ) 896 4,514
Net cash provided by operating activities . . . . . 93972 77487 2,221 1,912 6,050 __ 20703 . 202,345
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Advances fromparticipants . . . 4 4 404 . $ 16835 16835
Participantwithdrawals . . . . . . . . . ... (2.149) (2.149)
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities . - - - = - = 14,686 14.686
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Payments for construction of facilities . + . . . . (10.325) (“22) (1,623) (12,370)
Payments of interest on long-termdebt . . . . . (51127) (74.876) (1.784) (4.924) (15077) (8 16512)  (12,002) (176,302)
Proceeds fromsaleof bonds . . . . . . . ... 153,034 199,739 352,773
Transfers from escrow account - Crossover series . . 343,898 343,898
Payment for defeasance/redemption of
revenuebonds . .. .. L. 0L (157015)  (561.565) (3.637) (722217)
Repayment of principal onlongtermdebt . . . . (25690)  (10845)  (1.085) (6035) . (43,655)
Decommissioningfund . . . . . . ... ... (10,469) . (10469)
Payment forbond issuecosts . . . . . ... ., (3,558) (2.250) (5.308)
Net cash used for capital and related
financingactivities . . . v . v v e w0 w . (105150) __ (105.899) (6.506) (5346) (15077) (16,512) __ (19.660) (274,150)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received oninvestments . . . . . . . . 10,989 17,741 140 1,633 4,541 18,475 2,174 219 55912
Purchases of investments . . . . . . ... .. 7K (16L198)  (10,663) 939) (9276) (2030)  (25553) (6767)  (328140)
Proceeds from sale/matutity of investments . . . . 71420 113,987 15314 3,953 13487 140 22,293 2,325 242919
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities . (29.305) (29470) 4,791 4,647 8,752 16,585 (1086) _ (4223) (29.309)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . (40483) (57,882) 506 1213 275) 73 (43) 10463 (86,428)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . . . 67.879 90324 1997 1,548 4.504 - 7546 - 173,798
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year . . . . . . $§ 27396 $ 324428 2503 § 2761 S 4229 § 73 $ 7503 S 10463 S 87370




SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA PUBLIC POWER AUTHORITY
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(In dhousands)
Year Ended June 30, 1996
Soutbern
bhb Transmission Hoover Mead- Mead- Mukiple Sun
Vérde Systerm Upratirg Phoenix Adlanso Prejeat Juan
Prejea Project Project Project Project Fod Project Tl
Cash flows from operating activities:
Operatingincome (foss) « + v o v v v w0 0w 0w $ 64461 $ 49540 $  L149 (§ 342) (¢ 1L132) $ 1835 S 1551
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by operating activities -
Depreciastion o o v v ¢ v s o s 0 s v w00 a s 18425 20.329 342 1132 9,095 49323
Decommissioning . « o 4 & v v 4 4 000 ... 12,497 3,13 15,610
Amortization of nuclearfuel . . . . . o000 7,949 7,949
Advances for capacity and energy,nes . . . . L L . 1,784 1,784
Write-off of construction work in progress costs . . . 1313 1313
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable .+ . v . 4. e 4 s . 174 (218) (19) 213 (72) 946 1,024
" Materialsandsupplies . . . ... .. 000 378 110 488
Otherassets .+ « . . . e 55 1977 3467 56 5,558
Accounts payable and accrued expenses . . . L L (6437) (1,943) (D) 556 745 1482 (5,604)
97.502 69.021 2,907 2,746 4140 16,637 192,953
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Payments for construction of facilities . .« . . . . .. (10,892) (13,208) (15.652) (1.938) (41,690)
Payments of interest on long-termdebe . . . . o . . . (64:499) (88.370) (1979) (1.295) @) (816512) (11988)  (188,587)
Proceeds fromsaleof bonds . . . . . .. L0 229483 229483
Payment for defeasance of revenuebonds . . . . . . . . (233.632) (233,632)
Decommissioningfund + o+ v v v v v v w000 e s (8971) 8971
Repayment of principal on long-termdebt . . . . . . . (23,855) (14,325) (610) (38.790)
Payment forbondissuecosts  « « . . 0004w e (4.832) (4.832)
Net cash used for capital and related financing activities . . (117.198) _ (102,695) (2.589) (14,503) (19.596) (16.512) (13926) _ (287.019)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest recenved oninvestments  « < @ v o 4 0 a0 a 10,597 28,631 894 815 1,865 18,380 2,064 63246
Purchasesof investments o+« < v o o v s 0w 0 a s (154,685)  (154904)  (22.665) (3.264) 189 (1.868) (14370)  (360,940)
Proceeds from sale/maturity of investments . . . . . . 182,309 195,593 20.705 14,474 23000 _- 8,867 444,948
* Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities . . . . 38221 69,320 (1.066) 12,025 15,681 16,512 (3439) 147.254
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . . . 18,525 35,646 (748) 268 225 - (728) 53,188
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . . . . . . 49,354 54678 2,745 1280 4279 - 8274 120,610
Cashand cash equivalents atendof year . . . . o o . . . $ 67879 S 90324 S 1997 § 1548 § 4504 § - $§ 7546 S 173,798

The accernparying notes are an integral pant of these firancial stasements

Net cash provided by operating activities . .« « « . . .
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities . . . . . .
|




SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA PUBLIC POWER AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 — Organization And Purpose:
Southern California Public Power Authority (Authority), a public
entity organized under the laws of the State of California, was formed
by a Joint Powers Agreement dated as of November 1, 1980 pursuant
to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act of the State of California. The
Authority’s participant membership consists of ten Southern
California cities and one public district of the State of California. The
Authority was formed for the purpose of planning, financing, develop-
ing, acquiring, constructing, operating and maintaining projects for the
generation and transmission of electric energy for sale to its partici-
pants. The Joint Powers Agreement has a term of fifty years.

The members have the following participation percentages in the
Authority’s interest in the projects at June 30, 1997 and 1996:

Palo '?:::‘s:\l"s‘slon Hoover Mead- Mead- San

Participants Verdo System Uprating  Phoenix  Adelanto  Juan
City of Los Angeles  67.0%  59.5% 248%  357%
City of Anaheim 17.6 42.6% 242 135
City of Riverside 54 102 319 40 13.5
Imperial Irrigation

District 6.5 - 51.0%
City of Vernon 49
City of Azusa 10 42 1.0 22 147
City of Banning 10 2.1 1.0 13 9.8
City of Colton 10 32 10 26 14.7
City of Butbank 44 4.5 160 154 115
City of Glendale 44 23 148 111 9.8
City of Pasadena 44 59 13.8 8.6

1000% ~ 100.0% 100.0% 1000% 1000% 1000%

Mead-Phoenix pasticipation reflects three ownership components (see below).

The members participate in the Projects” Stabilization Fund by making deposits to the fund at their

discretion.

ThcmxbcrsdonotammlypamapaemdneMultxpler)e«Fundasnmtsubhshcd(o
provide funding for unspecified future projects.

Pulo Verde Project = The Authority, pursuant to an assignment agreement
dated as of August 14, 1981 with the Salt River Project (Sale River),
purchased a 5.91% interest in the Palo Verde Nuclear Generating
Station (PVNGS), a 3,810 megawatt nuclear-fueled generating station
near Phocnix, Arizona, and a 6.55% share of the right to use certain
portions of the Arizona Nuclear Power Project Valley Transmission
System (collectively, the Palo Verde Project).

As of July 1, 1981, ten participants had entered into power sales
contracts with the Authority to purchase the Authority’s share of
PVINGS capacity and energy. Units 1, 2 and 3 of the Palo Verde
Project began commercial operations in January 1986, September
1986, and January 1988, respectively.

Southern Transmission System Project — The Authority, pursuant to an agree-
ment dated as of May 1, 1983 with the Intermountain Power Agency
(IPA), has made payments-in-aid of construction to IPA to defray all
the costs of acquisition and construction of the Southern Transmission
System Project (STS), which provides for the transmission of energy
from the Intermountain Generating Station in Utah to Southern

PZY S C P P A]

California. The Authority entered into an agreement also dated as
of May 1, 1983 with six of its participants pursuant to which cach
member assigned its entitlement to capacity of STS to the Authority
in return for the Authority’s agreement to make payments-in-aid
of construction to JPA. STS commenced commercial operations in
July 1986. The Department of Water and Power of the City of
Los Angeles (LADWP), a member of the Authority, serves as project

manager and operating agent of the Intermountain Power Project
{PP).

Hoover Uprating Project — The Authority and six participants entered into
an agreement dated as of March 1, 1986, pursuant to which each par-
ticipant assigned its entitlement to capacity and associated firm encrgy
to the Authority in return for the Authority’s agreement to make
advance payments to the United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR)
on behalf of such participants. The USBR has declared that the Project
is substantially complete. The Authority has an 18.68% interest in the
contingent capacity of the Hoover Uprating Project (HU). All seven-
teen “uprated” generators of the HU have commenced commercial
operations.

Mead-Phoenix Project —The Authority entered into an agreement dated as
of December 17, 1991 to acquire an interest in the Mead-Phoenix
Project (MP), a transmission line extending between the Westwing
substation in Arizona and the Marketplace substation in Nevada. The
agreement provides the Authority with an 18.31% interest in the
Westwing-Mead project component, a 17.76% interest in the Mead
Substation project component and a 22.41% interest in the Mead-
Marketplace project component. The Authority has entered into trans-
mission scrvice contracts for the entire capability of its interest with
nine members of the Authority on a “take or pay” basis. In addition,
the Authority has administrative responsibility for accounting for
the scparatc ownership interest in the project by Western Area
Power Administration (WAPA), who is providing separate funding
(873,011,000 and $72,874,000 at June 30, 1997 and 1996, respec-
tively) for its interest. Commercial operations of MP commenced in
April 1996. Funding was provided by a transfer of funds from the
Multiple Project Fund (Note 4).

Mead-Adelanto Project — The Authority entered into an agreement dated as
of December 17, 1991 to acquire a 67.92% interest in the Mead-
Adelanto Project (MA), a transmission line extending between the
Adelanto substation in Southern California and the Marketplace sub-
station in Nevada. The Authority has entered into transmission service
contracts for the entire capability of its interest with nine members of
the Authority on a “take or pay” basis. In addition, the Authority has
administrative responsibility for accounting for the separate ownership
interest in the project by WAPA, who is providing separate funding
(817,088,000 at June 30, 1997 and 1996) for its interest. Funding
was provided by a transfer of funds from the Multiple Project Fund
(Note 4). Commercial operations commenced in April 1996. LADWP
serves as both construction manager and operations manager.
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Multiple Project Fund — During fiscal year 1990, the Authority issued
Multiple Project Revenue Bonds for net proceeds of approximately
$600 million to provide funds to finance costs of construction and
acquisition of ownership interests or capacity rights in one or more
then unspecified projects for the gencration or transmission of electric
energy.

In August 1992, the Authority’s Board of Directors approved a res-
olution authorizing the use of certain proceeds of Multiple Project
Revenue Bonds to finance the Authority’s ownership interests in the
Mead-Phoenix and Mead-Adelanto projects. Transfers made from the
Multiple Project Fund are sufficient to provide for the Authority's share
of the estimated costs of acquisition and construction of these two
projects, including reimbursement of planning, development and other
related costs.

San Juan Projuct — Effective July 1, 1993, the Authority purchased a
41.80% interest in Unit 3, a 488 megawatt unit and related common
facilities, of the San Juan Generating Station (SJGS) from Century
Power Corporation. Unit 3 is onc unit of a four-unit coal-fired
power generating station in New Mexico. The Authority allocated the
$193 million purchase price to the estimated fair value of the utility
plant ($190 million) and to materials and supplies ($3 million). The
purchase has been financed through the issuance of approximately
$237 million (par value) of San Juan Project Revenue Bonds. The
Authority has entered into power sales contracts for the entire capa-
bility of its interest with five members of the Authority on a “take or
pay” basis.

Projects’ Stabilization Fund — In fiscal 1997 the Authority authorized the
creation of a Projects’ Stabilization Fund. Deposits may be made into
the fund from budget under-runs, after authorization of individual par-
ticipants, and by direct contributions from the participants.
Participants have discretion over the usc of their deposits to pay costs
and expenses of Authority related projects. This fund is not a project-
related fund, therefore, it is not governed by any project Indenture of
Trust. ’

Note 2 — Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies:
The financial statements of the Authority are presented in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles, and substantially in
conformity with accounting principles prescribed by the Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission and the California Public Utilities
Commission. The Authority is not subject to regulation by either of
these regulatory bodies.
The Authority complies with all applicable pronouncements of the
_Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). In accordance
with GASB Statement No. 20, “Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use
Proprictary Fund Accounting” the Authority also complies with
authoritative pronouncements applicable to nongovernmental entitics
(i.e., Financial Accounting Standards Board statements) which do not
conflict with GASB pronouncements.
The financial statements represent the Authority’s share in each
jointly-owned project. The Authority’s share of direct expenses of
jointly-owned projects are included in the corresponding operating

expense of the statement of operations. Each owner of the jointly-
owned projects is required to provide their own financing.

Utility Plant — The Authority’s share of all expenditures, including
general administrative and other overhead expenses, payments-in-aid of
construction, interest net of related investment income, deferred cost
amortization and the fair value of test power generated and delivered to
the participants are capitalized as utility plant construction work in
progress until a facility commences commercial operation.

The Authority’s share of construction and betterment costs associ-
ated with PVINGS is included as utility plant. Depreciation expense is
computed using the straight-line method based on the estimated
service life of thirty-five years. Nuclear fuel is amortized and charged
to expense on the basis of actual thermal energy produced relative to
total thermal energy expected to be produced over the life of the fuel.
Under the provisions of the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982, the
Authority is charged one mill per kilowatt-hour, by the federal govern-
ment, on its share of electricity produced by PVNGS, and such funds
will eventually be utilized by the federal government to provide for
PVNGS’ nuclear waste disposal. The Authority records this charge as a
current year expense.

The Authority’s share of construction and betterment costs associ-
ated with STS, MB MA and SJGS are included as utility plant.
Depreciation expense is computed using the straight-line method based
on the estimated service lives, principally thirty-five years for STS, MA
and MP and twenty-one years for SJGS.

Interest costs incurred by the MP and MA projects through the date
commercial operations commenced (April 1996) are capitalized as
utility plant. Interest costs capitalized in fiscal 1996 were $11,827,000
for the MA project and $3,881,000 for the MP project.

Advances for Capacity and Energy — Advance payments to USBR for the
uprating of the 17 generators at the Hoover Power Plant are included
in advances for capacity and energy. These advances are being reduced
by the principal portion of the credits on billings to the Authority for
energy and capacity.

Nudear Decommissioning — Decommissioning of PVINGS is projected to
commence subsequent to the year 2022. Based upon an updated study
performed by an independent engineering firm, the Authority’s share of
the estimated decommissioning costs is $85.5 million in 1995 dollars
(8390 million in 2022 dollars assuming a 6% estimated annual infla-
tion rate). The Authority is providing for its share of the estimated
future decommissioning costs over the remaining life of the nuclear
power plant (25 to 27 years) through annual charges to expense which
amounted to $11.6 million and $12.5 million in fiscal 1997 and 1996,
respectively. The decommissioning liability is included as a component
of accumulated depreciation and was $99.7 million and $88.1 million
at June 30, 1997 and 1996, respectively.

A Decommissioning Fund has been established and partially funded
at $43.9 million at June 30, 1997. The Decommissioning Fund earned
interest income of $2,690,000 and $1,341,000 during fiscal 1997 and
1996, ;‘cspcctivcly. *

Demolition and Site Reclamations — Demolition and site reclamation of SJGS,
which involves restoring the site to a “green” condition which extsted
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prior to SJGS construction, is projected to commence subsequent to the
year 2014, Based upon a study performed by an independent engincer-
ing firm, the Authority's share of the estimated demolition and site
reclamation costs is $18.7 million in 1992 dollars ($65.3 million in
2014 dollars using a 6% estimated annual inflation rate). The Authority
is providing for its share of the estimated future demolition costs over
the remaining life of the power plant (18 years) through annual charges
to expense of $3.1 million. The demolition liability is included as a
component of accumulated depreciation and was $12.5 million and
$9.3 million at June 30, 1997 and 1996, respectively.

As of June 30, 1997, the Authority has not billed participants for

the cost of demolition nor has it established a demolition fund.

Unamortized Debt Expenses — Unamortized debt issue costs, including the
loss on refundings, are being amortized over the shorter of the terms
of the respective issues or the remaining terms of the bonds refunded,
and are reported net of accumulated amortization. Total deferred loss

on refundings, net of accumulated amortization, was $395,095,000
and $378,070,000 at June 30, 1997 and 1996, respectively.

Investments — Investments include United States Government and
governmental agency securities and repurchase agreements which are
collateralized by such securitics. Additionally, the Mead-Phoenix
Project, the Mead-Adelanto Project and the Multiple Project Fund's
investments are comprised of an investment agreement with a financial
institution earning a guaranteed rate of return. The Southern
Transmission System Project has debt service reserve funds associated
with the 1991 and 1992 Subordinate Refunding Seties Bonds invested
with a financial institution under a specific investment agreement
allowed under the Bond Indenture earning a guaranteed rate of return.
Investments available for sale are carried at aggregate fair value and
changes in unrealized net gains or losses are recorded separately.
Investments are reduced to estimated net realizable value when neces-
sary for declines in value considered to be other than temporary. Gains
and losses realized on the sale of investments are generally determined
using the specific identification method. As discussed in Note 3, all of
the investments are restricted as to their use. '

Cash and Cash Equivalents — Cash and cash equivalents include cash and

all investments with original maturities less than 90 days.

Revenes — Revenues consist of billings to participants for the sales of
clectric energy and of transmission service in accordance with the par-
ticipation agreements. Generally, revenues are fixed at a level to recover
all operating and debt service costs over the commercial life of the
property (see Note 6).

Debt Expense — Debt expense includes interest on debt and the amorti-
zation of bond discounts, debt issuance expense and loss on refunding
costs.

Abitrage Rebate — A rebate payable to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS)
results from the investment of the proceeds from the Multiple Project
Revenue Bond offering in a taxable financial instrument that yields a
higher rate of interest income than the cost of the associated funds.
The excess of interest income over costs is payable to the IRS within
five years of the date of the bond offering and each consecutive five
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years thereafter. The Authority made a payment of $3.8 million at the
end of the initial rebate period during fiscal year 1995, The next rebate
payment to the IRS is due in fiscal year 2000. As of June 30, 1997 and
1996, the Authority had no liability relating to Arbitrage Rebate.

Reclassifications — Certain reclassifications have been made in the fiscal
year 1996 financial statements to conform to the fiscal year 1997
presentation,

Use of Estimates = The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Note 3 — Special Funds:

The Bond Indentures for the six projects and the Multiple Project
Fund require the following special funds to be established to account for
the Authority’s receipts and disbursements. The moneys and investments
held in these funds are restricted in use to the purposes stipulated in the
Bond Indentures. A summary of these funds follows:

Fund Purpose
Construction To disburse funds for the acquisition and construction of
the Project.

Debe Service To pay interest and principal related to the Revenue Bonds,

Revenue To initially receive all revenues and disburse them to other
funds.

Operating To pay operating expenses,

Reserve and To pay capital improvements and make up deficiencies in

Contingency other funds,

General Reserve To make up any deficiencies in other funds.

Advance Payments To disburse funds for the cost of acquisition of capacity.

Proceeds Account To initially receive the proceeds of the sale of the Multiple
Project Revenue Bonds.

Earnings Account To receive investment earnings on the Multiple Project
Revenue Bonds.

Revolving Fund To pay the Authority’s operating expenses.

Decommissioning Fund ~ To accumulate funds related to the future decommissioning
of PVNGS.

Issue Fund To initially receive pledged revenues associated with the
applicable subordinated refunding series’ Indenture of Trust
and pay the related interest and principal.

Escrow account - To initially receive pledged revenues associated with

Subordinate Component 3 of the 1993 Subordinate Refunding Crossover

Refunding Seties’ Indenture of Trust and pay the related interest

Crossover Series and principal.

Acquisition Account To disburse funds for the acquisition and construction of the

or Project Fund Mead-Phoenix, Mead-Adelanto and San Juan projects.

Surplus Fund To make up any deficiencies in other funds of the Mead

Adelanto and Mead-Phoenix projects.

All of the funds listed above, except for the Rcvoiving Fund, are
held by the respective trustees.
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i’alo Verde Project — The balances of the funds required by the Bond

Indenture are as follows, in thousands:

Hoover Uprating Project — The balances in the special funds required by the
Bond Indenture are as follows, in thousands:

Jore 30, Jane 30,
1997 1996 1997 1996
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair Amortized Faic Amortized Fair
Cost Vakse Cost Value Cost Value Cost Vilue
Debe Service Fund - Operating - Working Capital Fund $ 1,724 $ 1721 $ 804 $ 804

Debe Seevice Account $ 42377 8§ 41,695 $ 51386 § S1,394 Debt Service Fund - '

Debt Service Reserve Account 67,317 67,332 74420 74,160 Debt Service Account ' 753 753 2,390 2390
Revenue Fund 1 1 S S Debt Service Reserve Account 3,126 3,081 3,122 3,121
Operating Fund 25812 25,830 20,130 20,134 General Reserve Fund 1,871 184S 5318 5316
Reserve and Contingency Fund 24951 24,982 25924 26,107 Revolving Fund 15 15 - -
Dccommissioninngst Fund 44,399 44.‘“8 34,131 33,740 s 7 .489 $ 7 '41 5 $ 11 634 s 11,631
Issue Fund 24912 24,738 13,026 13,026 .. - -
Revolving Fund 52 52 45 45 Contractual marurities:

Within one year $ 7489 § 7415

$229,781  $229,048 $219,067  $ 218,611 - =

) $ 7489 § 7415

Contractual matunities: _—

Within one year $ 80473 $ 81458 i .

) In addition, at June 30, 1997 and 1996, the Authority had advances

After one year through five years 136,250 134,524 ! y

Afeer five years through ten years 3,238 3246 to USBR of $24,526,000 and $25,183,000, respectively.

After ten years 9,820 9,820 ,

$229781  $229,048 s Mead-Phoenix Project = The balances in the special funds required by the

Southern Transmission System Project — The balances in the special funds

Bond Indenture are as follows, in thousands:

required by the Bond Indenture are as follows, in thousands: 997 2 199%
Amortized Fair Amortized Fais
Joe 30, Cost Vikoe Cost Vike
—L . __199% i Acquisition Account $ 12830 $ 12830 § 12571 § 12571
Cont vfxgm Cost vfx: Debe Service Fund -
Construction fund - Debe Service Account 2,904 2,904 4976 4967
Initial Facilities Account S 246 $§ 246 S 235 S 235 Debt Service Reserve Account 6132 6132 6133 6133
Debt Service Fund - Revenue Fund - - 64 64
Debt Service Account 2,587 2587 21921 21896 Operating Fund 79 7 239 239
Debt Service Reserve Account 21,339 21,379 86,220 86,189 Surpluf Fund 88 88 - -
Operating Fund 6,545 6,545 6015 6,007 Revolving Fund 4 4 6 6
General Reserve Fund 1772 172 4,194 4,194 $ 22037 $22037 $23989 § 23980
Issue Fund 128000 129031 77024 76,794 Contractual maturities:
Escrow Account = Subordinate Within one year $ 2763 $ 3451
Refunding Crossover Series 15439 15,484 346,474 343,903 After one year through five years
8185943  S187,050  $542,098  $539,233 $ 22037 § 22037
Contractual maturities: - -
Within one year $ 62972 § 63412 Mead-Adelanto Project = The balances in the special funds required by the

After one year through five years 28,819 28402
After five years through tenyears 43,031 44,123

After ten years 51121 SL122
$185943  $187,059

In addition, at June 30, 1997 and 1996, the Authority had non-
interest bearing advances outstanding to IPA of $11,550,000 and
$19,550,000, respectively.

Bond Indenture are as follows, in thousands:

Jane 30,
1997 1996
Amortized Faie Amortized Fair
Cost Vale Cost Vidue
Acquisition Account $ 39386 $ 39387 $36979 $ 36979
Debt Service Fund -
Debt Service Account 8322 . 8322 15,194 15,166
Debt Service Reserve Account 16,865 16,865 16,865 16,865
Revenue Fund - - 71 71
Operating Fund - - 264 264
Surplus Fund 88 88 - -
RevolvingFund  * 4 4 6 6
$ 64665 § 64666 $ 69379 $ 69351
Contractual maturities:
Within one year $ 4230 § 6287
After one year through five years 3349 3349
After ten years 57,086 55030
$ 64,665 § 64,666
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Multiple Project Fund —The balances in the special funds required by the
Bond Indenture are as follows, in thousands:

June 30,
1997 1996
Amoctized Fair Amoctized Fait
Cost Vike Cost Vidse
Proceeds Account $256903  $256903  $256,830  $256,830
Eaenings Account 5237 5237 3278 3278
' $262,140  $262,140  $260,108  $260,108
Contractual maturities:
After ten years $262,140  $262,140

San Juan Project — The balances in the special funds required by the Bond
Indenture are as follows, in thousands:

June 30,
1997 1996
Arortized Fair Asmortized Fair
Cost Value Cost Value
Operating Account $ 1932 § 1932 S 1238 § 1238
Operating Reserve 7 7 7 7
Project Fund 553 553 527 527
Debt Service Fund -
Debe Sexvice Account 9,088 9,088 8,607 8597
Debt Service Reserve Account 18,026 18,026 18,031 18,031
Reserve and Contingency 15455 15452 13,377 13,383
Revolving 10 10
$ 45071 § 45068 § 41787 $ 41,783
Contractual maturities:
Within one year $ 12084 S 12,183
After one year through five years 14,961 14,859
After ten years 18,026 18,026
$ 45071 S 45068

Projects’ Stabilization Fund — At June 30, 1997, the Projects’ Stabilization
Fund investments had amortized cost and fair value of $14,986,000
and $14,871,000, respectively. All contractual maturities are within one
year.

Project Investment Sales — There were no proceeds from sales of invest-
ments during fiscal 1997 or 1996.

Note 4 — Long-term Debt:

Reference is made below to the Combined Schedule of Long-term
Debre at June 30, 1997 for details related to all of the Authority’s out-
standing bonds.

Palo Verde Project — To finance the purchase and construction of the
Authority’s share of the Palo Verde Project, the Authority issued Power
Project Revenue Bonds pursuant to the Authority’s Indenture of Trust
dated as of July 1, 1981 (Senior Indenture), as amended and supple-
mented. The Authority also has issued and has outstanding Power
Project Subordinate Refunding Series Bonds issued under an Indenture
of Trust dated as of January 1, 1993 (Subordinate Indenture). The
Subordinate Refunding Bonds were issued to advance refund certain
bonds previously issued under the Senior Indenture.

The bond indentures provide that the Revenue Bonds and
Subordinate Refunding Bonds shall be special, limited obligations of
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the Authority payable solely from and secured solely by (1) proceeds
from the sale of bonds, (2) all revenues, incomes, rents and receipts
auributable to the Palo Verde Project (sce Note 6) and interest on all
moneys or securities (other than in the Construction Fund) held pur-
suant to the Bond Indenture and (3) all funds established by the Bond
Indenture.

At the option of the Authority, all outstanding Power Project
Revenue Bonds and Subordinate Refunding Term Bonds are subject to
redemption prior to maturity, except for the 1996 Subordinate
Refunding Serics A and portions of the 19894, 19924, 1992B and
1993A Series bonds which are not redeemable.

The Bond Indenture requires mandatory sinking fund installments
to be made beginning in fiscal year 2003 (1986 Series A Bonds and
1987 Series A Bonds), 2005 (1989 Series A Bonds), 2010 (1993 Series
A Bonds), and 2008 (1996 Subordinate Refunding Series B). Scheduled
principal maturities for the Palo Verde Project during the five fiscal years
following June 30, 1997 are $28,570,000 in 1998, $30,195,000 in
1999, $32,040,000 in 2000, $33,815,000 in 2001 and $34,785,000 in
2002. The average interest rate on outstanding debt during fiscal year
1997 and 1996 was 5.2% and 5.8%, respectively.

Southern Transmission Systemt Project —To finance payments-in-aid of con-
struction to IPA for construction of the STS, the Authority issued
Transmission Project Revenue Bonds pursuant to the Authority’s
Indenture of Trust dated as of May 1, 1983 (Senior Indenture), as
amended and supplemented. The Authority also has issued and bas
outstanding Transmission Project Revenue Bonds 1991 and 1992
Subordinate Refunding Series issued under Indentures of Trust dated
as of March 1, 1991 and June 1, 1992, respectively. The 1991 and 1992
subordinated bonds were issued to advance refund certain bonds previ-
ously issued under the Senior Indenture.

The bond indentures provide that the Revenue Bonds and
the Subordinate Refunding Series Bonds shall be special, limited oblig-
ations of the Authority payable solely from and secured solely by
(1) proceeds from the sale of bonds, (2) all revenues, incomes, rents and
receipts attributable to STS (sce Note 6) and interest on all moneys or
securities (other than in the Construction Fund) held pursuant to the
Bond Indenture and (3) all funds established by the Bond Indenture.

At the option of the Authority, all outstanding Transmission
Project Revenue and Refunding Bonds are subject to redemption prior
to maturity, except for the 1996 Subordinate Refunding Series A which
is not redeemable.

The Bond Indenture requires mandatory sinking fund msmllmcnts
to be made beginning in fiscal year 2019 (for the 1996 Series B Bonds).
Scheduled principal maturities for STS during the five fiscal years fol-
lowing June 30, 1997 are $21,360,000 in 1998, $21,970,000 in 1999,
$23,110,000 in 2000, $24,455,000 in 2001 and $26,040,000 in
2002. The average interest rate on outstanding debt during fiscal year
1997 and 1996 was 5.1% and 5.6%, respectively.

Hoover Uprating Project — To finance advance payments to USBR for
application to the costs of the Floover Uprating Project, the Authority
issued Hydroclectric Power Project Revenue Bonds pursuant to the
Authority’s Indenture of Trust dated as of March 1, 1986 (Bond
Indenture).



The Bond Indenture provides that the Revenue Bonds shall be spe-
cial, limited obligations of the Authority payable solely from and
secured solely by (1) the proceeds from the sale of the bonds, (2) all
revenues from sales of energy to participants (sce Note 6), (3) interest
or other receipts derived from any moneys or securitics held pursuant
to the Bond Indenture and (4) all funds established by the Bond
Indenture (except for the Interim Advance Payments Account in the
Advance Payments Fund).

At the option of the Authority, all outstanding Hydroelectric Power
Project Revenue Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity.

The Bond Indenture requires mandatory sinking fund installments
to be made beginning in fiscal year 2007 for the 1991 Serics A Bonds
maturing on October 1, 2010 and fiscal year 2011 for the 1991 Series
A Bonds maturing on October 1, 2017. Scheduled principal maturities
for the Hoover Uprating Project during the five fiscal years following
June 30, 1997 are $515,000 in 1998, $550,000 in 1999, $580,000
in 2000, $615,000 in 2001 and $650,000 in 2002. The average
interest rate on outstanding debt during fiscal year 1997 and 1996 was
6.2% and 6.8%, respectively.

During fiscal 1997, the Authority redecmed $3,565,000 of out-
standing Hydroelectric Power Project Revenue Bonds with funds in the
Debt Service Fund.

Multiple Project Fund —To finance costs of construction and acquisi-
tion of ownership interests or capacity rights in one or more projects
expected to be undertaken within five years after issuance, the Authority
issued Multiple Project Revenue Bonds pursuant to the Authority's
Indenture of Trust dated as of August 1, 1989 (Bond Indenture), as
amended and supplemented.

The Bond Indenture provides that the Revenue Bonds shall be
special, limited obligations of the Authority payable solely from, and
secured solely by, (1) proceeds from the sale of bonds, (2) with respect
to each authorized project, the revenues of such authorized project, and
(3) all funds established by the Bond Indenture.

In October 1992, $103,640,000 and $285,010,000 of the
Multiple Project Revenue Bonds were transferred to the Mead-Phoenix
Project and the Mead-Adelanto Project, respectively, to finance the
estimated costs of acquisition and construction of the projects.

A toral of $153,500,000 of the outstanding Multiple Project
Revenuc Bonds are not subject to redemption prior to maturity. At
the option of the Authority, the balance of the outstanding bonds are
subject to redemption prior to maturity.

The Bond Indenture requires mandatory sinking fund installments
to be made beginning in fiscal year 2006 for the 1989 Serics Bonds.
The first scheduled principal maturities for the Multiple Project
Revenue Bonds for fiscal years following June 30, 1997 are $5,400,000
in 2000, $5,800,000 in 2001 and $6,200,000 in 2002. The average
interest rate on outstanding debt during fiscal year 1997 and 1996 was
6.4%.

Mead-Phoemix Project —To finance the Authority’s ownership interest in
the estimated cost of the project, $103,640,000 of the Multiple
Project Revenue Bonds were transferred to the Mead-Phoenix Project
in October 1992, In March 1994, the Authority issued and has

outstanding $51,835,000 of Mead-Phoenix Revenue Bonds under an
Indenture of Trust dated as of January 1, 1994 (Bond Indenture). The
proceeds from the Revenue Bonds, together with drawdowns from
the Debt Service Fund and Project Acquisition Fund, were used to
advance refund $64,840,000 of the Multiple Project Revenue Bonds
previously transferred to the Mead-Phoenix Project.

The Bond Indenture provides that the Revenue Bonds shall be
special, limited obligations of the Authority payable solely from, and
secured solely by, (1) proceeds from the sale of bonds, (2) all revenues,
incomes, rents and receipts attributable to Mead-Phocnix (see Note 6)
and interest on all moneys or sccurities and (3) all funds established by
the Bond Indenture. '

At the option of the Authority, all outstanding Mead-Phoenix
Revenue Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity.

The Bond Indenture requires mandatory sinking fund installments
to be made beginning in fiscal year 2018 for the 1994 Series Bonds.
The first scheduled principal maturities for the Mead-Phoenix Revenue
Bonds for fiscal years following June 30, 1997 are $2,160,000 in 2000,
$2,320,000 in 2001 and $2,480,000 in 2002. The average interest rate
on outstanding debt during fiscal year 1997 and 1996 was 6.3%.

Mead-Adelanto Project —To finance the Authority’s ownership interest in
the estimated cost of the project, $285,010,000 of the Multiple
Project Revenue Bonds were transferred to the Mead-Adelanto Project
in October 1992. In March 1994, the Authority issued and has out-
standing $173,955,000 of Mead-Adelanto Revenue Bonds under an
Indenture of Trust dated as of January 1, 1994 (Bond Indenture). The
proceeds of the Revenue Bonds, together with drawdowns from the
Debt Service Fund and Project Acquisition Fund, were used to advance
refund $178,310,000 of the Multiple Project Revenue Bonds previ-
ously transferred to the Mead-Adelanto Project.

The Bond Indenture provides that the Revenue Bonds shall be
special, limited obligations of the Authority payable solely from, and
secured solely by (1) proceeds from the sale of bonds, (2) all revenues,
incomes, rents and receipts attributable to Mead-Adelanto (see Note 6)
and interest on all moncys or securities and (3) all funds established by
the Bond Indenture.

At the option of the Authority, all outstanding Mead-Adelanto
Revenue Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity.

The Bond Indenture requires mandatory sinking fund installments
to be made beginning in fiscal year 2018 for the 1996 Series Bonds.
The first scheduled principal maturities for the Mead-Adelanto
Revenue Bonds for fiscal years following June 30, 1997 are $5,940,000

_ in 2000, $6,380,000 in 2001 and $6,820,000 in 2002. The average

interest rate on outstanding debt during fiscal year 1997 and 1996 was
5.6%.

San Juan Project —To finance the costs of acquisition of an ownership
interest in Unit 3 of the SJGS, the Authority issued San Juan Project
Revenue Bonds pursuant to the Authority’s Indenture of Trust dated as
of January 1, 1993 (Bond Indenture).

The Bond Indenture provides that the Revenue Bonds shall be
special, limited obligations of the Authority payable solely from, and
secured solely by, (1) proceeds from the sale of bonds, (2) all revenues,




incomes, rents and receipts attributable to San Juan (see Note 6) and
interest on all moneys or securities and (3) all funds established by the
Bond Indenture.

At the option of the Authority, all outstanding San Juan Project
Revenue Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity.

The Bond Indenture requires mandatory sinking fund installments
to be made beginning in fiscal year 2012 for the 1993 Series A Bonds.
The scheduled principal maturities for the San Juan Project Revenue
Bonds during the five fiscal years following June 30, 1997 are
$6,275,000 in 1998, $6,540,000 in 1999, $6,825,000 in 2000,
$7,140,000 in 2001 and $7,480,000 in 2002. The average interest rate
on outstanding debt during fiscal year 1997 and 1996 was 5.3%.

Refunding Bonds — In July 1992, the Authority issued $475,000,000
of Southern Transmission Project Revenue Bonds to refund
$385,385,000 of previously issued bonds. Principal and interest with
respect to the 1992 bonds were allocated into four separate compo-
nents. Each of components 1, 2 and 3 were secured by, and payable
from, investments in its escrow fund until scheduled crossover dates.
Component 4 proceeds of $14,100,000 were used to advance refund
approximately $9,000,000 of bonds in fiscal year 1993. On the
Component 1 Crossover date (January 1, 1994), Component 1 proceeds
of $13,959,000 werc used in fiscal 1994 to advance refund
$13,455,000 of previously issued bonds. On the Component 2
Crossover date (January 1, 1995), Component 2 proceeds of
$5,519,000 were used in fiscal 1995 to advance refund $5,335,000 of
previously issued bonds. On the Component 3 Crossover date (July 1,
1996), Component 3 proceeds of $321,069,000 were used in fiscal
1997 to advance refund $313,050,000 of previously issued bonds.

In September 1996, the Authority issued $42,245,000 of Southern
Transmission Project Revenue Bonds, 1996 Subordinate Refunding
Series A and $121,065,000 of Southern Transmission Project Revenue
Bonds, 1996 Subordinate Refunding Series B to refund $68,720,000
and $127,100,000 of the STS 1986 Refunding Series A and B, respec-
tively. The refunding is expected to reduce total debt service payments
over the next 26 years by approximately $125,382,000 (the difference
between the debt service payments on the old and new debt) and is
expected to result in a net present value savings of approximately
$32,526,000.

In January 1992, $70,680,000 of Palo Verde Special Obligation
Crossover Serics Bonds, were issued, the proceeds of which were placed
in an irrevocable trust to redeem $69,125,000 of previously issued
bonds. On July 1, 1996, trust assets held in escrow of $63,415,000
were used to advance refund $62,000,000 of previously issued bonds.

In August 1996, the Authority issued $89,570,000 of Palo Verde
1996 Subordinate Refunding Series C bonds to refund $95,015,000 of
1986 Refunding Series B bonds. The refunding is expected to reduce
total debt service payments over the next 20 years by approximately
$24,713,000 (the difference between the debt service payments on the
old and new debt) and is expected to result in a net present value sav-
ings of approximately $16,955,000.

In April 1996, the Authority issued $152,905,000 of Palo Verde
1996 Subordinate Refunding Serics A Bonds to refund $163,355,000
of previously issued Palo Verde 1987 Refunding Series A Bonds
and issued $58,870,000 of Palo Verde 1996 Subordinate Refunding
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Series B Bonds to refund $18,555,000 and $40,315,000 of previously
issued Palo Verde 1986 Refunding Series B and 1987 Refunding
Series A Bonds, respectively. The refunding is expected to reduce total
debe "service payments over the next 13 years by approximately
$50,967,000 (the difference between the debt service payments on the
old and new debt) and is expected to result in a net present value
savings of approximately $29,537,000.

On July 1, 1995, the crossover date for the Palo Verde Special
Obligation Bonds Series A, trust assets in escrow of $7,131,000 were
used to advance refund $7,125,000 of previously issued bonds.

In March 1994, the Authority issued $51,835000 of Mead-
Phocenix Project Revenue Bonds and $173,955,000 of Mead-Adelanto
Project Revenue Bonds to refund $243,150,000 of previously issued
Multiple Project Revenue Bonds which were transferred to the Mead-
Phoenix and Mead-Adelanto projects during fiscal year 1993. The
partial refunding of the original issue within five years of its issuance
triggered a recalculation of the arbitrage yield. The recalculation
resulted in a higher arbitrage yield which reduced the rebate liability of
the Authority. At June 30, 1997, cumulative savings due to the rebate
calculation amounted to $7,345,000. This amount was allocated
$1,959,000 and $5,386,000 to the Mead-Phoenix and Mead-Adelanto
Projects, respectively, and is recorded as accounts receivable in the
accompanying combined balance sheet.

At June 30, 1997 and 1996, the aggregate amount of debt in
all projects considered to be defeased was $3,543,995,000 and
$3,535,075,000, respectively.

Interest Rate Swap — In fiscal year 1991, the Authority entered into an
Interest Rate Swap agreement with a third party for the purpose of
hedging against interest rate fluctuations arising from the issuance of
the Southern Transmission Project Revenue Bonds, 1991 Subordinate
Refunding Series as variable rate obligations. The notional amount of
the Swap Agreement is equal to the par value of the bond
($291,000,000 and $291,700,000 at June 30, 1997 and 1996, respec-
tively). The Swap Agrcement provides for the Authority to make
payments to the third party on a fixed rate basis at 6.38%, and for the
third party to make reciprocal payments based on a variable rate basis
(3.9% and 3.1% at June 30, 1997 and 1996, respectively). The bonds
mature in 2019,
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COMBINED SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM DEBT
AT JUNE 30, 1997

(I thowsands)
Da Effutive Maturity on
Preject Serles of Sale Interest Rase Jdy 1 Yocal
Principal:
Palo Verde Project Revenue and RefundingBonds . . . . . . . . 1986A 03/13/86 82% 1997 t0 2006 $ 7,765
1987A 02/11/87 6.9% 1997 10 2017 40,140
1989A 02/15/89 72% 1997 t0 2015 281,585
1992A 01/01/92 60% 1997 to0 2010 7,155
1992B 01/01/92 60% 1997 to 2006 63415
1992C 01/01/92 6.0% 1997 10 2010 10,635
19938ub 03/01/93 55% 1997 to 2017 98,200
1993A 03/01/93 5.5% 1997 10 2017 268,710'
1996A 02/13/96 44% 1997 10 2017 152,905
19968 02/29/96 44% 1997 10 2017 58,870
+ 1996C 08/22/96 42% 2016 to 2017 __ 8570
1,078,950
Southern Transmission System Project ] :
Revenucand RefundingBonds . v v v o v v v o 0w v h o u 1983A 11/22/88 72% 1997 to0 2015 154,085,
' ! 1991A 04/17/91 6:4% 2019 - 291,000
' 1992 Comp 1,2, 4 07/20/92 6.1% 1997 10 2021 35,705
1992 Comp 3 07/20/92 6.1% 1997 10 2021 423,559
1993A 07/01/93 54% 1997 10 2023 119,940
1996A 09/12/96 49% 1997 t0 2006 42245
19968 09/12/96 43% 2019 10 2023 - 121065
1,187,599
Hoover Uprating Project Revenue and
RefundingBonds . + . . . o v v v v o v v i i 1991 08/01/91 62% 1997 to0 2017 31,005
Multiple Project RevenueBonds © o . o v o 0 v 0w 0 0w 0l
Mead-PhoenixProject . . . . o . . o L0000l 1989 01/04/90 7.1% 1999 10 2013 38,800
Mead-Adelanto Project = & o v o v 0 00 0w e e e 1989 01/04/90 7.1% 1999 t0 2013 106,700
MultipleProject . . . v v a0 v i i i e e 1989 01/04/90 7.1% 1999 10 2020 259,100
404,600
Moead-Phoenix Project RevenueBonds « & @ v o ¢ 0 v v 0 0 0 0 1994A 03/01/94 53% 2006 to 2020 51835
Mead-Adelanto Project Revenue Bonds = . o . . o o 0 L .. 1994A 03/01/94 53% 2006 1o 2020 173,955
San Juan Project RevenueBonds . . . . . . . o o a .. .. 1993 06/01/93 5.6% 1997 0 2020 231,340
Total principal amount . . . . . . . e e ‘ 3.159.284
Unamortized bond discount:
PaloVerdeProject o v v ¢ v v v v v v n hna e e s (85229)
Southern Transmission System Project & . o« v 0 v o v 0 0 s (100,362)
Hoover Uprating Project « . &« v v a v v v v 0 v v v v a s (3491)
Mead-PhoenixProject « v v v v vt i v i s e . (4.065)
Mead-AdelantoProject . . . . . 00w e e (12.199)
Multiple Project Fund . . . v v 0 v o o e (15,634)
SanJuanProfect < v v v e e v w e e (8.569)
Total unamortized bond discount . . . 4 4 0 v 0w 0l . 229,549
Longterm debt due withinoneyear o v 0 v v o 0 v v v v W (56,720)
Totallong-termdebt,net . . . . o . o v $ 2,873,015

Note = bonds which bave beem refunded are occhided from this schedule
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Note 5 — Disclosures about Fair Vaite of Financial Instruments:

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
value of each class of financial instruments for which it is practicable
to estimate that value:

Cash and cash equivalents — The carrying value approximates fair value
because of the short maturity of those instruments.

Investments/ Decommissioning _fund/ Escrow account — Subordinate  Refunding
"Crossover Serits/ Crossover escrow accounts — The fair values of investments
are estimated based on quoted market prices for the same or similar
investments,

Long-term debt/ Special Obligation Crossover Series Bonds/Subordinate Refunding
Chrossover Series = The fair value of the Authority’s debr is estimated based
on the quoted market prices for the same or similar issues or on the cur-
rent average rates offered to the Authority for debt of approximately
the same remaining maturities, net of the effect of a related interest rate
swap agreement.

The fair values of the Authority’s financial instruments are as follows
(in thousands):

Jure 30,
1997 1996
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Cost Value Cost Vilue
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 87370 § 87370 S 173,798 § 173,798
Escrow account = Subordinate
Refunding Crossover Series 15439 15484 346,468 343,898
Decommissioning fund 43,924 43,943 33,865 33474
Investments 670,711 670,837 597,831 597,427
Liakiliies
Debt 2,929,735 3211927 2920735 3,210,790
Subordinate Refunding
Crossover Series - - 347,388 385,516
Of Balarce Sheet Financial
Instnonents:
Special Obligation
Crossover Series Bonds - - 63415 67,739
Crossover escrow accounts - - 63,819 63,849

N =

Noto 6 — Power Sales and Transmission Service Contracts:

The Authority has power sales contracts with ten participants of the
Palo Verde Project (see Note 1). Under the terms of the contracts, the
participants are entitled to power output from the PVINGS and are
obligated to make payments on a “take or pay” basis for their propor-
tionate share of operating and maintenance expenses and debt service
on Power Project Revenue Bonds and other debt. The contracts expire
in 2030 and, as long as any Power Project Revenue Bonds are out-
standing, cannot be-terminated or amended in any manner which will
impair or adversely affect the rights of the bondholders.

The Authority has transmission service contracts with six partici-
pants of the Southern Transmission System Project (see Note 1).
Under the terms of the contracts, the participants are entitled to trans-
mission service utilizing the Southern Transmission System Project and
arc obligated to make payments on a “take or pay” basis for their

+ proportionate share of operating and maintenance expenses and debt
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service on Transmission Project Revenue Bonds and other debt. The
contracts expirc in 2027 and, as long as any Transmission Project
Revenue Bonds are outstanding, cannot be terminated or amended in
any manner which will impair or adversely affect the rights of the bond-
holders.

In March 1986, the Authority entered into power sales contracts
with six participants of the Hoover Uprating Project (see Note I).
Under the terms of the contracts, the participants are entitled to capac-
ity and associated firm energy of the Hoover Uprating Project and are
obligated to make payments on a “take or pay” basis for their propor-
tionate share of operating and maintenance expenses and debt service
whether or not the Hoover Uprating Project or any part thercof has
been completed, is operating or is operable, or its service is suspended,
interfered with, reduced or curtailed or terminated in whole or in part.
The contracts expire in 2018, and as long as any Hydroelectric Power
Project Revenue Bonds are outstanding, cannot ‘be terminated or
amended in any manner which will impair or adversely affect the rights
of the bondholders.

In August 1992, the Authority entered into transmission service
contracts with nine participants of the Mead-Phoenix Project (sce
Note 1). Under the terms of the contracts, the participants are entitled
to transmission service utilizing the Mead-Phoenix Project and are
obligated to make payments on a “take or pay” basis for their propor-
tionate share of operating and maintenance expenses and debe service
on the Multiple Project and Mead-Phoenix Revenue Bonds and other
debt, whether or not the Mead-Phocenix Project or any part thereof has
been completed, is operating and operable, or its service is suspended,
interfered with, reduced or curtailed or terminated in whole or in part.
The contracts expire in 2030 and, as long as any Multiple Project and
Mead-Phoenix Revenue Bonds are outstanding, cannot be terminated
or amended in any manner which will impair or adverscly affcce the
rights of the bondholders.

In August 1992, the Authority entered into transmission service
contracts with nine participants of the Mead-Adelanto Project (sce
Note 1). Under the terms of the contracts, the participants are entitled
to transmission scrvice utilizing the Mead-Adelanto Project and are
obligated to make payments on a “take or pay” basis for their propor-
tionate share of operating and ‘maintenance expenses and debt service
on the Multiple Project and-Mead-Adelanto Revenue Bonds and other
debe, whether or not the Mead-Adelanto Project or any part thercof
has been completed, is operating and operable, or its service is sus-
pended, interfered with, reduced or curtailed or terminated in whole or
in parc. The contracts expire in 2030 and, as long as any Multiple
Project and Mead-Adelanto Revenue Bonds are outstanding, cannot be
terminated or amended in any manner which will impair or adversely
affect the rights of the bondholders.

In January 1993, the Authority entered into power sales contracts
with five participants of Unit 3 of the San Juan Project (see Note 1).
Under the terms of the contracts, the participants are entitled to their
proportionate share of the power output of the San Juan Project and
arc obligated to make payments on a “take or pay” basis for their pro-
portionate share of operating and maintenance expenses and debt
service on the San Juan Revenue Bonds, whether or not Unit 3 of the
San Juan Project or any part thercof is operating or operable, or its ser-
vice is suspended, interfered with, reduced or curtailed or terminated in
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whole or in part. The contracts expire in 2030 and, as long as any
San Juan Revenue Bonds are outstanding, cannot be terminated or
amended in any manner which will impair or adversely affect the rights

of the bondholders.

Note 7 — Costs Recoverable from Future Billings to Participants:
Billings to participants are designed to recover “costs” as defined by the
power sales and transmission service agreements. The billings are struc-
tured to systematically provide for debt service requirements, operating
funds and reserves in accordance with these agreements. Those
expenses, according to generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP), which are not included as “costs” are deferred to such periods
when it is intended that they be recovered through billings for the repay-
ment of principal on related debt.

Costs recoverable from future billings to participants are comprised
of the following (in thousands):

" Bulace Fiscal Balance

Jore 30, 1597 30,
1996 Activiey 1997
GAAP items not incduded in ’
billings to participants: -
Depreciation of plant $ 397,651 § 53156 $ 450,807
Amortization of bond discount,
debt issue costs, and cost of
refunding . 268,899 57,968 326,867
Nuclear fuel amortization 19,548 - 19,548
Decommissioning expense 82,843 6,702 89,545
Interest expense 30,899 9,769 40,668
Bond requirements included in billings
to patticipants:
Operations and maintenance,
net of investment income (8 88315)  (13955)  (102.270)
Costs of acquisition of capacity - STS (18,350} - (18,350)
Reduction in debt service billings
due to transfer of excess funds 67,559 99 67,658
Principal repayments (261,689)  (56086)  (317,775)
Other (35,598) (3.906) {39.504)

$ 463447 § 53747 $ 517,194

In March 1997, the Palo Verde Project participants approved a
board resolution which instructs the Authority to increase fiscal 1998
and future billings to Palo Verde participants so as to fully amortize the
current costs recoverable from future billings to participants balance of
$230,497,000 at June 30, 1997 by June 30, 2003 and to prevent the
further accumulation of costs recoverable from future billings to
participants.

Note 8 — Commitments and Contingencies:

In September 1996, Assembly Bill 1890 (Bill) was given final approval.
The Bill, which provides for broad deregulation of the power generation
industry in California, requires the participation of the states investor-
owned utilities. Consumer-owned utilities can participate on a voluntary
basis but must hold public hearings as part of their decision making
process. The Bill, which was supported by the Authority, authorizes the
collection of a transition charge for generation when a consumer-owned
utility opens its service area to competition and participates in the

independent transmission system established by the legislation. The Bill
also mandates the collection of a public benefic charge from all electric
utility customers in the state. Although these funds (currently estimated
at 2.5% of gross revenues) must be spent on renewable resources,
conservation, research and development, or low income rate subsidies,
the governing authority of cach consumer-owned utility will control
actual expenditures.

The Price-Anderson Act (the “Act”) requires that all utilities with
nuclear generating facilities share in papment for claims resulting from
a nuclear incident. The *Act limits liability from third-party claims
to $8.9 billion per incident. Participants in the Palo Verde Nuclear
Generating Station currently insurc potential claims and liability
through commercial insurance with a $200 million limit; the remain-
der of the potential liability is covered by the industry-wide retrospec-
tive assessment program provided under the Act. This program limits
assessments to $79.3 million for each licensee for each nuclear incident
occurring at any nuclear reactor in the United States; payments under
the program are limited to $10 million, per incident, per year. Based
on the Authority’s 591% interest in Palo Verde, the Authority would
be responsible for a maximum assessment of $4.7 million, limited to
payments of $591,000 per incident, per year.

The Authority is involved in various legal actions. In the opinion of
management, the outcome of such litigation or claims will not have a
material effect on the financial position of the Authority or the respec-
tive separate projects.

Noto 9 — Restatement of Prior Years Comparative Financial Statements:
Hoover Uprating Project — The Authority has restated prior year compara-
tive financial statements for the Hoover Uprating Project to reflect
the application of credits on billings to participants for energy and
capacity which reduce advance payments made to USBR (Note 2) in
accordance with Procedures and Practices for the Administration of
Section 6.5 of the Electric Service Contracts dated June 1996. The
effect of the restatement on Costs recoverable from future billings to
participants in the statement of operations for the year ended June 30,
1996 is as follows (in thousands):

Hoover Uprating
Project
Costs recoverable from future billings to participants
as previously reported $239
Adjustment for effect of restatement 892
Costs (recoverable from) in excess of future
billings to participants as adjusted $653

Advances for capacity and energy, net and Costs recoverable from
future billings to participants at July 1, 1995 have also been increased
and reduced, respectively, by $14,172,000 to reflect the retroactive effect
of the restatement on beginning Advances for capacity and energy, net
and Costs recoverable from future billings to participants.

Palo Verde Project — The Authority has restated prior year comparative
financial statements for the Palo Verde Project to reflect amortization
over the remaining life of the bond of debt issue costs associated with

the issuance of the Palo Verde Refunding Bond Series 1985 A and B.
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Unamortized debt expenses and Costs recoverable from future billings
to participants at July 1, 1995 have been reduced and increased, respec-
tively, by $12,981,000 to reflect the retroactive effect of the restatement
on beginning Unamortized debt expenses and Costs recoverable
from future billings to participants. The restatement had no effect on
Costs recoverable from future billings to participants for the year ended
June 30, 1996.

Southern Transmission System Project — The Authority has restated prior year
comparative financial statements for the Southern Transmission System
Project to reflect amortization over the remaining life of the bond
of debt issue costs associated with the issuance of the Southern
Transmission System Project Refunding Bond Series 1985A. The
Authority has also restated prior year comparative financial statements
for the Southern Transmission System Project to reflect bond discount
amortization over the life of the Southern Transmission System Project
Refunding Bond Series 1992 Component 3.

The effect of the restatements on Costs recoverable from future
billings to participants in the statement of operations for the year
ended June 30, 1996 is as follows (in thousands):

Southern Transmission
System Project
Costs recoverable from future billings to participants
as previously reported (S 20,633)
Adjustment for effect of restatement < (3544)
Costs recoverable from future billings to participants
as adjusted (S 24177)

Unamortized debt expenses, Unamortized bond discount and
Costs recoverable from future billings to participants at July 1, 1995
have also been (reduced)/increased by ($559,000), ($7,600,000) and
$8,159,000, respectively, to reflect the retroactive effect of the restate-
ment on beginning Unamortized debt expenses, Unamortized bond
discount and Costs recoverable from future billings to participants.

Combined Total — The effect of thesc restatements on the combined
total of Costs recoverable from future billings to participants in the

statement of operations for the year ended June 30, 1996 is as follows
(in thousands):

Combined
Total
Costs recoverable from future billings to participants
as previously reported ($ 42,796)
Adjustment for effect of restatement (2652)
Costs recoverable from future billings to participants
as adjusted (8 45448)

Advances for capacity and encrgy, net, Unamortized debt expenses,
Unamortized bond discount and Costs recoverable from future billings
to participants at July 1, 1995 have also been increased (reduced) by
$14,172,000, ($13,540,000), ($7,600,000) and $6,968,000, respec-
tively, to reflect the retroactive effect of the restatement on beginning
Advances for capacity and energy, net, Unamortized debt expenses,
Unamortized bond discount and Costs recoverable from future billings
to participants.

Note 10 — Subsequent Event (Unaudited}:
On October 9, 1997, the Authority issued $375,650,000 in Palo Verde
Project bonds as part of a comprehensive Restructuring Plan. The bonds
consist of $29,975,000 of tax-exempt bonds with an effective interest
rate of 4.4%, 1997 Scries A, and $345,675,000 of taxable bonds with
an cffective interest rate of 7.0%, 1997 Series B. The Series A bonds will
be used to advance refund $25,745,000 of 1989 Refunding Series A and
$2,945,000 of 1992 Refunding Series C. Whereas, 1997 Series B will be
used to refund $9,895,000 of 1992 Refunding Series B; $1,980,000 of
1992 Refunding Series C; $238,295,000 of 1993 Refunding Series A;
$98,200,000 of 1993 Subordinate Refunding Series; and $74,475,000
of 1996 Subordinate Refunding Series A; which are restricted from being
refunded on a tax-exempt basis. These bonds will be defeased to matu-
rity with the proceeds from the taxable bond issue. The taxable bonds
were structured as a bullet term bond maturing in 2017.
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SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA PUBLIC POWER AUTHORITY
SUPPLEMENTAL Fmglg)(zlAL INFORMATION

Palo Verde Project

Supplemental Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements in Funds Required by the
Bond Indenture for the Year Ended June 30, 1997

Southern Transmission System Project

Supplemental Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements in Funds Required by the
Bond Indenture for the Year Ended June 30, 1997

Hoover Uprating Project

Supplemental Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements in Funds Required by the
Bond Indenture for the Year Ended June 30, 1997

Mead-Phoenix Project

Supplemental Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements in Funds Required by the
Bond Indenture for the Year Ended June 30, 1997

Mead-Adelanto Project

Supplemental Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements in Funds Required by the
Bond Indenture for the Year Ended June 30, 1997

Muttiple Project Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements in Funds Required by the
Bond Indenture for the Year Ended June 30, 1997

San Juan Project

Supplemental Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements in Funds Required by the
Bond Indenture for the Year Ended June 30, 1997
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SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA PUBLIC POWER AUTHORITY
PALO VERDE PROJECT
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS IN FUNDS
REQUIRED BY THE BOND INDENTURE FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997

(In thowsends)
Decomnis=
Dee .
Serviee Revernae Operating C«wgrmy Lo Funds
Find : Fund Fund Fund 1&1 Toul
BalanceatJune 30,1996 . . . . . . ... ... a o e .. $ 124685 $ 4 $ 19949 § 25582 § 13017 $ 33530 $ 216767
Additions:
Investmenteamnings . . v v v 0 v v hna e e e e e e e 3,944 34 L134 1110 663 1,630 8,515
Distribution of investmenteamnings + + « = & 4 4 0 b 0w w4 - “722) 8,191 (1,153) (1538) (778) -
Discount on investmentpurchases . . . . v 0 0 v 0w ww . . s 723 30 96 432 115 853 2249
Revenuefrompowersales . o . . . v . . . o v oo 81 121,355 19 24 121,479
Distributionof revenues + v v v v v v b e e s e e e e e . 51,719 (126,281) 40,679 2304 23,583 7,996 -
Transferstoescrow forrefundings © . o v v 0 0 v w w0 . L (7,649) (3:333) 258 (1,000) 5433 (6291)
Transfer from escrow for principal and interest payments . . . . . . 717,338 717338
Tol & o . i e e e e e 761434 @ 41033 1332 29,016 10479 843290
Deductions: .
Constructionexpenditures . . . v v v v h ww e na e 2363 . 2363 -
Operatingexpenditures & . v o v vt v v v v s e e 27368 104 &) 27477
Fulcosts . . . . . v v i it h s i s s e 8,044 8044
Bondissuecosts . . . . . 0 .o i e e 1,585 1,585
T T 25,690 25,690
Interestpaid . . . . . . . o e e e 35019 15,603 50,622
Premium and interest paidoninvestments . . . . . . . . . .., 24 6 118 148
Payment of principal and interest on escrowbonds . . . . . . . . -717.338 717,338
Toradl . . o o e e e e e 778071 - 35412 2,363 17,298 123 833,267
BalanceatJune30,1997 . . . . .. L. o s e e $ 108048 § - § 25570 § 24551 $ 24735 § 43886 $ 226,790
This schedule summarizes the receipts and disb in funds required under the Bond Indenture and has been prepared from the trust statements. The balances in the funds consist of cash and invest-
ments at original cost. These balances do not inchude accrued interest receivable of $1,471 and $1,245 and Decommissioning Fund accrued interest receivable of $475 and $267 at June 30, 1997 and 1996,
respectively, nor do they include total amortized net investment discounts of $1,045 and $788 at June 30, 1997 and 1996, respectively. These balances also do not include lized loss on & in

funds available for sale of $733 and $456 at func 30, 1997 and 1996, respectively.
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SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA PUBLIC POWER AUTHORITY
SOUTHERN TRANSMISSION SYSTEM PROJECT
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS IN FUNDS
REQUIRED BY THE BOND INDENTURE FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997

(In thowsands)
Construction
Fund-Initial Dde Gaural
Fanlities Service Operating Reserve Isswe Esorow
Arcount Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Toal
BalanceatJune30,1996 . . . . . . . . i i i e e $ 234 § 106411 $ 6051 $ 4157 $ 76219 $ 343874 $ 536946
Additions:
Bondinterestreceived . . v . o 0 0 0 i e s e e e e e e s 254 254
Investmentearnings « o v v v v 0 v s v a0 s e s e e s Y 3,639 450 328 6,964 11,392
Distribution of investment €armings  + + + <+ 4 v 4 0 00 e u s (3238) 10499 @327) 15807  (22831) -
Revenue from transmissionsales . .« o v v @ o & 0 @ v 00 ... 91,689 91,689
Distributionof revenue  « v < 4 4 v i s e e v e e s 0.0 = (26,158) (87,758) 7,561 86415 19,940 -
Transfer from escrow for principal and interest payments . . . . . . 202,372 202,372
Otherneotipts « o » v ¢ 0 o 2 c s o s o s s s s s 5 o 0 s s $$ 42 12 109
Total . . . 0 v e e e e e e e e e 11 176,670 14,922 7,562 109,542 (2.891) 305,816
Deductions: . = & v ¢ v 4 & & 4 0 s e 0 0 v v 0 o a s e a s
* Operatingexpenses = . 4 4 1 s v v s e e e v s e e a s 14,437 14,437
T T 10,845 10,845
Interesepaid . . & o v v o h i e e e e 25,507 47,682 73,189
Payment for defeasance of revenuebonds . . o . . o ool 31,310 326,539 357,849
| Payment of principal and interest onescrowbonds . . . . . .. . 202,372 202,372
Premium and interest paid on investment purchases . . . . . . . . . 172 59 231
BondissucCOsts « o o o o =« v o o = 2 2 8 8 5 v 4 4 w4 . 174 3228 3402
Total . & 0 v e b e s e e e s s e s e e e 259,535 14,437 61,814 326,539 662,325
BalanceatJune 30,1997 . . . v v v v v i e i v e $ 245 S 23546 § 6536 S 1,719 0§ 123947 § MA444 S 180437

This schedule summarizes the receipts and disbursements in funds required under the Bond Indenture and has been prepared from the trust statements. The balances in the funds consist of cash and invest-
,  ments at original cost. These balances do not include acerued interest receivable of $583 and $2,169 at June 30, 1997 and 1996, respectively, nor do they inchude total amortized net investment discounts of
$4.923 and $2,983 at June 30, 1997 and 1996, respectivelys These balances do not include unrealized (gain) foss on investments in funds available for sale of ($1,116) and $2,865 at June 30, 1997 and 1996,

respectively,
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SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA PUBLIC POWER AUTHORITY
HOOVER UPRATING PROJECT
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS IN FUNDS
REQUIRED BY THE BOND INDENTURE FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997

(In thowsands)
Dde
Adarce Working Debt Service Gereral
yrents ating Reverue Capital Service Reserve Reserve
;‘?ml I?:d Fund Fund Ateount Ascosnt Fiend Towal
BalanceatJune 30,1996 , . . . . . . v 0w . $ - $ 238§ - $ 560 § 2371 § 308 $ 5259 $ 1511
Additions:
Investmenteamnings . . « v 0 o v v . 0w ... 60 5 27 36 25 153
Distribution of investmentearnings . . . . . . . . (60) 476 (58) 178) (180) -
Discount on investment purchases . . o o . . . . . 31 142 185 328
Revenue frompowersales . . o v v v 0 o 0. 2,553 2,553
Distributionof sevenues « . . o 4w 4w a0 u 508 (2.014) 1284 222 -
Transfer from escrow for interest payments . . . . . . 30260 30,260
Miscellneous transfers . . . . . . o 0w . 804 (1.020) 3852 (3,636) -
Tol ... ....... .0 0., = 1312 - - 35396 - (G414 33294
Deductions:
Paymentof principal . . . . .. .. ... ... 4,650 4,650
Administrative expenditures . . . . . . L. . .. 33§ 335
Interestpaid . . . . . .00 e 1855 1,855
Payment of interest onescrowbonds . . . . . . L 30260 30,260
Other . . ... i it 43 252 295
Tol . . ... e : - 378 - = 37,017 = - 37,395
Balance atJune 30,1997 . . . . . ... ... $ - $ L7722 S - § 560 $ 750 $ 308 S 1845 $§ 7410

ments at original cost. These bal do not include accrued interest receivable of $6 at June 30, 1997 and 1996, nor do they indlude total amortized net investment discount of $73 and $117 at June 30,
1997 and 1996, respectively. These balances also do not include unrealized loss on i s in funds available for sale of $74 and $3 a¢ June 30, 1997 and 1996, respectively.

This schedule summarizes the receipts and disbursements in funds required under the Bond Indenture and has been prepared from the trust statements. The balinces in the funds consist of cash and invest-
|




SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA PUBLIC POWER AUTHORITY
MEAD-PHOENIX PROJECT
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS IN FUNDS
REQUIRED BY THE BOND INDENTURE FOR)THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997

(I
Dee
Deke Service
Acquisition Service Reserve Revenwe Liswe Operating Surpls
Ateoent Atcosent Aseount Fund Fund Fund Fund Tl

Balance at June 30,1996 . . . . . . . . .. «... 8 12080 $ 2367 $ 5916 § 65 & 2525 § 237 § - $ 2319

Additions:
Investment earnings « « « v « « = « o o s 0 5 o4 s 950 145 435 3 82 14 2 1,631
Transferof investments . . .« . . . . s v e (930) (435) 1,365 -
Reimbursement fromWAPA . . . . . . . e 222 222
Transmissionrevenue .+ . « v v 4 =« o b o« 0o« a - 2912 ' 2912
Transfer of monthly transmissioncosts . « + « + - . (502) 416 86 -
Transferof funds .« « ¢« « & ¢ v v 0 v v P 2,550 (2,700) 150 - -
1 950 1,765 = (65) 1447 580 88 4,765

Deductions:
Construction expenditures . . . . 4.0 o 0. 364 364
Interestpaid o o 0 0 0 0 0 i o i e e a e o 2642 2,534 5176
Premium and interest paid on investment purchases . . 58 58
Operating expenses « o « v 4 ¢« 0+ @« o« .. 289 739 1028
Total . . v e e e 653 2,642 2.592 739 6,626
Balinceat June30,1997 . . . . . . oo a0 $ 12377 $§ 1490 $ 5916 § - $ 1380 S 78 $ 88 § 21329

This schedule summarizes the receipts and disbursements in funds required under the Bond Indenture and has been prepaced from the trust statements. The balances in the funds consist of cash and invest-
ments at original cost. These balances do not include accrued interest receivable of $690 and $841 at June 30, 1997 and 1996, respectively, nor do they include total amortized net investment discount of $18
and premium of $42 at June 30, 1997 and 1996, respectively. These balances do not include unrealized loss on investments in funds available for sale of $9 at June 30, 1996,

(S CPPAEK]




SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA PUBLIC POWER AUTHORITY |
MEAD-ADELANTO PROJECT
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS IN FUNDS
REQUIRED BY THE BOND INDENTURE FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997

(I thousands)
Dy
Deke Service
Asquisition Service Reserve Operating Liswe Reverne Surpls
Ascorent Account Account Fund Fund Fund Fund Toul

Balance at June 30,1996 . . . . . . . .. vea . § 35665 $ 6497 § 16267 S 263 $ 8474 § 71 § $ 67237
Additions:

Investment eamnings « v v v v v 6 0 0 4w ... 2,667 384 1,196 14 274 8 2 4,545

Transfer of investmenteamnings . . . . . . . . . . 1,196 (1.196) -

Reimbursement fromWAPA . . . . .. ... .. 15 15

Transfersof funds . . . & . v v v 0 v v h w .. 3048 150 4,301 (7,585) 86 -

TANSMISSIONTEVENUE &+ & « & 2 & v + = = s 2 « » 7943 7943

Transfer of monthly transmissioncosts . . . . . . . 452 (452) -

2 2,667 . 4,628 - 616 4575 (71) 83 12,503

Deductions:

Construction expenditures . . . . . . . . .. .. (O] U]

Interestpaid . . . . . .. ... e e e s 7270 8,505 15775

Premium and interest paid on investment purchases . . O] 195 194

Operatingexpenses o o« v v v u v v v v a s 365 851 1216

[
Total . ... e e e e 364 7.269 851 8.700 - 17,184 |

Balance at June30,1997 . . . . . . . ... .. .. S 37968 § 3856 § 16267 $ 28 $§ 4349 § - § 88 § 62,556

This schedule summarizes the receipts and disbursements in funds required under the Bond Indenture and has been prepared from the trust statements. The balances in the funds consist of cash and invest-
ments at oniginal cost. These balances do not indude accrued interest receivable of $2,057 and $2.285 at June 30, 1997 and 1996, respectively, nor do they include total amortized net investment discount
of $53 and premium of $143 at June 30, 1997 and 1996, respectively. These balances do not indude untealized loss on i s in funds available for sale of $1 and $28 at June 30, 1997 and 1996,
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SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA PUBLIC POWER AUTHORITY
MULTIPLE PROJECT FUND
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS IN FUNDS
REQUIRED BY THE BOND INDENTURE FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997
(t dhowsandy)
Dd¢
Proceeds Service Earnirgs
Ascount Account Ascount Taal

Balance atJune 30,1996 . . . . . o i . i v i h e e s e e e e e S 249423 $ - $ 1,465 $ 250888
Additions:

Investmenteamnings o + o « ¢ o o s 4 s s 0 s 4 b e e n s e e e e 18,208 268 18476

Transferto carningsaccount . o v v 4 s 4 s s s 4 b 4 s x s s e s s e e e (18208) 18,208 -

Transfertodebtserviceaccount &+ v 4 v v v 4 b i s w ks s e s e e e e e 16,512 (16,512) -

Total o . i e e e e e e s e e e e e e e - 16,512 1,964 18476

Deductions:

Interestpaid . 0 0 0o v i i i i i e e e e s s e e 16,512 16,512

Othertransfers  « o+ v v o 0 v 0w 0 a s s e e e s e e e e (1,696) 1,696 -

Total o o v st e e e e e e m e e e e e e e (1.696) 16,512 1,696 16.512

Balance at June 30,1997 . . . .. . .. e e e e § 247727 $ - $ 5,125 $ 252852

’I'hissdwdulcsmmmizesdxmipumddisbursmunuinﬂmds«quimdund«deondlndmnmux!hub«npnpnrdﬁvmd\emmsmmwmxﬂwbahn«sindwﬁmdscomisxofixmsunmuax
oniginal cost. These balances do not include acerued interest receivable of $9,288 and $9,220 at June 30, 1997 and 1996, respectively.
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SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA PUBLIC POWER AUTHORITY
SAN JUAN PROJECT
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS IN FUNDS
REQUIRED BY THE BOND INDENTURE FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997
(In thewsands)
Operating D
Reverae Operating Reserve Prejct Deke Service Reserve &
Find Arcovnt Auont Fund Service Reserve Contingency Toul
BalinceatJune30,1996 . . . . . v v v . .. § - § 1253 § 5 § 526 $ 8521 § 18025 $ 13321 § 41651
- Additions:
Investmentearnings « v 2 v v v v v 4w x s s e s 42 60 25 38 1,066 5§34 1,765
Distribution of investment earnings . . . . . . . . 2,221 73) @ @m (1,066} (769) -
Discount on investment purchases . . . . . . . . . - 7 3 1 279 24} 528
Revenue frompowersales . . . . . oo o ... 56,866 56,866
Distributionof revenues + .+ v 0 v 0 00w .. . (56330) 35,689 18,514 2,127 -
Transfer of investmenteamnings . . . « . . . . . . @) 2 -
Miscellaneous transfers  « v v« v 0 4 4 e v . e (2,797) 2,797 - -
Toal . ... ... ..., - 38480 26 18,520 - 2,133 59,159
Deductions:

v Administrativeexpenditures . . . . L L. L L. . 37,794 37,794
T 11,988 11,988
Premium and interest on investment purchases . . . . 6 110 116
Prncipalpayment . . . . .. . . 000 . . 6035 6035

Toal . ... e e 37,794 18,029 110 55933
BabinceatJune30,1997 . . . . . ... ... ... $ - § 1939 § 5 § S52 8§ 9012 § 18025 § 15344 S 44877

This schedule summarizes the receipts and disbursements in finds required under the Bond Indenture and has been prepared from the trust statements. The balances in the funds consist of cash and
investments at original cost, These balances do not include accrued interest receivable of $134 and $67 at June 30, 1997 and 1996, respectively, nor do they include total amortized net investment discount
of $60 and $69 at June 30, 1997 and 1996, respectively. These balances do not inchude unrealized loss on investments in funds available for sale of 33 and $4 at June 30, 1997 and 1996, respectivelys
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